
  
 

 
 

  

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
Thursday, December 16, 2021 

at 
8:00 A.M. 

 
At 

Kern Health Systems 
2900 Buck Owens Boulevard 

Bakersfield, CA  93308 
 
 

The public is invited. 
 

For more information - please call (661) 664-5000. 
 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

1 / 308





 

AGENDA 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS 
2900 Buck Owens Boulevard 
Bakersfield, California 93308 

 
Regular Meeting 

Thursday, December 16, 2021 
 
 

8:00 A.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOARD TO RECONVENE 
 
Directors: McGlew, Stewart, Deats, Bowers, Flores, Garcia, Hoffmann, Jones, 
Martinez, Melendez, Nilon, Patel, Patrick, Rhoades, Thygerson, Watson 
ROLL CALL: 

 
 

1) Board Resolution to Allow Virtual Board Meeting Participation Pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54953 (Fiscal Impact: None) - 
APPROVE 

 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
2) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of a provider (Welfare and 

Institutions Code Section 14087.38(o)) – 
 
 

8:15 A.M. 
 
BOARD TO RECONVENE 
 
 
 

All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review on the Kern Health Systems 
website:  https://www.kernfamilyhealthcare.com/about-us/governing-board/ 
Following the posting of the agenda, any supporting documentation that relates to an agenda item 
for an open session of any regular meeting that is distributed after the agenda is posted and prior to 
the meeting will also be available on the KHS website.  

PLEASE SILENT CELL PHONES AND OTHER ELECTRONIC DEVICES DURING THE 
MEETING 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

3 / 308



Agenda – Board of Directors  Page 2 
Kern Health Systems  12/16/2021 
Regular Meeting  

 

 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION  
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS 
LISTED WITH A "CA" ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-
CONTROVERSIAL BY KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS STAFF. THE "CA" REPRESENTS 
THE CONSENT AGENDA. CONSENT ITEMS WILL BE CONSIDERED FIRST AND 
MAY BE APPROVED BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR 
AUDIENCE WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR 
DISCUSSION IS DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM 
THE CONSENT AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN LISTED SEQUENCE 
WITH AN OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE 
BOARD CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 

 
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

 
3) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 

not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may 
respond briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff 
to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO 
MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR 
PRESENTATION. THE MEETING FACILATATOR WILL INDICATE WHEN THERE 
IS 15 SECONDS REMAINING TO YOUR PRESENTATION TIME! 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 
 
 
4) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff 
or take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 
 

CA-5) Minutes for Kern Health Systems Board of Directors regular meeting on October 14,  
2021 (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
APPROVE 
 

6) Report on the Chief Executive Officer Search Committee progress (Fiscal Impact: 
None) –  
RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

CA-7) Report on Kern Health Systems investment portfolio for the third quarter ending 
September 30, 2021 (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
 
 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

4 / 308



Agenda – Board of Directors  Page 3 
Kern Health Systems  12/16/2021 
Regular Meeting  

 

 
CA-8) Proposed policy with IOA RE for reinsurance to mitigate costs incurred by Kern Health 

Systems for members with high dollar inpatient admissions from January 1, 2022 
through December 31, 2022 in an amount not to exceed $0.18 per member per month 
(Fiscal Impact: $670,140 estimated; Budgeted) – 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 

 
9) Report on Kern Health Systems 2022 CalAIM Initiatives Implementation (Fiscal Impact: 

None) – 
RECEIVE AND FILE 

 
10) Proposed Kern Health Systems 2022 Operating and Capital Budgets (Fiscal Impact: 

None) –  
APPROVE 
 

11) Proposed Budget Request for 2022 Project Consulting Professional Services, from 
January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 (Fiscal Impact: $10,369,190; 
Budgeted) –  
APPROVE 
 

12) Report on Kern Health Systems financial statements for September 2021 and October 
2021 (Fiscal Impact: None) –    

 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

CA-13) Report on Accounts Payable Vendor Report, Administrative Contracts between 
$30,000 and $100,000 for September 2021 and October 2021 and IT Technology 
Consulting Resources for the period ended October 31, 2021 (Fiscal Impact: None) –  

 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

CA-14) Proposed Agreement with Dell, Inc, for Microsoft Licensing, maintenance and 
technical support, from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2024, in an amount 
not to exceed $1,358,808 (Fiscal Impact: $452,936 annually; Budgeted) – 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 

 
CA-15) Proposed Agreement with Entysis360, for the purchase of the Nutanix Storage 

Solution with one year support and maintenance, from January 1, 2022 through 
December 31, 2022 (Fiscal Impact: $733,444 annually; Budgeted) – 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 

 
CA-16) Proposed Agreement with LinkedIn, Co., for the online training platform for KHS’ 

employees, from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2024, in an amount not to 
exceed $178,950 (Fiscal Impact: $59,650 annually; Budgeted) – 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 

 
17) Proposed Agreement with A-C Electric, for the design and installation of a Solar Panel 

system for the KHS’ facility, from January 1, 2022 through October 30, 2022, (Fiscal 
Impact: $2,371,559; Budgeted) - 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 
 
 
 
 
 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

5 / 308



Agenda – Board of Directors  Page 4 
Kern Health Systems  12/16/2021 
Regular Meeting  

 

 
18) Report on Kern Health Systems Vaccination Incentive Program (Fiscal Impact: None) –  

RECEIVE AND FILE 

 
CA-19) Report on 2021 State Legislation and Budget Overview  (Fiscal Impact: None) – 

   RECEIVE AND FILE 

 
CA-20)  Proposed Kern Health Systems provider contracts (rates confidential per Welfare and 

Institutions Code Section 14087.38(m)) – 
   APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 
    

21)     Kern Health Systems Chief Medical Officer report (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
RECEIVE AND FILE 

 
22)     Kern Health Systems Chief Executive Officer report (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

CA-23) Proposed appointment of Pat Person, PharmD to the Kern Health Systems Pharmacy 
& Therapeutic / Drug Utilization Review Committee (Fiscal Impact: None) – 
MAKE APPOINTMENT 

 
CA-24) Proposed modifications to Kern Health Systems Formulary (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
  APPROVE  

 
 CA-25) Miscellaneous Documents –  

RECEIVE AND FILE    
 

A) Minutes for Kern Health Systems Finance Committee meeting on October 8, 
2021   

 
 
ADJOURN TO FEBRUARY 10, 2022 AT 8:00 A.M. 
 

 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(Government Code Section 54953.2) 

 
The meeting facilities at Kern Health Systems are accessible to persons with disabilities. 
Disabled individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the 
Board of Directors may request assistance at the Kern Health Systems office, 2900 Buck 
Owens Boulevard, Bakersfield, California 93308 or by calling (661) 664-5010. Every effort 
will be made to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities by making meeting 
material available in alternative formats. Requests for assistance should be made five (5) 
working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

6 / 308



 

 

 

 

 

To:  KHS Board of Directors 

 

From:  Douglas Hayward, CEO  

 

Date:  December 16, 2021 

 

Re:  AB 361 Remote Meeting Resolution 

 

 

Background 

 

The Governor’s executive order suspending certain requirements of the Brown Act regarding board 

meetings has expired, but the proclamation of a state of emergency is still in place. The Legislature 

has amended Govt Code 54953 to include provisions allowing remote meetings during a state of 

emergency under certain conditions. The attached resolution allows the Board to continue meeting 

remotely until the state of emergency is lifted and social distancing is no longer recommended or 

required. If the Board adopts the resolution, it will have to renew the resolution every 30 days.  

 

Recommended Action  

 

The Board adopt the resolution and continue with remote meetings during the month of December 

or until the state of emergency is lifted.   

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

7 / 308



 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
In the matter of: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS  
PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY, RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A 

STATE OF EMERGENCY, AND AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE 
MEETINGS FOR THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2021 

 
Section 1.  WHEREAS 
 

(a) Kern Health Systems is committed to encouraging and preserving public 
access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; and 

 
(b) Government Code section 54953, as amended by AB 361, makes provisions for 

remote teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without 
compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953, subject to the 
existence of certain conditions; and 

 
(c) a required condition is that there is a proclaimed state of emergency, and state 

or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; and 
 
(d) Governor Newsom declared a State-wide state of emergency due to the Covid-

19 pandemic on March 4, 2020, which declaration is still in effect, and state and local health 
officials continue to recommend social distancing; and 

 
(e) the Board of Directors does hereby find that the resurgence of the Covid-19 

pandemic, particularly through the Delta variant, has caused, and will continue to cause, 
conditions of peril to the safety of persons that are likely to be beyond the control of services, 
personnel, equipment, and facilities of Kern Health Systems, and desires to proclaim a local 
emergency and ratify both the proclamation of state of emergency by the Governor of the 
State of California and the Kern County Health Department guidance regarding social 
distancing; and 

 
(f) based on the above the Board of Directors of Kern Health Systems finds that 

in-person public meetings of the Board would further increase the risk of exposure to the 
Covid-19 virus to the residents of the Health Authority, staff, and Directors; and 

 
WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency, the Board of Directors does 

hereby find that it shall conduct Board meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

8 / 308



 

subdivision (b) of Government Code section 54953, as authorized by subdivision (e) of 
section 54953, in compliance with the requirements to provide the public with access to the 
meetings as prescribed in paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953; and   

 
WHEREAS, all meetings of Board of Directors will be available to the public for 

participation and comments through virtual measures, which shall be fully explained on each 
posted agenda.  

 
Section 2.  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of Kern 
Health Systems hereby finds, determines, declares, orders, and resolves as follows: 

 
1. This Board finds that the facts recited herein are true and further finds that this 

Board has jurisdiction to consider, approve, and adopt the subject of this Resolution. 
 

2. Proclamation of Local Emergency. The Board hereby proclaims that a local 
emergency now exists throughout the Health Authority, as set forth above. 

 
3. Ratification of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency. The Board 

hereby ratifies the Governor’s Proclamation of State of Emergency, effective as of its issuance 
date of March 4, 2021. 

 
4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The Chief Executive Officer, staff, and Board of 

Directors are hereby authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent 
and purpose of this Resolution including conducting open and public meetings in accordance 
with Government Code section 54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 

 
5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect on December 1, 

2021, and shall be effective until the earlier of December 31, 2021, or such time the Board of 
Directors adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code section 
54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which Kern Health Systems may continue to 
teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953. 

 
6. Termination of this Resolution. This Resolution will automatically terminate on 

the day that both the Governor’s Declaration of Emergency and any local agency guideline for 
social distancing are no longer in effect. 
 

The Clerk of the Board of Directors shall forward copies of this Resolution to the 
following: 

 
  Office of Kern County Counsel 
 
  Kern Health Systems 

 
I, Sheilah Woods, Clerk of the Board of Directors of Kern Health Systems, hereby certify 

that the following resolution, on motion of Director Nilon, seconded by Director Patel, was duly 

and regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of Kern Health Systems at an official meeting 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

9 / 308



 

thereof on the 16th day of December, 2021, by the following vote and that a copy of the resolution 

has been delivered to the Chairman of the Board of Directors. 

 
AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSENT:   

          
         
      ___________________________________ 
      Sheilah Woods, Clerk 
      Board of Directors 
      Kern Health Systems 
 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

10 / 308



 

 

SUMMARY 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS 
2900 Buck Owens Boulevard 
Bakersfield, California 93308 

 
Regular Meeting 

Thursday, October 14, 2021 
 

 
8:00 A.M. 

 
BOARD RECONVENED 

 
Directors: McGlew, Judd, Stewart, Deats, Bowers, Flores, Garcia, Hoffmann, Jones, 
Martinez, Melendez, Nilon, Patel, Patrick, Rhoades, Watson 
ROLL CALL: 11 Present; 5 Absent – Judd, Deats, Bowers, Melendez, Patrick  
 
NOTE: The vote is displayed in bold below each item.  For example, Rhoades-Deats denotes 
Director Rhoades made the motion and Director Deats seconded the motion. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT:  ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH 
A "CA" WERE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND APPROVED BY ONE MOTION.   

 
BOARD ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 

 

1) Board Resolution to Allow Virtual Board Meeting Participation Pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54953 (Fiscal Impact: None) - 
APPROVED 

Nilon-Patel: 10 Ayes; 1 Abstention; 5 Absent – Judd, Deats. Bowers, 
Melendez, Patrick 

 
 

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
Rhoades 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

2) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of a provider (Welfare and 
Institutions Code Section 14087.38(o)) – SEE RESULTS BEOW 

 
 

8:15 A.M. 
 
BOARD RECONVENED 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION  

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

11 / 308



SUMMARY – Board of Directors Page 2 
Kern Health Systems 10/14/2021 
Regular Meeting  

 

 

 
Item No. 2 concerning a Request for Closed Session regarding peer review 
PROVIDERS RECOMMENDED FOR INITIAL CREDENTIALING SEPTEMBER 2021 
of a provider (Welfare and Institutions Code Section 14087.38(o)) – HEARD; BY A 
UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THOSE DIRECTORS PRESENT, THE BOARD APPROVED 
ALL PROVIDERS RECOMMENDED FOR INITIAL CREDENTIALING; DIRECTOR 
STEWART ABSTAINED FROM VOTING ON EMEAHU, GUTIERREZ, SYED, 
THOMAS; DIRECTOR BOWERS ABSTAINED FROM VOTING ON KINGSTON 
HEALTHCARE CENTER; DIRECTOR PATEL ABSTAINED FROM VOTING ON 
BRADLEY 
Item No. 2 concerning a Request for Closed Session regarding peer review 
PROVIDERS RECOMMENDED FOR INITIAL CREDENTIALING OCTOBER 2021 of 
a provider (Welfare and Institutions Code Section 14087.38(o)) – HEARD; BY A 
UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THOSE DIRECTORS PRESENT, THE BOARD APPROVED 
ALL PROVIDERS RECOMMENDED FOR INITIAL CREDENTIALING; DIRECTOR 
STEWART ABSTAINED FROM VOTING ON BAUTISTA, DON-PEDRO, KAUR, NAY; 
DIRECTOR BOWERS ABSTAINED FROM VOTING ON ARAMBULA-DAMIAN, 
BOURELLE, BROWN, NOVENO; DIRECTOR HOFFMANN ABSTAINED FROM 
VOTING ON IMO. RODRIGUEZ, SERBAN, TOVAR, VELAZQUEZ 
Item No. 2 concerning a Request for Closed Session regarding peer review 
PROVIDERS RECOMMENDED FOR RECREDENTIALING SEPTEMBER 2021 of a 
provider (Welfare and Institutions Code Section 14087.38(o)) – HEARD; BY A 
UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THOSE DIRECTORS PRESENT, THE BOARD APPROVED 
ALL PROVIDERS RECOMMENDED FOR RECREDENTIALING; DIRECTOR 
STEWART ABSTAINED FROM VOTING ON TAIWO; DIRECTOR  HOFFMANN 
ABSTAINED FROM VOTING ON FLORES, SABA 
Item No. 2 concerning a Request for Closed Session regarding peer review 
PROVIDERS RECOMMENDED FOR RECREDENTIALING OCTOBER 2021 of a 
provider (Welfare and Institutions Code Section 14087.38(o)) – HEARD; BY A 
UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THOSE DIRECTORS PRESENT, THE BOARD APPROVED 
ALL PROVIDERS RECOMMENDED FOR RECREDENTIALING; DIRECTOR 
BOWERS ABSTAINED FROM VOTING ON CHANG, NICHOLS, SALVO. SHARMA; 
DIRECTOR GARCIA ABSTAINED FROM VOTING ON KUCHAKULLA; DIRECTOR 
HOFFMANN ABSTAINED FROM VOTING ON BIRDI, ABRAHAMSON, IRENE 
 

 
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

 
 

3) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 
not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report back 
to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff to 
place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO 
MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR 
PRESENTATION. THE MEETING FACILATATOR WILL INDICATE WHEN THERE IS 
15 SECONDS REMAINING TO YOUR PRESENTATION TIME! 
NO ONE HEARD 

 
 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

12 / 308



SUMMARY – Board of Directors Page 3 
Kern Health Systems 10/14/2021 
Regular Meeting  

 

 

 
BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

 
4) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff 
or take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda 
(Government Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 
 
DIRECTOR MCGLEW REPORTED THAT SCOTT THYGERSON IS THE NEW 
KERN MEDICAL CEO AND WILL REPLACE RUSSELL JUDD ON THE KHS 
BOARD AND, AN ORIENTATION MEETING WILL BE SCHEDULED 
 

CA-5) Minutes for Kern Health Systems Board of Directors regular meeting on August 12,  
2021 (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
APPROVED 
Nilon-Hoffmann: 11 Ayes; 5 Absent – Judd, Deats, Bowers, Melendez, 
Patrick 
 

6) Report on the Chief Executive Officer Search Committee progress (Fiscal Impact: 
None) –  
RECEIVED AND FILED 
Rhoades-Hoffmann: 11 Ayes; 5 Absent – Judd, Deats, Bowers, Melendez, 
Patrick 
 

CA-7) Report on Kern Health Systems 2021 Corporate Goals for 3rd Quarter and 2022 
Corporate Goals Update (Fiscal Impact: None) – 
RECEIVED AND FILED 
Nilon-Hoffmann: 11 Ayes; 5 Absent – Judd, Deats, Bowers, Melendez, Patrick 
 

8) Report on COVID-19 Kern Health Systems Member Vaccine Plan (Fiscal Impact: 
None) –  
RECEIVED AND FILED  
Garcia-Patel: 11 Ayes; 5 Absent – Judd, Deats, Bowers, Melendez, Patrick 
 

9) Report on Kern Health Systems 2020 Utilization Management (UM) Program 
Evaluation and the 2021 UM Program Description (Fiscal Impact: None) – 

   APPROVED 
Stewart-Hoffmann: 11 Ayes; 5 Absent – Judd, Deats, Bowers, Melendez, 
Patrick 

 
10) Report on Kern Health Systems Quality Improvement (QI) 2020 Program 

Evaluation, 2021 QI Program Description and, the 2021 QI Program  Work 
Plan (Fiscal Impact: None) – 

   APPROVED 
Rhoades-Stewart: 11 Ayes; 5 Absent – Judd, Deats, Bowers, Melendez, 
Patrick 
 
 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

13 / 308



SUMMARY – Board of Directors Page 4 
Kern Health Systems 10/14/2021 
Regular Meeting  

 

 

CA-11) Report on Managed Care Accountability Set (MCAS) Strategies  (Fiscal Impact: 
None) – 

   RECEIVED AND FILED 
Nilon-Hoffmann: 11 Ayes; 5 Absent – Judd, Deats, Bowers, Melendez, Patrick 
 

CA-12) Proposed renewal and binding of employee benefit plans for medical, vision, dental, 
life insurance, short-term and long-term disability, and long-term care effective 
January 1, 2022 (Fiscal Impact: $6,520,000 Estimated; Budgeted) –  
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 
Nilon-Hoffmann: 11 Ayes; 5 Absent – Judd, Deats, Bowers, Melendez, Patrick 
 

CA-13)  Proposed Kern Health Systems provider contracts (rates confidential per Welfare 
and Institutions Code Section 14087.38(m)) – 

   APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 
Nilon-Hoffmann: 11 Ayes; 5 Absent – Judd, Deats, Bowers, Melendez, Patrick 

 
14) Report on Kern Health Systems financial statements for July 2021 and August        

2021 (Fiscal Impact: None) –    
 RECEIVE AND FILE 

Garcia-Patel: 11 Ayes; 5 Absent – Judd, Deats, Bowers, Melendez, Patrick 
 
CA-15) Report on Accounts Payable Vendor Report, Administrative Contracts between 

$30,000 and $100,000 for July 2021 and August 2021 and IT Technology 
Consulting Resources for the period ended June 30, 2021 (Fiscal Impact: None) –  

 RECEIVED AND FILED 
Nilon-Hoffmann: 11 Ayes; 5 Absent – Judd, Deats, Bowers, Melendez, Patrick 

 
16) Report on Kern Health Systems Operation Performance and Review of the Kern 

Health Systems Grievance Report (Fiscal Impact: None) – ALAN AVERY, CHIEF 
OPERATING OFFICER PRESENTED THE 2021 3RD QUARTER GRIEVANCE 
REPORT TO THE BOARD.  FORMAL GRIEVANCES FOR THE 3RD QUARTER 
INCREASED FROM THE 2ND QUARTER OF 2021.  ACCESS TO CARE AND 
MEDICAL NECESSITY GRIEVANCES HAD SLIGHT INCREASES BUT NO 
SIGNIFICANT ISSUES OR TRENDS WERE FOUND.  POTENTIAL 
INAPPROPRIATE CARE GRIEVANCES DECREASED SLIGHTLY DURING THE 
QUARTER.  EXEMPT GRIEVANCES DECREASED SLIGHTLY DURING THE 3RD 
QUARTER WITH NO SIGNIFICANT ISSUES OR CONCERNS BEING FOUND.  
EXEMPT GRIEVANCES ARE INFORMAL COMPLAINTS SHARED BY 
MEMBERS WHO DO NOT WANT TO FILE A FORMAL COMPLAINT; HOWEVER, 
WE ARE STILL REQUIRED TO INVESTIGATE THEIR COMPLAINT.  MR. AVERY 
REVIEWED WITH THE BOARD HOW GRIEVANCES ARE PROCESSED, AND A 
DISPOSITION DECISION IS REACHED.  EACH GRIEVANCE COMES TO 
MEMBER SERVICES FROM EITHER A MEMBER OR A PROVIDER.  THE 
GRIEVANCE COORDINATOR RESEARCHES THE FACTS OF THE 
GRIEVANCE, REQUESTS MEDICAL RECORDS IF NEED OR INPUT FROM THE 
PROVIDER, REQUESTS A MEDICAL DIRECTOR OR PHARMACIST REVIEWS 
THE CLINICAL RECORDS TO DETERMINE IF NEW INFORMATION WAS 
RECEIVED TO CHANGE THE DECISION.  A RECOMMENDATION IS THEN 
MADE TO THE WEEKLY GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE FOR DISCUSSION AND 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

14 / 308



SUMMARY – Board of Directors Page 5 
Kern Health Systems 10/14/2021 
Regular Meeting  

 

 

APPROVAL. THIS COMMITTEE IS COMPRISED OF A MEDICAL DIRECTOR, 
AND REPRESENTATIVES FROM UM, QUALITY, CASE MANAGEMENT, 
PROVIDER NETWORK MANAGEMENT, COMPLIANCE, AND THE COO.  THE 
COMMITTEE REVIEWS THE FACTS OF THE CASE PRIOR TO THE MEETING, 
REVIEWS THE RECOMMENDATION AND COMES TO A DECISION. IN 
REVIEWING THE DISPOSITION OF THE 712 FORMAL GRIEVANCES FOR THE 
QUARTER, MR. AVERY REPORTED THE MEDICAL NECESSITY GRIEVANCES 
ARE THE CATEGORY WITH THE MOST GRIEVANCES RECEIVED. MOST OF 
THOSE GRIEVANCES ARE PRIMARILY RADIOLOGY REFERRALS AND PAIN 
MANAGEMENT REFERRALS.  OF THE TOTAL 329 MEDICAL NECESSITY 
GRIEVANCES RECEIVED DURING THE QUARTER, 188 WERE UPHELD BY 
THE GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE AND 66 WERE REVERSED AND RULED IN 
FAVOR OF THE MEMBER AND 75 GRIEVANCES WERE STILL UNDER 
REVIEW.  THE PRIMARY REASON WE UPHOLD MOST OF THE DECISIONS IS 
WE ARE UNABLE TO FIND SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FROM THE 
PROVIDER OR THE MEMBER TO CONFIRM THE REQUEST MEETS 
APPROPRIATE MEDICAL CRITERIA.  THE OTHER NOTEWORTHY MAJOR 
CATEGORY OF GRIEVANCES IS POTENTIAL INAPPROPRIATE CARE ISSUES.  
ONCE THESE GRIEVANCES ARE RECEIVED, WE ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT 
TO THE MEMBER AND THEN FORWARD ALL OF THEM TO THE QUALITY 
DEPARTMENT FOR FURTHER REVIEW, INVESTIGATION AND RESOLUTION;  

 RECEIVED AND FILED 
Patel-Stewart: 11 Ayes; 5 Absent – Judd, Deats, Bowers, Melendez, Patrick 

 

17)     Kern Health Systems Chief Medical Officer report (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
RECEIVED AND FILED 

Garcia-Patel: 11 Ayes; 5 Absent – Judd, Deats, Bowers, Melendez, Patrick 
 

18)     Kern Health Systems Chief Executive Officer report (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 

Rhoades-Flores: 11 Ayes; 5 Absent – Judd, Deats, Bowers, Melendez, Patrick 
 

CA-19) Proposed modifications to Kern Health Systems Formulary (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
  APPROVED  

Nilon-Hoffmann: 11 Ayes; 5 Absent – Judd, Deats, Bowers, Melendez, Patrick 
 

 CA-20) Miscellaneous Documents –  

RECEIVED AND FILED    
Nilon-Hoffmann: 11 Ayes; 5 Absent – Judd, Deats, Bowers, Melendez, Patrick 

 
A) Minutes for Kern Health Systems Finance Committee meeting on August 6, 

2021   
 
 

ADJOURN TO THURSDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2021 AT 8:00 A.M. 
Garcia 
 
 
/s/ Cindy Stewart, Secretary  
 Kern Health Systems Board of Directors 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

15 / 308





 

 

 

 

 

 

To:   KHS Board of Directors 

 

From: Timothy McGlew, Chairman 

 

Date:  December 16, 2021 

 

Re:  CEO Search Committee Progress Report 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Background 

Following the creation of KHS “Company and CEO Position Profile” (previously distributed), 

Witt /Kieffer began its market outreach to identify prospects for the CEO position.    

Over 40 people expressed interest. Witt/Kieffer continues to interview and screen each one to 

gauge their level of interest and qualifications for the position.  This vetting process is expected to 

be completed in the next two weeks.   

In early January, Witt/Kieffer will present a slate of candidates to the Search Committee for review 

and discussion.   From this group, the Search Committee will select the candidates they wish to 

interview.  Depending on schedules and number of interviews, this process may take up to a month 

to complete.  The Search Committee will forward their recommended list of qualified candidates 

to the Board.  After which, the Board will convene to interview these finalists and make their 

selection for CEO.    

Witt / Kieffer stated they are pleased with the caliber of candidates that has developed. Several 

have extensive Medicaid (Medi-Cal) health plan leadership experience in California as well as 

other states.   

 

Requested Action 

Receive and File.   

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

17 / 308





  

 

 

To:  KHS Board of Directors 

From:  Robert Landis, CFO 

Date: December 16, 2021 

Re:  Quarterly Review of Kern Health Systems Investment Portfolio 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 

 

The Kern Health Systems (“KHS”) Investment Policy stipulates the following order of investment 

objectives: 

 

• Preservation of principal 

• Liquidity 

• Yield 

 

The investment portfolios are designed to attain a market-average rate of return through economic 

cycles given an acceptable level of risk.  KHS currently maintains the following investment 

portfolios:  

 

Short-Term Portfolio (Under 1 year)  

 

Funds held in this time frame are typically utilized to pay providers, meet operating expenses and 

fund capital projects. Additionally, extra liquidity is maintained in the event the State is late with 

its monthly capitation payment. 

 

Long-Term Portfolio (1-5 years)  

 

Funds held in this time frame are typically for reserves and to take advantage of obtaining higher 

yields. 

              

 Requested Action 

 

Receive and File. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

19 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

20 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

21 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

22 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

23 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

24 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

25 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

26 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

27 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

28 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

29 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

30 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

31 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

32 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

33 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

34 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

35 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

36 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

37 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

38 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

39 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

40 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

41 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

42 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

43 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

44 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

45 / 308





 

To:  KHS Board of Directors 

From: Robert Landis, CFO 

Date: December 16, 2021 

Re: Annual Renewal of the Reinsurance Policy 

 

Background  

Kern Health Systems (“KHS”) has purchased a reinsurance policy to mitigate the costs of 

catastrophic cases since the plan’s inception.  The KHS population has changed significantly over 

the last several years with SPD members incurring high medical costs. More recently, management 

believes that there is an increasing trend in the medical expenses for the longer-term enrolled 

Expansion members.  The overall increase in medical costs has led to higher reinsurance premiums 

over the years.  For 2022, KHS will be at financial risk for major organ transplants for members 

that are placed on a transplant list on or after January 1, 2022.  In the past, KHS had only been 

responsible for kidney and cornea transplants.  This may pose an increase in catastrophic claims 

in the latter half of 2022 and beyond. 

 

Discussion 

Over the last 3 completed years, KHS reinsurance recoveries have been lower than the reinsurance 

claim payments. For the policy years 2018, 2019, and 2020 KHS recovered approximately $1M 

million in reinsurance claims while paying reinsurance premiums of approximately $3.8 million. 

These 3 years represent a 26% ratio of recoveries to expense.  

 

Based on information through September 28, 2021, KHS has requested approximately $352,167 

in recoveries (which has been applied towards the annual aggregate deductible of $784,642) 

against approximately $739,965 in premiums paid. This represents an overall cumulative 22% 

ratio for all periods.  We have until December 31, 2022 to turn in claims for the 2021 policy period.   

 

The current 2021 Reinsurance Policy is with IOA Re (AM Best Rating A+ Superior Financial 

Rating; Financial Size Category X) and has a deductible of $300,000, a blended rate of $.29 pmpm 

and an aggregate deductible of $.23 pmpm with an estimated total exposure of $1,773,972. (This 

is comprised of $989,331 for premiums and $784,642 for the aggregate deductible).  

 

 

 

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

47 / 308



 

 

Fiscal Impact  

The lowest quote for renewal is with the current carrier IOA Re is at a blended rate of $.29 per 

member with the current deductible of $300,000 per member and a $.20 pmpm aggregate 

deductible for an overall expected reinsurance cost of $1,824,270 (This is comprised of $ 1,079,670 

for premiums and $744,600 for the aggregate deductible).  For this renewal, IOA Re originally 

requested an increase of 15%.  After several negotiation discussions, our insurance broker was 

able to secure the increase of only 3%, which includes a 9% increase in members and the addition 

of major organ transplant coverage.  IOA Re has been the reinsurance carrier since 1/1/2020.   

 

KHS can lower the IOA Re premium to a blended rate of $.18 pmpm and a $.13 pmpm aggregate 

deductible by increasing the deductible to $350,000. This would save approximately $670,140 of 

reinsurance costs but would cost KHS an additional $50,000 per member that reaches the 

reinsurance deductible.  The savings of $670,140 would be lost if the members reaching the 

$350,000 deductible exceeds 13 ($670,140 savings/$50,000 increase in deductible = 13.40 

members).  Based on utilization data of 5 members in 2018, 4 members in 2019, 5 members in 

2020 and 2 member through September 28, 2021, management expects the 2022 utilization to be 

less than 13 members.  Accordingly, management recommends increasing the deductible to 

$350,000 and lowering the blended rate to $.18 pmpm and lowering the aggregate deductible to 

$.13 pmpm. 

 

The 2022 Budget includes estimated reinsurance premium payments at a blended rate of $.18 

pmpm and reinsurance recoveries at a blended rate of $.18 pmpm.  Estimated fiscal dollar impact 

is $670,140. 

 

Risk Assessment 

Based on the continued expense of the SPD population and the increasing trend in medical 

expenses for the longer-term enrolled Expansion members, additional utilization from COVID-19 

complications and the new risk for major organ transplants, management believes that binding 

reinsurance coverage is warranted for 2022 and is recommending the IOA RE option at a blended 

rate of $.18 pmpm and increasing the deductible at $350,000.  

 

Requested Action 

Approve; Authorize Chief Executive Officer to Sign. 

 

 

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

48 / 308



 

 

 

 

 

 

To: KHS Board of Directors   

 

From: Douglas Hayward, CEO 

 

Date: December 16, 2021 

 

Re: Update on DHCS’ CalAIM Initiatives   

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Background 

  

For the last several months, KHS staff has been working diligently on developing operational 

structure for the numerous California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM) initiatives.  

Since the last update provided to the Board of Directors, there has been several new developments 

provided by the Department of Health Care Services and our team has incorporated the changes 

into our programs. 

 

Emily Duran, CNAO will be presenting on the status of CalAIM readiness and implementation for 

Kern Health Systems. 

 

 

Requested Action 

 

Receive and File.  

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

49 / 308



CalAIM Implementation  

Update

Board of Directors Meeting

December 16, 2021

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

50 / 308



Background

California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM) is the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) 

framework for changes to the Medi-Cal program that encompasses broad-based delivery system, program, and payment 

reform.  

Goal is to further address social determinants of health, streamline the statewide Medi-Cal delivery system, improve 

quality, and drive innovation.  Kern Health Systems (KHS) has been diligently working on implementing these 

initiatives, while maintaining daily operations.

Focus areas for January 1, 2022, implementation include:

• Enhanced Care Management (ECM) 

• Community Supports or In-Lieu of Services (ILOS)

• Major Organ Transplants (MOT)

• ECM & Community Supports Incentives 

• Medi-Cal membership enhancement

• 2023 project planning

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

51 / 308



Enhanced Care Management

Background 

• Comprehensive approach to address the clinical and non-clinical needs of high-need, high-cost members through 

coordination of services and comprehensive care management. 

• Builds on the design from the Health Homes Program (HHP) and Whole Person Care (WPC) 

Seven (7) mandatory  populations of focus:

Jan. 1, 2022: 

1. Individuals experiencing homelessness, chronic homelessness or who are at risk of becoming homeless

2. High utilizers with frequent hospital admissions, short-term skilled nursing facility stays, or emergency room visits

3. Individuals at risk for institutionalization with Serious Mental Illness (SMI), children with Serious Emotional 

Disturbance (SED) or Substance Use Disorder (SUD) with co-occurring chronic health conditions

4. Individuals transitioning from incarceration who have significant complex physical or behavioral health needs 

requiring immediate transition of services to the community (includes WPC population)

Jan. 1, 2023

5. Children & youth with complex physical, behavioral, developmental and oral health needs (i.e. California Children         

Services, foster care, youth with clinical high-risk syndrome or first episode of psychosis)

6. Individuals at risk for institutionalization, eligible for long-term care

7. Nursing facility residents who want to transition to the community

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

52 / 308



KHS ECM Implementation Status
Major Deliverable Target Completion Date Status

ECM Population Analysis

• Population stratification for ECM eligibility

• WPC/HHP alignment under ECM

Q1 2021

Completed

KHS stratified membership based on populations of focus. Initial 

estimates 

Model of Care submission to DHCS 

• ECM program design

• Transition plan for current WPC/HHP

• Policy and Procedures

• Operational planning

Q2-Q3 2021

Completed

Phase 1 ECM model of care was submitted. Only 2% of the plan 

submissions were approved with no comments/questions, KHS was 

one of those MCPs.  Policies and procedures are being drafted.

Network/System Design

• Develop Provider Network 

• System configuration and integration

• Testing strategy for technical components

Q3-Q4 2021

In Progress 

Provider presentations is close to final and meetings to discuss the 

transition of HHP & WPC to ECM were completed. Contracts close to 

completion.

Operationalize/Monitoring/Reporting

• Communication plan-member/providers/internal

• Training plan

• Data exchange

• Reporting (DHCS/internal)

Q3-Q4 2021

In Progress 

Draft communication plan, training, data exchange and reporting is in 

development. 

ECM Benefit Effective Date January 1, 2022 KHS will meet deadline

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

53 / 308



Community Supports, In-Lieu Of Services (ILOS) 

Services provided as a substitute to 

OR to avoid, other more costly 

covered services, such as a hospital 

or skilled nursing facility admission 

or a discharge delay.

NOTE: Community Supports subject to 

member need, cost & availability of 

resource delivery

Phase 1: 

CY 2022

Housing 
Transition 
Navigation 

services 

Housing 
Deposits

Housing 
Tenancy and 
Sustaining 
Services 

Recuperative 
Care (Medical 

Respite)

Asthma 
Remediation 

Phase 2: 

CY 2023

Respite Services 

Medically Tailored 
Meals and/or 

Supportive Foods 

Sobering Centers 

KHS Discretionary 
Community Supports: 

Tattoo Removing 
Program

Community Supports 
still under 

consideration

Day Habilitation 
Programs

Nursing Facility 
Transition/Diversion to Assisted 

Living Facilities, such as 
Residential Care Facilities for 

Elderly (RCFE) & Adult Residential 
Facilities (ARF)

Community Transition 
Services/Nursing Facility 

Transition to a Home Personal 
Care and Homemaker Services 

Environmental 
Accessibility 

Adaptation (Home 
Modifications) 

Short-Term Post-
Hospitalization 

Housing 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

54 / 308



KHS Community Supports Implementation Plan 
Major Deliverable Target Completion Date Status Update

Community Supports Benefit Analysis

• Evaluation of Community Supports Member demographics

• Evaluate local options for Community Supports identified

• Population stratification for Community Supports segments

• Evaluation of Community Supports CBOs in Kern

Q1 2021

Completed

Priority Community Supports for Phase 1 was based on resources 

utilized in HHP & WPC programs. 

KHS stratified membership and identified data gaps in areas such 

as SMI identification and homeless verification. Potential 

members who qualify: 40,000+.  CBOs were identified in 

community.

DHCS Community Supports menu of services

request for approval

Q2 2021

Completed 

Phase 1 Community Supports submission was approved by 

DHCS.

Community Based Organization Referral System

• System RFP and Vendor selection

• System implementation plan and development  

• System installation and integration

Q2-Q3 2021

Postponed

The procurement of a CBO referral and tracking system was 

postponed until 2022. Temporary system for referrals is being 

developed in-house.

Build Network

• Develop Community Supports Provider Network 

• Develop system of payment for Community Supports providers

• Automated member outreach for Community Supports 

Q3-Q4 2021

In Progress

KHS has reached out to CBOs who offer the Community Supports 

selected.  Upon rate verification from DHCS, contracting process 

was initiated and final phase of contracting is in progress.

CBO Network and System Configuration

CBO education and onboarding

KHS Member notifications and education of benefit

Q3-Q4 2021

In Progress 

CBO system configuration is in progress.

Community Supports Benefit Effective Date January 1, 2022 KHS will meet deadline

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

55 / 308



Major Organ Transplants
Background 

• Effective 1/1/22 DHCS intends to provide coverage for all major-organ transplants via Managed Care.

• Kidney, bone marrow, cornea, heart, lung, liver & intestinal, and pancreas transplants will be managed by KHS. 

Major Deliverable Target Completion Date Status

Major Organ Transplant 

• Population identification (DHCS)

• Internal vs. external care 

management evaluation

Q1-Q2 2021

Completed 

KHS Will deliver the MOT care management via internal staff. 

• Members eligible for expanded transplant services, eff. 1/1/2022

• Deputy Director of Special Programs in place for planning, implementation, & monitoring 

of MOT Program 

Model of Care development

• Policy and Procedures

• Operational planning

• Develop Member communication 

• Establish MOT bank & registry 

communication

Q2-Q3 2021

Completed 

KHS will deliver the MOT care management with internal staff. Policies and procedures are in 

development and operational planning is underway. Communication & coordination with the 

DHCS pre-approved centers of excellence will need to be established. Close clinical oversight 

and care team will be developed.

• Policies & Procedures for MOT approved by DHCS, eff. 1/1/2022

• UM Teams trained to process all MOT auth. Requests, from evaluations to post 

transplantation 

• Transplant program will be part of PHM department & benchmarks will be reviewed by 

PHM dashboard 

• Member notifications sent & new benefit language added to EOC 

Network/System Design

• Develop Provider Network 

• System configuration & 

integration

• Testing strategy for technical 

components

Q3-Q4 2021

In Progress 

Rates are still pending. Upon receipt, KHS network will need to be expanded. Contracts will 

be negotiated. System configuration for benefit will be scheduled. 

• PNM team finalizing contracts with hospitals, pending DHCS negotiation with UCs 

• LOA’s will be utilized with non-par providers 

• JIVA & QNXT configured & finalized for testing by business 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

56 / 308



CalAIM Incentive Opportunities

CalAIM Performance Incentives (ECM/Community Supports)

• DHCS will establish plan incentives linked to delivery system reform through an investment in Enhanced Care 

Management and Community Supports infrastructure. 

• Governor’s budget allocated $300 million for Jan-June 2022 + $600 MM from July 2022- June 2023 + $600 MM 

from July 2023- June 2024 in incentives funds, available for California Health plans to expand ECM and 

Community Supports service delivery systems.  This includes expansion of ECM and Community Supports services, 

infrastructure, data exchange, and workforce capacity.

Incentive for Increased Access to Student Behavioral Health Services:

• DHCS has requested $400 million over three years

• Incentives are to build infrastructure, partnerships and capacity for school behavioral health services.

• Goal is to increase the number of K-12 students receiving preventive and early intervention BH services provided by 

schools, providers in schools, school affiliated CBOs or school-based health centers.

Kern Health System will partner with Safety Net Providers, contracted providers and community-based 

organizations to apply for maximum available incentive opportunities to build these needed resources in our 

community.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

57 / 308



Expanded Medi-Cal Enrollment

Mandatory Managed Care Enrollment is the transition from Fee for Services Medi-Cal to Managed Care Plans.  Transition 

will begin in 2022 and 2023, with DHCS estimates in Kern County outlined below.

New Population in 2022 New Population in 2023

Accelerated Enrollment (AE) Non-Disabled Adults (19 & over)

Pregnancy Related (Title XIX) Aged 

Breast & Cervical Cancer Treatment Program Disabled

Beneficiaries in Rural Zip Codes Long Term Care Duals

Beneficiaries with other health coverage Long Term Care Non-Duals

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

58 / 308



2022 Project Calendar for 2023 and Beyond 
Population Health Management (PHM) – scheduled for 1/1/23

• “Patient-centered population health strategy addressing member needs across the continuum of care based on data 

driven risk stratification, predictive analytics, and standardized assessment processes”.

• Bifurcated assessment/management of member between provider, community-based organizations, public health.

• Program development to meet needs of the individual based on risk and conditions specific factors.

Long Term Care (LTC) Carve-In – scheduled for 1/1/23

• Currently members receiving LTC/custodial care are disenrolled after 60 days. 

• As of 1/1/23, these members will remain in Managed Care. 

• Transitions to community/home with support services.

Medicare/Medicaid Dual-Eligible Special Needs Plan (D-SNP) – scheduled for 1/1/26 (implementation delayed 1 yr.)

• By 1/1/26 all Managed Care Plans are expected to operate a Medicare D-SNP product. 

• Improve continuity of care under integrated model with Medicare eligible members to include Long Term Support 

Services i.e., Home and community-based services, In home supportive services, and other waiver programs.

• Extensive Medicare requirements and oversight by CMS. 

NCQA Accreditation – scheduled for 1/1/26

• Achieve National Committee for Quality Assurance (NCQA) accreditation ONLY by 2026. DHCS plans to use NCQA 

findings to certify or deem that Medi-Cal managed care plans meet certain state and federal Medicaid requirements

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

59 / 308



Questions

For additional information, please contact:

Emily Duran

Chief Network Administration Officer

(661) 664-5000

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

60 / 308



 

                                                                                              

To:  KHS Board of Directors   

From: Robert Landis, CFO  

Date: December 16, 2021                     

Re: 2022 Budget 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 

The 2022 Budget supports the KHS 2022 Corporate and Department Goals and the 2022 Corporate 

Projects which will be presented at the next Board meeting. Such goals take into consideration and 

prioritize the continued support afforded to the Safety Net Providers. The scope of the 2022 

Corporate Goals reflect the expanded role Medi-Cal Managed Care health plans will be responsible 

for under the CalAIM initiative starting on January 1, 2022. 

 

Specifically, CalAIM has three primary goals: 

• Identify and manage member risk and need through whole person care approaches and 

addressing Social Determinants of Health  

• Move Medi-Cal to a more consistent and seamless system by reducing complexity and 

increasing flexibility; and 

• Improve quality outcomes, reduce health disparities, and drive delivery system 

transformation and innovation through value-based initiatives, modernization of systems, 

and payment reform. 

 

Major CalAIM initiatives scheduled for implementation on January 1, 2022 include: 

• Enhanced Care Management (ECM) is a comprehensive approach to address the clinical and 

non-clinical needs of high-need, high-cost members through coordination of services and 

comprehensive care management. Kern Health Systems Health Home Program and Kern 

Medical’s Whole Person Care Program will be incorporated under Enhanced Care 

Management.  Over the years, more Medi-Cal members will qualify for Enhanced Care 

Management through expansion among existing qualified enrollees or adding of new member 

eligibility categories.  

• Community Support Services (CSS) also formerly referred to as In Lieu of Services or ILOS, 

are services provided as a substitute for, or used to avoid, other more costly covered services, 

such as a hospital or skilled nursing facility admission or a discharge delay.  Such service may 

or may not be medically related but by their proper use should reduce medical cost. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

61 / 308



To:  KHS Finance Committee 

Re:  2022 Budget 

Page 2 

 

At its conclusion, CalAIM will transform Medi-Cal Managed Care health plans to provide a 

broader range of benefits through an integrated delivery system comprised of traditional medical  

services, behavior health services (including specialty mental health) substance use disorder 

services (detox and therapeutic) and dental care.  

 

Since 2012, we have witnessed an increase in membership from expansion in eligibility, adoption 

of the affordable care act and inclusion of a variety of new coverage categories and programs like 

SPDs, CBAS, childless adults, children with autism and undocumented children and young adults.  

 

Newly eligible populations present unique challenges.  KHS expanded its network of providers, 

both in scope and depth, so that the appropriate level and type of services would be available to 

treat new members often with medically complex conditions. Much of what has been developed 

and implemented over the past 9 years relates to the creation and administration of these new 

programs and the additional benefits and expanded services that accompany them.  Enrollment in 

KHS has increased nearly 300% during that time to where today, KHS serves approximately 

310,000 of Kern County’s residents.   

 

Setting the Stage 

 

In 2021 there were several new or modified DHCS and DMHC requirements that impact the 2022 

Budget including: 

 

• KHS will expand its Major Organ Transplant responsibilities with the addition of Heart, 

Lung, Liver and Pancreas. Historically, other than for kidneys, members needing organ 

transplants would disenroll with KHS and reenroll in the State’s Medi-Cal Fee For Service 

Coverage Plan.   

• Pharmacy Benefits Management (PBM) currently administered through health plans 

will be carved out and centrally administered through a statewide PBM   

• Medi-Cal Eligibility Expansion will occur over 2022, adding six new Managed Care Medi-

Cal eligibility population categories to Managed Care Plans like KHS 

• An Incentive Program to promote health plan and provider participation in ECM and CSS 

will be created.  The Governor’s budget allocated $300 million for plan incentives from 

January to June 2022, $600 million from July 2022 to June 2023, and $600 million from 

July 2023 to June 2024 

• Telehealth Services has shown to be an effective method for maintaining the physician / 

patient relationship during the pandemic.  DHCS modified its benefits to include telehealth 

as an alternative to office visits during the stay-at-home order  

• Population Health Management preparation will continue through 2022 to develop and 

maintain a whole system, person centered population health management strategy for 

addressing member needs across the continuum of care based on data driven risk 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

62 / 308



To:  KHS Finance Committee 

Re:  2022 Budget 

Page 3 

 

stratification, predictive analytics, and standardized assessment processes for 2023 

readiness 

• Expanded regulatory oversight for quality-of-care measures and timely access to care 

standards  

• New or expanded data and analytic reporting requirements  

• Increase in the application of supplemental payments pertaining to Hospital Directed 

Payments, Proposition 56 payments, GEMT, HYDE as well as other supplemental payment 

arrangements for physician and hospitals 

• Other new benefits and programs included in the State Budget (i.e., dyadic services, 

expanded postpartum eligibility, doula services, coverage of continuous glucose monitors, 

and whole genome sequencing)   

 

New 2022 Key Initiatives for KHS  

 

Besides these State mandated changes impacting the 2022 budget, several internal initiatives are 

scheduled for next year including:  

 

• Selection of a New Chief Executive Officer 

• Creation of a new 3-year Strategic Plan 

• Transition of Health Home Programs and Whole Person Care programs to Enhanced Care 

Management to include new sites and operational models 

• Procure and implement a Community Services Referral System that will allow CSS 

services to be referred, authorized, and monitored 

• Health Services staffing restructure to support Population Health Management program 

• Ongoing administration of the DHCS Behavioral Health / Integrated Care Grant 

• Continued administration of the KHS Provider and Community Grant program supporting 

the CalAIM initiatives defined by Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) 

• Implementation of an integrated School based Behavioral Health program 

• Broad focus on healthcare equity, inclusion, and diversity across the health plan and 

network, i.e., reporting, population identification, and program implementation 

• NCQA accreditation preparation standardizing quality assurance and clinical practice 

protocols across all Managed MCAL plans to comply with state and federal requirements 

• D-SNP preparations for all Managed MCAL plans to align enrollment of Medicare 

eligible members to promote more integrated care and ensure continuity of care 

protections 

• Corporate projects for improving processes, initiating new programs or enhancing services 

such as:  

o Enhance Care Management Expansion and Incentive Payment Program 

o In Lieu of Services Program 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

63 / 308



To:  KHS Finance Committee 

Re:  2022 Budget 

Page 4 

 

o Long Term Care Benefit 

o JIVA Medical Management System Upgrade   

o QNXT/NetworX/Optum Core Claims System Upgrade 

o Cactus Upgrade to Provider Credentialing System 

o Population Health Management Program Development and JIVA Module 

Implementation 

o Community-Based Organization Referral System 

o NCQA Consultant and Readiness Review 

o Alternative Provider Payment and Remittance Solution 

 

• Continued development of Provider Performance Based reimbursement arrangements 

• Expansion of Member incentive program across new or existing programs for enterprise-

wide eligibility  

• Identify and mitigate social determinants of health and reduce health disparities or 

inequities. 

• Expansion of department dashboards for operational metric transparency 

• Define/refine Medical Loss Ratio dashboard for monitoring and Executive transparency 

for budgeting considerations 

• Comply with State mandated coordination of benefits to help mitigate unwarranted cost 

and recovery including retro eligibility activity based on state information 

 

Support for Existing Programs and Initiatives in 2022 

 

Other major responsibilities annually performed by KHS that will impact the 2022 budget include: 

 

o  Medi-Cal COVID 19 Vaccination Incentive Program. Carry over from 2021. Targeted 

to end 2/28/22 

o Continue work with Kern Medical through the joint operations committee to explore 

collaboration opportunities and address operation issues and development of new 

chronic condition programs for Population Health 

o Continue to work with Dignity hospitals (Memorial, Mercy & Mercy Southwest) to 

ensure mutual success assuming risk via 2021 DRG agreement 

o Strengthen collaboration with Kern County Mental Health and the GATE team for 

Substance Use Disorders and resource/referral coordination 

o Expand the Transitional Care Program with local hospitals or independent KHS 

provider network 

o Palliative Care program expansion 

o Expand Telehealth Specialty Care services to all eligible service sectors 

o Development of home bound program to deliver care directly to members’ home for 

vulnerable populations 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

64 / 308



To:  KHS Finance Committee 

Re:  2022 Budget 

Page 5 

 

o Broad focus on Potentially Preventable Admissions with hospital and provider network 

collaboration 

o Expand the Diabetic Prevention Programs to provider settings focused on lifestyle 

changes for diabetes prevention 

o Ongoing support for the School based Wellness Programs 

o Collaboration with Kern County Community Alliance for Tobacco Cessation 

o Expand the Population Health Management Programs, including homelessness 

outreach, ER overutilization, and care coordination efforts to support CalAIM and low 

utilization members  

o Enhancing MCAS Tracking and Reporting, including expanded electronic data 

collection 

o Continue with Pay for Performance incentives to reward providers who demonstrate 

improved MCAS outcomes and other non-MCAS preventative care measures 

o Expand pregnancy related programs to improve pre and postnatal compliance to 

promote healthy babies 

o Design an in-house Medication Therapy Management Program for eligible members 

not deemed eligible in an Enhanced Care Management provider setting    

o Use the Care Gradient Analysis Predictive Modeling tool to identify populations for 

diagnoses specific engagement schemes 

o Continue to monitor and measure member and provider satisfaction independently via 

satisfaction surveys 

o Expand design and implementation of department specific outcome metrics 

o Continue monitoring of Fraud, Waste, and Abuse and delegated oversight of contracted 

providers and community partners  

o Expand COPD program to include other chronic cardio-pulmonary diagnoses such as 

Congestive Heart Failure (CHF) and Hypertension (HTN) 

o Continued recruitment and retention of talent to meet the ongoing changes and 

initiatives with CalAIM  

o Develop and provide training and support for KHS staff into each new phase of CalAIM 

o Ensure a safe return to work plan and a safe workplace for all KHS employees 

o Continue to enhance the Business Intelligence systems with a new data lineage tool. 

o Routine hardware and software upgrades and replacements to maintain systems. 

 

2022 Budget - Resources for Collaboration to Enhance Member or Provider Experience 

 

Finally, the 2022 budget will provide resources to support a variety of programs administered either 

directly or through collaboration with outside organizations. Examples include: 

 

o Provider/Member Portal for notification and education to network providers 

o Implement Claims Department Call Center to directly service all Provider inquiries 

o Autism Spectrum Disorder Behavioral Therapy, including Non-Autism diagnoses 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

65 / 308



To:  KHS Finance Committee 

Re:  2022 Budget 

Page 6 

 

o California Children’s Services Coordination of Care 

o Kern Regional Center Coordination of Care 

o Kern County Public Health Department for new or existing public health issues such 

       as Black Infant Health  

o Vision Services Plan for optometric diabetic screenings 

o Kaiser Permanente Subcontract  

o Program awareness of Mental Health benefit, including coordination with Kern County 

Public Health for Emergent Mental health services and Medication Assisted Therapy 

o Hospitalist program expansion 

o Low Income Housing through the Kern County Housing Authority  

o Asthma Remediation program collaboration with Central California Asthma Coalition  

 

2022 Budget Documents 

 

Attached are the following documents relating to the 2022 Budget: 

1) Consolidated Operating Budget  

2) Operating Budget by Aid Category 

3) Enrollment Assumptions 

4) Revenue Assumptions 

5) Medical Expense Assumptions 

6) Administrative Expense Assumptions 

7) Budgeted FTE by Department 

8) Capital Budget for 2022 

9) Preliminary 2021 Year-end and Projected 2022 TNE Calculation 

 

 

Requested Action 

 

Approve 2022 Operating and Capital Budgets. 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

66 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

67 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

68 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

69 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

70 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

71 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

72 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

73 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

74 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

75 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

76 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

77 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

78 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

79 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

80 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

81 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

82 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

83 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

84 / 308



 
 

To:  KHS Board of Directors 

From: Richard M. Pruitt, Chief Information Officer 

Date: December 16, 2020 

Re: Project Consulting Professional Services 

 

Background 

Over the last two years, KHS started a transformation so that the convergence of the Health Plan, 

Clinician, Member, Social Services, and Community Supports are all communicating when 

rendering their respective services.   All of this is being accomplished through technology, 

systems, data exchanges, reporting and analytics, people, and processes outlined in the various 

new programs and models from the State of California. 

 

Each year, the organization augments the workforce by outsourcing with consultants, thus 

avoiding full-time employee hires, to accommodate the temporary resource demands of the 

organization projects. 

 

Requested Action 

Authorize the CEO to approve contracts associated to procurement of Professional Resources 

with various consulting companies in the amount not to exceed $10,369,190 in operating and 

capital expenses associated for labor needed to complete the 2022 corporate and department 

projects. 

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

85 / 308



2022 Project Consulting 
Professional Services

December 2021

Richard M. Pruitt
Chief Information Officer

1

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

86 / 308



Agenda

• State of Affairs

• General Overview

• Sequence of Events

• Roadmap

• Expenditures

• Benefits of Outsourcing

• Board of Directors Request

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

87 / 308



State of Affairs

3

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

88 / 308



General Overview

Over the last two years, KHS started a transformation so that the convergence 
of the Health Plan, Clinician, Member, Social Services, and Community 
Supports are all communicating when rendering their respective services. 

All of this is being accomplished through technology, systems, data 
exchanges, reporting and analytics, people, and processes outlined in the 
various new programs and models from the State of California.

Each year, the organization augments the workforce by outsourcing with 
consultants, thus avoiding full-time employee hires, to accommodate the 
temporary resource demands of the organization projects. 

The resource demand for the 2022  identified the need for thirty-seven (37) 
resources to adequately staff the forty-one (41) Corporate and Department 
Projects not to exceed $10,369,190.

4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

89 / 308



Sequence of Events

• Continuous Executive Strategic Planning (Government Affairs)

• Design the 2022 Portfolio

• Annual Corporate/Department Project Planning & Approval

• Annual Resource Planning

• Annual Budget Process

• Create recommendation for the Board of Directors.

5

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

90 / 308



Roadmap

6

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

91 / 308



2021 Corporate Projects 

7

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

92 / 308



2022 Corporate Projects 

8

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

93 / 308



2022 Department Projects 

9

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

94 / 308



2022 Resource Planning 

10

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

95 / 308



Expenditures

11

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

96 / 308



Prior Year Comparison

12

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

97 / 308



Prior Year Comparison

13

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

98 / 308



Professional Services Vendors

14

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

99 / 308



Benefits of Outsourcing

• Staffing Flexibility to Accommodate Temporary Project Load.

• Reduce Long Term Administrative Costs.

• Obtain Resources Not Easily Available Locally.

• Find Skilled Resources Needed for Specific Projects. 

• Ensure Projects are Successful Through Adequate Staffing.

15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

100 / 308



Board of Directors Request

Authorize the CEO to approve contracts associated to
procurement of Professional Resources with various consulting
companies in the amount not to exceed $10,369,190 in
operating and capital expenses associated for labor needed to
complete the 2022 corporate and department projects.

16

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

101 / 308



Questions

Please contact:

Richard M. Pruitt

Chief Information Officer

661-664-5078

richard.pruitt@khs-net.com

17

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

102 / 308



 

To:  KHS Board of Directors                                 

From:  Robert Landis, CFO                                                            

Date: December 16, 2021 

Re: September 30, 2021 Financial Results 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

The September results reflect a $938,656 Net Increase in Net Position which is a $2,225,775 

favorable variance to the budget.  Listed below are the major variances for the month: 

 

1) Total Revenues reflect a $10.5 million favorable variance primarily due to: 

 

A) $7.2 million favorable variance primarily due to higher-than-expected budgeted 

membership. 

 

B) $.8 million favorable variance in Maternity Kick Premiums primarily due to higher-than-

expected births over the last several months.  

 

C) $2.5 million favorable variance in Premium-Hospital Directed Payments primarily due to 

receiving updated rates for calendar year 2021 from DHCS and higher than expected 

membership offset against amounts included in 2E below. 

 

2) Total Medical Costs reflect a $7.5 million unfavorable variance primarily due to: 

 

A) $2.7 million unfavorable variance in Physician Services primarily due to higher-than-

expected utilization of Primary Care, Specialty, and Urgent Care Services over the last 

several months. 

 

B) $1.9 million favorable variance in Emergency Room primarily due to lower-than-expected 

utilization over the last several months. 

 

C) $4.9 million unfavorable variance in Inpatient primarily due to higher-than-expected 

utilization. 

 

D) $.6 million favorable variance in Pharmacy primarily due from formulary modifications 

that capitalized on new generics that came to market and less costly brands within the same 

therapeutic class. 

 

E) $2.5 million unfavorable variance in Hospital Directed Payments primarily due to receiving 

updated rates for calendar year 2021 from DHCS and higher than expected membership 

offset against amounts included in 1C above. 

 

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

103 / 308



The September Medical Loss Ratio is 90.7% which is favorable to the 93.3% budgeted amount. The 

September Administrative Expense Ratio is 5.6% which is favorable to the 6.7% budgeted amount. 

 

The results for the 9 months ended September 30, 2021 reflect a Net Increase in Net Position of 

$13,212,088. This is a $18,159,425 favorable variance to budget and includes approximately $2.3 

million of favorable adjustments from the prior year. The year-to-date Medical Loss Ratio is 92.8 % 

which is favorable to the 93.2% budgeted amount. The year-to-date Administrative Expense Ratio 

is 5.5% which is favorable to the 6.7% budgeted amount.  

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

104 / 308



Kern Health Systems 

Financial Packet 

September 2021 
 

KHS – Medi-Cal Line of Business 

Comparative Statement of Net Position         Page 1 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position     Page 2 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - PMPM   Page 3  

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position by Month   Page 4 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position by Month - PMPM  Page 5 

Schedule of Revenues          Page 6 

Schedule of Medical Costs          Page 7 

Schedule of Medical Costs - PMPM         Page 8 

Schedule of Medical Costs by Month         Page 9 

Schedule of Medical Costs by Month – PMPM      Page 10 

Schedule of Administrative Expenses by Department      Page 11 

Schedule of Administrative Expenses by Department by Month    Page 12 

KHS Group Health Plan – Healthy Families Line of Business 

Comparative Statement of Net Position         Page 13 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position     Page 14 

KHS Administrative Analysis and Other Reporting  

Monthly Member Count          Page 15 

 

 

  

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

105 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

ASSETS SEPTEMBER 2021 AUGUST 2021 INC(DEC)
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 101,678,464$             101,079,711$             598,753$             
Short-Term Investments 172,145,319 168,987,982 3,157,337            

Premiums Receivable - Net 109,249,477               109,595,332               (345,855)             
Premiums Receivable - Hospital Direct Payments 268,101,628               301,656,818               (33,555,190)        

Interest Receivable 207,153 194,134 13,019                 
Provider Advance Payment 5,186,720 5,225,521 (38,801)               

Other Receivables 1,181,088 1,326,074 (144,986)             
Prepaid Expenses & Other Current Assets 2,962,488 3,154,865 (192,377)             

Total Current Assets 660,712,337$             691,220,437$             (30,508,100)$      

CAPITAL ASSETS - NET OF ACCUM DEPRE:
Land 4,090,706 4,090,706 -                           

Furniture and Equipment - Net 1,710,295 1,756,636 (46,341)               
Computer Hardware and Software - Net 12,649,295 12,953,613 (304,318)             

Building and Building Improvements - Net 34,667,033 34,742,727 (75,694)               
Capital Projects in Progress 14,759,866 14,326,024 433,842               

Total Capital Assets 67,877,195$               67,869,706$               7,489$                 

LONG TERM ASSETS:
Restricted Investments 300,000                      300,000                      -                      

Officer Life Insurance Receivables 1,593,961                   1,597,244                   (3,283)                 
Total Long Term Assets 1,893,961$                 1,897,244$                 (3,283)$               

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 3,018,341$                 3,018,341$                 -$                    

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 733,501,834$             764,005,728$             (30,503,894)$      

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accrued Salaries and Employee Benefits 4,639,883$                 4,277,081$                 362,802               
Accrued Other Operating Expenses 1,499,873 1,404,166 95,707                 

Accrued Taxes and Licenses 29,532,289                 19,638,235                 9,894,054            
Claims Payable (Reported) 20,473,886 27,408,253 (6,934,367)          
IBNR - Inpatient Claims 42,291,738 42,659,402 (367,664)             
IBNR - Physician Claims 15,869,970 15,210,414 659,556               

IBNR - Accrued Other Medical 21,037,779 22,345,096 (1,307,317)          
Risk Pool and Withholds Payable 7,823,866 7,912,360 (88,494)               

Statutory Allowance for Claims Processing Expense 2,157,367 2,157,367 -                           
 Other Liabilities 73,888,459 74,090,096 (201,637)             

Accrued Hospital Directed Payments 268,101,628 301,656,818 (33,555,190)        
Total Current Liabilities 487,316,738$             518,759,288$             (31,442,550)$      

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Net Pension Liability 5,800,140 5,800,140 -                           

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 5,800,140$                 5,800,140$                 -$                    

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 86,684$                      86,684$                      -$                    

NET POSITION: 
Net Position -  Beg. of Year 227,086,184 227,086,184 -                           

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position - Current Year 13,212,088 12,273,432 938,656               
Total Net Position 240,298,272$             239,359,616$             938,656$             

 TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION 733,501,834$             764,005,728$             (30,503,894)$      

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 1 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

106 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL - ALL COA

CURRENT MONTH MEMBERS

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION YEAR-TO-DATE MEMBER MONTHS

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

192,077 184,600 7,477 Family Members 1,686,430 1,647,000 39,430
77,938 70,565 7,373 Expansion Members 671,923 635,085 36,838
15,775 15,230 545  SPD Members 144,763 137,070 7,693

8,882 7,000 1,882 Other Members 74,271 63,000 11,271
12,250 10,500                 1,750                Kaiser Members 104,982 94,500            10,482               

306,922 287,895 19,027 T o t a l  M e m b e r s - MCAL 2,682,369 2,576,655 105,714

R E V E N U E S
35,961,464 32,197,771 3,763,693 Title  XIX - Medicaid - Family and Other 310,990,683 288,296,378 22,694,305
29,932,046 26,523,701 3,408,345 Title  XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members 259,291,429 238,713,308 20,578,121
16,075,172 15,294,634 780,538 Title  XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members 142,078,498 137,651,704 4,426,794
10,136,079    9,894,054            242,025 Premium - MCO Tax 88,862,488          83,110,055 5,752,433
16,554,814    14,082,143          2,472,671 Premium - Hospital Directed Payments 144,240,181        126,295,274 17,944,907

(59,079) 167,541 (226,620) Investment Earnings And Other Income 332,986 1,495,278 (1,162,292)
-                     80,445                 (80,445) Reinsurance Recoveries -                          719,825 (719,825)

5,709             -                           5,709                Rate Adjustments - Hospital Directed Payments 49,163,695          -                      49,163,695
122,473         -                           122,473            Rate/Income Adjustments 3,059,485            -                      3,059,485          

108,728,678 98,240,288 10,488,390 TOTAL  REVENUES 998,019,445 876,281,821 121,737,624

E X P E N S E S
Medical Costs:

17,895,535 15,199,441 (2,696,094)    Physician Services 141,295,386 136,216,291 (5,079,095)
4,347,759 4,734,425 386,666    Other Professional Services 42,357,761 42,515,979 158,218
3,735,609 5,587,729 1,852,120 Emergency Room 41,036,204 50,040,112 9,003,908

20,303,427 15,440,744 (4,862,683)    I n p a t  i e n t 177,917,103 138,527,657 (39,389,446)
84,384           80,445 (3,939)    Reinsurance Expense 742,828 719,825 (23,003)

7,529,697 7,004,939 (524,758) Outpatient Hospital 70,613,828 62,853,784 (7,760,044)
10,572,454 10,183,801 (388,653)    Other  Medical 96,582,944 91,264,693 (5,318,251)

9,913,574 10,512,680 599,106 Pharmacy 87,640,303 94,374,796 6,734,493
-                     527,051               527,051               Pay for Performance Quality Incentive 4,317,262 4,716,095       398,833             
-                     -                           -                       Risk Corridor Expense -                          -                      -                        

16,554,814    14,082,143          (2,472,671)       Hospital Directed Payments 144,240,181 126,295,274   (17,944,907)      
(132,637)        -                           132,637            Hospital Directed Payment Adjustment 48,151,841          -                      (48,151,841)      

20,737           -                           (20,737)            Non-Claims Expense Adjustment 953,907               -                      (953,907)           
14,595           -                           (14,595)               IBNR, Incentive, Paid Claims Adjustment 1,065,666            -                      (1,065,666)        

90,839,948 83,353,396 (7,486,552) Total Medical Costs 856,915,214 747,524,506 (109,390,708)

17,888,730 14,886,892          3,001,838 GROSS MARGIN 141,104,231 128,757,315   12,346,916

Administrative:
2,791,543      2,856,030 64,487    Compensation 24,688,842 25,779,273 1,090,431

968,021 1,071,006 102,985 Purchased Services 8,306,214 9,639,054 1,332,840
(17,330) 133,106 150,436 Supplies 727,485 1,197,956 470,471
427,804 500,520 72,716 Depreciation 3,828,099 4,504,684 676,585
443,524 385,959 (57,565)    Other Administrative Expenses 2,292,405 3,473,633 1,181,228

3,540             -                           (3,540)              Administrative Expense Adjustment (265,108)             -                      265,108             
4,617,102 4,946,622 329,520 Total  Administrative Expenses 39,577,937 44,594,599 5,016,662

95,457,050 88,300,019 (7,157,031) TOTAL  EXPENSES 896,493,151 792,119,105 (104,374,046)

13,271,628    9,940,269            3,331,359 OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 101,526,294        84,162,716     17,363,578

9,894,054      9,894,054            -                   MCO TAX 83,137,853          83,110,055 (27,798)

3,377,574      46,216                 3,331,359 OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) NET OF TAX 18,388,441          1,052,661       17,335,780

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
-                     -                           -                       Gain on Sale of Assets -                          -                      -                        

(2,355,306)     (1,166,667)           (1,188,639)       Provider Recruitment and Retention Grants (4,538,535)          (4,499,999)      (38,536)             
(83,612)          (166,667)              83,055              Health Home (637,818)             (1,499,999)      862,181             

(2,438,918)     (1,333,334)           (1,105,584)       TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) (5,176,353)          (5,999,998)      823,645             
 

938,656         (1,287,118)           2,225,775         NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 13,212,088          (4,947,337)      18,159,425

90.7% 93.3% 2.6% MEDICAL LOSS RATIO 92.8% 93.2% 0.3%

5.6% 6.7% 1.0% ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATIO 5.5% 6.7% 1.2%

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 2 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

107 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

CURRENT MONTH

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - PMPM YEAR-TO-DATE

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

E N R O L L M E N T
192,077 184,600 7,477 Family Members 1,686,430 1,647,000 39,430

77,938 70,565 7,373 Expansion Members 671,923 635,085 36,838
15,775 15,230 545  SPD Members 144,763 137,070 7,693

8,882 7,000 1,882 Other Members 74,271 63,000 11,271
12,250 10,500          1,750            Kaiser Members 104,982 94,500          10,482          

306,922 287,895 19,027 T o t a l  M e m b e r s - MCAL 2,682,369 2,576,655 105,714

R E V E N U E S
178.95 168.05 10.90 Title  XIX - Medicaid - Family and Other 176.63 168.59 8.03
384.05 375.88 8.17 Title  XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members 385.89 375.88 10.02

1,019.03 1,004.24 14.78 Title  XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members 981.46 1,004.24 (22.79)
34.40 35.67 (1.27) Premium - MCO Tax 34.48 33.48 0.99
56.18 50.77 5.41 Premium - Hospital Directed Payments 55.96 50.88 5.08
(0.20) 0.60 (0.80) Investment Earnings And Other Income 0.13 0.60 (0.47)
0.00 0.29 (0.29) Reinsurance Recoveries 0.00 0.29 (0.29)
0.02 0.00 0.02 Rate Adjustments - Hospital Directed Payments 19.08 0.00 19.08
0.42 0.00 0.42 Rate/Income Adjustments 1.19 0.00 1.19

368.98 354.15 14.83 TOTAL  REVENUES 387.22 353.03 34.19

E X P E N S E S
Medical Costs:

60.73 54.79 (5.94)    Physician Services 54.82 54.88 0.06
14.75 17.07 2.31    Other Professional Services 16.43 17.13 0.69
12.68 20.14 7.47 Emergency Room 15.92 20.16 4.24
68.90 55.66 (13.24)    I n p a t  i e n t 69.03 55.81 (13.22)

0.29 0.29 0.00    Reinsurance Expense 0.29 0.29 0.00
25.55 25.25 (0.30) Outpatient Hospital 27.40 25.32 (2.08)
35.88 36.71 0.83    Other  Medical 37.47 36.77 (0.70)
33.64 37.90 4.26 Pharmacy 34.00 38.02 4.02

0.00 1.90 1.90    Pay for Performance Quality Incentive 1.68 1.90 0.22
0.00 0.00 0.00 Risk Corridor Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00

56.18 50.77 (5.41) Hospital Directed Payments 55.96 50.88 (5.08)
(0.45) 0.00 0.45 Hospital Directed Payment Adjustment 18.68 0.00 (18.68)
0.07 0.00 (0.07) Non-Claims Expense Adjustment 0.37 0.00 (0.37)
0.05 0.00 (0.05)    IBNR, Incentive, Paid Claims Adjustment 0.41 0.00 (0.41)

308.27 300.49 (7.79) Total Medical Costs 332.47 301.16 (31.31)

60.71 53.67 7.04 GROSS MARGIN 54.75 51.87 2.87

Administrative:
9.47 10.30 0.82    Compensation 9.58 10.39 0.81
3.29 3.86 0.58 Purchased Services 3.22 3.88 0.66

(0.06) 0.48 0.54 Supplies 0.28 0.48 0.20
1.45 1.80 0.35 Depreciation 1.49 1.81 0.33
1.51 1.39 (0.11)    Other Administrative Expenses 0.89 1.40 0.51
0.01 0.00 (0.01) Administrative Expense Adjustment (0.10) 0.00 0.10

15.67 17.83 2.16 Total  Administrative Expenses 15.36 17.97 2.61

323.94 318.32 (5.62) TOTAL  EXPENSES 347.83 319.13 (28.70)

45.04 35.83 9.20 OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 39.39 33.91 5.48

33.58 35.67 2.09 MCO TAX 32.26 33.48 1.23

11.46 0.17 11.30 OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) NET OF TAX 7.13 0.42 6.71

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
0.00 0.00 0.00 Gain on Sale of Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00

(7.99) (4.21) (3.79) Reserve Fund Projects/Community Grants (1.76) (1.81) 0.05
(0.28) (0.60) 0.32 Health Home (0.25) (0.60) 0.36

(8.28) (4.81) (3.47) TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) (2.01) (2.42) 0.41

3.19 (4.64) 7.83 NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 5.13 (1.99) 7.12

90.7% 93.3% 2.6% MEDICAL LOSS RATIO 92.8% 93.2% 0.3%

5.6% 6.7% 1.0% ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATIO 5.5% 6.7% 1.2%

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 3

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

108 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION BY MONTH - 

ROLLING 13 MONTHS
THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

E N R O L L M E N T
M e m b e r s - MCAL 278,100 272,481 275,080 277,452 278,517 276,880 282,972 284,587 287,199 289,309 290,980 292,271 294,672 3,680,500

R E V E N U E S
Title  XIX - Medicaid - Family and Other 30,419,692 33,387,274 30,920,096 32,216,002 33,254,490 33,365,704 33,587,650 33,739,041 34,872,666 35,878,342 35,761,670 34,569,656 35,961,464 437,933,747

Title  XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members 25,069,155 27,568,938 25,504,052 27,197,954 27,548,311 27,720,576 28,063,951 28,547,171 28,728,667 29,533,533 29,676,566 29,540,608 29,932,046 364,631,528
Title  XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members 15,191,965 14,457,143 16,007,482 15,504,966 15,326,978 15,368,431 15,407,903 15,527,562 16,024,510 15,971,978 16,260,445 16,115,519 16,075,172 203,240,054

Premium - MCO Tax 8,332,682 9,166,454 8,420,487 8,830,398 9,577,432 9,657,982 9,752,737 9,805,142 9,876,747 9,961,634 10,025,153 10,069,582 10,136,079 123,612,509
Premium - Hospital Directed Payments 9,112,869 9,955,034 9,313,088 9,738,038 15,121,903 15,230,282 12,949,303 14,734,613 14,811,749 22,138,233 16,337,340 16,361,944 16,554,814 182,359,210
Investment Earnings And Other Income (14,474) 151,948 166,556 147,197 4,303 116,471 (249,580) 205,894 195,233 (408,458) (39,267) 567,469 (59,079) 784,213

Reinsurance Recoveries -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                   -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                    
Rate Adjustments - Hospital Directed Payments 2,924 77 10,627 (2,692) 39,990 21,877 78,150,342 3,134 79,899 4,445 (29,149,066) 7,365 5,709 49,174,631

Rate/Income Adjustments 70,321 (582,499) 127,031 226,726 799,886 594,678 1,527,455 266,498 595,656 (93,658) (294,637) (458,866) 122,473 2,901,064

TOTAL  REVENUES 88,185,134     94,104,369     90,469,419     93,858,589     101,673,293   102,076,001    179,189,761   102,829,055   105,185,127   112,986,049   78,578,204     106,773,277   108,728,678   1,364,636,956

E X P E N S E S
Medical Costs:

   Physician Services 14,514,021 14,157,774 13,867,872 12,660,363 14,907,160 14,731,540 15,058,794 15,642,095 15,744,708 16,190,717 15,305,367 15,819,470 17,895,535 196,495,416
   Other Professional Services 4,841,378 3,806,785 4,389,484 4,935,401 4,421,552 4,883,941 5,048,627 5,107,193 4,658,383 4,460,451 4,604,443 4,825,412 4,347,759 60,330,809

Emergency Room 4,926,059 4,814,428 4,638,713 3,194,257 4,676,327 4,420,437 4,353,449 4,480,205 5,023,372 5,040,670 4,833,831 4,472,304 3,735,609 58,609,661
   I n p a t  i e n t 17,879,275 17,137,251 17,212,070 19,183,080 19,853,180 19,321,533 17,577,565 18,419,878 20,578,157 20,739,625 20,542,490 20,581,248 20,303,427 249,328,779

   Reinsurance Expense 76,523 77,652 84,521 77,390 81,215            80,770 80,461 80,129 84,297 82,530 84,045 84,997 84,384 1,058,914
Outpatient Hospital 6,804,640 6,653,372 6,209,999 6,565,195 7,108,674 6,610,422 7,160,111 8,681,740 8,842,725 8,800,023 7,937,455 7,942,981 7,529,697 96,847,034

   Other  Medical 14,033,235 12,916,278 10,958,385 13,070,247 10,641,113 10,412,229 11,840,899 9,883,445 10,960,637 12,430,651 9,927,247 9,914,269 10,572,454 147,561,089
Pharmacy 9,829,083 9,259,169 8,717,167 9,651,881 9,100,359 9,049,621 10,299,227 9,412,697 9,349,484 10,442,688 9,774,211 10,298,442 9,913,574 125,097,603

   Pay for Performance Quality Incentive 529,498 556,200 544,962 -                      529,182 529,183 526,070 540,715 540,715 545,673 552,862 552,862 -                      5,947,922
Risk Corridor Expense (2,700,000)      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                       -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      (2,700,000)

Hospital Directed Payments 9,112,869 9,955,034 9,313,088 9,738,038 15,121,903 15,230,282 12,949,303 14,734,613 14,811,759 22,138,233 16,337,330 16,361,944 16,554,814 182,359,210
Hospital Directed Payment Adjustment 4,234 77 6,596 (1,263) 39,990 21,878 77,356,953 3,134 597 3,943 (29,149,382) 7,365 (132,637) 48,161,485

Non-Claims Expense Adjustment (777,546) 5,124 (209,309) 1,598 287,063 233,372 212,564 71,855 58,763 46,953 (11,833) 34,433 20,737 (26,226)
   IBNR, Incentive, Paid Claims Adjustment (4,317,566) (5,474) 205,986 316,193 4,787 858,658 1,700,070 (85,946)           449,838          (2,226,487)      406,066          (55,915)           14,595            (2,735,195)

Total Medical Costs 74,755,703     79,333,670     75,939,534     79,392,380     86,772,505     86,383,866      164,164,093   86,971,753     91,103,435     98,695,670     61,144,132     90,839,812     90,839,948     1,166,336,501

GROSS MARGIN 13,429,431     14,770,699     14,529,885     14,466,209     14,900,788     15,692,135      15,025,668     15,857,302     14,081,692     14,290,379     17,434,072     15,933,465     17,888,730     198,300,455
Administrative:
   Compensation 2,636,509 2,613,272 2,456,357 2,766,869 2,772,584 2,908,104 2,457,160 2,691,957 2,748,394 2,731,289 2,805,915 2,781,896 2,791,543 35,161,849       

Purchased Services 421,612 689,841 745,537 1,172,530 818,908 824,152 941,200 986,086 996,889 985,876 939,689 845,393 968,021 11,335,734       
Supplies 71,111 34,967 106,489 39,305 57,592 57,416 4,446 131,712 57,943 85,576 156,626 193,504 (17,330) 979,357            

Depreciation 419,251 419,796 419,850 421,301 422,833 422,834 426,541 426,541 422,382 425,837 425,522 427,805 427,804 5,508,297         
   Other Administrative Expenses 296,858 137,960 242,696 351,189 277,245 267,201 102,962 248,235 230,567 233,637 274,638 214,396 443,524 3,321,108         

Administrative Expense Adjustment -                      -                      -                      1,407,045       18,296            (271,318) 57,294 (5,010)             (215)                (63,654)           (1,674)             (2,367)             3,540              1,141,937         
Total  Administrative Expenses 3,845,341       3,895,836       3,970,929       6,158,239       4,367,458       4,208,389        3,989,603       4,479,521       4,455,960       4,398,561       4,600,716       4,460,627       4,617,102       57,448,282       

TOTAL  EXPENSES 78,601,044     83,229,506     79,910,463     85,550,619     91,139,963     90,592,255      168,153,696   91,451,274     95,559,395     103,094,231   65,744,848     95,300,439     95,457,050     1,223,784,783

OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 9,584,090 10,874,863 10,558,956 8,307,970 10,533,330 11,483,746 11,036,065 11,377,781 9,625,732 9,891,818 12,833,356 11,472,838 13,271,628 140,852,173

MCO TAX 8,904,649       8,904,648       8,904,649       8,904,649       8,902,943       8,904,649        8,933,228       8,905,080       8,905,142       8,904,648       9,894,054       9,894,055       9,894,054       118,756,448

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) NET OF TAX 679,441 1,970,215 1,654,307 (596,679) 1,630,387 2,579,097 2,102,837 2,472,701 720,590 987,170 2,939,302 1,578,783 3,377,574 22,095,726

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) (176,843)         (1,188,755)      (931,682)         1,433,032       (137,472)         (151,159)          (88,366)           (167,372)         (245,779)         (164,148)         (833,809)         (949,330)         (2,438,918)      (6,040,601)       

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 502,598 781,460 722,625 836,353 1,492,915 2,427,938 2,014,471 2,305,329 474,811 823,022 2,105,493 629,453 938,656 16,055,125

MEDICAL LOSS RATIO 92.8% 92.5% 91.6% 92.5% 93.1% 92.2% 94.3% 92.3% 94.9% 94.6% 90.9% 92.7% 90.7% 92.7%

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATIO 5.4% 5.2% 5.5% 8.2% 5.7% 5.5% 5.1% 5.7% 5.5% 5.4% 5.7% 5.6% 5.6% 5.7%

13 MONTH 
TOTAL

SEPTEMBER        
2020

OCTOBER        
2020

NOVEMBER       
2020

DECEMBER       
2020

JANUARY 
2021

FEBRUARY 
2021

MARCH    
2021

APRIL      
2021

MAY        
2021

JUNE        
2021

JULY        
2021

AUGUST        
2021

SEPTEMBER        
2021

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only

 

Page 4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

109 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION BY MONTH - PMPM   

ROLLING 13 MONTHS
THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

E N R O L L M E N T
M e m b e r s - MCAL 278,100 272,481 275,080 277,452 278,517 276,880 282,972 284,587 287,199 289,309 290,980 292,271 294,672 3,680,500

R E V E N U E S
Title  XIX - Medicaid - Family and Other 166.16 173.40 164.62 168.64 174.01 177.17 172.94 173.28 177.71 181.55 180.10 173.76 179.43 173.69

Title  XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members 379.54 393.46 371.41 384.47 385.83 397.58 382.20 385.72 381.99 388.41 387.35 380.84 383.93 383.28
Title  XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members 972.22 945.03 1,012.68 989.03 957.28 816.21 1,005.21 978.42 1,017.24 1,020.90 1,029.14 1,023.27 1,017.48 980.46

Premium - MCO Tax 29.96 33.64 30.61 31.83 34.39 34.88 34.47 34.45 34.39 34.43 34.45 34.45 34.40 33.59
Premium - Hospital Directed Payments 32.77 36.53 33.86 35.10 54.29 55.01 45.76 51.78 51.57 76.52 56.15 55.98 56.18 49.55
Investment Earnings And Other Income (0.05) 0.56 0.61 0.53 0.02 0.42 (0.88) 0.72 0.68 (1.41) (0.13) 1.94 (0.20) 0.21

Reinsurance Recoveries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Rate Adjustments - Hospital Directed Payments 0.01 0.00 0.04 (0.01) 0.14 0.08 276.18 0.01 0.28 0.02 (100.18) 0.03 0.02 13.36

Rate/Income Adjustments 0.25 (2.14) 0.46 0.82 2.87 2.15 5.40 0.94 2.07 (0.32) (1.01) (1.57) 0.42 0.79
TOTAL  REVENUES 317.10            345.36            328.88            338.29            365.05            368.67            633.24            361.33            366.24            390.54            270.05            365.32            368.98            370.77            

E X P E N S E S
Medical Costs:

   Physician Services 52.19 51.96 50.41 45.63 53.52 53.21 53.22 54.96 54.82 55.96 52.60 54.13 60.73 53.39
   Other Professional Services 17.41 13.97 15.96 17.79 15.88 17.64 17.84 17.95 16.22 15.42 15.82 16.51 14.75 16.39

Emergency Room 17.71 17.67 16.86 11.51 16.79 15.97 15.38 15.74 17.49 17.42 16.61 15.30 12.68 15.92
   I n p a t  i e n t 64.29 62.89 62.57 69.14 71.28 69.78 62.12 64.72 71.65 71.69 70.60 70.42 68.90 67.74

   Reinsurance Expense 0.28 0.28 0.31 0.28 0.29 0.29 0.28 0.28 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29
Outpatient Hospital 24.47 24.42 22.58 23.66 25.52 23.87 25.30 30.51 30.79 30.42 27.28 27.18 25.55 26.31

   Other  Medical 50.46 47.40 39.84 47.11 38.21 37.61 41.84 34.73 38.16 42.97 34.12 33.92 35.88 40.09
Pharmacy 35.34 33.98 31.69 34.79 32.67 32.68 36.40 33.07 32.55 36.10 33.59 35.24 33.64 33.99

   Pay for Performance Quality Incentive 1.90 2.04 1.98 0.00 1.90 1.91 1.86 1.90 1.88 1.89 1.90 1.89 0.00 1.62
Risk Corridor Expense (9.71) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (0.73)

Hospital Directed Payments 32.77 36.53 33.86 35.10 54.29 55.01 45.76 51.78 51.57 76.52 56.15 55.98 56.18 49.55
Hospital Directed Payment Adjustment 0.02 0.00 0.02 (0.00) 0.14 0.08 273.37 0.01 0.00 0.01 (100.18) 0.03 (0.45) 13.09

Non-Claims Expense Adjustment (2.80) 0.02 (0.76) 0.01 1.03 0.84 0.75 0.25 0.20 0.16 (0.04) 0.12 0.07 (0.01)
   IBNR, Incentive, Paid Claims Adjustment (15.53) (0.02) 0.75 1.14 0.02 3.10 6.01 (0.30) 1.57 (7.70) 1.40 (0.19) 0.05 (0.74)

Total Medical Costs 268.81 291.15 276.06 286.15 311.55 311.99 580.14 305.61 317.21 341.14 210.13 310.81 308.27 316.90

GROSS MARGIN 48.29              54.21              52.82              52.14              53.50              56.67              53.10              55.72              49.03              49.39              59.92              54.52              60.71              53.88              
Administrative:
   Compensation 9.48 9.59 8.93 9.97 9.95 10.50 8.68 9.46 9.57 9.44 9.64 9.52 9.47 9.55

Purchased Services 1.52 2.53 2.71 4.23 2.94 2.98 3.33 3.46 3.47 3.41 3.23 2.89 3.29 3.08
Supplies 0.26 0.13 0.39 0.14 0.21 0.21 0.02 0.46 0.20 0.30 0.54 0.66 (0.06) 0.27

Depreciation 1.51 1.54 1.53 1.52 1.52 1.53 1.51 1.50 1.47 1.47 1.46 1.46 1.45 1.50
   Other Administrative Expenses 1.07 0.51 0.88 1.27 1.00 0.97 0.36 0.87 0.80 0.81 0.94 0.73 1.51 0.90

Administrative Expense Adjustment 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.07 0.07 (0.98) 0.20 (0.02) (0.00) (0.22) (0.01) (0.01) 0.01 0.31
Total  Administrative Expenses 13.83 14.30 14.44 22.20 15.68 15.20 14.10 15.74 15.52 15.20 15.81 15.26 15.67 15.61

TOTAL  EXPENSES 282.64            305.45            290.50            308.34            327.23            327.19            594.24            321.35            332.73            356.35            225.94            326.07            323.94            332.51            

OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 34.46              39.91              38.39              29.94              37.82              41.48              39.00              39.98              33.52              34.19              44.10              39.25              45.04              38.27              

MCO TAX 32.02 32.68 32.37 32.09 31.97 32.16 31.57 31.29 31.01 30.78 34.00 33.85 33.58 32.27              

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) NET OF TAX 2.44                7.23                6.01                (2.15)               5.85                9.31                7.43                8.69                2.51                3.41                10.10              5.40                11.46              6.00                

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) (0.64) (4.36) (3.39) 5.16 (0.49) (0.55) (0.31) (0.59) (0.86) (0.57) (2.87) (3.25) (8.28) (1.64)               

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 1.81                2.87                2.63                3.01                5.36                8.77                7.12                8.10                1.65                2.84                7.24                2.15                3.19                4.36                

MEDICAL LOSS RATIO 92.8% 92.5% 91.6% 92.5% 93.1% 92.2% 94.3% 92.3% 94.9% 94.6% 90.9% 92.7% 90.7% 92.7%

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATIO 5.4% 5.2% 5.5% 8.2% 5.7% 5.5% 5.1% 5.7% 5.5% 5.4% 5.7% 5.6% 5.6% 5.7%

13 MONTH 
TOTAL

SEPTEMBER          
2020

OCTOBER          
2020

NOVEMBER          
2020

DECEMBER          
2020

JANUARY 
2021

FEBRUARY 
2021

MARCH         
2021

APRIL          
2021

MAY             
2021

JUNE             
2021

JULY           
2021

AUGUST           
2021

SEPTEMBER           
2021

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 5

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

110 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

CURRENT  MONTH SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - ALL COA YEAR-TO-DATE
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

R E V E N U E S

Title XIX - Medicaid - Family & Other

27,773,359 24,881,137 2,892,222 Premium - Medi-Cal 242,785,280 222,743,288 20,041,992
3,070,468 2,520,887 549,581 Premium - Maternity Kick 21,424,625 22,687,983 (1,263,358)

17,647                  79,781                  (62,134) Premium - Hep C Kick 336,527 712,036 (375,509)
734,756                493,145                241,611 Premium - BHT Kick 5,641,806             4,401,245 1,240,561
195,615                178,369                17,246 Premium - Health Home Kick 1,503,317             1,591,916 (88,599)

3,716,806             3,505,252             211,554                Premium - Provider Enhancement 32,598,105           31,336,741 1,261,364
187,196                170,029                17,167                  Premium - Ground Emergency Medical Transportation 1,636,821             1,522,195 114,626
153,195                277,284                (124,089)               Premium - Behavorial Health Integration Program 4,090,062             2,474,719 1,615,343
112,422                91,886                  20,536 Other 974,140 826,254 147,886

35,961,464 32,197,771 3,763,693 Total Title XIX - Medicaid - Family & Other 310,990,683 288,296,378 22,694,305

Title XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members

27,080,630 24,002,303           3,078,327 Premium - Medi-Cal 234,504,803 216,020,727 18,484,076
471,811 214,253                257,558 Premium - Maternity Kick 3,289,279 1,928,277 1,361,002
174,729                202,017                (27,288) Premium - Hep C Kick 1,686,133 1,818,152 (132,019)
332,127                356,121                (23,994) Premium - Health Home Kick 2,575,829             3,205,089 (629,260)

1,589,939             1,455,050             134,889                Premium - Provider Enhancement 13,769,736 13,095,450           674,286
190,904                165,235                25,669                  Premium - Ground Emergency Medical Transportation 1,653,299 1,487,115             166,184

59,726                  102,122                (42,396)                 Premium - Behavorial Health Integration Program 1,533,633             919,098                614,535                
32,180                  26,600                  5,580 Other 278,717                239,400 39,317

29,932,046 26,523,701 3,408,345 Total Title XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members 259,291,429 238,713,308 20,578,121

Title XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members

14,464,666 13,474,791 989,875 Premium - Medi-Cal 128,291,037 121,273,115 7,017,922
52,419                  100,288                (47,869)                 Premium - Hep C Kick 436,822 902,589 (465,767)               

673,644                763,566 (89,922) Premium - BHT Kick 5,411,656 6,872,092 (1,460,436)
266,090                351,842 (85,752) Premium - Health Home Kick 2,215,650             3,166,578 (950,928)
470,113                454,632 15,481                  Premium - Provider Enhancement 4,169,243 4,091,688 77,555
136,114                127,475                8,639                    Premium - Ground Emergency Medical Transportation 1,207,141 1,147,275 59,866

12,126                  22,041                  (9,915)                   Premium - Behavorial Health Integration Program 346,949                198,369 148,580

16,075,172 15,294,634 780,538 Total Title XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members 142,078,498 137,651,705 4,426,793

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 6

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

111 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

CURRENT  MONTH SCHEDULE OF MEDICAL COSTS - ALL COA YEAR-TO-DATE
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

PHYSICIAN SERVICES
3,847,107 3,078,549 (768,558) Primary Care Physician Services 31,388,030 27,557,257 (3,830,773)

11,970,037 10,604,663 (1,365,374) Referral Specialty Services 97,409,254 95,094,142 (2,315,112)
2,069,391             1,507,230 (562,161) Urgent Care & After Hours Advise 12,416,202 13,482,993 1,066,791

9,000                    9,000 -                            Hospital Admitting Team 81,900 81,900 -                            

17,895,535 15,199,441 (2,696,094) TOTAL PHYSICIAN SERVICES 141,295,386 136,216,291 (5,079,095)

OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
305,529                296,367 (9,162) Vision Service Capitation 2,689,549 2,651,945 (37,604)
221,627                212,115 (9,512) 221 - Business Intelligence 1,918,016 1,909,035 (8,981)
676,703                597,920 (78,783) 310 - Health Services - Utilization Management - UM Allocation * 5,522,054 5,381,280 (140,774)
135,328                189,152 53,824 311 - Health Services - Quality Improvement - UM Allocation * 1,261,758 1,702,368 440,610
126,475                123,337 (3,138) 312 - Health Services - Education - UM Allocation * 1,074,153 1,110,031 35,878

75,395                  80,283 4,888 313 - Health Services - Pharmacy - UM Allocation * 680,549 722,547 41,998
156,150                210,465 54,315 314 - Health Homes - UM Allocation * 1,279,892 1,894,185 614,293
351,075                270,692 (80,383) 315 - Case Management - UM Allocation * 2,509,512 2,436,228 (73,284)

62,029                  -                            (62,029) 316 - Population Health Management - UM Allocation * 63,762 -                            (63,762)
14,485                  -                            (14,485) 317 - In Lieu of Services - UM Allocation * 14,485 -                            (14,485)
53,328                  56,773 3,445 616 - Disease Management - UM Allocation * 533,486 510,957 (22,529)

1,080,856             1,256,711 175,855 Behavior Health Treatment 10,897,312 11,273,336 376,024
92,882                  189,952 97,070 Mental Health Services 1,142,887 1,704,124 561,237

995,897                1,250,658 254,761 Other Professional Services 12,770,346           11,219,943 (1,550,403)

4,347,759 4,734,425 386,666 TOTAL OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 42,357,761 42,515,979 158,218

3,735,609 5,587,729 1,852,120 EMERGENCY ROOM 41,036,204 50,040,112 9,003,908

20,303,427 15,440,744 (4,862,683) INPATIENT HOSPITAL 177,917,103 138,527,657 (39,389,446)

84,384                  80,445 (3,939) REINSURANCE EXPENSE PREMIUM 742,828                719,825 (23,003)

7,529,697 7,004,939 (524,758) OUTPATIENT HOSPITAL SERVICES 70,613,828 62,853,784 (7,760,044)

OTHER MEDICAL  
1,451,342 1,555,695 104,353 Ambulance and NEMT 11,998,760 13,938,820 1,940,060

595,101 426,682 (168,419) Home Health Services & CBAS 6,200,172 3,828,480 (2,371,692)
404,807 491,325 86,518 Utilization and Quality Review Expenses 3,599,001 4,421,925 822,924

1,619,759 1,302,167 (317,592) Long Term/SNF/Hospice 12,224,055 11,699,636 (524,419)
263,420                395,719 132,299 Health Home Capitation & Incentive 2,403,337             3,550,101 1,146,764

5,498,898             5,148,026             (350,872)               Provider Enhancement Expense - Prop. 56 48,104,069           46,076,962 (2,027,107)
514,078                462,739                (51,339)                 Provider Enhancement Expense - GEMT 4,157,005             4,156,585 (420)

-                            -                            -                            Provider COVID-19 Expenes 2,125,900             -                            (2,125,900)
225,049                401,447                176,398                Behaviorial Health Integration Program 5,770,645             3,592,185 (2,178,460)

10,572,454 10,183,801 (388,653) TOTAL OTHER MEDICAL 96,582,944 91,264,693 (5,318,251)

PHARMACY SERVICES 

8,903,588 9,392,400             488,812 RX - Drugs & OTC 78,695,115 84,315,600 5,620,485

258,446 382,086                123,640 RX - HEP-C 2,424,999 3,432,777 1,007,778

761,862                771,580 9,718 Rx - DME 7,498,101 6,926,136 (571,965)

(10,322)                 (33,386) (23,064) RX - Pharmacy Rebates (977,912)              (299,717) 678,195

9,913,574 10,512,680 599,106 TOTAL PHARMACY SERVICES 87,640,303           94,374,796           6,734,493

-                            527,051                527,051                PAY FOR PERFORMANCE QUALITY INCENTIVE 4,317,262             4,716,095             398,833

-                            -                            -                            RISK CORRIDOR EXPENSE -                            -                            -                            

16,554,814           14,082,143           (2,472,671)            HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENTS 144,240,181         126,295,274         (17,944,907)

(132,637)               -                            132,637                HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT 48,151,841           -                            (48,151,841)          

20,737                  -                            (20,737)                 NON-CLAIMS EXPENSE ADJUSTMENT 953,907                -                            (953,907)

14,595                  -                            (14,595)                 IBNR, INCENTIVE, AND PAID CLAIMS ADJUSTMENT 1,065,666             -                            (1,065,666)            

90,839,948 83,353,396 (7,486,552)            Total Medical Costs 856,915,214 747,524,506 (109,390,708)

* Medical costs per DMHC regulations 
KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 7

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

112 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

CURRENT  MONTH SCHEDULE OF MEDICAL COSTS - ALL COA - PMPM YEAR-TO-DATE
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

PHYSICIAN SERVICES
13.06 11.10 (1.96) Primary Care Physician Services 12.18 11.10 (1.08)
40.62 38.23 (2.39) Referral Specialty Services 37.79 38.31 0.52

7.02 5.43 (1.59) Urgent Care & After Hours Advise 4.82 5.43 0.61
0.03 0.03 0.00 Hospital Admitting Team 0.03 0.03 0.00

60.73 54.79 (5.94) TOTAL PHYSICIAN SERVICES 54.82 54.88 0.06

OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
1.04 1.07 0.03 Vision Service Capitation 1.04 1.07 0.02
0.75 0.76 0.01 221 - Business Intelligence 0.74 0.77 0.02
2.30 2.16 (0.14) 310 - Health Services - Utilization Management - UM Allocation * 2.14 2.17 0.03
0.46 0.68 0.22 311 - Health Services - Quality Improvement - UM Allocation * 0.49 0.69 0.20
0.43 0.44 0.02 312 - Health Services - Education - UM Allocation * 0.42 0.45 0.03
0.26 0.29 0.03 313 - Health Services - Pharmacy - UM Allocation * 0.26 0.29 0.03
0.53 0.76 0.23 314 - Health Homes - UM Allocation * 0.50 0.76 0.27
1.19 0.98 (0.22) 315 - Case Management - UM Allocation * 0.97 0.98 0.01
0.21 0.00 (0.21) 316 - Population Health Management - UM Allocation * 0.02 0.00 (0.02)
0.05 0.00 (0.05) 317 - In Lieu of Services - UM Allocation * 0.01 0.00 (0.01)
0.18 0.20 0.02 616 - Disease Management - UM Allocation * 0.21 0.21 (0.00)
3.67 4.53 0.86 Behavior Health Treatment 4.23 4.54 0.31
0.32 0.68 0.37 Mental Health Services 0.44 0.69 0.24
3.38 4.51 1.13 Other Professional Services 4.95 4.52 (0.43)

14.75 17.07 2.31 TOTAL OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 16.43 17.13 0.69

12.68 20.14 7.47 EMERGENCY ROOM 15.92 20.16 4.24

68.90 55.66 (13.24) INPATIENT HOSPITAL 69.03 55.81 (13.22)

0.29 0.29 0.00 REINSURANCE EXPENSE PREMIUM 0.29 0.29 0.00

25.55 25.25 (0.30) OUTPATIENT HOSPITAL SERVICES 27.40 25.32 (2.08)

OTHER MEDICAL  
4.93 5.61 0.68 Ambulance and NEMT 4.66 5.62 0.96
2.02 1.54 (0.48) Home Health Services & CBAS 2.41 1.54 (0.86)
1.37 1.77 0.40 Utilization and Quality Review Expenses 1.40 1.78 0.39
5.50 4.69 (0.80) Long Term/SNF/Hospice 4.74 4.71 (0.03)
0.89 1.43 0.53 Health Home Capitation & Incentive 0.93 1.43 0.50

18.66 18.56 (0.10) Provider Enhancement Expense - Prop. 56 18.66 18.56 (0.10)
1.74 1.67 (0.08) Provider Enhancement Expense - GEMT 1.61 1.67 0.06
0.00 0.00 0.00 Provider COVID-19 Expenes 0.82 0.00 (0.82)
0.76 1.45 0.68 Behaviorial Health Integration Program 2.24 1.45 (0.79)

35.88 36.71 0.83 TOTAL OTHER MEDICAL 37.47 36.77 (0.70)

PHARMACY SERVICES 
30.22 33.86 3.64 RX - Drugs & OTC 30.53 33.97 3.44

0.88 1.38 0.50 RX - HEP-C 0.94 1.38 0.44
2.59 2.78 0.20 Rx - DME 2.91 2.79 (0.12)

(0.04) (0.12) (0.09) RX - Pharmacy Rebates (0.38) (0.12) 0.26

33.64 37.90 4.26 TOTAL PHARMACY SERVICES 34.00 38.02 4.02

-                        1.90                      1.90 PAY FOR PERFORMANCE QUALITY INCENTIVE 1.68                      1.90                      0.22

0.00 0.00 0.00 RISK CORRIDOR EXPENSE 0.00 0.00 0.00

56.18                    50.77 (5.41) HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENTS 55.96                    50.88 (5.08)

(0.45) 0.00 0.45 HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT 18.68 0.00 (18.68)

0.07                      0.00 (0.07)                      NON-CLAIMS EXPENSE ADJUSTMENT 0.37                      0.00 (0.37)                     

0.05                      0.00 (0.05)                      IBNR, INCENTIVE, AND PAID CLAIMS ADJUSTMENT 0.41                      0.00 (0.41)                     

308.27 300.49 (7.79)                      Total Medical Costs 332.47 301.16 (31.31)

* Medical costs per DMHC regulations 
KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 8

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

113 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

SCHEDULE OF MEDICAL COSTS BY MONTH 
THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

PHYSICIAN SERVICES
Primary Care Physician Services 2,962,264 2,963,060 3,567,494 3,563,867 3,699,457 3,720,742 3,239,377 3,824,662 3,847,107 31,388,030

Referral Specialty Services 10,512,215 10,171,851 9,997,168 11,114,617 11,103,264 11,178,950 10,801,894 10,559,258 11,970,037 97,409,254
Urgent Care & After Hours Advise 1,423,381 1,588,229 1,484,832 954,611 932,687 1,282,025 1,254,796 1,426,250 2,069,391 12,416,202

Hospital Admitting Team 9,300 8,400 9,300 9,000 9,300 9,000 9,300 9,300 9,000 81,900

TOTAL PHYSICIAN SERVICES 14,907,160 14,731,540 15,058,794 15,642,095 15,744,708 16,190,717 15,305,367 15,819,470 17,895,535 141,295,386

OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Vision Service Capitation 294,054 292,442 292,443 289,005 305,213 298,817 304,301 307,745 305,529 2,689,549           
221 - Business Intelligence 210,663 222,415 197,310 217,207 221,546 203,314 200,446 223,488 221,627 1,918,016           

310 - Health Services - Utilization Management - UM Allocation * 595,003 563,907 605,345 602,798 602,089 619,127 626,829 630,253 676,703 5,522,054           
311 - Health Services - Quality Improvement - UM Allocation * 138,388 123,443 154,295 136,098 147,314 146,837 148,762 131,293 135,328 1,261,758           

312 - Health Services - Education - UM Allocation * 120,621 124,149 95,259 119,982 120,314 125,926 121,160 120,267 126,475 1,074,153           
313 - Health Services - Pharmacy - UM Allocation * 75,046 75,369 75,552 75,945 76,277 74,167 76,519 76,279 75,395 680,549              

314 - Health Homes - UM Allocation * 120,170 119,317 173,098 121,413 138,809 140,463 139,741 170,731 156,150 1,279,892           
315 - Case Management - UM Allocation * 270,657 261,834 281,125 260,034 269,323 261,708 293,801 259,955 351,075 2,509,512           

316 - Population Health Management - UM Allocation * -                       -                       -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      1,733 62,029 63,762                
317 - In Lieu of Services - UM Allocation * -                       -                       -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      14,485 14,485                

616 - Disease Management - UM Allocation * 62,998 58,064 72,219 57,851 56,419 55,347 58,576 58,684 53,328 533,486              
Behavior Health Treatment 867,517 947,944 1,407,309 1,506,149 1,204,226 1,186,572 1,269,876 1,426,863 1,080,856 10,897,312         

Mental Health Services 292,517 181,749 96,618 153,559 43,140 72,194 95,878 114,350 92,882 1,142,887           
Other Professional Services 1,373,918 1,913,308 1,598,054 1,567,152 1,473,713 1,275,979 1,268,554 1,303,771 995,897 12,770,346         

TOTAL OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 4,421,552 4,883,941 5,048,627 5,107,193 4,658,383 4,460,451 4,604,443 4,825,412 4,347,759 42,357,761

EMERGENCY ROOM 4,676,327 4,420,437 4,353,449 4,480,205 5,023,372 5,040,670 4,833,831 4,472,304 3,735,609 41,036,204

INPATIENT HOSPITAL 19,853,180 19,321,533 17,577,565 18,419,878 20,578,157 20,739,625 20,542,490 20,581,248 20,303,427 177,917,103

REINSURANCE EXPENSE PREMIUM 81,215 80,770 80,461 80,129 84,297 82,530 84,045 84,997 84,384 742,828

OUTPATIENT HOSPITAL SERVICES 7,108,674 6,610,422 7,160,111 8,681,740 8,842,725 8,800,023 7,937,455 7,942,981 7,529,697 70,613,828

OTHER MEDICAL  
Ambulance and NEMT 1,400,971 1,208,039 1,444,178 1,338,929 1,314,492 1,189,224 1,328,439 1,323,146 1,451,342 11,998,760

Home Health Services & CBAS 490,933 582,371 853,147 657,817 707,296 964,318 749,534 599,655 595,101 6,200,172
Utilization and Quality Review Expenses 228,696 372,499 688,633 430,683 359,626 509,705 373,641 230,711 404,807 3,599,001

Long Term/SNF/Hospice 1,616,577 1,132,832 1,933,711 1,041,624 1,114,812 1,301,188 1,204,596 1,258,956 1,619,759 12,224,055
Health Home Capitation & Incentive 211,140 294,005 334,675 299,855 228,752 341,280 162,780 267,430 263,420 2,403,337

Provider Enhancement Expense - Prop. 56 5,190,164 5,226,990 5,265,692 5,318,961 5,342,952 5,386,833 5,433,266 5,440,313 5,498,898 48,104,069
Provider Enhancement Expense - GEMT 456,380 456,381 265,311 423,904 494,669 527,330 449,942 569,010 514,078 4,157,005

Provider COVID-19 Expenes 674,580 767,440 683,880 -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      2,125,900
Behaviorial Health Integration Program 371,672               371,672 371,672 371,672 1,398,038 2,210,773 225,049 225,048 225,049 5,770,645

TOTAL OTHER MEDICAL 10,641,113 10,412,229 11,840,899 9,883,445 10,960,637 12,430,651 9,927,247 9,914,269 10,572,454 96,582,944

PHARMACY SERVICES 

RX - Drugs & OTC 8,174,252 8,080,594 9,316,542 8,462,224 8,518,642 9,049,899 8,878,267 9,311,107 8,903,588 78,695,115

RX - HEP-C 245,144 264,815 249,449 260,020 290,418 365,687 239,266 251,754 258,446 2,424,999

Rx - DME 815,963 839,212 868,236 825,453 690,067 1,035,049 791,678 870,581 761,862 7,498,101

RX - Pharmacy Rebates (135,000) (135,000) (135,000) (135,000) (149,643) (7,947) (135,000) (135,000) (10,322) (977,912)

TOTAL PHARMACY SERVICES 9,100,359 9,049,621 10,299,227 9,412,697 9,349,484 10,442,688 9,774,211 10,298,442 9,913,574 87,640,303

PAY FOR PERFORMANCE QUALITY INCENTIVE 529,182               529,183               526,070               540,715               540,715               545,673               552,862               552,862               -                      4,317,262           

RISK CORRIDOR EXPENSE -                       -                       -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENTS 15,121,903 15,230,282 12,949,303 14,734,613 14,811,759 22,138,233 16,337,330          16,361,944          16,554,814          144,240,181       

HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT 39,990                 21,878                 77,356,953          3,134                   597                      3,943                   (29,149,382)        7,365                   (132,637)             48,151,841         

NON-CLAIMS EXPENSE ADJUSTMENT 287,063 233,372 212,564 71,855 58,763 46,953 (11,833)               34,433                 20,737                 953,907              

IBNR, INCENTIVE, AND PAID CLAIMS ADJUSTMENT 4,787 858,658 1,700,070 (85,946) 449,838 (2,226,487) 406,066               (55,915)               14,595                 1,065,666           

Total Medical Costs 86,772,505 86,383,866 164,164,093 86,971,753 91,103,435 98,695,670 61,144,132 90,839,812 90,839,948 856,915,214

YEAR TO 
DATE             
2021

AUGUST              
2021

SEPTEMBER              
2021

JUNE              
2021

JULY              
2021

JANUARY    
2021

FEBRUARY    
2021

MARCH        
2021

APRIL           
2021

MAY              
2021

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only

Page 9

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

114 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

SCHEDULE OF MEDICAL COSTS BY MONTH - PMPM
THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

PHYSICIAN SERVICES
Primary Care Physician Services 10.64 10.70 12.61 12.52 12.88 12.86 11.13 13.09 13.06 12.18

Referral Specialty Services 37.74 36.74 35.33 39.06 38.66 38.64 37.12 36.13 40.62 37.79
Urgent Care & After Hours Advise 5.11 5.74 5.25 3.35 3.25 4.43 4.31 4.88 7.02 4.82

Hospital Admitting Team 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03

TOTAL PHYSICIAN SERVICES 53.52 53.21 53.22 54.96 54.82 55.96 52.60 54.13 60.73 54.82

OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Vision Service Capitation 1.06 1.06 1.03                1.02 1.06 1.03 1.05 1.05 1.04 1.04
221 - Business Intelligence 0.76 0.80 0.70                0.76 0.77 0.70 0.69 0.76 0.75 0.74

310 - Health Services - Utilization Management - UM Allocation * 2.14 2.04 2.14                2.12 2.10 2.14 2.15                2.16                2.30 2.14
311 - Health Services - Quality Improvement - UM Allocation * 0.50 0.45 0.55                0.48 0.51 0.51 0.51 0.45 0.46 0.49

312 - Health Services - Education - UM Allocation * 0.43 0.45 0.34                0.42 0.42 0.44 0.42 0.41 0.43 0.42
313 - Health Services - Pharmacy - UM Allocation * 0.27 0.27 0.27                0.27 0.27 0.26 0.26 0.26 0.26 0.26

314 - Health Homes - UM Allocation * 0.43 0.43 0.61                0.43 0.48 0.49 0.48 0.58 0.53 0.50
315 - Case Management - UM Allocation * 0.97 0.95 0.99                0.91 0.94 0.90 1.01 0.89 1.19 0.97

316 - Population Health Management - UM Allocation * 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.21 0.02
317 - In Lieu of Services - UM Allocation * 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.05 0.01

616 - Disease Management - UM Allocation * 0.23 0.21 0.26                0.20 0.20 0.19 0.20 0.20 0.18 0.21
Behavior Health Treatment 3.11 3.42 4.97                5.29 4.19 4.10 4.36 4.88 3.67 4.23

Mental Health Services 1.05 0.66 0.34                0.54 0.15 0.25 0.33 0.39 0.32 0.44
Other Professional Services 4.93 6.91 5.65                5.51 5.13 4.41 4.36 4.46 3.38 4.95

TOTAL OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 15.88 17.64 17.84 17.95 16.22 15.42 15.82 16.51 14.75 16.43

EMERGENCY ROOM 16.79 15.97 15.38 15.74 17.49 17.42 16.61 15.30 12.68 15.92

INPATIENT HOSPITAL 71.28 69.78 62.12 64.72 71.65 71.69 70.60 70.42 68.90 69.03

REINSURANCE EXPENSE PREMIUM 0.29 0.29 0.28 0.28 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29

OUTPATIENT HOSPITAL SERVICES 25.52 23.87 25.30 30.51 30.79 30.42 27.28 27.18 25.55 27.40

OTHER MEDICAL  
Ambulance and NEMT 5.03 4.36 5.10 4.70 4.58 4.11 4.57 4.53 4.93 4.66

Home Health Services & CBAS 1.76 2.10 3.01 2.31 2.46 3.33 2.58 2.05 2.02 2.41
Utilization and Quality Review Expenses 0.82 1.35 2.43 1.51 1.25 1.76 1.28 0.79 1.37 1.40

Long Term/SNF/Hospice 5.80 4.09 6.83 3.66 3.88 4.50 4.14 4.31 5.50 4.74
Health Home Capitation & Incentive 0.76 1.06 1.18 1.05 0.80 1.18 0.56 0.92 0.89 0.93

Provider Enhancement Expense - Prop. 56 18.63 18.88 18.61 18.69 18.60 18.62 18.67 18.61 18.66 18.66
Provider Enhancement Expense -  GEMT 1.64 1.65 0.94 1.49 1.72 1.82 1.55 1.95 1.74 1.61

Provider COVID-19 Expenes 2.42 2.77 2.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.82
Behaviorial Health Integration Program 1.33 1.34 1.31 1.31 4.87 7.64 0.77 0.77 0.76 2.24

TOTAL OTHER MEDICAL 38.21 37.61 41.84 34.73 38.16 42.97 34.12 33.92 35.88 37.47

PHARMACY SERVICES 

RX - Drugs & OTC 29.35 29.18 32.92 29.74 29.66 31.28 30.51 31.86 30.22 30.53

RX - HEP-C 0.88 0.96 0.88 0.91 1.01 1.26 0.82 0.86 0.88 0.94

Rx - DME 2.93 3.03 3.07 2.90 2.40 3.58 2.72 2.98 2.59 2.91

RX - Pharmacy Rebates (0.48) (0.49) (0.48) (0.47) (0.52) (0.03) (0.46) (0.46) (0.04) (0.38)

TOTAL PHARMACY SERVICES 32.67 32.68 36.40 33.07 32.55 36.10 33.59 35.24 33.64 34.00

PAY FOR PERFORMANCE QUALITY INCENTIVE 1.90 1.91 1.86 1.90 1.88 1.89 1.90 1.89 0.00 1.68

RISK CORRIDOR EXPENSE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENTS 54.29 55.01 45.76 51.78 51.57 76.52 56.15 55.98 56.18 55.96

HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT 0.14 0.08 273.37 0.01 0.00 0.01 (100.18) 0.03 (0.45) 18.68

NON-CLAIMS EXPENSE ADJUSTMENT 1.03 0.84 0.75 0.25 0.20 0.16 (0.04) 0.12 0.07 0.37

IBNR, INCENTIVE, AND PAID CLAIMS ADJUSTMENT 0.02 3.10 6.01 (0.30) 1.57 (7.70) 1.40 (0.19) 0.05 0.41

Total Medical Costs 311.55 311.99 580.14 305.61 317.21 341.14 210.13 310.81 308.27 332.47

JUNE              
2021

YEAR TO 
DATE             
2021

JULY              
2021

AUGUST              
2021

SEPTEMBER              
2021

JANUARY    
2021

FEBRUARY    
2021

MARCH        
2021

APRIL           
2021

MAY              
2021

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only

Page 10

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

115 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS

MEDI-CAL

CURRENT  MONTH SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES BY DEPT YEAR-TO-DATE
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

484,965 377,031 (107,934) 110 - Executive 3,437,855 3,468,280 30,425

196,234 212,651 16,417 210 - Accounting 1,747,604 1,913,860 166,256

328,212          362,443 34,231 220 - Management Information Systems 3,229,652 3,261,989 32,337

11,602            64,468 52,866 221 - Business Intelligence 120,295        580,212 459,917

261,069          281,931 20,862 222 - Enterprise Development 2,207,405 2,537,378 329,973

374,951 448,524 73,573 225 - Infrastructure 3,495,346 4,036,713 541,367

653,741 576,323 (77,418) 230 - Claims 4,943,082 5,186,908 243,826

93,857 149,779 55,922 240 - Project Management 1,129,408 1,348,014 218,606

111,276 101,775 (9,501) 310 - Health Services - Utilization Management 961,400 915,974 (45,426)

19,122 27,902 8,780 311 - Health Services - Quality Improvement 172,764        251,119 78,355

-                      55 55                   312 - Health Services - Education 59                 495 436

155,452 142,146 (13,306) 313- Pharmacy 1,336,428 1,279,312 (57,116)

35                   6,642               6,607              314 - Health Homes 4,260            59,775               55,515

31,573            22,357 (9,216) 315 - Case Management 219,264        201,211 (18,053)

27,472 29,325 1,853              616 - Disease Management 274,842        263,927             (10,915)         

294,114 323,502 29,388 320 - Provider Network Management 2,503,443 2,911,522 408,079

614,787 656,475 41,688 330 - Member Services 5,259,181 5,908,277 649,096

514,089 702,275 188,186 340 - Corporate Services 5,196,171 6,320,474 1,124,303

39,743 66,363 26,620 360 - Audit & Investigative Services 510,236 597,266 87,030

97,203            69,250 (27,953) 410 - Advertising Media 574,738 623,250 48,512

56,141 73,950 17,809 420 - Sales/Marketing/Public Relations 493,887 665,547 171,660

247,924 251,455 3,531 510 - Human Resourses 2,025,725 2,263,096 237,371

3,540              -                      (3,540)              Administrative Expense Adjustment (265,108)       -                        265,108

4,617,102       4,946,622        329,520 Total Administrative Expenses 39,577,937 44,594,599 5,016,662

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 11

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

116 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS

MEDI-CAL

SCHEDULE OF ADMIN EXPENSES BY DEPT BY MONTH 
FOR THE MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

110 - Executive 353,943 483,744 293,288 272,219 482,689 358,282 361,179 347,546 484,965 3,437,855

210 - Accounting 203,619 198,129 146,511 287,032 86,601 198,636 202,043 228,799 196,234 1,747,604

220 - Management Information Systems (MIS) 340,212 345,719 394,230 384,019 349,136 376,280 325,601 386,243 328,212 3,229,652

221 - Business Intelligence -                   -                   -                   12,308          46,180 24,115 14,545 11,545 11,602 120,295        

222 - Enterprise Development 250,306 269,236 185,800 249,199 261,073 252,105 253,485 225,132 261,069 2,207,405

225 - Infrastructure 365,340 337,172 345,070 407,880 459,371 352,463 459,826 393,273 374,951 3,495,346

230 - Claims 550,124 558,095 460,086 554,302 542,410 526,593 539,331 558,400 653,741 4,943,082

240 - Project Management 99,808 119,159 128,304 121,381 127,251 189,626 160,413 89,609 93,857 1,129,408

310 - Health Services - Utilization Management 103,641 120,732 82,239 113,686 116,283 100,257 91,643 121,643 111,276 961,400

311 - Health Services - Quality Improvement 18,870 16,833 21,040 18,597 20,088 27,421 25,067 5,726 19,122 172,764

312 - Health Services - Education -                   -                   -                   59                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                       59                 

313- Pharmacy 141,859 137,379 151,340 147,394 145,687 151,338 150,515 155,464 155,452 1,336,428

314 - Health Homes -                   -                   4,225            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   35                    4,260            

315 - Case Management 23,536 22,769          24,444          22,612          23,420          22,757          25,548          22,605 31,573 219,264

616 - Disease Management 32,453 29,912 37,220 29,802 29,065 28,513 30,175 30,230 27,472 274,842

320 - Provider Network Management 304,995 273,211 231,758 274,082 295,300 262,297 286,715 280,971 294,114 2,503,443

330 - Member Services 567,625 586,939 545,846 622,842 566,155 559,817 624,470 570,700 614,787 5,259,181

340 - Corporate Services 561,450 559,640 535,874 586,682 567,567 540,444 620,533 709,892 514,089 5,196,171

360 - Audit & Investigative Services 68,976 83,366 38,089 60,406 61,212 61,445 68,450 28,549 39,743 510,236

410 - Advertising Media 27,368 39,637 81,326 55,258 21,513 152,571 88,385 11,477 97,203 574,738

420 - Sales/Marketing/Public Relations 53,401 69,703 46,252 65,999 51,803 57,056 37,987 55,545 56,141 493,887

510 - Human Resourses 281,636 228,332 179,367 198,772 203,371 220,199 236,479 229,645 247,924 2,025,725

Total Department Expenses 4,349,162     4,479,707     3,932,309     4,484,531     4,456,175     4,462,215     4,602,390     4,462,994     4,613,562        39,843,045   

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE ADJUSTMENT 18,296          (271,318)      57,294          (5,010)          (215)             (63,654)        (1,674)          (2,367)          3,540               (265,108)      

Total Administrative Expenses 4,367,458 4,208,389 3,989,603 4,479,521 4,455,960 4,398,561 4,600,716 4,460,627 4,617,102 39,577,937

YEAR TO 
DATE             
2021

JUNE              
2021

AUGUST              
2021

SEPTEMBER              
2021

JULY              
2021

JANUARY    
2021

FEBRUARY    
2021

MARCH        
2021

APRIL           
2021

MAY              
2021

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 12

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

117 / 308



KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS
GROUP HEALTH PLAN - HFAM
BALANCE SHEET STATEMENT

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
ASSETS SEPTEMBER 2021 AUGUST 2021 INC(DEC)

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,137,662$                  1,137,662$                  -                          

Interest Receivable 690                              600                               90                        
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,138,352$                  1,138,262$                  90$                      

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Other Liabilities -                                   -                                   -                          
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES -$                            -$                             -$                    

NET POSITION:
Net Position- Beg. of Year 1,138,066 1,138,066 -                          

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position - Current Year 286                              196                               90                        
Total Net Position 1,138,352$                  1,138,262$                  90$                      

          TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 1,138,352$                  1,138,262$                  90$                      

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 13

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

118 / 308



KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS
GROUP HEALTH PLAN - HFAM

CURRENT MONTH
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION YEAR-TO-DATE
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

E N R O L L M E N T

-                   -                 -                     M e m b e r s -                   -                 -                     

R E V E N U E S

-                   -                 -                     Premium -                   -                 -                     
90                -                 90                  I n t e r e s t 2,849 -                 2,849

-                   -                 -                     Other Investment Income (2,563)          -                 (2,563)            

90                -                 90                  TOTAL  REVENUES 286 -                 286

E X P E N S E S

Medical Costs
-                   -                 -                     IBNR and Paid Claims Adjustment -                   -                 -                     
-                   -                 -                     Total Medical Costs -                   -                 -                     

90                -                 90                  GROSS MARGIN 286 -                 286

Administrative
-                   -                 -                        Management Fee Expense and Other Admin Exp -                   -                 -                     
-                   -                 -                     Total  Administrative Expenses -                   -                 -                     

-                   -                 -                     TOTAL  EXPENSES -                   -                 -                     

90                -                 90                  OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) 286 -                 286

-                   -                 -                     TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES) -                   -                 -                     

90                -                 90                  NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 286 -                 286

0% 0% 0% MEDICAL LOSS RATIO 0% 0% 0%

0% 0% 0% ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATIO 0% 0% 0%

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 14

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

119 / 308



KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS 

MONTHLY MEMBERS COUNT

KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS

2021 MEMBER

MEDI-CAL        MONTHS JAN'21 FEB'21 MAR'21 APR'21 MAY'21 JUN'21 JUL'21 AUG'21 SEP'21 OCT'21 NOV'21 DEC'21

ADULT AND FAMILY  
ADULT 487,758 51,548 53,449 52,941 53,378 54,092 54,867 55,250 55,691 56,542 0 0 0
CHILD  1,198,672 131,669 126,764 133,240 133,228 133,944 134,540 134,904 134,848 135,535 0 0 0

SUB-TOTAL ADULT & FAMILY 1,686,430 183,217 180,213 186,181 186,606 188,036 189,407 190,154 190,539 192,077 0 0 0

OTHER MEMBERS

PARTIAL DUALS - FAMILY 5,246 403 523 529 576 563 576 594 673 809 0 0 0

PARTIAL DUALS - CHILD -1 0 -1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PARTIAL DUALS - BCCTP 26 2 2 2 2 2 4 4 4 4 0 0 0
BCCTP - TABACCO SETTLEMENT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

FULL DUALS (SPD)
SPD FULL DUALS 69,000 7,484 7,591 7,505 7,523 7,635 7,640 7,814 7,739 8,069 0 0 0

SUBTOTAL OTHER MEMBERS 74,271 7,889 8,115 8,036 8,101 8,200 8,220 8,412 8,416 8,882 0 0 0

TOTAL FAMILY & OTHER 1,760,701 191,106 188,328 194,217 194,707 196,236 197,627 198,566 198,955 200,959 0 0 0

SPD
SPD (AGED AND DISABLED) 144,763 16,011 18,829 15,328 15,870 15,756 15,645 15,800 15,749 15,775 0 0 0

MEDI-CAL EXPANSION
ACA Expansion Adult-Citizen 663,579 70,649 69,251 72,532 73,089 74,161 74,905 75,451 76,525 77,016 0 0 0
ACA Expansion Duals 8,344 751 472 895 921 1,046 1,132 1,163 1,042 922 0 0 0

SUB-TOTAL MED-CAL EXPANSION 671,923 71,400 69,723 73,427 74,010 75,207 76,037 76,614 77,567 77,938 0 0 0

TOTAL KAISER 104,982 11,047 11,196 11,349 11,505 11,692 11,852 11,983 12,108 12,250 0 0 0

TOTAL MEDI-CAL MEMBERS 2,682,369 289,564 288,076 294,321 296,092 298,891 301,161 302,963 304,379 306,922 0 0 0

Page 15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

120 / 308



 

 

To:  KHS Board of Directors                                 

From:  Robert Landis, CFO                                                             

Date: December 16, 2021 

Re: October 31, 2021 Financial Results 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

The October results reflect a $932,183 Net Increase in Net Position which is a $2,239,072 favorable 

variance to the budget.  Listed below are the major variances for the month: 

 

1) Total Revenues reflect a $12.2 million favorable variance primarily due to: 

 

A) $8.1 million favorable variance primarily due to higher-than-expected budgeted membership. 

 

B) $1.3 million favorable variance in funds earned from the Covid-19 KHS Vaccination Response 

Plan submitted to DHCS to improve the vaccination rate with our members. Under this Plan, 

KHS has offered incentives to Providers to perform significantly expanded outreach to KHS 

members that are based on achieving specified outcomes. Additionally, there are Member 

Incentives (not to exceed $50 per member) for our members that get vaccinated. 

 

C) $2.6 million favorable variance in Premium-Hospital Directed Payments primarily due to 

receiving updated rates for calendar year 2021 from DHCS and higher than expected membership 

offset against amounts included in 2D below. 

 

2) Total Medical Costs reflect a $10.7 million unfavorable variance primarily due to: 

 

A) $2.3 million unfavorable variance in Physician Services primarily due to higher-than-expected 

utilization Specialty and Urgent Care Services over the last several months. 

 

B) $1.1 million favorable variance in Emergency Room primarily due to lower-than-expected 

utilization over the last several months. 

 

C) $7.8 million unfavorable variance in Inpatient primarily due to higher-than-expected 

utilization. 

 

D) $2.6 million unfavorable variance in Hospital Directed Payments primarily due to receiving 

updated rates for calendar year 2021 from DHCS and higher than expected membership offset 

against amounts included in 1C above. 

 

E) $.9 million favorable IBNR, Incentive, Paid Claims Adjustment primarily from lower-than-

expected P4P payouts relating to the prior year. 

 

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

121 / 308



 
The October Medical Loss Ratio is 92.6% which is favorable to the 93.3% budgeted amount. The 

October Administrative Expense Ratio is 5.5% which is favorable to the 6.7% budgeted amount. 

 

The results for the 10 months ended October 31, 2021 reflect a Net Increase in Net Position of 

$14,144,271. This is a $20,398,497 favorable variance to budget and includes approximately $3.3 million 

of favorable adjustments from the prior year. The year-to-date Medical Loss Ratio is 92.8 % which is 

favorable to the 93.2% budgeted amount. The year-to-date Administrative Expense Ratio is 5.5% which 

is favorable to the 6.7% budgeted amount.  

 

 
 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

122 / 308



Kern Health Systems 

Financial Packet 

October 2021 
 

KHS – Medi-Cal Line of Business 

Comparative Statement of Net Position         Page 1 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position     Page 2 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - PMPM   Page 3  

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position by Month   Page 4 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position by Month - PMPM  Page 5 

Schedule of Revenues          Page 6 

Schedule of Medical Costs          Page 7 

Schedule of Medical Costs - PMPM         Page 8 

Schedule of Medical Costs by Month         Page 9 

Schedule of Medical Costs by Month – PMPM      Page 10 

Schedule of Administrative Expenses by Department      Page 11 

Schedule of Administrative Expenses by Department by Month    Page 12 

KHS Group Health Plan – Healthy Families Line of Business 

Comparative Statement of Net Position         Page 13 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position     Page 14 

KHS Administrative Analysis and Other Reporting  

Monthly Member Count          Page 15 

 

 

  

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

123 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2021

ASSETS OCTOBER 2021 SEPTEMBER 2021 INC(DEC)
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 112,022,947$             101,678,464$             10,344,483$       
Short-Term Investments 146,132,207 172,145,319 (26,013,112)        

Premiums Receivable - Net 109,116,929               109,249,477               (132,548)             
Premiums Receivable - Hospital Direct Payments 284,832,595               268,101,628               16,730,967          

Interest Receivable 90,191 207,153 (116,962)             
Provider Advance Payment 5,166,656 5,186,720 (20,064)               

Other Receivables 772,288 1,181,088 (408,800)             
Prepaid Expenses & Other Current Assets 2,683,400 2,962,488 (279,088)             

Total Current Assets 660,817,213$             660,712,337$             104,876$             

CAPITAL ASSETS - NET OF ACCUM DEPRE:
Land 4,090,706 4,090,706 -                           

Furniture and Equipment - Net 1,668,151 1,710,295 (42,144)               
Computer Hardware and Software - Net 12,346,824 12,649,295 (302,471)             

Building and Building Improvements - Net 34,591,339 34,667,033 (75,694)               
Capital Projects in Progress 15,133,452 14,759,866 373,586               

Total Capital Assets 67,830,472$               67,877,195$               (46,723)$             

LONG TERM ASSETS:
Restricted Investments 300,000                      300,000                      -                      

Officer Life Insurance Receivables 1,593,961                   1,593,961                   -                      
Total Long Term Assets 1,893,961$                 1,893,961$                 -$                    

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 3,018,341$                 3,018,341$                 -$                    

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 733,559,987$             733,501,834$             58,153$               

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accrued Salaries and Employee Benefits 4,379,517$                 4,639,883$                 (260,366)             
Accrued Other Operating Expenses 1,542,264 1,499,873 42,391                 

Accrued Taxes and Licenses 9,744,181                   29,532,289                 (19,788,108)        
Claims Payable (Reported) 22,032,450 20,473,886 1,558,564            
IBNR - Inpatient Claims 43,141,224 42,291,738 849,486               
IBNR - Physician Claims 15,903,083 15,869,970 33,113                 

IBNR - Accrued Other Medical 21,386,468 21,037,779 348,689               
Risk Pool and Withholds Payable 6,423,866 7,823,866 (1,400,000)          

Statutory Allowance for Claims Processing Expense 2,157,367 2,157,367 -                           
 Other Liabilities 74,899,693 73,888,459 1,011,234            

Accrued Hospital Directed Payments 284,832,595 268,101,628 16,730,967          
Total Current Liabilities 486,442,708$             487,316,738$             (874,030)$           

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Net Pension Liability 5,800,140 5,800,140 -                           

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 5,800,140$                 5,800,140$                 -$                    

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 86,684$                      86,684$                      -$                    

NET POSITION: 
Net Position -  Beg. of Year 227,086,184 227,086,184 -                           

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position - Current Year 14,144,271 13,212,088 932,183               
Total Net Position 241,230,455$             240,298,272$             932,183$             

 TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION 733,559,987$             733,501,834$             58,153$               

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 1 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

124 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL - ALL COA

CURRENT MONTH MEMBERS

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION YEAR-TO-DATE MEMBER MONTHS

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED OCOTBER 31, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

193,820 185,000 8,820 Family Members 1,880,250 1,832,000 48,250
78,579 70,565 8,014 Expansion Members 750,502 705,650 44,852
15,915 15,230 685  SPD Members 160,678 152,300 8,378

8,009 7,000 1,009 Other Members 82,280 70,000 12,280
12,417 10,500                 1,917                Kaiser Members 117,399 105,000          12,399               

308,740 288,295 20,445 T o t a l  M e m b e r s - MCAL 2,991,109 2,864,950 126,159

R E V E N U E S
37,040,845 32,238,981 4,801,864 Title  XIX - Medicaid - Family and Other 348,031,528 320,535,359 27,496,169
30,140,656 26,523,701 3,616,955 Title  XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members 289,432,085 265,237,009 24,195,076
16,206,131 15,294,634 911,497 Title  XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members 158,284,629 152,946,338 5,338,291
10,229,218    9,894,054            335,164 Premium - MCO Tax 99,091,706          93,004,109 6,087,597
16,726,476    14,094,476          2,632,000 Premium - Hospital Directed Payments 160,966,657        140,389,750 20,576,907

131,645 167,891 (36,246) Investment Earnings And Other Income 464,631 1,663,169 (1,198,538)
-                     80,561                 (80,561) Reinsurance Recoveries -                          800,386 (800,386)

4,491             -                           4,491                Rate Adjustments - Hospital Directed Payments 49,168,186          -                      49,168,186
52,871           -                           52,871              Rate/Income Adjustments 3,112,356            -                      3,112,356          

110,532,333 98,294,297 12,238,036 TOTAL  REVENUES 1,108,551,778 974,576,119 133,975,659

E X P E N S E S
Medical Costs:

17,549,058 15,215,516 (2,333,542)    Physician Services 158,844,444 151,431,807 (7,412,637)
4,846,005 4,737,031 (108,974)    Other Professional Services 47,203,766 47,253,010 49,244
4,506,067 5,594,658 1,088,591 Emergency Room 45,542,271 55,634,770 10,092,499

23,207,054 15,452,940 (7,754,114)    I n p a t  i e n t 201,124,157 153,980,597 (47,143,560)
85,133           80,561 (4,572)    Reinsurance Expense 827,961 800,386 (27,576)

7,080,379 7,010,235 (70,144) Outpatient Hospital 77,694,207 69,864,019 (7,830,188)
10,784,127 10,194,621 (589,506)    Other  Medical 107,367,071 101,459,314 (5,907,757)
10,236,384 10,519,328 282,944 Pharmacy 97,876,687 104,894,124 7,017,437

-                     527,811               527,811               Pay for Performance Quality Incentive 4,317,262 5,243,905       926,643             
16,726,476    14,094,476          (2,632,000)       Hospital Directed Payments 160,966,657 140,389,750   (20,576,907)      

4,491             -                           (4,491)              Hospital Directed Payment Adjustment 48,156,332          -                      (48,156,332)      
8,907             -                           (8,907)              Non-Claims Expense Adjustment 962,814               -                      (962,814)           

(924,120)        -                           924,120               IBNR, Incentive, Paid Claims Adjustment 141,546               -                      (141,546)           
94,109,961 83,427,176 (10,682,785) Total Medical Costs 951,025,175 830,951,682 (120,073,493)

16,422,372 14,867,122          1,555,250 GROSS MARGIN 157,526,603 143,624,437   13,902,166

Administrative:
2,746,218      2,856,030 109,812    Compensation 27,435,060 28,635,303 1,200,243

991,178 1,071,006 79,828 Purchased Services 9,297,392 10,710,060 1,412,668
58,257 133,106 74,849 Supplies 785,742 1,331,062 545,320

424,376 500,520 76,144 Depreciation 4,252,475 5,005,204 752,729
348,575 385,959 37,384    Other Administrative Expenses 2,640,980 3,859,592 1,218,612

300                -                           (300)                 Administrative Expense Adjustment (264,808)             -                      264,808             
4,568,904 4,946,622 377,718 Total  Administrative Expenses 44,146,841 49,541,222 5,394,381

98,678,865 88,373,798 (10,305,067) TOTAL  EXPENSES 995,172,016 880,492,903 (114,679,113)

11,853,468    9,920,499            1,932,969 OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 113,379,762        94,083,215     19,296,547

9,894,054      9,894,054            -                   MCO TAX 93,031,907          93,004,109 (27,798)

1,959,414      26,445                 1,932,969 OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) NET OF TAX 20,347,855          1,079,106       19,268,749

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
-                     -                           -                       Gain on Sale of Assets -                          -                      -                        

(884,737)        (1,166,667)           281,930            Provider Recruitment and Retention Grants (5,423,272)          (5,666,666)      243,394             
(142,494)        (166,667)              24,173              Health Home (780,312)             (1,666,666)      886,354             

(1,027,231)     (1,333,334)           306,103            TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) (6,203,584)          (7,333,332)      1,129,748          
 

932,183         (1,306,889)           2,239,072         NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 14,144,271          (6,254,226)      20,398,497

92.6% 93.3% 0.7% MEDICAL LOSS RATIO 92.8% 93.2% 0.4%

5.5% 6.7% 1.2% ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATIO 5.5% 6.7% 1.2%

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 2 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

125 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

CURRENT MONTH

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - PMPM YEAR-TO-DATE

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED OCOTBER 31, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

E N R O L L M E N T
193,820 185,000 8,820 Family Members 1,880,250 1,832,000 48,250

78,579 70,565 8,014 Expansion Members 750,502 705,650 44,852
15,915 15,230 685  SPD Members 160,678 152,300 8,378

8,009 7,000 1,009 Other Members 82,280 70,000 12,280
12,417 10,500          1,917            Kaiser Members 117,399 105,000        12,399          

308,740 288,295 20,445 T o t a l  M e m b e r s - MCAL 2,991,109 2,864,950 126,159

R E V E N U E S
183.53 167.91 15.61 Title  XIX - Medicaid - Family and Other 177.34 168.53 8.81
383.57 375.88 7.70 Title  XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members 385.65 375.88 9.78

1,018.29 1,004.24 14.05 Title  XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members 985.10 1,004.24 (19.14)
34.52 35.62 (1.10) Premium - MCO Tax 34.48 33.70 0.78
56.45 50.74 5.71 Premium - Hospital Directed Payments 56.01 50.87 5.15

0.44 0.60 (0.16) Investment Earnings And Other Income 0.16 0.60 (0.44)
0.00 0.29 (0.29) Reinsurance Recoveries 0.00 0.29 (0.29)
0.02 0.00 0.02 Rate Adjustments - Hospital Directed Payments 17.11 0.00 17.11
0.18 0.00 0.18 Rate/Income Adjustments 1.08 0.00 1.08

373.01 353.84 19.18 TOTAL  REVENUES 385.76 353.11 32.64

E X P E N S E S
Medical Costs:

59.22 54.77 (4.45)    Physician Services 55.28 54.87 (0.41)
16.35 17.05 0.70    Other Professional Services 16.43 17.12 0.69
15.21 20.14 4.93 Emergency Room 15.85 20.16 4.31
78.32 55.63 (22.69)    I n p a t  i e n t 69.99 55.79 (14.20)

0.29 0.29 0.00    Reinsurance Expense 0.29 0.29 0.00
23.89 25.24 1.34 Outpatient Hospital 27.04 25.31 (1.72)
36.39 36.70 0.31    Other  Medical 37.36 36.76 (0.60)
34.54 37.87 3.32 Pharmacy 34.06 38.01 3.95

0.00 1.90 1.90    Pay for Performance Quality Incentive 1.50 1.90 0.40
56.45 50.74 (5.71) Hospital Directed Payments 56.01 50.87 (5.15)

0.02 0.00 (0.02) Hospital Directed Payment Adjustment 16.76 0.00 (16.76)
0.03 0.00 (0.03) Non-Claims Expense Adjustment 0.34 0.00 (0.34)

(3.12) 0.00 3.12    IBNR, Incentive, Paid Claims Adjustment 0.05 0.00 (0.05)
317.59 300.32 (17.27) Total Medical Costs 330.94 301.07 (29.86)

55.42 53.52 1.90 GROSS MARGIN 54.82 52.04 2.78

Administrative:
9.27 10.28 1.01    Compensation 9.55 10.38 0.83
3.34 3.86 0.51 Purchased Services 3.24 3.88 0.65
0.20 0.48 0.28 Supplies 0.27 0.48 0.21
1.43 1.80 0.37 Depreciation 1.48 1.81 0.33
1.18 1.39 0.21    Other Administrative Expenses 0.92 1.40 0.48
0.00 0.00 (0.00) Administrative Expense Adjustment (0.09) 0.00 0.09

15.42 17.81 2.39 Total  Administrative Expenses 15.36 17.95 2.59

333.01 318.13 (14.89) TOTAL  EXPENSES 346.30 319.02 (27.28)

40.00 35.71 4.29 OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 39.45 34.09 5.37

33.39 35.62 2.23 MCO TAX 32.37 33.70 1.32

6.61 0.10 6.52 OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) NET OF TAX 7.08 0.39 6.69

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
0.00 0.00 0.00 Gain on Sale of Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00

(2.99) (4.20) 1.21 Reserve Fund Projects/Community Grants (1.89) (2.05) 0.17
(0.48) (0.60) 0.12 Health Home (0.27) (0.60) 0.33

(3.47) (4.80) 1.33 TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) (2.16) (2.66) 0.50

3.15 (4.70) 7.85 NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 4.92 (2.27) 7.19

92.6% 93.3% 0.7% MEDICAL LOSS RATIO 92.8% 93.2% 0.4%

5.5% 6.7% 1.2% ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATIO 5.5% 6.7% 1.2%

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 3

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

126 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION BY MONTH - 

ROLLING 13 MONTHS
THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2021

E N R O L L M E N T
M e m b e r s - MCAL 272,481 275,080 277,452 278,517 276,880 282,972 284,587 287,199 289,309 290,980 292,271 294,672 296,323 3,698,723

R E V E N U E S
Title  XIX - Medicaid - Family and Other 33,387,274 30,920,096 32,216,002 33,254,490 33,365,704 33,587,650 33,739,041 34,872,666 35,878,342 35,761,670 34,569,656 35,961,464 37,040,845 444,554,900

Title  XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members 27,568,938 25,504,052 27,197,954 27,548,311 27,720,576 28,063,951 28,547,171 28,728,667 29,533,533 29,676,566 29,540,608 29,932,046 30,140,656 369,703,029
Title  XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members 14,457,143 16,007,482 15,504,966 15,326,978 15,368,431 15,407,903 15,527,562 16,024,510 15,971,978 16,260,445 16,115,519 16,075,172 16,206,131 204,254,220

Premium - MCO Tax 9,166,454 8,420,487 8,830,398 9,577,432 9,657,982 9,752,737 9,805,142 9,876,747 9,961,634 10,025,153 10,069,582 10,136,079 10,229,218 125,509,045
Premium - Hospital Directed Payments 9,955,034 9,313,088 9,738,038 15,121,903 15,230,282 12,949,303 14,734,613 14,811,749 22,138,233 16,337,340 16,361,944 16,554,814 16,726,476 189,972,817
Investment Earnings And Other Income 151,948 166,556 147,197 4,303 116,471 (249,580) 205,894 195,233 (408,458) (39,267) 567,469 (59,079) 131,645 930,332

Rate Adjustments - Hospital Directed Payments 77 10,627 (2,692) 39,990 21,877 78,150,342 3,134 79,899 4,445 (29,149,066) 7,365 5,709 4,491 49,176,198
Rate/Income Adjustments (582,499) 127,031 226,726 799,886 594,678 1,527,455 266,498 595,656 (93,658) (294,637) (458,866) 122,473 52,871 2,883,614

TOTAL  REVENUES 94,104,369     90,469,419     93,858,589     101,673,293   102,076,001    179,189,761   102,829,055   105,185,127   112,986,049   78,578,204     106,773,277   108,728,678   110,532,333   1,386,984,155

E X P E N S E S
Medical Costs:

   Physician Services 14,157,774 13,867,872 12,660,363 14,907,160 14,731,540 15,058,794 15,642,095 15,744,708 16,190,717 15,305,367 15,819,470 17,895,535 17,549,058 199,530,453
   Other Professional Services 3,806,785 4,389,484 4,935,401 4,421,552 4,883,941 5,048,627 5,107,193 4,658,383 4,460,451 4,604,443 4,825,412 4,347,759 4,846,005 60,335,436

Emergency Room 4,814,428 4,638,713 3,194,257 4,676,327 4,420,437 4,353,449 4,480,205 5,023,372 5,040,670 4,833,831 4,472,304 3,735,609 4,506,067 58,189,669
   I n p a t  i e n t 17,137,251 17,212,070 19,183,080 19,853,180 19,321,533 17,577,565 18,419,878 20,578,157 20,739,625 20,542,490 20,581,248 20,303,427 23,207,054 254,656,558

   Reinsurance Expense 77,652 84,521 77,390 81,215            80,770 80,461 80,129 84,297 82,530 84,045 84,997 84,384 85,133 1,067,524
Outpatient Hospital 6,653,372 6,209,999 6,565,195 7,108,674 6,610,422 7,160,111 8,681,740 8,842,725 8,800,023 7,937,455 7,942,981 7,529,697 7,080,379 97,122,773

   Other  Medical 12,916,278 10,958,385 13,070,247 10,641,113 10,412,229 11,840,899 9,883,445 10,960,637 12,430,651 9,927,247 9,914,269 10,572,454 10,784,127 144,311,981
Pharmacy 9,259,169 8,717,167 9,651,881 9,100,359 9,049,621 10,299,227 9,412,697 9,349,484 10,442,688 9,774,211 10,298,442 9,913,574 10,236,384 125,504,904

   Pay for Performance Quality Incentive 556,200 544,962 -                      529,182 529,183 526,070 540,715 540,715 545,673 552,862 552,862 -                      -                      5,418,424
Hospital Directed Payments 9,955,034 9,313,088 9,738,038 15,121,903 15,230,282 12,949,303 14,734,613 14,811,759 22,138,233 16,337,330 16,361,944 16,554,814 16,726,476 189,972,817

Hospital Directed Payment Adjustment 77 6,596 (1,263) 39,990 21,878 77,356,953 3,134 597 3,943 (29,149,382) 7,365 (132,637) 4,491 48,161,742
Non-Claims Expense Adjustment 5,124 (209,309) 1,598 287,063 233,372 212,564 71,855 58,763 46,953 (11,833) 34,433 20,737 8,907 760,227

   IBNR, Incentive, Paid Claims Adjustment (5,474) 205,986 316,193 4,787 858,658 1,700,070 (85,946)           449,838          (2,226,487)      406,066          (55,915)           14,595            (924,120) 658,251
Total Medical Costs 79,333,670     75,939,534     79,392,380     86,772,505     86,383,866      164,164,093   86,971,753     91,103,435     98,695,670     61,144,132     90,839,812     90,839,948     94,109,961     1,185,690,759

GROSS MARGIN 14,770,699     14,529,885     14,466,209     14,900,788     15,692,135      15,025,668     15,857,302     14,081,692     14,290,379     17,434,072     15,933,465     17,888,730     16,422,372     201,293,396
Administrative:
   Compensation 2,613,272 2,456,357 2,766,869 2,772,584 2,908,104 2,457,160 2,691,957 2,748,394 2,731,289 2,805,915 2,781,896 2,791,543 2,746,218 35,271,558       

Purchased Services 689,841 745,537 1,172,530 818,908 824,152 941,200 986,086 996,889 985,876 939,689 845,393 968,021 991,178 11,905,300       
Supplies 34,967 106,489 39,305 57,592 57,416 4,446 131,712 57,943 85,576 156,626 193,504 (17,330) 58,257 966,503            

Depreciation 419,796 419,850 421,301 422,833 422,834 426,541 426,541 422,382 425,837 425,522 427,805 427,804 424,376 5,513,422         
   Other Administrative Expenses 137,960 242,696 351,189 277,245 267,201 102,962 248,235 230,567 233,637 274,638 214,396 443,524 348,575 3,372,825         

Administrative Expense Adjustment -                      -                      1,407,045       18,296            (271,318) 57,294 (5,010)             (215)                (63,654)           (1,674)             (2,367)             3,540              300 1,142,237         
Total  Administrative Expenses 3,895,836       3,970,929       6,158,239       4,367,458       4,208,389        3,989,603       4,479,521       4,455,960       4,398,561       4,600,716       4,460,627       4,617,102       4,568,904       58,171,845       

TOTAL  EXPENSES 83,229,506     79,910,463     85,550,619     91,139,963     90,592,255      168,153,696   91,451,274     95,559,395     103,094,231   65,744,848     95,300,439     95,457,050     98,678,865     1,243,862,604

OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 10,874,863 10,558,956 8,307,970 10,533,330 11,483,746 11,036,065 11,377,781 9,625,732 9,891,818 12,833,356 11,472,838 13,271,628 11,853,468 143,121,551

MCO TAX 8,904,648       8,904,649       8,904,649       8,902,943       8,904,649        8,933,228       8,905,080       8,905,142       8,904,648       9,894,054       9,894,055       9,894,054       9,894,054       119,745,853

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) NET OF TAX 1,970,215 1,654,307 (596,679) 1,630,387 2,579,097 2,102,837 2,472,701 720,590 987,170 2,939,302 1,578,783 3,377,574 1,959,414 23,375,699

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) (1,188,755)      (931,682)         1,433,032       (137,472)         (151,159)          (88,366)           (167,372)         (245,779)         (164,148)         (833,809)         (949,330)         (2,438,918)      (1,027,231)      (6,890,989)       

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 781,460 722,625 836,353 1,492,915 2,427,938 2,014,471 2,305,329 474,811 823,022 2,105,493 629,453 938,656 932,183 16,484,710

MEDICAL LOSS RATIO 92.5% 91.6% 92.5% 93.1% 92.2% 94.3% 92.3% 94.9% 94.6% 90.9% 92.7% 90.7% 92.6% 92.7%

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATIO 5.2% 5.5% 8.2% 5.7% 5.5% 5.1% 5.7% 5.5% 5.4% 5.7% 5.6% 5.6% 5.5% 5.7%

13 MONTH 
TOTAL

OCTOBER        
2020

NOVEMBER       
2020

DECEMBER       
2020

JANUARY 
2021

FEBRUARY 
2021

MARCH    
2021

APRIL      
2021

MAY        
2021

JUNE        
2021

JULY        
2021

AUGUST        
2021

SEPTEMBER        
2021

OCTOBER         
2021

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only

 

Page 4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

127 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION BY MONTH - PMPM   

ROLLING 13 MONTHS
THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2021

E N R O L L M E N T
M e m b e r s - MCAL 272,481 275,080 277,452 278,517 276,880 282,972 284,587 287,199 289,309 290,980 292,271 294,672 296,323 3,698,723

R E V E N U E S
Title  XIX - Medicaid - Family and Other 173.40 164.62 168.64 174.01 177.17 172.94 173.28 177.71 181.55 180.10 173.76 179.43 183.53 160.45

Title  XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members 393.46 371.41 384.47 385.83 397.58 382.20 385.72 381.99 388.41 387.35 380.84 383.93 383.57 358.96
Title  XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members 945.03 1,012.68 989.03 957.28 816.21 1,005.21 978.42 1,017.24 1,020.90 1,029.14 1,023.27 1,017.48 1,018.29 915.19

Premium - MCO Tax 33.64 30.61 31.83 34.39 34.88 34.47 34.45 34.39 34.43 34.45 34.45 34.40 34.52 33.93
Premium - Hospital Directed Payments 36.53 33.86 35.10 54.29 55.01 45.76 51.78 51.57 76.52 56.15 55.98 56.18 56.45 51.36
Investment Earnings And Other Income 0.56 0.61 0.53 0.02 0.42 (0.88) 0.72 0.68 (1.41) (0.13) 1.94 (0.20) 0.44 0.25

Reinsurance Recoveries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Rate Adjustments - Hospital Directed Payments 0.00 0.04 (0.01) 0.14 0.08 276.18 0.01 0.28 0.02 (100.18) 0.03 0.02 0.02 13.30

Rate/Income Adjustments (2.14) 0.46 0.82 2.87 2.15 5.40 0.94 2.07 (0.32) (1.01) (1.57) 0.42 0.18 0.78
TOTAL  REVENUES 345.36            328.88            338.29            365.05            368.67            633.24            361.33            366.24            390.54            270.05            365.32            368.98            373.01            374.99            

E X P E N S E S
Medical Costs:

   Physician Services 51.96 50.41 45.63 53.52 53.21 53.22 54.96 54.82 55.96 52.60 54.13 60.73 59.22 53.95
   Other Professional Services 13.97 15.96 17.79 15.88 17.64 17.84 17.95 16.22 15.42 15.82 16.51 14.75 16.35 16.31

Emergency Room 17.67 16.86 11.51 16.79 15.97 15.38 15.74 17.49 17.42 16.61 15.30 12.68 15.21 15.73
   I n p a t  i e n t 62.89 62.57 69.14 71.28 69.78 62.12 64.72 71.65 71.69 70.60 70.42 68.90 78.32 68.85

   Reinsurance Expense 0.28 0.31 0.28 0.29 0.29 0.28 0.28 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29
Outpatient Hospital 24.42 22.58 23.66 25.52 23.87 25.30 30.51 30.79 30.42 27.28 27.18 25.55 23.89 26.26

   Other  Medical 47.40 39.84 47.11 38.21 37.61 41.84 34.73 38.16 42.97 34.12 33.92 35.88 36.39 39.02
Pharmacy 33.98 31.69 34.79 32.67 32.68 36.40 33.07 32.55 36.10 33.59 35.24 33.64 34.54 33.93

   Pay for Performance Quality Incentive 2.04 1.98 0.00 1.90 1.91 1.86 1.90 1.88 1.89 1.90 1.89 0.00 0.00 1.46
Hospital Directed Payments 36.53 33.86 35.10 54.29 55.01 45.76 51.78 51.57 76.52 56.15 55.98 56.18 56.45 51.36

Hospital Directed Payment Adjustment 0.00 0.02 (0.00) 0.14 0.08 273.37 0.01 0.00 0.01 (100.18) 0.03 (0.45) 0.02 13.02
Non-Claims Expense Adjustment 0.02 (0.76) 0.01 1.03 0.84 0.75 0.25 0.20 0.16 (0.04) 0.12 0.07 0.03 0.21

   IBNR, Incentive, Paid Claims Adjustment (0.02) 0.75 1.14 0.02 3.10 6.01 (0.30) 1.57 (7.70) 1.40 (0.19) 0.05 (3.12) 0.18
Total Medical Costs 291.15 276.06 286.15 311.55 311.99 580.14 305.61 317.21 341.14 210.13 310.81 308.27 317.59 320.57

GROSS MARGIN 54.21              52.82              52.14              53.50              56.67              53.10              55.72              49.03              49.39              59.92              54.52              60.71              55.42              54.42              
Administrative:
   Compensation 9.59 8.93 9.97 9.95 10.50 8.68 9.46 9.57 9.44 9.64 9.52 9.47 9.27 9.54

Purchased Services 2.53 2.71 4.23 2.94 2.98 3.33 3.46 3.47 3.41 3.23 2.89 3.29 3.34 3.22
Supplies 0.13 0.39 0.14 0.21 0.21 0.02 0.46 0.20 0.30 0.54 0.66 (0.06) 0.20 0.26

Depreciation 1.54 1.53 1.52 1.52 1.53 1.51 1.50 1.47 1.47 1.46 1.46 1.45 1.43 1.49
   Other Administrative Expenses 0.51 0.88 1.27 1.00 0.97 0.36 0.87 0.80 0.81 0.94 0.73 1.51 1.18 0.91

Administrative Expense Adjustment 0.00 0.00 5.07 0.07 (0.98) 0.20 (0.02) (0.00) (0.22) (0.01) (0.01) 0.01 0.00 0.31
Total  Administrative Expenses 14.30 14.44 22.20 15.68 15.20 14.10 15.74 15.52 15.20 15.81 15.26 15.67 15.42 15.73

TOTAL  EXPENSES 305.45            290.50            308.34            327.23            327.19            594.24            321.35            332.73            356.35            225.94            326.07            323.94            333.01            336.30            

OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 39.91              38.39              29.94              37.82              41.48              39.00              39.98              33.52              34.19              44.10              39.25              45.04              40.00              38.69              

MCO TAX 32.68 32.37 32.09 31.97 32.16 31.57 31.29 31.01 30.78 34.00 33.85 33.58 33.39 32.37              

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) NET OF TAX 7.23                6.01                (2.15)               5.85                9.31                7.43                8.69                2.51                3.41                10.10              5.40                11.46              6.61                6.32                

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) (4.36) (3.39) 5.16 (0.49) (0.55) (0.31) (0.59) (0.86) (0.57) (2.87) (3.25) (8.28) (3.47) (1.86)               

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 2.87                2.63                3.01                5.36                8.77                7.12                8.10                1.65                2.84                7.24                2.15                3.19                3.15                4.46                

MEDICAL LOSS RATIO 92.5% 91.6% 92.5% 93.1% 92.2% 94.3% 92.3% 94.9% 94.6% 90.9% 92.7% 90.7% 92.6% 92.7%

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATIO 5.2% 5.5% 8.2% 5.7% 5.5% 5.1% 5.7% 5.5% 5.4% 5.7% 5.6% 5.6% 5.5% 5.7%

13 MONTH 
TOTAL

OCTOBER          
2020

NOVEMBER          
2020

DECEMBER          
2020

JANUARY 
2021

FEBRUARY 
2021

MARCH         
2021

APRIL          
2021

MAY             
2021

JUNE             
2021

JULY           
2021

AUGUST           
2021

SEPTEMBER           
2021

OCTOBER           
2021

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 5

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

128 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

CURRENT  MONTH SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - ALL COA YEAR-TO-DATE
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED OCOTBER 31, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

R E V E N U E S

Title XIX - Medicaid - Family & Other

29,087,445 24,881,137 4,206,308 Premium - Medi-Cal 271,872,725 247,624,425 24,248,300
2,899,385 2,520,887 378,498 Premium - Maternity Kick 24,324,010 25,208,870 (884,860)

35,295                  79,781                  (44,486) Premium - Hep C Kick 371,822 791,817 (419,995)
637,804                493,145                144,659 Premium - BHT Kick 6,279,610             4,894,390 1,385,220
167,359                178,369                (11,010) Premium - Health Home Kick 1,670,676             1,770,285 (99,609)

3,758,058             3,505,252             252,806                Premium - Provider Enhancement 36,356,163           34,841,993 1,514,170
189,643                170,029                19,614                  Premium - Ground Emergency Medical Transportation 1,826,464             1,692,224 134,240
151,423                277,284                (125,861)               Premium - Behavorial Health Integration Program 4,241,485             2,752,003 1,489,482
114,433                91,886                  22,547 Other 1,088,573 918,140 170,433

37,040,845 32,197,771 4,843,074 Total Title XIX - Medicaid - Family & Other 348,031,528 320,494,148 27,537,380

Title XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members

27,572,386 24,002,303           3,570,083 Premium - Medi-Cal 262,077,189 240,023,030 22,054,159
225,649 214,253                11,396 Premium - Maternity Kick 3,514,928 2,142,530 1,372,398
148,519                202,017                (53,498) Premium - Hep C Kick 1,834,652 2,020,169 (185,517)
306,413                356,121                (49,708) Premium - Health Home Kick 2,882,242             3,561,210 (678,968)

1,599,810             1,455,050             144,760                Premium - Provider Enhancement 15,369,546 14,550,500           819,046
192,073                165,235                26,838                  Premium - Ground Emergency Medical Transportation 1,845,372 1,652,350             193,022

63,394                  102,122                (38,728)                 Premium - Behavorial Health Integration Program 1,597,027             1,021,220             575,807                
32,412                  26,600                  5,812 Other 311,129                266,000 45,129

30,140,656 26,523,701 3,616,955 Total Title XIX - Medicaid - Expansion Members 289,432,085 265,237,009 24,195,076

Title XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members

14,626,911 13,474,791 1,152,120 Premium - Medi-Cal 142,917,948 134,747,906 8,170,042
96,101                  100,288                (4,187)                   Premium - Hep C Kick 532,923 1,002,877 (469,954)               

618,289                763,566 (145,277) Premium - BHT Kick 6,029,945 7,635,658 (1,605,713)
244,516                351,842 (107,326) Premium - Health Home Kick 2,460,166             3,518,420 (1,058,254)
473,103                454,632 18,471                  Premium - Provider Enhancement 4,642,346 4,546,320 96,026
136,979                127,475                9,504                    Premium - Ground Emergency Medical Transportation 1,344,120 1,274,750 69,370

10,232                  22,041                  (11,809)                 Premium - Behavorial Health Integration Program 357,181                220,410 136,771

16,206,131 15,294,634 911,497 Total Title XIX - Medicaid - SPD Members 158,284,629 152,946,340 5,338,289

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 6

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

129 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

CURRENT  MONTH SCHEDULE OF MEDICAL COSTS - ALL COA YEAR-TO-DATE

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED OCOTBER 31, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

PHYSICIAN SERVICES
2,864,591 3,082,706 218,115 Primary Care Physician Services 34,252,621 30,639,963 (3,612,658)

12,050,898 10,614,325 (1,436,573) Referral Specialty Services 109,460,152 105,708,467 (3,751,685)
2,624,269             1,509,184 (1,115,085) Urgent Care & After Hours Advise 15,040,471 14,992,177 (48,294)

9,300                   9,300 -                           Hospital Admitting Team 91,200 91,200 -                           

17,549,058 15,215,516 (2,333,542) TOTAL PHYSICIAN SERVICES 158,844,444 151,431,807 (7,412,637)

OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
293,626               296,793 3,167 Vision Service Capitation 2,983,175 2,948,738 (34,437)
207,250               212,115 4,865 221 - Business Intelligence - UM Allocation * 2,125,266 2,121,150 (4,116)
591,381               597,920 6,539 310 - Health Services - Utilization Management - UM Allocation * 6,113,435 5,979,200 (134,235)
155,141               189,152 34,011 311 - Health Services - Quality Improvement - UM Allocation * 1,416,899 1,891,520 474,621
184,683               123,337 (61,346) 312 - Health Services - Education - UM Allocation * 1,258,836 1,233,368 (25,468)
75,939                 80,283 4,344 313 - Health Services - Pharmacy - UM Allocation * 756,488 802,830 46,342

145,433               210,465 65,032 314 - Health Homes - UM Allocation * 1,425,325 2,104,650 679,325
(111,537)              270,692 382,229 315 - Case Management - UM Allocation * 2,397,975 2,706,920 308,945
385,653               -                           (385,653) 316 - Population Health Management - UM Allocation * 449,415 -                           (449,415)
18,866                 -                           (18,866) 317 - In Lieu of Services - UM Allocation * 33,351 -                           (33,351)

(27,194)                56,773 83,967 616 - Disease Management - UM Allocation * 506,292 567,730 61,438
1,287,709             1,257,741 (29,968) Behavior Health Treatment 12,185,021 12,531,077 346,056

144,341               190,103 45,762 Mental Health Services 1,287,228 1,894,227 606,999
1,494,714             1,251,657 (243,057) Other Professional Services 14,265,060          12,471,600 (1,793,460)

4,846,005 4,737,031 (108,974) TOTAL OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 47,203,766 47,253,010 49,244

4,506,067 5,594,658 1,088,591 EMERGENCY ROOM 45,542,271 55,634,770 10,092,499

23,207,054 15,452,940 (7,754,114) INPATIENT HOSPITAL 201,124,157 153,980,597 (47,143,560)

85,133                 80,561 (4,572) REINSURANCE EXPENSE PREMIUM 827,961               800,386 (27,576)

7,080,379 7,010,235 (70,144) OUTPATIENT HOSPITAL SERVICES 77,694,207 69,864,019 (7,830,188)

OTHER MEDICAL  
1,175,141 1,557,430 382,289 Ambulance and NEMT 13,173,901 15,496,249 2,322,348

788,457 427,006 (361,451) Home Health Services & CBAS 6,988,629 4,255,486 (2,733,143)
585,896 491,325 (94,571) Utilization and Quality Review Expenses 4,184,897 4,913,250 728,353

1,708,929 1,302,719 (406,210) Long Term/SNF/Hospice 13,932,984 13,002,355 (930,629)
256,195               396,035 139,840 Health Home Capitation & Incentive 2,659,532            3,946,136 1,286,604

5,550,393             5,155,341             (395,052)              Provider Enhancement Expense - Prop. 56 53,654,462          51,232,303 (2,422,159)
494,068               462,739               (31,329)                Provider Enhancement Expense - GEMT 4,651,073            4,619,324 (31,749)

-                           -                           -                           Provider COVID-19 Expenes 2,125,900            -                           (2,125,900)
225,048               402,026               176,978               Behaviorial Health Integration Program 5,995,693            3,994,211 (2,001,482)

10,784,127 10,194,621 (589,506) TOTAL OTHER MEDICAL 107,367,071 101,459,314 (5,907,757)

PHARMACY SERVICES 

9,249,348 9,398,400             149,052 RX - Drugs & OTC 87,944,463 93,714,000 5,769,537

251,056 382,252               131,196 RX - HEP-C 2,676,055 3,815,029 1,138,974

854,331               772,083 (82,248) Rx - DME 8,352,432 7,698,219 (654,213)

(118,351)              (33,407) 84,944 RX - Pharmacy Rebates (1,096,263)           (333,123) 763,140

10,236,384 10,519,328 282,944 TOTAL PHARMACY SERVICES 97,876,687          104,894,124         7,017,437

-                           527,811               527,811               PAY FOR PERFORMANCE QUALITY INCENTIVE 4,317,262            5,243,905             926,643

16,726,476           14,094,476           (2,632,000)           HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENTS 160,966,657        140,389,750         (20,576,907)

4,491                   -                           (4,491)                  HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT 48,156,332          -                           (48,156,332)         

8,907                   -                           (8,907)                  NON-CLAIMS EXPENSE ADJUSTMENT 962,814               -                           (962,814)

(924,120)              -                           924,120               IBNR, INCENTIVE, AND PAID CLAIMS ADJUSTMENT 141,546               -                           (141,546)              

94,109,961 83,427,176 (10,682,785)         Total Medical Costs 951,025,175 830,951,682 (120,073,493)

* Medical costs per DMHC regulations 
KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 7

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

130 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

CURRENT  MONTH SCHEDULE OF MEDICAL COSTS - ALL COA - PMPM YEAR-TO-DATE
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED OCOTBER 31, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

PHYSICIAN SERVICES
9.67 11.10 1.43 Primary Care Physician Services 11.92 11.10 (0.82)

40.67 38.21 (2.46) Referral Specialty Services 38.09 38.30 0.21
8.86 5.43 (3.42) Urgent Care & After Hours Advise 5.23 5.43 0.20
0.03 0.03 0.00 Hospital Admitting Team 0.03 0.03 0.00

59.22 54.77 (4.45) TOTAL PHYSICIAN SERVICES 55.28 54.87 (0.41)

OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
0.99 1.07 0.08 Vision Service Capitation 1.04 1.07 0.03
0.70 0.76 0.06 221 - Business Intelligence - UM Allocation * 0.74 0.77 0.03
2.00 2.15 0.16 310 - Health Services - Utilization Management - UM Allocation * 2.13 2.17 0.04
0.52 0.68 0.16 311 - Health Services - Quality Improvement - UM Allocation * 0.49 0.69 0.19
0.62 0.44 (0.18) 312 - Health Services - Education - UM Allocation * 0.44 0.45 0.01
0.26 0.29 0.03 313 - Health Services - Pharmacy - UM Allocation * 0.26 0.29 0.03
0.49 0.76 0.27 314 - Health Homes - UM Allocation * 0.50 0.76 0.27

(0.38) 0.97 1.35 315 - Case Management - UM Allocation * 0.83 0.98 0.15
1.30 0.00 (1.30) 316 - Population Health Management - UM Allocation * 0.16 0.00 (0.16)
0.06 0.00 (0.06) 317 - In Lieu of Services - UM Allocation * 0.01 0.00 (0.01)

(0.09) 0.20 0.30 616 - Disease Management - UM Allocation * 0.18 0.21 0.03
4.35 4.53 0.18 Behavior Health Treatment 4.24 4.54 0.30
0.49 0.68 0.20 Mental Health Services 0.45 0.69 0.24
5.04 4.51 (0.54) Other Professional Services 4.96 4.52 (0.45)

16.35 17.05 0.70 TOTAL OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 16.43 17.12 0.69

15.21 20.14 4.93 EMERGENCY ROOM 15.85 20.16 4.31

78.32 55.63 (22.69) INPATIENT HOSPITAL 69.99 55.79 (14.20)

0.29 0.29 0.00 REINSURANCE EXPENSE PREMIUM 0.29 0.29 0.00

23.89 25.24 1.34 OUTPATIENT HOSPITAL SERVICES 27.04 25.31 (1.72)

OTHER MEDICAL  
3.97 5.61 1.64 Ambulance and NEMT 4.58 5.61 1.03
2.66 1.54 (1.12) Home Health Services & CBAS 2.43 1.54 (0.89)
1.98 1.77 (0.21) Utilization and Quality Review Expenses 1.46 1.78 0.32
5.77 4.69 (1.08) Long Term/SNF/Hospice 4.85 4.71 (0.14)
0.86 1.43 0.56 Health Home Capitation & Incentive 0.93 1.43 0.50

18.73 18.56 (0.17) Provider Enhancement Expense - Prop. 56 18.67 18.56 (0.11)
1.67 1.67 (0.00) Provider Enhancement Expense - GEMT 1.62 1.67 0.06
0.00 0.00 0.00 Provider COVID-19 Expenes 0.74 0.00 (0.74)
0.76 1.45 0.69 Behaviorial Health Integration Program 2.09 1.45 (0.64)

36.39 36.70 0.31 TOTAL OTHER MEDICAL 37.36 36.76 (0.60)

PHARMACY SERVICES 
31.21 33.83 2.62 RX - Drugs & OTC 30.60 33.95 3.35
0.85 1.38 0.53 RX - HEP-C 0.93 1.38 0.45
2.88 2.78 (0.10) Rx - DME 2.91 2.79 (0.12)

(0.40) (0.12) 0.28 RX - Pharmacy Rebates (0.38) (0.12) 0.26

34.54 37.87 3.32 TOTAL PHARMACY SERVICES 34.06 38.01 3.95

-                       1.90                     1.90 PAY FOR PERFORMANCE QUALITY INCENTIVE 1.50                     1.90                     0.40

56.45                   50.74 (5.71) HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENTS 56.01                   50.87 (5.15)

0.02 0.00 (0.02) HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT 16.76 0.00 (16.76)

0.03                     0.00 (0.03)                     NON-CLAIMS EXPENSE ADJUSTMENT 0.34                     0.00 (0.34)                    

(3.12)                    0.00 3.12                      IBNR, INCENTIVE, AND PAID CLAIMS ADJUSTMENT 0.05                     0.00 (0.05)                    

317.59 300.32 (17.27)                   Total Medical Costs 330.94 301.07 (29.86)

* Medical costs per DMHC regulations 
KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 8

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

131 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

SCHEDULE OF MEDICAL COSTS BY MONTH 
THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2021

PHYSICIAN SERVICES
Primary Care Physician Services 2,962,264 2,963,060 3,567,494 3,563,867 3,699,457 3,720,742 3,239,377 3,824,662 3,847,107 2,864,591 34,252,621

Referral Specialty Services 10,512,215 10,171,851 9,997,168 11,114,617 11,103,264 11,178,950 10,801,894 10,559,258 11,970,037 12,050,898 109,460,152
Urgent Care & After Hours Advise 1,423,381 1,588,229 1,484,832 954,611 932,687 1,282,025 1,254,796 1,426,250 2,069,391 2,624,269 15,040,471

Hospital Admitting Team 9,300 8,400 9,300 9,000 9,300 9,000 9,300 9,300 9,000 9,300 91,200

TOTAL PHYSICIAN SERVICES 14,907,160 14,731,540 15,058,794 15,642,095 15,744,708 16,190,717 15,305,367 15,819,470 17,895,535 17,549,058 158,844,444

OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Vision Service Capitation 294,054 292,442 292,443 289,005 305,213 298,817 304,301 307,745 305,529 293,626 2,983,175           

221 - Business Intelligence - UM Allocation * 210,663 222,415 197,310 217,207 221,546 203,314 200,446 223,488 221,627 207,250 2,125,266           
310 - Health Services - Utilization Management - UM Allocation * 595,003 563,907 605,345 602,798 602,089 619,127 626,829 630,253 676,703 591,381 6,113,435           

311 - Health Services - Quality Improvement - UM Allocation * 138,388 123,443 154,295 136,098 147,314 146,837 148,762 131,293 135,328 155,141 1,416,899           
312 - Health Services - Education - UM Allocation * 120,621 124,149 95,259 119,982 120,314 125,926 121,160 120,267 126,475 184,683 1,258,836           
313 - Health Services - Pharmacy - UM Allocation * 75,046 75,369 75,552 75,945 76,277 74,167 76,519 76,279 75,395 75,939 756,488              

314 - Health Homes - UM Allocation * 120,170 119,317 173,098 121,413 138,809 140,463 139,741 170,731 156,150 145,433 1,425,325           
315 - Case Management - UM Allocation * 270,657 261,834 281,125 260,034 269,323 261,708 293,801 259,955 351,075 (111,537) 2,397,975           

316 - Population Health Management - UM Allocation * -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       1,733 62,029 385,653 449,415              
317 - In Lieu of Services - UM Allocation * -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       14,485 18,866 33,351                

616 - Disease Management - UM Allocation * 62,998 58,064 72,219 57,851 56,419 55,347 58,576 58,684 53,328 (27,194) 506,292              
Behavior Health Treatment 867,517 947,944 1,407,309 1,506,149 1,204,226 1,186,572 1,269,876 1,426,863 1,080,856 1,287,709 12,185,021         

Mental Health Services 292,517 181,749 96,618 153,559 43,140 72,194 95,878 114,350 92,882 144,341 1,287,228           
Other Professional Services 1,373,918 1,913,308 1,598,054 1,567,152 1,473,713 1,275,979 1,268,554 1,303,771 995,897 1,494,714 14,265,060         

TOTAL OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 4,421,552 4,883,941 5,048,627 5,107,193 4,658,383 4,460,451 4,604,443 4,825,412 4,347,759 4,846,005 47,203,766

EMERGENCY ROOM 4,676,327 4,420,437 4,353,449 4,480,205 5,023,372 5,040,670 4,833,831 4,472,304 3,735,609 4,506,067 45,542,271

INPATIENT HOSPITAL 19,853,180 19,321,533 17,577,565 18,419,878 20,578,157 20,739,625 20,542,490 20,581,248 20,303,427 23,207,054 201,124,157

REINSURANCE EXPENSE PREMIUM 81,215 80,770 80,461 80,129 84,297 82,530 84,045 84,997 84,384 85,133 827,961

OUTPATIENT HOSPITAL SERVICES 7,108,674 6,610,422 7,160,111 8,681,740 8,842,725 8,800,023 7,937,455 7,942,981 7,529,697 7,080,379 77,694,207

OTHER MEDICAL  
Ambulance and NEMT 1,400,971 1,208,039 1,444,178 1,338,929 1,314,492 1,189,224 1,328,439 1,323,146 1,451,342 1,175,141 13,173,901

Home Health Services & CBAS 490,933 582,371 853,147 657,817 707,296 964,318 749,534 599,655 595,101 788,457 6,988,629
Utilization and Quality Review Expenses 228,696 372,499 688,633 430,683 359,626 509,705 373,641 230,711 404,807 585,896 4,184,897

Long Term/SNF/Hospice 1,616,577 1,132,832 1,933,711 1,041,624 1,114,812 1,301,188 1,204,596 1,258,956 1,619,759 1,708,929 13,932,984
Health Home Capitation & Incentive 211,140 294,005 334,675 299,855 228,752 341,280 162,780 267,430 263,420 256,195 2,659,532

Provider Enhancement Expense - Prop. 56 5,190,164 5,226,990 5,265,692 5,318,961 5,342,952 5,386,833 5,433,266 5,440,313 5,498,898 5,550,393 53,654,462
Provider Enhancement Expense - GEMT 456,380 456,381 265,311 423,904 494,669 527,330 449,942 569,010 514,078 494,068 4,651,073

Provider COVID-19 Expenes 674,580 767,440 683,880 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       2,125,900
Behaviorial Health Integration Program 371,672               371,672 371,672 371,672 1,398,038 2,210,773 225,049 225,048 225,049 225,048 5,995,693

TOTAL OTHER MEDICAL 10,641,113 10,412,229 11,840,899 9,883,445 10,960,637 12,430,651 9,927,247 9,914,269 10,572,454 10,784,127 107,367,071

PHARMACY SERVICES 

RX - Drugs & OTC 8,174,252 8,080,594 9,316,542 8,462,224 8,518,642 9,049,899 8,878,267 9,311,107 8,903,588 9,249,348 87,944,463

RX - HEP-C 245,144 264,815 249,449 260,020 290,418 365,687 239,266 251,754 258,446 251,056 2,676,055

Rx - DME 815,963 839,212 868,236 825,453 690,067 1,035,049 791,678 870,581 761,862 854,331 8,352,432

RX - Pharmacy Rebates (135,000) (135,000) (135,000) (135,000) (149,643) (7,947) (135,000) (135,000) (10,322) (118,351) (1,096,263)

TOTAL PHARMACY SERVICES 9,100,359 9,049,621 10,299,227 9,412,697 9,349,484 10,442,688 9,774,211 10,298,442 9,913,574 10,236,384 97,876,687

PAY FOR PERFORMANCE QUALITY INCENTIVE 529,182               529,183               526,070               540,715               540,715               545,673               552,862               552,862               -                       -                       4,317,262           

HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENTS 15,121,903 15,230,282 12,949,303 14,734,613 14,811,759 22,138,233 16,337,330         16,361,944         16,554,814         16,726,476         160,966,657       

HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT 39,990                 21,878                 77,356,953         3,134                   597                      3,943                   (29,149,382)        7,365                   (132,637)             4,491                   48,156,332         

NON-CLAIMS EXPENSE ADJUSTMENT 287,063 233,372 212,564 71,855 58,763 46,953 (11,833)               34,433                 20,737                 8,907                   962,814              

IBNR, INCENTIVE, AND PAID CLAIMS ADJUSTMENT 4,787 858,658 1,700,070 (85,946) 449,838 (2,226,487) 406,066               (55,915)               14,595                 (924,120)             141,546              

Total Medical Costs 86,772,505 86,383,866 164,164,093 86,971,753 91,103,435 98,695,670 61,144,132 90,839,812 90,839,948 94,109,961 951,025,175

YEAR TO 
DATE             
2021

OCTOBER              
2021

AUGUST              
2021

SEPTEMBER              
2021

JUNE              
2021

JULY              
2021

JANUARY    
2021

FEBRUARY    
2021

MARCH        
2021

APRIL           
2021

MAY              
2021

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only

Page 9

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

132 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS
MEDI-CAL

SCHEDULE OF MEDICAL COSTS BY MONTH - PMPM
THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2021

PHYSICIAN SERVICES
Primary Care Physician Services 10.64 10.70 12.61 12.52 12.88 12.86 11.13 13.09 13.06 9.67 11.92

Referral Specialty Services 37.74 36.74 35.33 39.06 38.66 38.64 37.12 36.13 40.62 40.67 38.09
Urgent Care & After Hours Advise 5.11 5.74 5.25 3.35 3.25 4.43 4.31 4.88 7.02 8.86 5.23

Hospital Admitting Team 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03

TOTAL PHYSICIAN SERVICES 53.52 53.21 53.22 54.96 54.82 55.96 52.60 54.13 60.73 59.22 55.28

OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Vision Service Capitation 1.06 1.06 1.03               1.02 1.06 1.03 1.05 1.05 1.04 0.99                   1.04

221 - Business Intelligence - UM Allocation * 0.76 0.80 0.70               0.76 0.77 0.70 0.69 0.76 0.75 0.70                   0.74
310 - Health Services - Utilization Management - UM Allocation * 2.14 2.04 2.14               2.12 2.10 2.14 2.15               2.16               2.30 2.00                   2.13

311 - Health Services - Quality Improvement - UM Allocation * 0.50 0.45 0.55               0.48 0.51 0.51 0.51 0.45 0.46 0.52                   0.49
312 - Health Services - Education - UM Allocation * 0.43 0.45 0.34               0.42 0.42 0.44 0.42 0.41 0.43 0.62                   0.44
313 - Health Services - Pharmacy - UM Allocation * 0.27 0.27 0.27               0.27 0.27 0.26 0.26 0.26 0.26 0.26                   0.26

314 - Health Homes - UM Allocation * 0.43 0.43 0.61               0.43 0.48 0.49 0.48 0.58 0.53 0.49                   0.50
315 - Case Management - UM Allocation * 0.97 0.95 0.99               0.91 0.94 0.90 1.01 0.89 1.19 (0.38)                 0.83

316 - Population Health Management - UM Allocation * 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.21 1.30 0.16
317 - In Lieu of Services - UM Allocation * 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.05 0.06 0.01

616 - Disease Management - UM Allocation * 0.23 0.21 0.26               0.20 0.20 0.19 0.20 0.20 0.18 (0.09)                 0.18
Behavior Health Treatment 3.11 3.42 4.97               5.29 4.19 4.10 4.36 4.88 3.67 4.35                   4.24

Mental Health Services 1.05 0.66 0.34               0.54 0.15 0.25 0.33 0.39 0.32 0.49                   0.45
Other Professional Services 4.93 6.91 5.65               5.51 5.13 4.41 4.36 4.46 3.38 5.04                   4.96

TOTAL OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 15.88 17.64 17.84 17.95 16.22 15.42 15.82 16.51 14.75 16.35 16.43

EMERGENCY ROOM 16.79 15.97 15.38 15.74 17.49 17.42 16.61 15.30 12.68 15.21 15.85

INPATIENT HOSPITAL 71.28 69.78 62.12 64.72 71.65 71.69 70.60 70.42 68.90 78.32 69.99

REINSURANCE EXPENSE PREMIUM 0.29 0.29 0.28 0.28 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29

OUTPATIENT HOSPITAL SERVICES 25.52 23.87 25.30 30.51 30.79 30.42 27.28 27.18 25.55 23.89 27.04

OTHER MEDICAL  
Ambulance and NEMT 5.03 4.36 5.10 4.70 4.58 4.11 4.57 4.53 4.93 3.97 4.58

Home Health Services & CBAS 1.76 2.10 3.01 2.31 2.46 3.33 2.58 2.05 2.02 2.66 2.43
Utilization and Quality Review Expenses 0.82 1.35 2.43 1.51 1.25 1.76 1.28 0.79 1.37 1.98 1.46

Long Term/SNF/Hospice 5.80 4.09 6.83 3.66 3.88 4.50 4.14 4.31 5.50 5.77 4.85
Health Home Capitation & Incentive 0.76 1.06 1.18 1.05 0.80 1.18 0.56 0.92 0.89 0.86 0.93

Provider Enhancement Expense - Prop. 56 18.63 18.88 18.61 18.69 18.60 18.62 18.67 18.61 18.66 18.73 18.67
Provider Enhancement Expense -  GEMT 1.64 1.65 0.94 1.49 1.72 1.82 1.55 1.95 1.74 1.67 1.62

Provider COVID-19 Expenes 2.42 2.77 2.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.74
Behaviorial Health Integration Program 1.33 1.34 1.31 1.31 4.87 7.64 0.77 0.77 0.76 0.76 2.09

TOTAL OTHER MEDICAL 38.21 37.61 41.84 34.73 38.16 42.97 34.12 33.92 35.88 36.39 37.36

PHARMACY SERVICES 

RX - Drugs & OTC 29.35 29.18 32.92 29.74 29.66 31.28 30.51 31.86 30.22 31.21 30.60

RX - HEP-C 0.88 0.96 0.88 0.91 1.01 1.26 0.82 0.86 0.88 0.85 0.93

Rx - DME 2.93 3.03 3.07 2.90 2.40 3.58 2.72 2.98 2.59 2.88 2.91

RX - Pharmacy Rebates (0.48) (0.49) (0.48) (0.47) (0.52) (0.03) (0.46) (0.46) (0.04) (0.40) (0.38)

TOTAL PHARMACY SERVICES 32.67 32.68 36.40 33.07 32.55 36.10 33.59 35.24 33.64 34.54 34.06

PAY FOR PERFORMANCE QUALITY INCENTIVE 1.90 1.91 1.86 1.90 1.88 1.89 1.90 1.89 0.00 0.00 1.50

HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENTS 54.29 55.01 45.76 51.78 51.57 76.52 56.15 55.98 56.18 56.45 56.01

HOSPITAL DIRECTED PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT 0.14 0.08 273.37 0.01 0.00 0.01 (100.18) 0.03 (0.45) 0.02 16.76

NON-CLAIMS EXPENSE ADJUSTMENT 1.03 0.84 0.75 0.25 0.20 0.16 (0.04) 0.12 0.07 0.03 0.34

IBNR, INCENTIVE, AND PAID CLAIMS ADJUSTMENT 0.02 3.10 6.01 (0.30) 1.57 (7.70) 1.40 (0.19) 0.05 (3.12) 0.05

Total Medical Costs 311.55 311.99 580.14 305.61 317.21 341.14 210.13 310.81 308.27 317.59 330.94

JUNE              
2021

YEAR TO 
DATE             
2021

JULY              
2021

AUGUST              
2021

SEPTEMBER              
2021

OCTOBER              
2021

JANUARY    
2021

FEBRUARY    
2021

MARCH        
2021

APRIL           
2021

MAY              
2021

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only

Page 10

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

133 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS

MEDI-CAL

CURRENT  MONTH SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES BY DEPT YEAR-TO-DATE
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED OCOTBER 31, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

482,602 377,031 (105,571) 110 - Executive 3,920,457 3,845,312 (75,145)

213,569 212,651 (918) 210 - Accounting 1,961,173 2,126,511 165,338

342,882          362,443 19,561 220 - Management Information Systems 3,572,534 3,624,432 51,898

11,794            64,468 52,674 221 - Business Intelligence 132,089        644,680 512,591

244,312          281,931 37,619 222 - Enterprise Development 2,451,717 2,819,309 367,592

372,602 448,524 75,922 225 - Infrastructure 3,867,948 4,485,236 617,288

510,500 576,323 65,823 230 - Claims 5,453,582 5,763,231 309,649

96,574 149,779 53,205 240 - Project Management 1,225,982 1,497,793 271,811

112,888 101,775 (11,113) 310 - Health Services - Utilization Management 1,074,288 1,017,749 (56,539)

85,753 27,902 (57,851) 311 - Health Services - Quality Improvement 258,517        279,021 20,504

-                      55 55                   312 - Health Services - Education 59                 550 491

157,190 142,146 (15,044) 313- Pharmacy 1,493,618 1,421,458 (72,160)

-                      6,642               6,642              314 - Health Homes 4,260            66,417               62,157

(9,699)             22,357 32,056 315 - Case Management 209,565        223,568 14,003

(14,009)           29,325 43,334            616 - Disease Management 260,833        293,252             32,419          

284,682 323,502 38,820 320 - Provider Network Management 2,788,125 3,235,025 446,900

628,618 656,475 27,857 330 - Member Services 5,887,799 6,564,753 676,954

586,016 702,275 116,259 340 - Corporate Services 5,782,187 7,022,749 1,240,562

61,247 66,363 5,116 360 - Audit & Investigative Services 571,483 663,629 92,146

(10,998)           69,250 80,248 410 - Advertising Media 563,740 692,500 128,760

67,695 73,950 6,255 420 - Sales/Marketing/Public Relations 561,582 739,496 177,914

344,386 251,455 (92,931) 510 - Human Resourses 2,370,111 2,514,551 144,440

300                 -                      (300)                 Administrative Expense Adjustment (264,808)       -                        264,808

4,568,904       4,946,622        377,718 Total Administrative Expenses 44,146,841 49,541,222 5,394,381

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 11

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

134 / 308



KERN  HEALTH  SYSTEMS

MEDI-CAL

SCHEDULE OF ADMIN EXPENSES BY DEPT BY MONTH 
FOR THE MONTH ENDED OCOTBER 31, 2021

110 - Executive 353,943 483,744 293,288 272,219 482,689 358,282 361,179 347,546 484,965 482,602 3,920,457

210 - Accounting 203,619 198,129 146,511 287,032 86,601 198,636 202,043 228,799 196,234 213,569 1,961,173

220 - Management Information Systems (MIS) 340,212 345,719 394,230 384,019 349,136 376,280 325,601 386,243 328,212 342,882 3,572,534

221 - Business Intelligence -                   -                   -                   12,308         46,180 24,115 14,545 11,545 11,602 11,794 132,089       

222 - Enterprise Development 250,306 269,236 185,800 249,199 261,073 252,105 253,485 225,132 261,069 244,312 2,451,717

225 - Infrastructure 365,340 337,172 345,070 407,880 459,371 352,463 459,826 393,273 374,951 372,602 3,867,948

230 - Claims 550,124 558,095 460,086 554,302 542,410 526,593 539,331 558,400 653,741 510,500 5,453,582

240 - Project Management 99,808 119,159 128,304 121,381 127,251 189,626 160,413 89,609 93,857 96,574 1,225,982

310 - Health Services - Utilization Management 103,641 120,732 82,239 113,686 116,283 100,257 91,643 121,643 111,276 112,888 1,074,288

311 - Health Services - Quality Improvement 18,870 16,833 21,040 18,597 20,088 27,421 25,067 5,726 19,122 85,753 258,517

312 - Health Services - Education -                   -                   -                   59                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                      -                      59                

313- Pharmacy 141,859 137,379 151,340 147,394 145,687 151,338 150,515 155,464 155,452 157,190 1,493,618

314 - Health Homes -                   -                   4,225           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   35                   -                      4,260           

315 - Case Management 23,536 22,769         24,444         22,612         23,420         22,757         25,548         22,605 31,573 (9,699) 209,565

616 - Disease Management 32,453 29,912 37,220 29,802 29,065 28,513 30,175 30,230 27,472 (14,009) 260,833

320 - Provider Network Management 304,995 273,211 231,758 274,082 295,300 262,297 286,715 280,971 294,114 284,682 2,788,125

330 - Member Services 567,625 586,939 545,846 622,842 566,155 559,817 624,470 570,700 614,787 628,618 5,887,799

340 - Corporate Services 561,450 559,640 535,874 586,682 567,567 540,444 620,533 709,892 514,089 586,016 5,782,187

360 - Audit & Investigative Services 68,976 83,366 38,089 60,406 61,212 61,445 68,450 28,549 39,743 61,247 571,483

410 - Advertising Media 27,368 39,637 81,326 55,258 21,513 152,571 88,385 11,477 97,203 (10,998) 563,740

420 - Sales/Marketing/Public Relations 53,401 69,703 46,252 65,999 51,803 57,056 37,987 55,545 56,141 67,695 561,582

510 - Human Resourses 281,636 228,332 179,367 198,772 203,371 220,199 236,479 229,645 247,924 344,386 2,370,111

Total Department Expenses 4,349,162    4,479,707    3,932,309    4,484,531    4,456,175    4,462,215    4,602,390    4,462,994    4,613,562       4,568,604       44,411,649  

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE ADJUSTMENT 18,296         (271,318)      57,294         (5,010)          (215)             (63,654)        (1,674)          (2,367)          3,540              300                 (264,808)      

Total Administrative Expenses 4,367,458 4,208,389 3,989,603 4,479,521 4,455,960 4,398,561 4,600,716 4,460,627 4,617,102 4,568,904 44,146,841

YEAR TO 
DATE             
2021

OCTOBER              
2021

JUNE              
2021

AUGUST              
2021

SEPTEMBER              
2021

JULY              
2021

JANUARY    
2021

FEBRUARY    
2021

MARCH        
2021

APRIL           
2021

MAY              
2021

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 12

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

135 / 308



KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS
GROUP HEALTH PLAN - HFAM
BALANCE SHEET STATEMENT

AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2021
ASSETS OCTOBER 2021 SEPTEMBER 2021 INC(DEC)

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,138,351$                  1,137,662$                  689                      

Interest Receivable 280                              690                               (410)                    
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,138,631$                  1,138,352$                  279$                    

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Other Liabilities -                                   -                                   -                          
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES -$                            -$                             -$                    

NET POSITION:
Net Position- Beg. of Year 1,138,066 1,138,066 -                          

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position - Current Year 565                              286                               279                      
Total Net Position 1,138,631$                  1,138,352$                  279$                    

          TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 1,138,631$                  1,138,352$                  279$                    

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 13

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

136 / 308



KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS
GROUP HEALTH PLAN - HFAM

CURRENT MONTH
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION YEAR-TO-DATE
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FOR THE MONTH ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2021 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE

E N R O L L M E N T

-                   -                 -                     M e m b e r s -                   -                 -                     

R E V E N U E S

-                   -                 -                     Premium -                   -                 -                     
279              -                 279                I n t e r e s t 3,128 -                 3,128

-                   -                 -                     Other Investment Income (2,563)          -                 (2,563)            

279              -                 279                TOTAL  REVENUES 565 -                 565

E X P E N S E S

Medical Costs
-                   -                 -                     IBNR and Paid Claims Adjustment -                   -                 -                     
-                   -                 -                     Total Medical Costs -                   -                 -                     

279              -                 279                GROSS MARGIN 565 -                 565

Administrative
-                   -                 -                        Management Fee Expense and Other Admin Exp -                   -                 -                     
-                   -                 -                     Total  Administrative Expenses -                   -                 -                     

-                   -                 -                     TOTAL  EXPENSES -                   -                 -                     

279              -                 279                OPERATING  INCOME (LOSS) 565 -                 565

-                   -                 -                     TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES) -                   -                 -                     

279              -                 279                NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 565 -                 565

0% 0% 0% MEDICAL LOSS RATIO 0% 0% 0%

0% 0% 0% ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATIO 0% 0% 0%

KHS12/2/2021
Management Use Only Page 14

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

137 / 308



KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS 

MONTHLY MEMBERS COUNT

KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS

2021 MEMBER

MEDI-CAL        MONTHS JAN'21 FEB'21 MAR'21 APR'21 MAY'21 JUN'21 JUL'21 AUG'21 SEP'21 OCT'21 NOV'21 DEC'21

ADULT AND FAMILY  
ADULT 544,079 51,548 53,449 52,941 53,378 54,092 54,867 55,250 55,691 56,542 56,321 0 0
CHILD  1,336,171 131,669 126,764 133,240 133,228 133,944 134,540 134,904 134,848 135,535 137,499 0 0

SUB-TOTAL ADULT & FAMILY 1,880,250 183,217 180,213 186,181 186,606 188,036 189,407 190,154 190,539 192,077 193,820 0 0

OTHER MEMBERS

PARTIAL DUALS - FAMILY 6,055 403 523 529 576 563 576 594 673 809 809 0 0

PARTIAL DUALS - CHILD -1 0 -1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PARTIAL DUALS - BCCTP 30 2 2 2 2 2 4 4 4 4 4 0 0
BCCTP - TABACCO SETTLEMENT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

FULL DUALS (SPD)
SPD FULL DUALS 76,196 7,484 7,591 7,505 7,523 7,635 7,640 7,814 7,739 8,069 7,196 0 0

SUBTOTAL OTHER MEMBERS 82,280 7,889 8,115 8,036 8,101 8,200 8,220 8,412 8,416 8,882 8,009 0 0

TOTAL FAMILY & OTHER 1,962,530 191,106 188,328 194,217 194,707 196,236 197,627 198,566 198,955 200,959 201,829 0 0

SPD
SPD (AGED AND DISABLED) 160,678 16,011 18,829 15,328 15,870 15,756 15,645 15,800 15,749 15,775 15,915 0 0

MEDI-CAL EXPANSION
ACA Expansion Adult-Citizen 740,931 70,649 69,251 72,532 73,089 74,161 74,905 75,451 76,525 77,016 77,352 0 0
ACA Expansion Duals 9,571 751 472 895 921 1,046 1,132 1,163 1,042 922 1,227 0 0

SUB-TOTAL MED-CAL EXPANSION 750,502 71,400 69,723 73,427 74,010 75,207 76,037 76,614 77,567 77,938 78,579 0 0

TOTAL KAISER 117,399 11,047 11,196 11,349 11,505 11,692 11,852 11,983 12,108 12,250 12,417 0 0

TOTAL MEDI-CAL MEMBERS 2,991,109 289,564 288,076 294,321 296,092 298,891 301,161 302,963 304,379 306,922 308,740 0 0

Page 15

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

138 / 308



  
  

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
  

  
  

  
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
M

o
n

th
Y

e
a
r-

to
-D

a
te

  
  

  
  

  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
1
0
0
1

K
E

R
N

 M
E

D
IC

A
L
 C

E
N

T
E

R
**

**
3
,7

3
0
,6

7
3
.4

9
3

,7
3
0
,6

7
3
.4

9
2
0
1
9
/2

0
2
0
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 Q
U

A
L
IT

Y
 C

A
R

E
 G

R
A

N
T

 &
 2

0
2
1
/2

0
2
2
 

P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 G

R
A

N
T

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
4
3
9
1

O
M

N
I 

F
A

M
IL

Y
 H

E
A

L
T

H
**

**
6
0
1
,7

0
4
.5

0
8

6
0
,8

4
8
.6

0
H

E
A

L
T

H
 H

O
M

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 C
A

R
E

 G
R

A
N

T
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

S
 

T
1
0
4
5

K
A

IS
E

R
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 -

 H
M

O
 

4
3
6
,4

0
1
.7

5
3

,8
9
9
,9

8
5
.6

4
S

E
P

T
.,

 2
0
2

1
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 H

M
O

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 

P
R

E
M

IU
M

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
2
6
8
6

A
L
L
IA

N
T

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 I
N

C
.*

**
*

2
8
1
,6

0
3
.5

7
1

,2
1
0
,7

6
6
.9

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 E

A
R

T
H

Q
U

A
K

E
 &

 S
L
IP

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
S

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
4
3
5
0

C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

 E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
 I

N
C

.
2
2
9
,1

8
1
.2

4
1

,9
9
0
,2

7
7
.9

2
A

U
G

. 
2
0

2
1

  
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 /
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4
2
3
7

F
L
U

ID
E

D
G

E
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

, 
IN

C
.

2
2
5
,0

0
6
.6

0
8

9
4
,7

4
5
.1

0
A

U
G

. 
&

 S
E

P
T

. 
2
0

2
1

 C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

/U
P

D
A

T
E

 T
O

 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
-C

A
L
A

IM
 E

X
P

A
N

S
IO

N

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4
9
8
2

N
G

C
 U

S
, 

L
L
C

1
8
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1

,3
8
2
,2

4
5
.8

8
P

R
E

F
U

N
D

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 H

O
M

E
S

 I
N

C
E

N
T

IV
E

S
 &

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 M
E

M
B

E
R

 &
 D

IS
E

A
S

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 &

 

Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
  

IN
C

E
N

T
IV

E
S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
2
7
2
6

D
S

T
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 S

O
L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
.

1
2
2
,8

9
4
.3

6
1

,0
3
5
,2

0
6
.2

6
A

U
G

. 
2
0

2
1

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 C
L

A
IM

S
P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y

T
1
1
8
0

L
A

N
G

U
A

G
E

 L
IN

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 I
N

C
. 

9
3
,5

6
5
.3

7
4

3
6
,4

7
6
.1

9
A

U
G

. 
 2

0
2

1
 I

N
T

E
R

P
R

E
T

A
T

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 &

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

M
E

M
B

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
2
4
8
8

T
H

E
 L

IN
C

O
L
N

 N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 L

IF
E

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 

6
9
,0

1
9
.7

9
6

2
1
,5

5
5
.9

5
S

E
P

T
. 

2
0
2

1
 V

O
L

U
N

T
A

R
Y

 L
IF

E
, 

A
D

&
D

, 
D

E
N

T
A

L
 

IN
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4
2
1
8

C
O

N
T

E
X

T
 4

 H
E

A
L
T

H
C

A
R

E
, 

IN
C

**
**

6
8
,6

0
0
.0

0
6

9
,6

3
0
.0

0
A

M
A

 R
O

Y
A

L
T

Y
 F

E
E

 &
 C

P
T

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
4
4
8
3

IN
F

U
S

IO
N

 A
N

D
 C

L
IN

IC
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

, 
IN

C
.*

**
*

6
3
,5

4
9
.1

4
1

9
3
,2

3
5
.7

2
H

E
A

L
T

H
 H

O
M

E
S

 G
R

A
N

T
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

T
4
7
2
2

C
O

G
N

IZ
A

N
T

 T
R

IZ
E

T
T

O
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 G

R
O

U
P

, 

IN
C

.

4
7
,4

2
7
.7

8
3

8
5
,4

3
2
.9

5
A

U
G

. 
2
0

2
1

 P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
4
5
8
2

H
E

A
L
T

H
X

, 
IN

C
.

4
1
,5

7
6
.0

0
3

8
2
,1

8
4
.0

0
S

E
P

T
. 

2
0
2

1
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 F

E
E

S
 -

 

P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 A

N
D

 M
E

M
B

E
R

 P
O

R
T

A
L

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

1
 o

f 
3

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

139 / 308



  
  

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
  

  
  

  
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
M

o
n

th
Y

e
a
r-

to
-D

a
te

  
  

  
  

  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
5
0
2
2

S
V

A
M

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L
 I

N
C

3
4
,8

9
0
.0

0
2

4
5
,7

8
6
.0

0
A

U
G

. 
2
0

2
1

 P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

/U
P

D
A

T
E

 T
O

 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G

IT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 I
N

T
E

L
L

IG
E

N
C

E

T
4
7
3
3

U
N

IT
E

D
 S

T
A

F
F

IN
G

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S
3
2
,8

6
6
.9

5
1

9
0
,6

8
8
.5

4
A

U
G

. 
&

 S
E

P
T

. 
2
0

2
1

 T
E

M
P

O
R

A
R

Y
 H

E
L

P
  

- 
(2

) 
M

S
; 

(1
) 

H
H

P
; 

(1
) 

H
E

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
5
3
3
7

C
A

Z
A

D
O

R
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 G
R

O
U

P
 I

N
C

  
3
1
,2

8
9
.9

3
1

6
0
,4

2
9
.5

4
 A

U
G

./
S

E
P

T
. 

2
0

2
1
 T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

  
- 

(1
0
) 

M
S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
2
5
8
4

U
N

IT
E

D
 S

T
A

T
E

S
 P

O
S

T
A

L
 S

V
C

.-
H

A
S

L
E

R
**

**
3

0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1

8
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
P

O
S

T
A

G
E

 (
M

E
T

E
R

) 
F

U
N

D
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
4
6
9
9

Z
E

O
M

E
G

A
**

**
*

2
9
,4

7
5
.0

0
9

8
,1

2
8
.4

7
J
U

L
. 

2
0
2

1
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
  

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

  

T
2
1
6
7

P
G

&
E

  
2
7
,4

7
9
.3

6
2

1
1
,7

4
8
.7

5
A

U
G

. 
&

 S
E

P
T

 2
0

2
1

 U
S

A
G

E
 /

 U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
2
5
0
9

U
S

P
S

**
**

2
7
,2

8
9
.8

4
2

8
,7

9
8
.1

4
F

U
N

D
 M

A
IL

IN
G

 P
E

R
M

IT
 #

8
8

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
5
3
2
2

M
A

N
IN

D
E

R
 K

H
A

L
S

A
2

6
,3

5
1
.0

0
7

3
,4

3
0
.5

0
A

U
G

. 
2
0

2
1

 P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

-U
M

T
4
5
3
8

C
H

A
N

G
E

 H
E

A
L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 S

O
L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
L
L
C

2
4
,6

5
3
.1

6
1

8
8
,2

8
0
.1

6
A

U
G

. 
2
0

2
1

 E
D

I 
C

L
A

IM
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

  
(E

M
D

E
O

N
)

C
L
A

IM
S

T
4
0
3
8

P
O

L
Y

C
L
IN

IC
 M

E
D

IC
A

L
 C

E
N

T
E

R
, 

IN
C

**
**

2
2
,8

4
1
.2

9
2

2
,8

4
1
.2

9
S

E
P

T
. 

2
0
2

1
/2

0
2
2

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
  

G
R

A
N

T
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

S
 

T
4
6
5
7

D
A

P
O

N
D

E
 S

IM
P

S
O

N
 R

O
W

E
 P

C
**

**
2

2
,5

8
9
.5

0
1

0
3
,4

8
7
.0

0
J
U

L
. 

2
0
2
1
 L

E
G

A
L
 F

E
E

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
3
0
1
1

O
F

F
IC

E
 A

L
L
Y

, 
IN

C
2
1
,1

1
4
.2

5
1

6
8
,0

2
0
.5

0
A

U
G

. 
2
0

2
1

  
E

D
I 

C
L
A

IM
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

 
C

L
A

IM
S

T
4
9
0
2

C
H

A
N

G
E

 H
E

A
L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 S

O
L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
L
L
C

**
**

2
0
,7

4
1
.6

0
4

8
,6

5
5
.2

0
M

A
Y

, 
J
U

N
.,

 J
U

L
.,

 A
U

G
.,

 2
0
2
1
 E

D
I 

C
L
A

IM
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

  

(R
E

L
A

Y
 H

E
A

L
T

H
)

C
L
A

IM
S

T
4
4
6
0

P
A

Y
S

P
A

N
, 

IN
C

 
1
9
,4

1
2
.1

1
1

4
2
,0

8
5
.6

3
A

U
G

. 
2
0

2
1

 E
L
E

C
T

R
O

N
IC

 C
L

A
IM

S
/P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
F

IN
A

N
C

E

T
3
4
4
9

C
D

W
 G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
**

**
1

8
,0

5
0
.2

6
9

1
,3

4
1
.3

1
O

P
T

IC
A

L
 T

R
A

N
C

E
IV

E
R

 M
O

D
U

L
E

S
 &

 A
D

O
B

E
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
S

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
5
1
4
5

C
C

S
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 F
R

E
S

N
O

 I
N

C
1
7
,8

8
2
.1

4
1

4
2
,3

1
1
.2

6
S

E
P

T
. 

2
0
2

1
 J

A
N

IT
O

R
IA

L
 &

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 D
A

Y
 P

O
R

T
E

R
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

2
 o

f 
3

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

140 / 308



  
  

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

A
P

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v
e

r 
$

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
  

  
  

  
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
M

o
n

th
Y

e
a
r-

to
-D

a
te

  
  

  
  

  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
1
8
6
1

C
E

R
ID

IA
N

 H
C

M
, 

IN
C

. 
1
7
,8

4
2
.2

2
1

8
3
,1

5
9
.0

8
J
U

L
.,

 A
U

G
. 

&
 S

E
P

T
. 

2
0

2
1
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 S
U

B
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

 F
E

E
S

/ 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

/ 
D

A
Y

F
O

R
C

E
 H

U
M

A
N

 C
A

P
IT

A
L
 

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
5
0
0
5

C
R

A
Y

O
N

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 E
X

P
E

R
T

S
 L

L
C

 
1
7
,1

1
2
.7

8
7

7
8
,6

2
9
.2

1
A

U
G

. 
2
0

2
1

 E
S

D
 A

Z
U

R
E

 O
V

E
R

A
G

E
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
5
0
7
6
 

M
E

R
ID

IA
N

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
, 

P
.C

. 
1
6
,7

7
0
.0

0
1

5
9
,5

1
0
.0

0
A

U
G

. 
2
0

2
1

 P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

-U
M

T
5
1
0
9

R
A

N
D

 E
M

P
L

O
Y

M
E

N
T

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

 
1
3
,7

6
0
.4

6
3

3
2
,8

0
4
.7

0
A

U
G

. 
&

 S
E

P
T

. 
2
0

2
1

 T
E

M
P

O
R

A
R

Y
 H

E
L

P
  

- 
(1

) 
M

S
; 

(1
) 

H
H

P
; 

(1
) 

H
E

 

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
5
1
8
5

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IT
Y

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 O
F

 K
E

R
N

  
1
3
,1

0
0
.0

0
1

1
7
,2

0
0
.0

0
J
U

N
. 

2
0

2
1

 P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 

T
4
2
6
1

K
A

IS
E

R
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 P
L

A
N

-T
X

 P
P

O
1
2
,9

6
6
.8

0
9

,5
2
0
.2

4
S

E
P

T
. 

2
0
2

1
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 P

P
O

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
 

P
R

E
M

IU
M

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4
5
0
1

A
L
L

IE
D

 U
N

IV
E

R
S

A
L

 S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
1
2
,7

0
5
.3

5
1

2
7
,8

1
0
.2

1
A

U
G

. 
&

 S
E

P
T

. 
2
0

2
1

 O
N

S
IT

E
 S

E
C

U
R

IT
Y

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
2
4
5
8

H
E

A
L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L
, 

IN
C

.*
**

*
1

2
,5

0
0
.0

0
2

9
9
,5

0
0
.0

0
J
U

L
. 

2
0
2

1
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
1
0
0
5

C
O

L
O

N
IA

L
 L

IF
E

 &
 A

C
C

ID
E

N
T

  
1

1
,8

7
3
.5

2
1

0
8
,1

8
4
.6

7
S

E
P

T
. 

2
0
2
1
 L

IF
E

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
5
3
8
6

P
A

R
T

N
E

R
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 A
N

D
 S

C
IE

N
C

E
, 

IN
C

**
**

1
1
,1

5
0
.0

0
1

1
,1

5
0
.0

0
C

A
R

P
O

R
T

 S
O

L
A

R
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
3
0
9
2

L
IN

K
S

 F
O

R
 L

IF
E

, 
IN

C
**

**
1

0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1

5
,4

5
0
.0

0
L

A
C

E
'N

 I
T

 U
P

 S
P

O
N

S
O

R
S

H
IP

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

6
,7

4
7
,9

1
1
.1

1

T
O

T
A

L
 V

E
N

D
O

R
S

 O
V

E
R

 $
1
0

,0
0
0

6
,7

4
7
,9

1
1
.1

1

T
O

T
A

L
 V

E
N

D
O

R
S

 U
N

D
E

R
 $

1
0
,0

0
0
  

2
3
5
,6

9
0
.7

0

T
O

T
A

L
 V

E
N

D
O

R
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
- 

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
6

,9
8
3
,6

0
1
.8

1
$
  

  
  

  

N
o
te

:

**
**

N
e
w

 v
e
n
d
o
rs

 o
v
e
r 

$
1
0
,0

0
0
 f

o
r 

th
e
 m

o
n
th

 o
f 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

3
 o

f 
3

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

141 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
1

0
4

5
K

A
IS

E
R

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 -

 H
M

O
3

,8
9

9
,9

8
5

.6
4

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 H
M

O
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 P
R

E
M

IU
M

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
1

0
0

1
K

E
R

N
 M

E
D

IC
A

L
 C

E
N

T
E

R
**

**
3

,7
3

0
,6

7
3

.4
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 C

A
R

E
 G

R
A

N
T

 &
 2

0
2

1
/2

0
2

2
 

P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 G

R
A

N
T

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

S
 

T
4

3
5

0
C

O
M

P
U

T
E

R
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

 I
N

C
.

1
,9

9
0

,2
7

7
.9

2
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 /

 C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

T
2

7
0

4
M

C
G

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 L
L

C
1

,6
4

8
,9

0
9

.8
8

H
E

A
L

T
H

 C
A

R
E

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 &
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
  

8
/5

/2
0

2
1

 -

0
8

/0
4

/2
0

2
2

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

T
4

9
8

2
N

G
C

 U
S

, 
L

L
C

1
, 3

8
2

,2
4

5
.8

8
P

R
E

F
U

N
D

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 M
E

M
B

E
R

 I
N

C
E

N
T

IV
E

S
H

E
A

L
T

H
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N

T
2

6
8

6
A

L
L

IA
N

T
 I

N
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 I

N
C

.
1

,2
1

0
,7

6
6

.9
0

A
N

N
U

A
L

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 &

 A
C

IP
 C

R
IM

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
S

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
3

1
3

0
O

P
T

U
M

IN
S

IG
H

T
, 

IN
C

.
1

,0
4

3
,1

7
6

.0
0

A
N

N
U

A
L

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

D
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 E

A
S

Y
G

R
O

U
P

 &
 I

N
C

R
E

M
E

N
T

A
L

 

L
IC

E
N

S
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
2

7
2

6
D

S
T

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
.

1
,0

3
5

,2
0

6
.2

6
P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 C

L
A

IM
S

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

T
4

2
3

7
F

L
U

ID
E

D
G

E
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

, 
IN

C
.

8
9

4
,7

4
5

.1
0

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

/U
P

D
A

T
E

 T
O

 S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

IN
G

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4

3
9

1
O

M
N

I 
F

A
M

IL
Y

 H
E

A
L

T
H

8
6

0
,8

4
8

.6
0

H
E

A
L

T
H

 H
O

M
E

S
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 C

A
R

E
 G

R
A

N
T

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
5

0
0

5
C

R
A

Y
O

N
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 E

X
P

E
R

T
S

 L
L

C
7

7
8

,6
2

9
.2

1
A

N
N

U
A

L
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
 A

N
D

 E
S

D
 A

Z
U

R
E

 O
V

E
R

A
G

E
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
2

4
8

8
T

H
E

 L
IN

C
O

L
N

 N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 L

IF
E

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
6

2
1

,5
5

5
.9

5
VO

LU
N

TA
R

Y 
LI

FE
, A

D
&D

, D
EN

TA
L 

IN
SU

R
AN

C
E 

PR
EM

IU
M



V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
1

1
8

0
L

A
N

G
U

A
G

E
 L

IN
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 I

N
C

.
4

3
6

, 4
7

6
.1

9
IN

T
E

R
P

R
E

T
A

T
IO

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

M
E

M
B

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
4

7
2

2
C

O
G

N
IZ

A
N

T
 T

R
IZ

E
T

T
O

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 G
R

O
U

P
, 

IN
C

.
3

8
5

,4
3

2
.9

5
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

V
A

R
IO

U
S

1
 o

f 
 1

1

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

142 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
4

5
8

2
H

E
A

L
T

H
X

, 
IN

C
.

3
8

2
,1

8
4

.0
0

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

 F
E

E
S

 -
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 A
N

D
 M

E
M

B
E

R
 

P
O

R
T

A
L

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
5

1
0

9
R

A
N

D
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
M

E
N

T
 S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S
3

2
2

, 8
3

5
.3

2
T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

 &
 A

C
A

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
1

8
4

5
D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 M

A
N

A
G

E
D

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 C
A

R
E

3
1

0
, 8

7
4

.8
5

2
0

2
1

-2
0

2
2

 M
C

A
L

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
5

1
1

1
E

N
T

IS
Y

S
 3

6
0

3
0

6
,5

8
4

.9
4

A
N

N
U

A
L

 D
IS

A
S

T
E

R
 R

E
C

O
V

E
R

Y
 C

O
N

T
IN

U
IT

Y
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

/M
IS

 

IN
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
2

4
5

8
H

E
A

L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

, 
IN

C
.

2
9

9
,5

0
0

.0
0

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
5

0
2

2
S

V
A

M
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 I

N
C

2
4

5
,7

8
6

.0
0

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
  

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
/U

P
D

A
T

E
 T

O
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 

R
E

P
O

R
T

IN
G

IT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 I
N

T
E

L
L

IG
E

N
C

E

T
5

3
1

7
P

R
E

S
ID

IO
 N

E
T

W
O

R
K

E
D

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

 G
R

O
U

P
 L

L
C

.
2

4
1

, 9
1

0
.7

8
N

U
T

A
N

IX
 H

A
R

D
W

A
R

E
 &

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 -
 S

E
C

U
R

IT
Y

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 

A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4

1
9

3
S

T
R

IA
 L

L
C

2
2

1
,3

2
0

.4
6

O
C

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
  

C
L

A
IM

S

T
5

2
2

9
D

IG
N

IT
Y

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 M
E

D
IC

A
L

 G
R

O
U

P
 -

 B
A

K
E

R
S

F
IE

L
D

2
1

7
, 4

4
2

.8
1

H
E

A
L

T
H

 H
O

M
E

 G
R

A
N

T
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

S
 

T
2

1
6

7
P

G
&

E
2

1
1

, 7
4

8
.7

5
U

S
A

G
E

/U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
4

5
3

8
C

H
A

N
G

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S
, 

L
L

C
2

1
1

,5
5

5
.5

3
E

D
I 

C
L

A
IM

 P
R

O
C

E
S

S
IN

G
  

(E
M

D
E

O
N

)
C

L
A

IM
S

T
4

4
8

3
IN

F
U

S
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
L

IN
IC

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
, 

IN
C

.
1

9
3

,2
3

5
.7

2
H

E
A

L
T

H
 H

O
M

E
S

 G
R

A
N

T
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

T
4

7
3

3
U

N
IT

E
D

 S
T

A
F

F
IN

G
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
S

1
9

0
,6

8
8

.5
4

T
E

M
P

O
R

A
R

Y
 H

E
L

P
 &

 A
C

A
 I

N
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
1

8
6

1
C

E
R

ID
IA

N
 H

C
M

, 
IN

C
.

1
8

3
, 1

5
9

.0
8

M
O

N
T

H
L

Y
 S

U
B

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 F

E
E

S
/ 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

/ 

D
A

Y
F

O
R

C
E

 H
U

M
A

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

2
 o

f 
 1

1

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

143 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
2

5
8

4
U

N
IT

E
D

 S
T

A
T

E
S

 P
O

S
T

A
L

 S
V

C
.-

H
A

S
L

E
R

1
8

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

P
O

S
T

A
G

E
 (

M
E

T
E

R
) 

F
U

N
D

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
3

0
1

1
O

F
F

IC
E

 A
L

L
Y

, 
IN

C
.

1
6

8
, 0

2
0

.5
0

E
D

I 
C

L
A

IM
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

C
L

A
IM

S

T
5

3
3

7
C

A
Z

A
D

O
R

 C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
 G

R
O

U
P

 I
N

C
1

6
0

,4
2

9
.5

4
T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
5

0
7

6
M

E
R

ID
IA

N
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

, 
P

.C
.

1
5

9
,5

1
0

.0
0

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

T
4

9
6

7
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
.

1
5

9
,0

2
8

.0
3

F
S

A
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
 &

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

 1
2

5
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4

4
6

0
P

A
Y

S
P

A
N

, 
IN

C
1

5
3

,4
7

0
.4

8
E

L
E

C
T

R
O

N
IC

 C
L

A
IM

S
/P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
F

IN
A

N
C

E

T
4

1
6

5
S

H
I 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
  

 C
O

.
1

4
4

, 7
1

1
.5

2
S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
S

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
5

1
4

5
C

C
S

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

R
E

S
N

O
 I

N
C

.,
1

4
2

,3
1

1
.2

6
J
A

N
IT

O
R

IA
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
3

4
4

8
S

Y
N

E
R

G
Y

 H
E

A
L

T
H

C
A

R
E

, 
IN

C
.

1
4

1
,5

0
0

.0
0

A
S

T
H

M
A

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 G

R
A

N
T

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

T
5

3
4

4
S

IG
N

A
T

U
R

E
 S

T
A

F
F

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 L

L
C

1
2

9
,4

4
4

.0
0

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

T
4

5
0

1
A

L
L

IE
D

 U
N

IV
E

R
S

A
L

 S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
2

7
,8

1
0

.2
1

O
N

S
IT

E
 S

E
C

U
R

IT
Y

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
5

3
1

9
C

IT
IU

S
T

E
C

H
 I

N
C

.
1

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
C

IT
IU

S
 T

E
C

H
'S

 F
A

S
T

 A
N

D
 I

M
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 F
E

E
S

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
5

1
8

5
H

O
U

S
IN

G
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 O

F
 K

E
R

N
1

1
7

, 2
0

0
.0

0
2

0
2

0
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

 
U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 U
M

  

W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

T
2

8
5

0
Q

U
E

S
T

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 I
N

C
.

1
0

9
,5

9
8

.0
0

S
Q

L
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
 /

 S
P

O
T

L
IG

H
T

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
1

0
0

5
C

O
L

O
N

IA
L

 L
IF

E
 &

 A
C

C
ID

E
N

T
 A

T
T

N
  

P
R

E
M

IU
M

 

P
R

O
C

E
S

S
IN

G
1

0
8

,1
8

4
.6

7
E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
 -

 A
C

C
ID

E
N

T
 &

 C
R

IT
IC

A
L

 I
L

L
N

E
S

S
 

V
A

R
IO

U
S

3
 o

f 
 1

1

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

144 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
4

6
5

7
D

A
P

O
N

D
E

 S
IM

P
S

O
N

 R
O

W
E

 P
C

1
0

3
,4

8
7

.0
0

L
E

G
A

L
 F

E
E

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
1

9
6

0
L

O
C

A
L

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 P
L

A
N

S
 O

F
 C

A
L

IF
O

R
N

IA
1

0
0

,9
1

6
.7

0
2

0
2

1
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 D

U
E

 A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

 &
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
 R

E
G

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
4

6
9

9
Z

e
O

M
E

G
A

, 
IN

C
.

9
8

,1
2

8
.4

7
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 T
R

A
V

E
L

 E
X

P
. 

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

  

T
1

4
0

8
D

E
L

L
 M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G
 L

.P
.

9
8

,0
7

0
.0

9
H

A
R

D
W

A
R

E
 &

 C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
3

4
4

9
C

D
W

  
G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
9

0
,7

1
0

.5
4

A
N

N
U

A
L

 A
D

O
B

E
 T

E
A

M
 L

IC
E

N
S

IN
G

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
1

1
2

8
H

A
L

L
 L

E
T

T
E

R
 S

H
O

P
, 

IN
C

.
9

0
,6

8
8

.5
6

N
E

W
 M

E
M

B
E

R
 L

E
T

T
E

R
/E

N
V

E
L

O
P

E
S

, 
M

E
M

B
E

R
 H

A
N

D
B

O
O

K
S

, 

C
L

IN
IC

A
L

 C
A

R
E

 M
A

N
U

A
L

 F
O

R
 H

H
, 

N
E

W
 M

E
M

B
E

R
 P

A
C

K
E

T
S

 &
 

P
O

S
T

E
R

S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4

2
6

1
K

A
IS

E
R

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 P

L
A

N
 -

T
X

 P
P

O
9

0
,5

2
0

.2
4

T
X

-P
P

O
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4

3
5

3
T

W
E

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
.

8
7

,5
1

8
.0

1
A

N
N

U
A

L
 T

E
C

H
N

IC
A

L
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

 A
N

D
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 F

O
R

 

N
IM

B
L

E
 S

T
O

R
A

G
E

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4

3
9

6
K

A
IS

E
R

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 H

E
A

L
T

H
-D

H
M

O
8

4
,4

6
2

.0
5

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
4

9
6

3
L

IN
K

E
D

IN
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
IO

N
7

8
,2

7
5

.0
0

A
N

N
U

A
L

 O
N

L
IN

E
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
 F

O
R

 A
L

L
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
S

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
4

8
1

3
A

D
V

E
N

T
IS

T
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 T

E
H

A
C

H
A

P
I 

V
A

L
L

E
Y

7
7

,9
2

5
.8

2
2

0
2

0
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 C
A

R
E

 G
R

A
N

T
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

S

T
1

1
8

9
A

P
P

L
E

 O
N

E
 I

N
C

, 
E

M
P

L
O

Y
M

E
N

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

7
6

,4
2

0
.1

3
T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

 
M

IS
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
5

3
2

2
M

A
N

IN
D

E
R

 K
H

A
L

S
A

7
3

,4
3

0
.5

0
2

0
2

1
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

T
1

2
7

2
C

O
F

F
E

Y
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 I

N
C

.
7

2
,0

5
1

.4
4

M
E

M
B

E
R

 N
E

W
S

L
E

T
T

E
R

/ 
W

E
B

S
IT

E
 I

M
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
/ 

M
IS

 

IN
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

4
 o

f 
 1

1

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

145 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
4

2
1

7
C

O
N

T
E

X
T

 4
 H

E
A

L
T

H
C

A
R

E
, 

IN
C

**
**

6
9

,6
3

0
.0

0
A

M
A

 R
O

Y
A

L
T

Y
 F

E
E

 &
 C

P
T

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
4

9
6

0
Z

E
L

IS
 C

L
A

IM
S

 I
N

T
E

G
R

IT
Y

, 
L

L
C

6
7

, 5
3

6
.9

6
P

O
S

T
 E

D
IT

IN
G

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
 F

O
R

 C
L

A
IM

S
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

C
L

A
IM

S

T
4

0
5

4
A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

IO
N

 F
O

R
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 A

F
F

IL
IA

T
E

D
 P

L
A

N
S

6
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
2

0
2

1
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 D

U
E

S
 A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
  

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
5

1
2

1
T

P
x
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
6

3
,2

1
2

.5
7

L
O

C
A

L
 C

A
L

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

; 
L

O
N

G
 D

IS
T

A
N

C
E

 C
A

L
L

S
; 

IN
T

E
R

N
E

T
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
; 

8
0

0
 L

IN
E

S
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
1

0
2

2
U

N
U

M
 L

IF
E

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 C

O
.

6
1

,0
1

3
.6

0
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
P

A
Y

R
O

L
L

 D
E

D
U

C
T

IO
N

T
5

3
2

9
R

E
L

A
Y

 N
E

T
W

O
R

K
, 

L
L

C
6

0
,0

0
0

.0
3

T
E

X
T

 M
E

S
S

A
G

IN
G

 S
U

B
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

 
C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

T
4

5
6

3
S

P
H

 A
N

A
L

Y
T

IC
S

5
9

, 9
8

8
.8

0
P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 A
N

D
 M

E
M

B
E

R
 S

A
T

IS
F

A
C

T
IO

N
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
5

1
3

2
T

IM
E

 W
A

R
N

E
R

 C
A

B
L

E
 L

L
C

5
8

,3
9

3
.7

1
I N

T
E

R
N

E
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
2

5
8

0
G

O
L

D
E

N
 E

M
P

IR
E

 T
R

A
N

S
IT

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

5
4

,7
3

5
.7

5
2

0
2

1
-2

0
2

2
 O

U
T

D
O

O
R

 A
D

V
E

R
T

IS
IN

G
 

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
1

9
5

7
F

R
IE

N
D

S
 O

F
 M

E
R

C
Y

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
5

4
,0

0
0

.0
0

C
O

V
ID

 V
A

C
C

IN
E

 C
A

M
P

A
IG

N
 S

P
O

N
S

O
R

S
H

IP
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G

T
4

7
8

5
C

O
M

M
G

A
P

5
2

,4
3

0
.0

0
IN

T
E

R
P

R
E

T
A

T
IO

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

H
E

A
L

T
H

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

T
4

7
9

2
K

P
 L

L
C

5
1

, 4
1

6
.4

6
P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
IE

S
 &

 F
O

R
M

U
L

A
R

Y
 (

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
/M

A
IN

T
.)

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

/P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 

R
E

L
A

T
IO

N
S

T
4

4
1

5
D

A
N

IE
L

L
S

 P
H

IL
L

IP
S

 V
A

U
G

H
A

N
 A

N
D

 B
O

C
K

4
9

,9
5

0
.0

0
2

0
2

0
 A

U
D

IT
 F

E
E

S
F

IN
A

N
C

E

T
4

1
8

2
T

H
E

 L
A

M
A

R
 C

O
M

P
A

N
IE

S
4

9
,7

6
0

.0
0

O
U

T
D

O
O

R
 A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
M

E
N

T
-B

IL
L

B
O

A
R

D
S

A
D

V
E

R
T

IS
IN

G

T
4

5
0

3
V

IS
IO

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 P

L
A

N
4

9
,6

8
1

.2
0

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

5
 o

f 
 1

1

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

146 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
4

9
0

2
C

H
A

N
G

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 T

E
C

H
N

O
L

O
G

IE
S

, 
L

L
C

4
8

,6
5

5
.2

0
E

D
I 

C
L

A
IM

 P
R

O
C

E
S

S
IN

G
  

(E
M

D
E

O
N

)
C

L
A

IM
S

T
4

7
8

1
E

D
R

IN
G

T
O

N
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

, 
L

L
C

4
8

, 6
0

0
.0

0
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
2

9
6

1
S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

 B
E

N
C

H
, 

L
L

C
4

6
,4

1
4

.5
9

M
-F

IL
E

S
 &

 S
C

A
N

F
IN

IT
Y

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

S
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
1

1
8

3
M

IL
L

IM
A

N
 U

S
A

4
5

,6
7

2
.7

5
C

Y
2

0
1

9
/2

0
2

0
 R

D
T

 &
 I

B
N

P
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 -
 A

C
T

U
A

R
IA

L
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
3

9
8

6
J
A

C
Q

U
E

L
Y

N
  

 S
. 

 J
A

N
S

4
4

,6
0

0
.0

0
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 F
O

R
 K

H
S

 P
U

B
L

IC
 I

M
A

G
E

 C
A

M
P

A
IG

N
 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
/ 

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
2

4
1

3
T

R
E

K
 I

M
A

G
IN

G
 I

N
C

4
1

,7
6

9
.5

1
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 A

N
D

 M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

 E
V

E
N

T
S

, 
M

E
M

B
E

R
 &

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 E
D

 

IN
C

E
N

T
IV

E
S

, 
E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 E

V
E

N
T

S
, 

N
E

W
 H

IR
E

 S
H

IR
T

S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
5

0
1

5
S

E
N

T
IN

E
L

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
4

0
,3

8
0

.0
0

J
U

N
IP

E
R

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 R

E
N

E
W

A
L

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
5

3
4

6
T

U
R

N
K

E
Y

 E
N

E
R

G
Y

4
0

, 3
5

2
.0

0
E

V
 C

H
A

R
G

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

S
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
2

4
4

6
A

T
&

T
 M

O
B

IL
IT

Y
3

8
, 8

6
0

.2
4

C
E

L
L

U
L

A
R

 P
H

O
N

E
 /

 I
N

T
E

R
N

E
T

 U
S

A
G

E
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
5

3
4

0
G

A
R

T
N

E
R

 I
N

C
3

8
,5

0
0

.0
0

A
N

N
U

A
L

 L
E

A
D

E
R

S
 I

N
D

IV
ID

U
A

L
 A

C
C

E
S

S
 A

D
V

IS
O

R
 -

 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

M
IS

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
2

4
4

1
L

A
U

R
A

 J
. 

B
R

E
Z

IN
S

K
I

3
8

,0
5

0
.0

0
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G

T
5

1
0

7
C

IT
R

IX
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

, 
IN

C
.

3
7

,3
5

0
.0

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 F

E
E

S
 

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
5

2
9

2
A

L
L

'S
 W

E
L

L
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 C

A
R

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

3
7

, 1
7

9
.0

0
T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

 
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
1

4
0

4
C

A
L

IF
O

R
N

IA
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

IO
N

 O
F

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 P
L

A
N

S
3

6
, 1

9
9

.0
0

2
0

2
1

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 D
U

E
S

  
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
2

4
0

7
K

A
IS

E
R

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 -

C
O

B
R

A
3

6
,1

9
7

.2
2

C
O

B
R

A
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

6
 o

f 
 1

1

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

147 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
2

9
4

1
K

E
R

N
 P

R
IN

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 I
N

C
.

3
4

,2
5

7
.7

5
O

T
H

E
R

 P
R

IN
T

IN
G

 C
O

S
T

S
, 

E
N

V
E

L
O

P
E

S
, 

L
E

T
T

E
R

H
E

A
D

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
2

9
6

9
A

M
E

R
IC

A
N

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 M

A
C

H
IN

E
S

 I
N

C
3

4
, 1

7
8

.1
3

H
A

R
D

W
A

R
E

 A
N

D
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
4

6
5

2
B

A
K

E
R

S
F

IE
L

D
 S

Y
M

P
H

O
N

Y
 O

R
C

H
E

S
T

R
A

3
3

,3
3

3
.3

6
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 S

P
O

N
S

O
R

S
H

IP
 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
5

2
0

1
J
A

C
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

, 
IN

C
.

3
3

,1
4

8
.0

0
A

C
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 &

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
5

3
2

5
W

A
D

E
 A

 M
C

N
A

IR
3

2
,9

9
5

.0
0

L
E

A
D

A
B

IL
IT

Y
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 F
A

C
IL

IT
A

T
IO

N
-C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
/O

N
S

IT
E

 T
R

A
IN

IN
G

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
4

6
0

7
A

G
IL

IT
Y

 R
E

C
O

V
E

R
Y

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

 I
N

C
.

3
0

,4
1

6
.0

0
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
2

5
0

9
U

S
P

S
 *

**
*

2
8

,7
9

8
.1

4
R

E
P

L
E

N
IS

H
 P

O
S

T
A

G
E

 (
P

E
R

M
IT

) 
F

U
N

D
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
4

5
7

5
S

C
H

N
E

ID
E

R
 E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

 I
T

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

2
6

,7
9

1
.5

0
A

P
C

 C
O

O
L

IN
G

 U
N

IT
S

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

C
E

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
4

2
1

6
N

E
X

S
T

A
R

 B
R

O
A

D
C

A
S

T
IN

G
 I

N
C

2
6

,6
1

0
.0

0
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 M
E

D
IA

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
5

2
6

9
K

E
R

N
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

2
6

,3
1

1
.0

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 C

O
N

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
 -

 K
E

R
N

 C
O

N
N

E
C

T
E

D
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 

N
E

T
W

O
R

K
 M

G
M

T
 F

E
E

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

-

O
U

T
R

E
A

C
H

T
2

1
3

5
B

A
K

E
R

S
F

IE
L

D
 C

IT
Y

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

2
6

,2
0

5
.0

0
2

0
1

9
/2

0
2

0
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 W

E
L

L
N

E
S

S
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 G
R

A
N

T
 -

 F
IN

A
L

 

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 H

E
 

W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

T
1

6
5

5
K

E
R

N
,K

K
X

X
,K

IS
V

,K
G

E
O

,K
G

F
M

,K
E

B
T

,K
Z

O
Z

,K
K

J
G

,K
V

E
C

,K

S
T

T
,K

R
Q

K
,K

P
A

T
,

2
6

, 0
0

0
.0

0
D

IG
IT

A
L

 A
D

S
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G
 

T
5

2
9

8
T

O
T

A
L

M
E

D
, 

IN
C

.
2

5
, 5

9
1

.0
0

D
IR

E
C

T
 P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

 F
E

E
S

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
2

9
1

8
S

T
IN

S
O

N
'S

2
5

,4
9

0
.3

0
2

0
2

1
 O

F
F

IC
E

 S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
4

7
3

1
L

O
G

M
E

IN
 U

S
A

, 
IN

C
.

2
5

,2
0

2
.2

5
IN

T
E

R
N

E
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

7
 o

f 
 1

1

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

148 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
4

6
6

3
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

, 
IN

C
.

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
L

E
A

D
E

R
S

H
IP

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
H

U
M

A
N

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

T
5

3
7

6
K

C
H

C
C

2
5

, 0
0

0
.0

0
C

O
V

ID
 T

A
S

K
 F

O
R

C
E

 S
P

O
N

S
O

R
S

H
IP

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
5

1
1

9
P

A
C

IF
IC

 W
E

S
T

 S
O

U
N

D
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IO

 &
 D

E
S

IG
N

 

IN
C

.
2

4
,0

7
5

.0
3

H
A

R
D

W
A

R
E

 B
O

A
R

D
 R

O
O

M
 R

E
M

O
T

E
 V

ID
E

O
 C

O
N

F
E

R
E

N
C

IN
G

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
5

3
3

4
P

A
C

IF
IC

 I
N

T
E

R
P

R
E

T
E

R
S

, 
IN

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
D

2
1

,4
4

3
.5

7
I N

T
E

R
P

R
E

T
A

T
IO

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

H
E

A
L

T
H

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

T
2

9
3

3
S

IE
R

R
A

 P
R

IN
T

E
R

S
, 

IN
C

. 
 

2
3

,7
0

1
.6

4
P

R
IN

T
IN

G
 O

F
 M

E
M

B
E

R
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

/P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
Y

/B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 C

A
R

D
S

 
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
5

3
4

5
D

E
V

V
IO

 I
N

C
 

2
3

,2
5

0
.0

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 &

 H
A

R
D

W
A

R
E

 D
E

V
V

T
R

A
C

E
 W

E
A

R
A

B
L

E
S

 

&
 G

A
T

E
W

A
Y

S
 -

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

 T
R

A
C

IN
G

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

/C
A

P
IT

A
L

 

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

T
4

8
7

3
L

5
 H

E
A

L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S
, 

IN
C

.
2

3
,1

1
5

.0
0

A
N

N
U

A
L

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

 A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

 F
E

E
S

 -
 C

L
A

IM
S

 A
U

D
IT

 T
O

O
L

C
L

A
IM

S

T
4

0
3

8
P

O
L

Y
C

L
IN

IC
 M

E
D

IC
A

L
 C

E
N

T
E

R
, 

IN
C

**
**

2
2

,8
4

1
.2

9
 2

0
2

1
/2

0
2

2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
1

1
5

2
M

IC
H

A
E

L
 K

. 
B

R
O

W
N

 L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 &

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 C
O

.,
 

IN
C

.
2

0
,7

4
5

.4
5

2
0

2
1

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E

T
4

6
0

5
K

E
R

N
V

IL
L

E
 U

N
IO

N
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
1

9
,5

0
0

.0
0

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 G

R
A

N
T

 -
 F

IN
A

L
 

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 H

E
 

W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

T
1

3
2

6
W

A
L

K
E

R
-L

E
W

IS
 R

E
N

T
S

1
9

,2
3

1
.9

9
C

O
V

ID
-1

9
 T

E
S

T
IN

G
 S

IT
E

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
1

0
9

7
N

C
Q

A
1

9
,2

3
0

.7
5

H
E

D
IS

, 
V

O
L

 2
 P

L
U

S
 Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 C

O
M

P
A

S
S

 A
N

D
 P

O
P

U
L

A
T

IO
N

 

H
E

A
L

T
H

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 A

C
C

R
E

D
IA

T
IO

N
 

Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T

T
4

5
1

4
A

.J
. 

K
L

E
IN

, 
IN

C
. 

T
. 

D
E

N
A

T
A

L
E

, 
B

. 
G

O
L

D
N

E
R

  
1

8
,1

9
3

.5
0

L
E

G
A

L
 F

E
E

S
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
4

2
2

8
T

H
E

 S
S

I 
G

R
O

U
P

, 
L

L
C

.
1

8
,2

3
9

.8
0

E
D

I 
C

L
A

IM
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

 
C

L
A

IM
S

T
5

1
2

8
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
1

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 G

R
A

N
T

 -
 F

IN
A

L
 

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 H

E
 

W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

8
 o

f 
 1

1

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

149 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
5

1
5

9
A

T
&

T
 C

O
R

P
1

7
,9

0
2

.0
7

IN
T

E
R

N
E

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
3

0
8

4
K

E
R

N
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
-C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

O
U

N
S

E
L

1
7

, 6
9

7
.3

0
L

E
G

A
L

 F
E

E
S

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
4

5
8

5
D

E
L

A
N

O
 U

N
IO

N
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
1

7
,5

0
0

.0
0

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
1

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 G

R
A

N
T

- 
F

IN
A

L
 

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 H

E
 

W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

T
4

8
0

2
K

E
R

N
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 S

U
P

E
R

IN
T

E
N

D
E

N
T

 O
F

 S
C

H
O

O
L

S
1

7
, 5

0
0

.0
0

2
0

1
9

/ 2
0

2
0

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 G

R
A

N
T

 -
 F

IN
A

L
 

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 H

E
 

W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

T
5

3
0

0
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 V
A

L
L

E
Y

 O
C

C
U

P
A

T
IO

N
 M

E
D

IC
A

L
 G

R
O

U
P

, 
IN

C
1

7
,4

4
0

.0
0

C
O

V
ID

-1
9

 T
E

S
T

IN
G

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
5

1
6

1
IN

T
E

G
R

A
T

E
D

 H
E

A
L

T
H

C
A

R
E

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
IO

N
1

7
,4

0
5

.0
0

A
D

V
E

R
T

IS
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 F

IL
M

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G

T
4

5
2

3
B

E
R

K
S

H
IR

E
 L

IF
E

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

 O
F

 A
M

E
R

IC
A

1
7

,1
7

3
.7

8
E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
5

0
1

3
E

L
IZ

A
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
IO

N
1

7
,1

1
0

.0
0

2
0

2
 D

A
T

A
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 F

E
E

C
A

S
E

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

T
4

9
6

2
L

IB
E

R
T

Y
 D

A
T

A
, 

IN
C

.
1

7
,0

0
0

.0
0

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
4

0
1

6
F

IR
S

T
 D

A
T

A
B

A
N

K
, 

IN
C

  
1

6
, 6

2
0

.0
0

S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
5

3
3

3
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 C
A

L
IF

O
R

N
IA

 A
S

T
H

M
A

 C
O

L
L

A
B

O
R

A
T

IV
E

  
1

6
,0

4
2

.5
0

2
0

2
1

 C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 C

A
L

IF
O

R
N

IA
 A

S
T

H
M

A
 C

O
L

L
A

B
. 

G
R

A
N

T
H

E
 W

E
L

L
N

E
S

S

T
4

7
0

8
H

E
A

L
T

H
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
S

, 
IN

C
.

1
5

,9
3

6
.0

0
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
2

7
8

7
S

A
G

E
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
, 

IN
C

1
5

,8
1

9
.9

3
2

0
2

0
-2

1
 S

A
G

E
3

0
0

 E
R

P
 S

IL
V

E
R

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
F

IN
A

N
C

E

T
4

9
9

3
L

E
G

A
L

S
H

IE
L

D
1

5
,3

8
2

.3
6

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 P
A

ID
 V

O
L

U
N

T
A

R
Y

 C
O

V
E

R
A

G
E

P
A

Y
R

O
L

L
 D

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N

T
5

3
3

6
T

E
A

M
D

Y
N

A
M

IX
 S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S
 L

L
C

1
5

,2
0

0
.0

0
S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

9
 o

f 
 1

1

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

150 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
2

8
5

1
S

IN
C

L
A

IR
 T

E
L

E
V

IS
IO

N
 O

F
 B

A
K

E
R

S
F

IE
L

D
, 

L
L

C
1

5
,0

2
5

.0
0

A
D

V
E

R
T

IS
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 T

E
L

E
V

IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G

T
2

5
7

8
A

M
E

R
IC

A
N

 H
E

A
R

T
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

IO
N

 -
 K

E
R

N
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
1

5
, 0

0
0

.0
0

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S
-S

P
O

N
S

O
R

S
H

IP
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
4

1
9

5
S

C
R

IP
P

S
 M

E
D

IA
, 

IN
C

. 
D

B
A

 K
E

R
O

-T
V

1
4

,9
3

5
.0

0
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 T
E

L
E

V
IS

IO
N

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
1

3
4

7
A

D
V

A
N

C
E

D
 D

A
T

A
 S

T
O

R
A

G
E

1
4

,5
2

2
.9

0
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

 A
N

D
 S

H
R

E
D

D
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
4

3
8

9
E

X
A

C
T

 S
T

A
F

F
, 

IN
C

.
1

3
,9

9
8

.5
2

T
E

M
P

O
R

A
R

Y
 H

E
L

P
 

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
3

0
9

2
L

IN
K

S
 F

O
R

 L
IF

E
, 

IN
C

**
**

1
3

,4
5

0
.0

0
2

0
2

1
 E

V
E

N
T

 S
P

O
N

S
O

R
S

H
IP

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
2

7
9

0
K

E
R

N
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 D

E
P

T
 O

F
 P

U
B

L
IC

 H
E

A
L

T
H

1
2

, 9
1

5
.0

0
IN

F
L

U
E

N
Z

A
 V

A
C

C
IN

A
T

IO
N

 S
P

O
N

S
O

R
S

H
IP

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
1

6
5

0
U

N
IV

IS
IO

N
 T

E
L

E
V

IS
IO

N
 G

R
O

U
P

1
2

,7
5

0
.0

0
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 T
E

L
E

V
IS

IO
N

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
4

4
6

6
S

M
O

O
T

H
 M

O
V

E
 U

S
A

 *
**

*
1

2
, 3

4
8

.6
0

2
0

2
1

 M
O

V
IN

G
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
2

9
3

8
S

A
P

 A
M

E
R

IC
A

, 
IN

C
1

2
,3

0
8

.3
2

S
A

P
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 O
B

J
E

C
T

S
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 

F
E

E
B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 I
N

T
E

L
L

IG
E

N
C

E

T
5

2
1

5
R

IC
H

A
R

D
 G

A
R

C
IA

  
1

2
,0

7
5

.0
0

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

T
4

5
7

7
L

A
 C

A
M

P
E

S
IN

A
, 

K
B

D
S

, 
K

U
F

W
, 

K
M

Y
X

, 
K

S
E

A
, 

K
B

H
H

, 
K

Y
L

I,
 

K
C

E
C

, 
K

N
A

I
1

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

A
D

V
E

R
T

IS
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 R

A
D

IO
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G

T
4

9
3

4
A

P
P

L
E

 I
N

C
**

**
1

1
, 6

7
3

.2
9

2
0

2
1

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 A
W

A
R

D
S

 &
 C

E
L

L
 P

H
O

N
E

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
5

3
8

6
P

A
R

T
N

E
R

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 A

N
D

 S
C

IE
N

C
E

, 
IN

C
**

**
1

1
,1

5
0

.0
0

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
2

9
5

5
D

E
L

T
A

 E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
 I

N
C

.
1

1
,0

1
0

.0
0

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
0
 o

f 
 1

1

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

151 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
5

0
9

9
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
IO

N
1

0
,9

6
8

.0
2

S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
2

8
4

0
A

T
A

L
A

S
O

F
T

, 
IN

C
.

1
0

,2
5

4
.0

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 D

O
T

IM
A

G
E

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

 I
M

A
G

IN
G

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4

9
3

2
S

P
E

C
T

R
U

M
 R

E
A

C
H

 (
M

E
D

IA
)

1
0

, 2
0

0
.0

0
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 T
E

L
E

V
IS

IO
N

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
4

9
2

0
O

T
IS

 E
L

E
V

A
T

O
R

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
**

**
*

1
0

, 0
0

1
.8

0
2

0
2

1
 E

L
E

V
A

T
O

R
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
2

8
6

9
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

H
IP

 O
F

 K
E

R
N

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

S
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G

2
9

,5
4

7
,3

1
7

.9
4

T
O

T
A

L
 V

E
N

D
O

R
S

 O
V

E
R

 $
1
0
,0

0
0

2
9

,5
4

7
,3

1
7

.9
4

T
O

T
A

L
 V

E
N

D
O

R
S

 U
N

D
E

R
 $

1
0
,0

0
0
  

6
4

5
,2

2
4

.2
3

T
O

T
A

L
 V

E
N

D
O

R
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
 -

 S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
$

3
0

,1
9

2
,5

4
2

.1
7

N
o
te

:

**
**

N
e
w

 v
e
n
d
o
rs

 o
v
e
r 

$
1
0
,0

0
0
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

o
n
th

 o
f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r

   

1
1
 o

f 
 1

1

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

152 / 308



 O
c
to

b
e
r 

A
P

 V
e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
 

  
  
 A

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

v
e
r 

$
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0

V
e

n
d

o
r 

 

N
o

.
  
  
  
  
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
M

o
n

th
Y

e
a

r-
to

-D
a

te
  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t

T
1
0
4
5

K
A

IS
E

R
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 -

 H
M

O
 

4
3
5
,7

5
9
.1

9
3
,8

9
9
,9

8
5
.6

4
O

C
T

.,
 2

0
2
1
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 H

M
O

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 P
R

E
M

IU
M

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4
9
8
2

N
G

C
 U

S
, 

L
L
C

2
9
4
,0

2
4
.9

9
1
,3

8
2
,2

4
5
.8

8
P

R
E

F
U

N
D

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 H

O
M

E
S

 I
N

C
E

N
T

IV
E

S
 &

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 M
E

M
B

E
R

 &
 D

IS
E

A
S

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 &

 

Q
U

A
L
IT

Y
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
  

IN
C

E
N

T
IV

E
S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4
3
5
0

C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

 E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
 I
N

C
.

2
7
5
,6

7
5
.0

1
1
,9

9
0
,2

7
7
.9

2
S

E
P

T
. 

2
0
2
1
  

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 /
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4
2
3
7

F
L
U

ID
E

D
G

E
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

, 
IN

C
.

1
5
2
,4

7
4
.4

0
8
9
4
,7

4
5
.1

0
S

E
P

. 
&

 O
C

T
. 

2
0
2
1
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
/U

P
D

A
T

E
 T

O
 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
-C

A
L
A

IM
 E

X
P

A
N

S
IO

N

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4
3
3
1

C
O

T
IV

IT
I,
 I
N

C
 *

**
*

1
5
2
,2

3
7
.2

4
1
5
2
,2

3
7
.2

4
C

A
L
IF

O
R

N
IA

 M
E

D
I-

C
A

L
 M

E
D

IC
A

ID
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S
 &

 A
N

N
U

A
L
 

L
IC

E
N

S
E

 F
E

E

Q
U

A
L
IT

Y
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T

T
1
0
7
1

C
L
IN

IC
A

 S
IE

R
R

A
 V

IS
T

A
 *

**
*

1
3
8
,9

7
3
.3

0
1
4
2
,9

7
3
.3

0
A

P
R

.,
 M

A
Y

, 
J
U

N
.,

 J
U

L
.,

 &
 A

U
G

. 
2
0
2
1
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 

P
R

O
G

R
A

M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
2
7
2
6

D
S

T
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 S

O
L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
.

1
2
3
,1

4
0
.1

8
1
,0

3
5
,2

0
6
.2

6
S

E
P

T
. 

2
0
2
1
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 C

L
A

IM
S

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

T
3
4
4
6

W
IT

T
/K

IE
F

F
E

R
 I
N

C
 *

**
*

9
5
,0

9
1
.1

9
9
5
,0

9
1
.1

9
R

E
C

R
U

IT
M

E
N

T
 F

E
E

S
-C

E
O

 S
E

A
R

C
H

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
2
4
8
8

T
H

E
 L

IN
C

O
L
N

 N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 L

IF
E

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 

6
9
,4

1
3
.0

1
6
2
1
,5

5
5
.9

5
O

C
T

. 
2
0
2
1
 V

O
L
U

N
T

A
R

Y
 L

IF
E

, 
A

D
&

D
, 

D
E

N
T

A
L
 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
5
4
0
1

K
E

R
N

 M
E

D
IC

A
L
 S

U
P

P
L
Y

, 
L
L
C

 *
**

*
6
5
,5

4
6
.0

2
6
5
,5

4
6
.0

2
 J

U
L
.,

 &
 A

U
G

. 
2
0
2
1
/2

0
2
2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
1
1
8
0

L
A

N
G

U
A

G
E

 L
IN

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 I
N

C
. 

6
2
,0

2
9
.2

7
4
3
6
,4

7
6
.1

9
S

E
P

T
. 

2
0
2
1
 I
N

T
E

R
P

R
E

T
A

T
IO

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 H
E

T
1
4
0
8

D
E

L
L
 M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G
 L

.P
. 

**
**

6
1
,9

2
5
.4

8
1
5
9
,9

9
5
.5

7
H

A
R

D
W

A
R

E
 -

 5
0
 I
N

T
E

L
 W

I-
F

I 
6
 A

X
2
0
1
 &

 2
5
 D

E
L
L
 

T
H

U
N

D
E

R
B

O
L
T

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

/C
A

P
IT

A
L
 

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S

T
4
9
4
4

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 V

A
L
L
E

Y
 F

A
R

M
W

O
R

K
E

R
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

 *
**

*
5
6
,5

2
8
.2

5
5
6
,5

2
8
.2

5
C

O
V

ID
 1

9
 V

A
C

C
IN

A
T

IO
N

 I
N

C
E

N
T

IV
E

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 G

R
A

N
T

 

P
R

O
G

R
A

M

P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 N

E
T

W
O

R
K

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

1
 o

f 
4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

153 / 308



 O
c
to

b
e
r 

A
P

 V
e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
 

  
  
 A

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

v
e
r 

$
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0

V
e

n
d

o
r 

 

N
o

.
  
  
  
  
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
M

o
n

th
Y

e
a

r-
to

-D
a

te
  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t

T
5
3
9
6

N
Y

M
I 
IN

C
 *

**
*

4
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
4
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
W

E
A

R
A

B
L
E

 B
IO

-A
U

T
H

E
N

T
IC

A
T

IO
N

 T
R

A
C

IN
G

 D
E

V
IC

E
S

C
A

P
IT

A
L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

T
4
5
8
2

H
E

A
L
T

H
X

, 
IN

C
.

4
1
,5

7
6
.0

0
4
2
3
,7

6
0
.0

0
O

C
T

. 
2
0
2
1
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 F

E
E

S
 -

 

P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 A

N
D

 M
E

M
B

E
R

 P
O

R
T

A
L

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4
7
2
2

C
O

G
N

IZ
A

N
T

 T
R

IZ
E

T
T

O
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 G

R
O

U
P

, 
IN

C
.

4
0
,1

5
1
.7

5
4
2
5
,5

8
4
.7

0
S

E
P

T
. 

2
0
2
1
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
4
1
9
3

S
T

R
IA

 L
L
C

 *
**

*
3
8
,7

7
8
.0

7
2
6
0
,0

9
8
.5

3
A

U
G

.,
 S

E
P

T
. 

&
 O

C
T

. 
2
0
2
1
 O

C
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

  

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
1
2
7
2

C
O

F
F

E
Y

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 I
N

C
. 

**
**

3
8
,1

9
4
.1

9
1
1
0
,2

4
5
.6

3
F

A
L
L
 2

0
2
1
 M

E
M

B
E

R
 N

E
W

S
L
E

T
T

E
R

 &
  

O
C

T
. 

2
0
2
1
 W

E
B

S
IT

E
 

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

H
E

A
L
T

H
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
/ 

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
2
4
1
3

T
R

E
K

 I
M

A
G

IN
G

 I
N

C
 *

**
*

3
5
,4

3
5
.8

1
7
7
,2

0
5
.3

2
C

O
V

ID
 1

9
 V

A
C

C
IN

A
T

IO
N

 M
E

M
B

E
R

 I
N

C
E

N
T

IV
E

 I
T

E
M

S
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G

T
2
4
5
8

H
E

A
L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L
, 

IN
C

. 
3
0
,5

0
0
.0

0
2
9
9
,5

0
0
.0

0
A

U
G

. 
2
0
2
1
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
5
0
2
2

S
V

A
M

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L
 I
N

C
2
9
,3

7
0
.0

0
2
7
5
,1

5
6
.0

0
S

E
P

T
. 

2
0
2
1
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

/U
P

D
A

T
E

 T
O

 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G

IT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 I
N

T
E

L
L
IG

E
N

C
E

T
4
6
5
7

D
A

P
O

N
D

E
 S

IM
P

S
O

N
 R

O
W

E
 P

C
 

2
8
,0

0
2
.0

0
1
3
1
,4

8
9
.0

0
A

U
G

. 
2
0
2
1
 L

E
G

A
L
 F

E
E

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
5
3
3
7

C
A

Z
A

D
O

R
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 G
R

O
U

P
 I
N

C
  

2
5
,7

4
1
.1

4
1
8
6
,1

7
0
.6

8
 S

E
P

T
./

O
C

T
. 

2
0
2
1
 T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

  
- 

(8
) 

M
S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4
5
3
8

C
H

A
N

G
E

 H
E

A
L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 S

O
L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
L
L
C

2
5
,2

1
6
.4

6
1
8
8
,8

4
3
.4

6
S

E
P

T
. 

2
0
2
1
 E

D
I 
C

L
A

IM
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

  
(E

M
D

E
O

N
)

C
L
A

IM
S

T
5
3
2
5

W
A

D
E

 A
 M

C
N

A
IR

 *
**

*
2
3
,1

7
9
.0

0
5
6
,1

7
4
.0

0
H

E
A

L
T

H
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 U
N

IT
 -

 O
C

M
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
4
4
2
4

G
U

R
O

C
K

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 G
m

b
H

 *
**

*
2
3
,1

0
0
.0

0
2
3
,1

0
0
.0

0
T

E
S

T
R

A
IL

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
M

IS
 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
5
3
4
6

T
U

R
N

K
E

Y
 E

N
E

R
G

Y
 *

**
*

2
3
,0

2
6
.0

0
6
3
,3

7
8
.0

0
E

V
 C

H
A

R
G

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

S
-F

IN
A

L
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
4
7
0
8

H
E

A
L
T

H
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
S

, 
IN

C
 *

**
*

2
1
,3

0
6
.2

5
3
7
,2

4
2
.2

5
J
U

L
. 

&
 A

U
G

. 
2
0
2
1
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
2
1
6
7

P
G

&
E

  
2
1
,1

6
6
.9

2
2
3
2
,9

1
5
.6

7
S

E
P

T
. 

&
 O

C
T

. 
2
0
2
1
 U

S
A

G
E

 /
 U

T
IL

IT
IE

S
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

2
 o

f 
4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

154 / 308



 O
c
to

b
e
r 

A
P

 V
e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
 

  
  
 A

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

v
e
r 

$
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0

V
e

n
d

o
r 

 

N
o

.
  
  
  
  
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
M

o
n

th
Y

e
a

r-
to

-D
a

te
  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t

T
4
4
6
0

P
A

Y
S

P
A

N
, 

IN
C

 
2
0
,9

4
1
.5

0
1
7
4
,4

1
1
.9

8
S

E
P

T
. 

2
0
2
1
 E

L
E

C
T

R
O

N
IC

 C
L
A

IM
S

/P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

F
IN

A
N

C
E

T
3
0
1
1

O
F

F
IC

E
 A

L
L
Y

, 
IN

C
2
0
,7

4
2
.2

5
1
8
8
,7

6
2
.7

5
S

E
P

T
. 

2
0
2
1
  

E
D

I 
C

L
A

IM
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

 
C

L
A

IM
S

T
4
0
3
8

P
O

L
Y

C
L
IN

IC
 M

E
D

IC
A

L
 C

E
N

T
E

R
, 

IN
C

 
2
0
,2

7
7
.6

8
4
3
,1

1
8
.9

7
A

U
G

. 
2
0
2
1
/2

0
2
2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

  
G

R
A

N
T

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
2
9
3
3

S
IE

R
R

A
 P

R
IN

T
E

R
S

, 
IN

C
 *

**
*

1
9
,7

7
6
.8

1
4
3
,4

7
8
.4

5
M

E
M

B
E

R
 V

A
C

C
IN

E
 P

O
S

T
C

A
R

D
S

 &
 F

L
Y

E
R

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
4
2
6
1

K
A

IS
E

R
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 P

L
A

N
-T

X
 P

P
O

1
9
,4

5
0
.2

0
1
0
9
,9

7
0
.4

4
O

C
T

. 
2
0
2
1
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 P

P
O

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 P
R

E
M

IU
M

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
5
1
4
5

C
C

S
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 F
R

E
S

N
O

 I
N

C
1
8
,2

5
0
.0

0
1
6
0
,5

6
1
.2

6
O

C
T

. 
2
0
2
1
 J

A
N

IT
O

R
IA

L
 &

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L
 D

A
Y

 P
O

R
T

E
R

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
1
8
6
1

C
E

R
ID

IA
N

 H
C

M
, 

IN
C

. 
1
7
,7

8
9
.1

8
2
0
0
,9

4
8
.2

6
S

E
P

T
. 

&
 O

C
T

. 
2
0
2
1
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 S
U

B
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

 F
E

E
S

/ 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

/ 
D

A
Y

F
O

R
C

E
 H

U
M

A
N

 C
A

P
IT

A
L
 

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
5
0
0
5

C
R

A
Y

O
N

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 E
X

P
E

R
T

S
 L

L
C

 
1
7
,7

6
6
.3

7
7
9
6
,3

9
5
.5

8
A

U
G

. 
2
0
2
1
 E

S
D

 A
Z

U
R

E
 O

V
E

R
A

G
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4
7
3
3

U
N

IT
E

D
 S

T
A

F
F

IN
G

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S
1
7
,2

6
0
.4

0
2
0
7
,9

4
8
.9

4
S

E
P

T
. 

&
 O

C
T

. 
2
0
2
1
 T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

  
- 

(6
) 

M
S

; 
(1

) 
H

H
P

; 

(1
) 

H
E

; 
(1

) 
U

M

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
5
3
2
2

M
A

N
IN

D
E

R
 K

H
A

L
S

A
1
7
,1

6
0
.0

0
9
0
,5

9
0
.5

0
S

E
P

T
. 

2
0
2
1
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

-U
M

T
4
1
6
5

S
H

I 
IN

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L
 C

O
. 

**
**

1
6
,7

6
5
.7

2
1
6
1
,4

7
7
.2

4
S

O
L
A

R
W

IN
D

S
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 2

0
2
1
/2

0
2
2

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
5
3
0
0

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 V

A
L
L
E

Y
 O

C
C

U
P

A
T

IO
N

 M
E

D
IC

A
L
 G

R
O

U
P

 I
N

C
 

**
**

1
6
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
3
,4

4
0
.0

0
A

U
G

. 
&

 S
E

P
T

. 
2
0
2
1
 C

O
V

ID
-1

9
 T

E
S

T
IN

G
H

U
M

A
N

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

T
4
5
0
1

A
L
L
IE

D
 U

N
IV

E
R

S
A

L
 S

E
C

U
R

IT
Y

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

1
5
,9

3
1
.8

6
1
4
3
,7

4
2
.0

7
S

E
P

T
. 

&
 O

C
T

. 
2
0
2
1
 O

N
S

IT
E

 S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
5
3
8
7

N
A

V
IA

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
 S

O
L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
. 

**
**

1
5
,0

3
4
.0

2
2
1
,8

6
1
.4

6
S

E
P

T
. 

&
 O

C
T

. 
2
0
2
1
 F

S
A

 E
M

P
L
O

Y
E

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
 &

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

 

1
2
5
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
5
0
7
6
 

M
E

R
ID

IA
N

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

, 
P

.C
. 

1
4
,4

3
0
.0

0
1
7
3
,9

4
0
.0

0
S

E
P

T
. 

2
0
2
1
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

-U
M

3
 o

f 
4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

155 / 308



 O
c
to

b
e
r 

A
P

 V
e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
 

  
  
 A

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

v
e
r 

$
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0

V
e

n
d

o
r 

 

N
o

.
  
  
  
  
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
M

o
n

th
Y

e
a

r-
to

-D
a

te
  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t

T
5
1
0
9

R
A

N
D

 E
M

P
L
O

Y
M

E
N

T
 S

O
L
U

T
IO

N
S

 
1
3
,5

3
3
.5

5
3
3
2
,8

0
4
.7

0
S

E
P

T
. 

&
 O

C
T

. 
2
0
2
1
 T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

  
- 

(1
) 

M
S

; 
(1

) 
H

H
P

; 

(1
) 

H
E

 
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
4
6
8
6

C
E

N
T

R
IC

 H
E

A
L
T

H
 *

**
*

1
3
,0

6
0
.0

8
1
3
,0

6
0
.0

8
 J

U
L
. 

2
0
2
1
/2

0
2
2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
4
4
9
6

V
O

X
 N

E
T

W
O

R
K

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
 *

**
*

1
2
,7

1
6
.6

0
1
4
,7

0
3
.3

9
W

O
R

K
F

O
R

C
E

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 A
D

V
A

N
C

E
D

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

 

A
N

N
U

A
L
 R

E
V

IE
W

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
1
0
0
5

C
O

L
O

N
IA

L
 L

IF
E

 &
 A

C
C

ID
E

N
T

  
1
1
,8

5
5
.6

2
1
2
0
,0

4
0
.2

9
S

E
P

T
. 

2
0
2
1
 L

IF
E

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
V

A
R

IO
U

S

2
,7

8
9
,3

0
2
.9

6

T
O

T
A

L
 V

E
N

D
O

R
S

 O
V

E
R

 $
1
0
,0

0
0

2
,7

8
9
,3

0
2
.9

6

T
O

T
A

L
 V

E
N

D
O

R
S

 U
N

D
E

R
 $

1
0
,0

0
0
  

2
3
7
,7

1
3
.7

4

T
O

T
A

L
 V

E
N

D
O

R
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
- 

O
C

T
O

B
E

R
3
,0

2
7
,0

1
6
.7

0
$
  

  
  

  
 

N
o
te

:

**
**

N
e
w

 v
e
n
d
o
rs

 o
v
e
r 

$
1
0
,0

0
0
 f

o
r 

th
e
 m

o
n
th

 o
f 

O
c
to

b
e
r

4
 o

f 
4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

156 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
1

0
4

5
K

A
IS

E
R

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 -

 H
M

O
4

,3
3

5
,7

4
4

.8
3

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 H
M

O
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 P
R

E
M

IU
M

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
1

0
0

1
K

E
R

N
 M

E
D

IC
A

L
 C

E
N

T
E

R
3

,7
3

0
,6

7
3

.4
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 C

A
R

E
 G

R
A

N
T

 &
  

2
0

2
1

/2
0

2
2

 

P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 G

R
A

N
T

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

S
 

T
4

3
5

0
C

O
M

P
U

T
E

R
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

 I
N

C
.

2
,2

6
5

,9
5

2
.9

3
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 /

 C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

T
4

9
8

2
N

G
C

 U
S

, 
L

L
C

1
,6

7
6

,2
7

0
.8

7
P

R
E

F
U

N
D

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 M
E

M
B

E
R

 I
N

C
E

N
T

IV
E

S
H

E
A

L
T

H
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N

T
2

7
0

4
M

C
G

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 L
L

C
1

, 6
4

8
,9

0
9

.8
8

H
E

A
L

T
H

 C
A

R
E

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 &
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
  

8
/5

/2
0

2
1

 -

0
8

/0
4

/2
0

2
2

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

T
2

6
8

6
A

L
L

IA
N

T
 I

N
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 I

N
C

.
1

, 2
1

0
,7

6
6

.9
0

A
N

N
U

A
L

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 &

 A
C

IP
 C

R
IM

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
S

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
2

7
2

6
D

S
T

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
.

1
,1

5
8

,3
4

6
.4

4
P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 C

L
A

IM
S

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

T
4

2
3

7
F

L
U

ID
E

D
G

E
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

, 
IN

C
.

1
, 0

4
7

,2
1

9
.5

0
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
/U

P
D

A
T

E
 T

O
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 

R
E

P
O

R
T

IN
G

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
3

1
3

0
O

P
T

U
M

IN
S

IG
H

T
, 

IN
C

.
1

,0
4

3
,1

7
6

.0
0

A
N

N
U

A
L

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

D
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 E

A
S

Y
G

R
O

U
P

 &
 I

N
C

R
E

M
E

N
T

A
L

 

L
IC

E
N

S
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4

3
9

1
O

M
N

I 
F

A
M

IL
Y

 H
E

A
L

T
H

8
6

0
,8

4
8

.6
0

H
E

A
L

T
H

 H
O

M
E

S
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 C

A
R

E
 G

R
A

N
T

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
5

0
0

5
C

R
A

Y
O

N
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 E

X
P

E
R

T
S

 L
L

C
7

9
6

,3
9

5
.5

8
AN

N
U

AL
 S

O
FT

W
AR

E 
LI

C
EN

SE
 A

N
D

 E
SD

 A
ZU

R
E 

O
VE

R
AG

E

M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
2

4
8

8
T

H
E

 L
IN

C
O

L
N

 N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 L

IF
E

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
6

9
0

,9
6

8
.9

6
VO

LU
N

TA
R

Y 
LI

FE
, A

D
&D

, D
EN

TA
L 

IN
SU

R
AN

C
E 

PR
EM

IU
M



V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
1

1
8

0
L

A
N

G
U

A
G

E
 L

IN
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 I

N
C

.
4

9
8

,5
0

5
.4

6
I N

T
E

R
P

R
E

T
A

T
IO

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

M
E

M
B

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
4

7
2

2
C

O
G

N
IZ

A
N

T
 T

R
IZ

E
T

T
O

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 G
R

O
U

P
, 

IN
C

.
4

2
5

,5
8

4
.7

0
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

V
A

R
IO

U
S

1
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

157 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
4

5
8

2
H

E
A

L
T

H
X

, 
IN

C
.

4
2

3
,7

6
0

.0
0

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

 F
E

E
S

 -
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 A
N

D
 M

E
M

B
E

R
 

P
O

R
T

A
L

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
5

1
0

9
R

A
N

D
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
M

E
N

T
 S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S
3

3
6

, 3
6

8
.8

7
T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

 &
 A

C
A

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
2

4
5

8
H

E
A

L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

, 
IN

C
.

3
3

0
, 0

0
0

.0
0

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
1

8
4

5
D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 M

A
N

A
G

E
D

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 C
A

R
E

3
1

0
,8

7
4

.8
5

2
0

2
1

-2
0

2
2

 M
C

A
L

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
5

1
1

1
E

N
T

IS
Y

S
 3

6
0

3
0

6
,5

8
4

.9
4

A
N

N
U

A
L

 D
IS

A
S

T
E

R
 R

E
C

O
V

E
R

Y
 C

O
N

T
IN

U
IT

Y
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

/M
IS

 

IN
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
5

0
2

2
S

V
A

M
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 I

N
C

2
7

5
,1

5
6

.0
0

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
  

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
/U

P
D

A
T

E
 T

O
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 

R
E

P
O

R
T

IN
G

IT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 I
N

T
E

L
L

IG
E

N
C

E

T
4

1
9

3
S

T
R

IA
 L

L
C

2
6

0
, 0

9
8

.5
3

O
C

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
  

C
L

A
IM

S

T
5

3
1

7
P

R
E

S
ID

IO
 N

E
T

W
O

R
K

E
D

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

 G
R

O
U

P
 L

L
C

.
2

4
1

,9
1

0
.7

8
N

U
T

A
N

IX
 H

A
R

D
W

A
R

E
 &

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 -
 S

E
C

U
R

IT
Y

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 

A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4

5
3

8
C

H
A

N
G

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S
, 

L
L

C
2

3
6

,7
7

1
.9

9
E

D
I 

C
L

A
IM

 P
R

O
C

E
S

S
IN

G
  

(E
M

D
E

O
N

)
C

L
A

IM
S

T
2

1
6

7
P

G
&

E
2

3
2

, 9
1

5
.6

7
U

S
A

G
E

/U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
5

2
2

9
D

IG
N

IT
Y

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 M
E

D
IC

A
L

 G
R

O
U

P
 -

 B
A

K
E

R
S

F
IE

L
D

2
1

7
, 4

4
2

.8
1

H
E

A
L

T
H

 H
O

M
E

 G
R

A
N

T
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

S
 

T
4

7
3

3
U

N
IT

E
D

 S
T

A
F

F
IN

G
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
S

2
0

7
,9

4
8

.9
4

T
E

M
P

O
R

A
R

Y
 H

E
L

P
 &

 A
C

A
 I

N
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
1

8
6

1
C

E
R

ID
IA

N
 H

C
M

, 
IN

C
.

2
0

0
,9

4
8

.2
6

M
O

N
T

H
L

Y
 S

U
B

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 F

E
E

S
/ 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

/ 

D
A

Y
F

O
R

C
E

 H
U

M
A

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
4

4
8

3
IN

F
U

S
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
L

IN
IC

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
, 

IN
C

.
1

9
3

,2
3

5
.7

2
H

E
A

L
T

H
 H

O
M

E
S

 G
R

A
N

T
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

T
3

0
1

1
O

F
F

IC
E

 A
L

L
Y

, 
IN

C
.

1
8

8
,7

6
2

.7
5

E
D

I 
C

L
A

IM
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

C
L

A
IM

S

2
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

158 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
5

3
3

7
C

A
Z

A
D

O
R

 C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
 G

R
O

U
P

 I
N

C
1

8
6

,1
7

0
.6

8
T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
2

5
8

4
U

N
IT

E
D

 S
T

A
T

E
S

 P
O

S
T

A
L

 S
V

C
.-

H
A

S
L

E
R

1
8

0
, 0

0
0

.0
0

P
O

S
T

A
G

E
 (

M
E

T
E

R
) 

F
U

N
D

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
4

4
6

0
P

A
Y

S
P

A
N

, 
IN

C
1

7
4

,4
1

1
.9

8
E

L
E

C
T

R
O

N
IC

 C
L

A
IM

S
/P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

S
F

IN
A

N
C

E

T
5

0
7

6
M

E
R

ID
IA

N
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

, 
P

.C
.

1
7

3
,9

4
0

.0
0

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

T
4

1
6

5
S

H
I 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
  

 C
O

.
1

6
1

,4
7

7
.2

4
S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
S

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
5

1
4

5
C

C
S

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

R
E

S
N

O
 I

N
C

.,
1

6
0

,5
6

1
.2

6
J
A

N
IT

O
R

IA
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
1

4
0

8
D

E
L

L
 M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G
 L

.P
.

1
5

9
, 9

9
5

.5
7

H
A

R
D

W
A

R
E

 &
 C

O
M

P
U

T
E

R
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
4

9
6

7
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
.

1
5

9
,0

2
8

.0
3

F
S

A
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
 &

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

 1
2

5
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4

3
3

1
C

O
T

IV
IT

I,
 I

N
C

 *
**

*
1

5
2

,2
3

7
.2

4
C

A
L

IF
O

R
N

IA
 M

E
D

I-
C

A
L

 M
E

D
IC

A
ID

 M
E

A
S

U
R

E
S

 &
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 

L
IC

E
N

S
E

 F
E

E

Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T

T
4

5
0

1
A

L
L

IE
D

 U
N

IV
E

R
S

A
L

 S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
4

3
,7

4
2

.0
7

O
N

S
IT

E
 S

E
C

U
R

IT
Y

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
1

0
7

1
C

L
IN

IC
A

 S
IE

R
R

A
 V

IS
T

A
 *

**
*

1
4

2
,9

7
3

.3
0

 2
0

2
1

/2
0

2
2

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 G

R
A

N
T

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

S
 

T
3

4
4

8
S

Y
N

E
R

G
Y

 H
E

A
L

T
H

C
A

R
E

, 
IN

C
.

1
4

1
,5

0
0

.0
0

A
S

T
H

M
A

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 G

R
A

N
T

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

3
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

159 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
4

6
5

7
D

A
P

O
N

D
E

 S
IM

P
S

O
N

 R
O

W
E

 P
C

1
3

1
,4

8
9

.0
0

L
E

G
A

L
 F

E
E

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
5

3
4

4
S

IG
N

A
T

U
R

E
 S

T
A

F
F

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 L

L
C

1
2

9
,4

4
4

.0
0

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

T
5

3
1

9
C

IT
IU

S
T

E
C

H
 I

N
C

.
1

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
C

IT
IU

S
 T

E
C

H
'S

 F
A

S
T

 A
N

D
 I

M
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 F
E

E
S

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
1

0
0

5
C

O
L

O
N

IA
L

 L
IF

E
 &

 A
C

C
ID

E
N

T
 A

T
T

N
  

P
R

E
M

IU
M

 

P
R

O
C

E
S

S
IN

G
1

2
0

,0
4

0
.2

9
E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
 -

 A
C

C
ID

E
N

T
 &

 C
R

IT
IC

A
L

 I
L

L
N

E
S

S
 

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
5

1
8

5
H

O
U

S
IN

G
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 O

F
 K

E
R

N
1

1
7

, 2
0

0
.0

0
2

0
2

0
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

 
U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 U
M

  

W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

T
1

2
7

2
C

O
F

F
E

Y
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 I

N
C

.
1

1
0

,2
4

5
.6

3
M

E
M

B
E

R
 N

E
W

S
L

E
T

T
E

R
/ 

W
E

B
S

IT
E

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 

H
E

A
L

T
H

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

/ 
M

IS
 

IN
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
4

2
6

1
K

A
IS

E
R

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 P

L
A

N
 -

T
X

 P
P

O
1

0
9

,9
7

0
.4

4
T

X
-P

P
O

 E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
2

8
5

0
Q

U
E

S
T

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 I
N

C
.

1
0

9
,5

9
8

.0
0

S
Q

L
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
 /

 S
P

O
T

L
IG

H
T

 S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
1

9
6

0
L

O
C

A
L

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 P
L

A
N

S
 O

F
 C

A
L

IF
O

R
N

IA
1

0
0

,9
1

6
.7

0
2

0
2

1
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 D

U
E

 A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

 &
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
 R

E
G

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
4

6
9

9
Z

e
O

M
E

G
A

, 
IN

C
.

9
8

, 7
2

8
.4

7
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 T
R

A
V

E
L

 E
X

P
. 

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

  

T
1

1
2

8
H

A
L

L
 L

E
T

T
E

R
 S

H
O

P
, 

IN
C

.
9

8
,4

0
7

.8
0

N
E

W
 M

E
M

B
E

R
 L

E
T

T
E

R
/E

N
V

E
L

O
P

E
S

, 
M

E
M

B
E

R
 H

A
N

D
B

O
O

K
S

, 

C
L

IN
IC

A
L

 C
A

R
E

 M
A

N
U

A
L

 F
O

R
 H

H
, 

N
E

W
 M

E
M

B
E

R
 P

A
C

K
E

T
S

 &
 

P
O

S
T

E
R

S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
3

4
4

6
W

IT
T

/K
IE

F
F

E
R

 I
N

C
 *

**
*

9
5

,0
9

1
.1

9
R

E
C

R
U

IT
M

E
N

T
 F

E
E

S
H

U
M

A
N

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

T
4

3
9

6
K

A
IS

E
R

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 H

E
A

L
T

H
-D

H
M

O
9

2
,5

8
9

.3
4

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

4
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

160 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
3

4
4

9
C

D
W

  
G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
9

0
,9

1
5

.3
7

A
N

N
U

A
L

 A
D

O
B

E
 T

E
A

M
 L

IC
E

N
S

IN
G

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
5

3
2

2
M

A
N

IN
D

E
R

 K
H

A
L

S
A

9
0

, 5
9

0
.5

0
2

0
2

1
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
U

T
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

T
4

3
5

3
T

W
E

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
.

8
7

, 5
1

8
.0

1
A

N
N

U
A

L
 T

E
C

H
N

IC
A

L
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

 A
N

D
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 F

O
R

 

N
IM

B
L

E
 S

T
O

R
A

G
E

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
1

1
8

9
A

P
P

L
E

 O
N

E
 I

N
C

, 
E

M
P

L
O

Y
M

E
N

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

8
5

,5
6

5
.0

9
T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

 
M

IS
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
4

9
6

3
L

IN
K

E
D

IN
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
IO

N
7

8
,2

7
5

.0
0

A
N

N
U

A
L

 O
N

L
IN

E
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
 F

O
R

 A
L

L
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
S

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
4

8
1

3
A

D
V

E
N

T
IS

T
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 T

E
H

A
C

H
A

P
I 

V
A

L
L

E
Y

7
7

, 9
2

5
.8

2
2

0
2

0
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 C
A

R
E

 G
R

A
N

T
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

S

T
2

4
1

3
T

R
E

K
 I

M
A

G
IN

G
 I

N
C

7
7

,2
0

5
.3

2
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 A

N
D

 M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

 E
V

E
N

T
S

, 
M

E
M

B
E

R
 &

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 E
D

 

IN
C

E
N

T
IV

E
S

, 
E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 E

V
E

N
T

S
, 

N
E

W
 H

IR
E

 S
H

IR
T

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
5

1
2

1
T

P
x
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
7

0
,3

0
7

.5
4

L
O

C
A

L
 C

A
L

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

; 
L

O
N

G
 D

IS
T

A
N

C
E

 C
A

L
L

S
; 

IN
T

E
R

N
E

T
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
; 

8
0

0
 L

IN
E

S
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
4

2
1

7
C

O
N

T
E

X
T

 4
 H

E
A

L
T

H
C

A
R

E
, 

IN
C

6
9

, 6
3

0
.0

0
A

M
A

 R
O

Y
A

L
T

Y
 F

E
E

 &
 C

P
T

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
1

0
2

2
U

N
U

M
 L

IF
E

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 C

O
.

6
8

,4
5

6
.0

0
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
P

A
Y

R
O

L
L

 D
E

D
U

C
T

IO
N

T
4

9
6

0
Z

E
L

IS
 C

L
A

IM
S

 I
N

T
E

G
R

IT
Y

, 
L

L
C

6
7

,5
3

6
.9

6
P

O
S

T
 E

D
IT

IN
G

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
 F

O
R

 C
L

A
IM

S
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

C
L

A
IM

S

T
5

3
2

9
R

E
L

A
Y

 N
E

T
W

O
R

K
, 

L
L

C
6

6
,6

6
6

.7
0

T
E

X
T

 M
E

S
S

A
G

IN
G

 S
U

B
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

 
C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

T
5

4
0

1
K

E
R

N
 M

E
D

IC
A

L
 S

U
P

P
L

Y
, 

L
L

C
 *

**
*

6
5

, 5
4

6
.0

2
 2

0
2

1
/2

0
2

2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
4

0
5

4
A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

IO
N

 F
O

R
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 A

F
F

IL
IA

T
E

D
 P

L
A

N
S

6
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
2

0
2

1
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 D

U
E

S
 A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
  

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
5

1
3

2
T

IM
E

 W
A

R
N

E
R

 C
A

B
L

E
 L

L
C

6
4

,8
8

1
.9

8
IN

T
E

R
N

E
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

5
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

161 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
5

3
4

6
T

U
R

N
K

E
Y

 E
N

E
R

G
Y

6
3

,3
7

8
.0

0
E

V
 C

H
A

R
G

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

S
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
4

5
6

3
S

P
H

 A
N

A
L

Y
T

IC
S

5
9

, 9
8

8
.8

0
P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 A
N

D
 M

E
M

B
E

R
 S

A
T

IS
F

A
C

T
IO

N
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4

7
8

5
C

O
M

M
G

A
P

5
7

,2
2

7
.5

0
IN

T
E

R
P

R
E

T
A

T
IO

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

H
E

A
L

T
H

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

T
4

9
4

4
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 V
A

L
L

E
Y

 F
A

R
M

W
O

R
K

E
R

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 *

**
*

5
6

,5
2

8
.2

5
 2

0
2

1
/ 2

0
2

2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
5

3
2

5
W

A
D

E
 A

 M
C

N
A

IR
5

6
,1

7
4

.0
0

L
E

A
D

A
B

IL
IT

Y
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 F
A

C
IL

IT
A

T
IO

N
-C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
/O

N
S

IT
E

 T
R

A
IN

IN
G

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
4

5
0

3
V

IS
IO

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 P

L
A

N
5

5
,2

3
9

.0
8

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
2

5
8

0
G

O
L

D
E

N
 E

M
P

IR
E

 T
R

A
N

S
IT

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

5
4

,7
3

5
.7

5
2

0
2

1
-2

0
2

2
 O

U
T

D
O

O
R

 A
D

V
E

R
T

IS
IN

G
 

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
4

9
0

2
C

H
A

N
G

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 T

E
C

H
N

O
L

O
G

IE
S

, 
L

L
C

5
4

,6
7

3
.0

8
E

D
I 

C
L

A
IM

 P
R

O
C

E
S

S
IN

G
  

(E
M

D
E

O
N

)
C

L
A

IM
S

T
4

7
9

2
K

P
 L

L
C

5
4

,0
3

9
.5

7
P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
IE

S
 &

 F
O

R
M

U
L

A
R

Y
 (

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
/M

A
IN

T
.)

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

/P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 

R
E

L
A

T
IO

N
S

T
1

9
5

7
F

R
IE

N
D

S
 O

F
 M

E
R

C
Y

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
5

4
,0

0
0

.0
0

C
O

V
ID

 V
A

C
C

IN
E

 C
A

M
P

A
IG

N
 S

P
O

N
S

O
R

S
H

IP
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G

T
4

1
8

2
T

H
E

 L
A

M
A

R
 C

O
M

P
A

N
IE

S
5

2
,5

7
5

.0
0

O
U

T
D

O
O

R
 A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
M

E
N

T
-B

IL
L

B
O

A
R

D
S

A
D

V
E

R
T

IS
IN

G

T
4

4
1

5
D

A
N

IE
L

L
S

 P
H

IL
L

IP
S

 V
A

U
G

H
A

N
 A

N
D

 B
O

C
K

4
9

,9
5

0
.0

0
2

0
2

0
 A

U
D

IT
 F

E
E

S
F

IN
A

N
C

E

T
3

9
8

6
J
A

C
Q

U
E

L
Y

N
  

 S
. 

 J
A

N
S

4
9

,6
0

0
.0

0
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 F
O

R
 K

H
S

 P
U

B
L

IC
 I

M
A

G
E

 C
A

M
P

A
IG

N
 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
/ 

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
4

7
8

1
E

D
R

IN
G

T
O

N
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

, 
L

L
C

4
8

,6
0

0
.0

0
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
2

9
6

1
S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

 B
E

N
C

H
, 

L
L

C
4

6
, 4

1
4

.5
9

M
-F

IL
E

S
 &

 S
C

A
N

F
IN

IT
Y

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

S
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

6
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

162 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
1

1
8

3
M

IL
L

IM
A

N
 U

S
A

4
5

,6
7

2
.7

5
C

Y
2

0
1

9
/2

0
2

0
 R

D
T

 &
 I

B
N

P
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 -
 A

C
T

U
A

R
IA

L
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
2

9
3

3
S

IE
R

R
A

 P
R

IN
T

E
R

S
, 

IN
C

. 
 

4
3

,4
7

8
.4

5
P

R
IN

T
IN

G
 O

F
 M

E
M

B
E

R
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

/P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
 

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
Y

/B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 C

A
R

D
S

 
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
4

0
3

8
P

O
L

Y
C

L
IN

IC
 M

E
D

IC
A

L
 C

E
N

T
E

R
, 

IN
C

4
3

,1
1

8
.9

7
 2

0
2

1
/2

0
2

2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
2

4
4

6
A

T
&

T
 M

O
B

IL
IT

Y
4

3
,0

1
0

.9
2

C
E

L
L

U
L

A
R

 P
H

O
N

E
 /

 I
N

T
E

R
N

E
T

 U
S

A
G

E
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
5

3
9

6
N

Y
M

I 
IN

C
 *

**
*

4
3

, 0
0

0
.0

0
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 T

R
A

C
IN

G
 D

E
V

IC
E

S
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
2

4
4

1
L

A
U

R
A

 J
. 

B
R

E
Z

IN
S

K
I

4
1

,9
0

0
.0

0
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G

T
5

2
0

1
J
A

C
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

, 
IN

C
.

4
1

,7
9

4
.0

0
A

C
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 &

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
5

0
1

5
S

E
N

T
IN

E
L

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
4

0
,3

8
0

.0
0

J
U

N
IP

E
R

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 R

E
N

E
W

A
L

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
2

9
6

9
A

M
E

R
IC

A
N

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 M

A
C

H
IN

E
S

 I
N

C
3

8
,9

6
9

.1
9

H
A

R
D

W
A

R
E

 A
N

D
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
2

4
0

7
K

A
IS

E
R

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 -

C
O

B
R

A
3

8
, 8

7
4

.5
3

C
O

B
R

A
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
5

3
4

0
G

A
R

T
N

E
R

 I
N

C
3

8
,5

0
0

.0
0

A
N

N
U

A
L

 L
E

A
D

E
R

S
 I

N
D

IV
ID

U
A

L
 A

C
C

E
S

S
 A

D
V

IS
O

R
 -

 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

M
IS

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
5

1
0

7
C

IT
R

IX
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

, 
IN

C
.

3
7

,3
5

0
.0

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
 A

N
D

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 F

E
E

S
 

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4

7
0

8
H

E
A

L
T

H
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
S

, 
IN

C
.

3
7

,2
4

2
.2

5
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
5

2
9

2
A

L
L

'S
 W

E
L

L
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 C

A
R

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

3
7

,1
7

9
.0

0
T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 H
E

L
P

 
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
1

4
0

4
C

A
L

IF
O

R
N

IA
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

IO
N

 O
F

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 P
L

A
N

S
3

6
,1

9
9

.0
0

2
0

2
1

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 D
U

E
S

  
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

7
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

163 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
2

1
3

5
B

A
K

E
R

S
F

IE
L

D
 C

IT
Y

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

3
5

,9
5

5
.0

0
2

0
1

9
/2

0
2

0
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 W

E
L

L
N

E
S

S
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 G
R

A
N

T
 -

 F
IN

A
L

 

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 H

E
 

W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

T
2

9
4

1
K

E
R

N
 P

R
IN

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 I
N

C
.

3
4

,2
5

7
.7

5
O

T
H

E
R

 P
R

IN
T

IN
G

 C
O

S
T

S
, 

E
N

V
E

L
O

P
E

S
, 

L
E

T
T

E
R

H
E

A
D

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4

6
0

7
A

G
IL

IT
Y

 R
E

C
O

V
E

R
Y

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

 I
N

C
.

3
4

,2
0

3
.0

0
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
4

7
3

1
L

O
G

M
E

IN
 U

S
A

, 
IN

C
.

3
3

, 5
3

5
.6

0
IN

T
E

R
N

E
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
5

3
0

0
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 V
A

L
L

E
Y

 O
C

C
U

P
A

T
IO

N
 M

E
D

IC
A

L
 G

R
O

U
P

, 
IN

C
3

3
,4

4
0

.0
0

C
O

V
ID

-1
9

 T
E

S
T

IN
G

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
2

9
1

8
S

T
IN

S
O

N
'S

3
0

,0
3

1
.0

7
2

0
2

1
 O

F
F

IC
E

 S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
2

5
0

9
U

S
P

S
 

2
8

,7
9

8
.1

4
R

E
P

L
E

N
IS

H
 P

O
S

T
A

G
E

 (
P

E
R

M
IT

) 
F

U
N

D
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
1

1
5

2
M

IC
H

A
E

L
 K

. 
B

R
O

W
N

 L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 &

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 C
O

.,
 

IN
C

.
2

7
,6

0
3

.4
7

2
0

2
1

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E

T
4

5
7

5
S

C
H

N
E

ID
E

R
 E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

 I
T

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

2
6

,7
9

1
.5

0
A

P
C

 C
O

O
L

IN
G

 U
N

IT
S

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

C
E

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
4

2
1

6
N

E
X

S
T

A
R

 B
R

O
A

D
C

A
S

T
IN

G
 I

N
C

2
6

,6
1

0
.0

0
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 M
E

D
IA

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
5

2
6

9
K

E
R

N
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

2
6

,3
1

1
.0

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 C

O
N

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
 -

 K
E

R
N

 C
O

N
N

E
C

T
E

D
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 

N
E

T
W

O
R

K
 M

G
M

T
 F

E
E

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

-

O
U

T
R

E
A

C
H

T
1

6
5

5
K

E
R

N
,K

K
X

X
,K

IS
V

,K
G

E
O

,K
G

F
M

,K
E

B
T

,K
Z

O
Z

,K
K

J
G

,K
V

E
C

,K

S
T

T
,K

R
Q

K
,K

P
A

T
,

2
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
D

IG
IT

A
L

 A
D

S
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G
 

T
5

2
9

8
T

O
T

A
L

M
E

D
, 

IN
C

.
2

5
, 5

9
1

.0
0

D
IR

E
C

T
 P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

 F
E

E
S

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
4

6
5

2
B

A
K

E
R

S
F

IE
L

D
 S

Y
M

P
H

O
N

Y
 O

R
C

H
E

S
T

R
A

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

1
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 S

P
O

N
S

O
R

S
H

IP
 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
5

3
7

6
K

C
H

C
C

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
C

O
V

ID
 T

A
S

K
 F

O
R

C
E

 S
P

O
N

S
O

R
S

H
IP

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

8
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

164 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
4

6
6

3
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

, 
IN

C
.

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
L

E
A

D
E

R
S

H
IP

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
H

U
M

A
N

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

T
5

1
1

9
P

A
C

IF
IC

 W
E

S
T

 S
O

U
N

D
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IO

 &
 D

E
S

IG
N

 

IN
C

.
2

4
,0

7
5

.0
3

H
A

R
D

W
A

R
E

 B
O

A
R

D
 R

O
O

M
 R

E
M

O
T

E
 V

ID
E

O
 C

O
N

F
E

R
E

N
C

IN
G

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
5

3
4

5
D

E
V

V
IO

 I
N

C
 

2
3

, 2
5

0
.0

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 &

 H
A

R
D

W
A

R
E

 D
E

V
V

T
R

A
C

E
 W

E
A

R
A

B
L

E
S

 

&
 G

A
T

E
W

A
Y

S
 -

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

 T
R

A
C

IN
G

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

/C
A

P
IT

A
L

 

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

T
4

8
7

3
L

5
 H

E
A

L
T

H
C

A
R

E
 S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S
, 

IN
C

.
2

3
, 1

1
5

.0
0

A
N

N
U

A
L

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

 A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

 F
E

E
S

 -
 C

L
A

IM
S

 A
U

D
IT

 T
O

O
L

C
L

A
IM

S

T
4

4
2

4
G

U
R

O
C

K
 S

O
R

T
W

A
R

E
 G

m
b

H
 *

**
*

2
3

, 1
0

0
.0

0
T

E
S

T
R

A
IL

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
5

3
8

7
N

A
V

IA
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
 *

**
*

2
1

,8
6

1
.4

6
F

S
A

 E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 P
R

E
M

IU
M

 &
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

2
5

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
5

3
3

4
P

A
C

IF
IC

 I
N

T
E

R
P

R
E

T
E

R
S

, 
IN

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
D

2
1

,4
4

3
.5

7
IN

T
E

R
P

R
E

T
A

T
IO

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

H
E

A
L

T
H

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

T
5

3
3

3
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 C
A

L
IF

O
R

N
IA

 A
S

T
H

M
A

 C
O

L
L

A
B

O
R

A
T

IV
E

  
2

1
, 3

9
0

.0
0

2
0

2
1

 C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 C

A
L

IF
O

R
N

IA
 A

S
T

H
M

A
 C

O
L

L
A

B
. 

G
R

A
N

T
H

E
 W

E
L

L
N

E
S

S

T
4

2
2

8
T

H
E

 S
S

I 
G

R
O

U
P

, 
L

L
C

.
2

0
,6

9
5

.2
0

E
D

I 
C

L
A

IM
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

 
C

L
A

IM
S

T
5

1
5

9
A

T
&

T
 C

O
R

P
1

9
,6

9
1

.9
2

IN
T

E
R

N
E

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4

6
0

5
K

E
R

N
V

IL
L

E
 U

N
IO

N
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
1

9
,5

0
0

.0
0

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 G

R
A

N
T

 -
 F

IN
A

L
 

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 H

E
 

W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

T
3

0
8

4
K

E
R

N
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
-C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

O
U

N
S

E
L

1
9

,3
7

8
.1

0
L

E
G

A
L

 F
E

E
S

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

T
5

1
6

1
IN

T
E

G
R

A
T

E
D

 H
E

A
L

T
H

C
A

R
E

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
IO

N
1

9
,3

4
1

.2
9

A
D

V
E

R
T

IS
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 F

IL
M

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G

T
1

3
2

6
W

A
L

K
E

R
-L

E
W

IS
 R

E
N

T
S

1
9

, 2
7

9
.5

1
C

O
V

ID
-1

9
 T

E
S

T
IN

G
 S

IT
E

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

9
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

165 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
1

0
9

7
N

C
Q

A
1

9
,2

3
0

.7
5

H
E

D
IS

, 
V

O
L

 2
 P

L
U

S
 Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 C

O
M

P
A

S
S

 A
N

D
 P

O
P

U
L

A
T

IO
N

 

H
E

A
L

T
H

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 A

C
C

R
E

D
IA

T
IO

N
 

Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T

T
4

5
2

3
B

E
R

K
S

H
IR

E
 L

IF
E

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

 O
F

 A
M

E
R

IC
A

1
9

, 0
8

6
.7

0
E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
4

5
1

4
A

.J
. 

K
L

E
IN

, 
IN

C
. 

T
. 

D
E

N
A

T
A

L
E

, 
B

. 
G

O
L

D
N

E
R

  
1

8
,1

9
3

.5
0

L
E

G
A

L
 F

E
E

S
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
5

1
2

8
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
1

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 G

R
A

N
T

 -
 F

IN
A

L
 

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 H

E
 

W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

T
4

8
0

2
K

E
R

N
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 S

U
P

E
R

IN
T

E
N

D
E

N
T

 O
F

 S
C

H
O

O
L

S
1

7
,5

0
0

.0
0

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 G

R
A

N
T

 -
 F

IN
A

L
 

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 H

E
 

W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

T
4

5
8

5
D

E
L

A
N

O
 U

N
IO

N
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
1

7
,5

0
0

.0
0

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
1

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 G

R
A

N
T

- 
F

IN
A

L
 

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 H

E
 

W
E

L
L

N
E

S
S

T
3

0
9

2
L

IN
K

S
 F

O
R

 L
IF

E
, 

IN
C

1
7

,4
5

0
.0

0
2

0
2

1
 E

V
E

N
T

 S
P

O
N

S
O

R
S

H
IP

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
5

0
1

3
E

L
IZ

A
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
IO

N
1

7
,1

1
0

.0
0

2
0

2
 D

A
T

A
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 F

E
E

C
A

S
E

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

T
4

9
9

3
L

E
G

A
L

S
H

IE
L

D
1

7
,0

8
3

.8
1

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 P
A

ID
 V

O
L

U
N

T
A

R
Y

 C
O

V
E

R
A

G
E

P
A

Y
R

O
L

L
 D

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N

T
4

9
6

2
L

IB
E

R
T

Y
 D

A
T

A
, 

IN
C

.
1

7
,0

0
0

.0
0

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
4

9
3

4
A

P
P

L
E

 I
N

C
1

6
,7

7
0

.5
5

2
0

2
1

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 A
W

A
R

D
S

 &
 C

E
L

L
 P

H
O

N
E

S
V

A
R

IO
U

S

T
4

0
1

6
F

IR
S

T
 D

A
T

A
B

A
N

K
, 

IN
C

  
1

6
,6

2
0

.0
0

S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
1

3
4

7
A

D
V

A
N

C
E

D
 D

A
T

A
 S

T
O

R
A

G
E

1
6

,0
6

5
.7

0
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

 A
N

D
 S

H
R

E
D

D
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
2

7
8

7
S

A
G

E
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
, 

IN
C

1
5

,8
1

9
.9

3
2

0
2

0
-2

1
 S

A
G

E
3

0
0

 E
R

P
 S

IL
V

E
R

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
F

IN
A

N
C

E

T
5

3
3

6
T

E
A

M
D

Y
N

A
M

IX
 S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S
 L

L
C

1
5

,2
0

0
.0

0
S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

1
0
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

166 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
2

8
5

1
S

IN
C

L
A

IR
 T

E
L

E
V

IS
IO

N
 O

F
 B

A
K

E
R

S
F

IE
L

D
, 

L
L

C
1

5
,0

2
5

.0
0

A
D

V
E

R
T

IS
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 T

E
L

E
V

IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G

T
2

5
7

8
A

M
E

R
IC

A
N

 H
E

A
R

T
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

IO
N

 -
 K

E
R

N
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
1

5
, 0

0
0

.0
0

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S
-S

P
O

N
S

O
R

S
H

IP
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

T
4

1
9

5
S

C
R

IP
P

S
 M

E
D

IA
, 

IN
C

. 
D

B
A

 K
E

R
O

-T
V

1
4

,9
3

5
.0

0
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 T
E

L
E

V
IS

IO
N

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
4

4
9

6
V

O
X

 N
E

T
W

O
R

K
 S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S
, 

IN
C

 *
**

*
1

4
,7

0
3

.3
9

W
O

R
K

F
O

R
C

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 A

D
V

A
N

C
E

D
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 

R
E

N
E

W
A

L
M

IS
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

T
4

3
8

9
E

X
A

C
T

 S
T

A
F

F
, 

IN
C

.
1

3
,9

9
8

.5
2

T
E

M
P

O
R

A
R

Y
 H

E
L

P
 

V
A

R
IO

U
S

T
4

6
8

6
C

E
N

T
R

IC
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 *

**
*

1
3

, 0
6

0
.0

8
 2

0
2

1
/ 2

0
2

2
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
R

 G
R

A
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 G
R

A
N

T
S

 

T
2

7
9

0
K

E
R

N
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 D

E
P

T
 O

F
 P

U
B

L
IC

 H
E

A
L

T
H

1
2

,9
1

5
.0

0
I N

F
L

U
E

N
Z

A
 V

A
C

C
IN

A
T

IO
N

 S
P

O
N

S
O

R
S

H
IP

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
1

6
5

0
U

N
IV

IS
IO

N
 T

E
L

E
V

IS
IO

N
 G

R
O

U
P

1
2

,7
5

0
.0

0
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 T
E

L
E

V
IS

IO
N

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
4

4
6

6
S

M
O

O
T

H
 M

O
V

E
 U

S
A

 
1

2
,7

3
8

.6
0

2
0

2
1

 M
O

V
IN

G
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
2

9
3

8
S

A
P

 A
M

E
R

IC
A

, 
IN

C
1

2
,3

0
8

.3
2

S
A

P
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 O
B

J
E

C
T

S
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 

F
E

E
B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 I
N

T
E

L
L

IG
E

N
C

E

T
2

9
5

5
D

E
L

T
A

 E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
 I

N
C

.
1

2
,2

2
5

.0
0

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
5

2
1

5
R

IC
H

A
R

D
 G

A
R

C
IA

  
1

2
,0

7
5

.0
0

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

U
T

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

T
4

5
7

7
L

A
 C

A
M

P
E

S
IN

A
, 

K
B

D
S

, 
K

U
F

W
, 

K
M

Y
X

, 
K

S
E

A
, 

K
B

H
H

, 
K

Y
L

I,
 

K
C

E
C

, 
K

N
A

I
1

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

A
D

V
E

R
T

IS
E

M
E

N
T

 -
 R

A
D

IO
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G

T
5

3
8

6
P

A
R

T
N

E
R

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 A

N
D

 S
C

IE
N

C
E

, 
IN

C
1

1
,1

5
0

.0
0

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
5

0
9

9
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
IO

N
1

0
, 9

6
8

.0
2

S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

1
1
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

167 / 308



  
  

 Y
e

a
r 

to
  

D
a

te
 A

P
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  
  

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 o
v

e
r 

$
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

V
e
n

d
o

r 
 

N
o

.
V

e
n

d
o

r 
N

a
m

e
Y

e
a
r-

to
 D

a
te

  
  
  
  
  
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

T
2

8
4

0
A

T
A

L
A

S
O

F
T

, 
IN

C
.

1
0

,2
5

4
.0

0
A

N
N

U
A

L
 D

O
T

IM
A

G
E

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

 I
M

A
G

IN
G

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

M
IS

 I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

T
4

9
3

2
S

P
E

C
T

R
U

M
 R

E
A

C
H

 (
M

E
D

IA
)

1
0

,2
0

0
.0

0
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 T
E

L
E

V
IS

IO
N

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

T
4

9
2

0
O

T
IS

 E
L

E
V

A
T

O
R

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
1

0
, 0

0
1

.8
0

2
0

2
1

 E
L

E
V

A
T

O
R

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

T
2

8
6

9
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

H
IP

 O
F

 K
E

R
N

1
0

, 0
0

0
.0

0
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 G

R
A

N
T

S
M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G

3
2

, 5
0

7
,9

0
2

.7
6

T
O

T
A

L
 V

E
N

D
O

R
S

 O
V

E
R

 $
1
0
,0

0
0

3
2

,5
0

7
,9

0
2

.7
6

T
O

T
A

L
 V

E
N

D
O

R
S

 U
N

D
E

R
 $

1
0
,0

0
0
  

7
1

1
,6

5
6

.1
1

T
O

T
A

L
 V

E
N

D
O

R
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
 -

 O
C

T
O

B
E

R
$

3
3

,2
1

9
,5

5
8

.8
7

N
o
te

:

**
**

N
e
w

 v
e
n
d
o
rs

 o
v
e
r 

$
1
0
,0

0
0
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

o
n
th

 o
f 
O

c
to

b
e
r

   

1
2
 o

f 
 1

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

168 / 308



V
en

d
o
r 

N
a

m
e

 C
o
n

tr
a

ct
 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

B
u

d
g

et
ed

D
ep

a
rt

m
en

t
D

ep
a

rt
m

en
t 

H
ea

d
S

er
v
ic

es
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 v

en
d

o
r 

w
il

l 
p

ro
v
id

e 
to

 K
H

S

E
ff

ec
ti

v
e 

D
a

te

T
er

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 

D
a

te

J
a

n
u

a
ry

P
o
p

p
y
ro

ck
 D

es
ig

n
s

$
4

6
,2

0
0

.0
0

Y
es

M
R

K
L

o
u

ie
 I

tt
u

rr
ir

ia
G

ra
p

h
ic

 d
es

ig
n

 o
f 

K
H

S
-K

F
H

C
 m

em
b

er
 &

 p
ro

v
id

er
 M

K
T

 m
at

er
ia

ls
1

/1
/2

0
2

1
1

2
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

S
y
m

p
lr

/C
ac

tu
s

$
3

5
,7

0
0

.0
0

Y
es

IT
R

ic
h

ar
d

 P
ru

it
t

A
n

n
u

al
 S

aa
S

 A
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

 m
an

ag
er

 &
 t

h
e 

D
E

A
 S

ta
te

 l
ic

en
se

 m
o
n

it
o
r

1
/6

/2
0

2
1

1
/5

/2
0

2
2

H
D

 D
y
n

am
ic

s
$

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
Y

es
P

R
E

m
il

y
 D

u
ra

n
C

o
n

su
lt

in
g
 S

er
v
ic

es
1

/1
/2

0
2

1
1

2
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

L
in

k
ed

In
$

5
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
Y

es
H

R
A

n
it

a 
M

ar
ti

n
O

n
li

n
e 

tr
ai

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

m
an

ag
ed

 l
ea

rn
er

s
1

/1
/2

0
2

1
1

2
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

Ja
cq

u
el

y
n

 J
an

s
$

6
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
Y

es
M

R
K

L
o
u

ie
 I

tt
u

rr
ir

ia
M

ar
k
et

in
g
 a

n
d

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 I

m
ag

e 
C

o
n

su
lt

in
g

1
/1

/2
0

2
1

1
2

/3
1

/2
0

2
1

F
eb

ru
a

ry

C
D

W
-G

$
5

4
,2

8
7

.4
8

Y
es

IT
R

ic
h

ar
d

 P
ru

it
t

D
el

l 
5

4
2

0
 (

2
5

) 
la

p
to

p
s 

an
d

 (
2

5
) 

D
o
ck

b
o
lt

 s
ta

ti
o
n

s
2

/2
4

/2
0

2
1

2
/2

4
/2

0
2

5

S
P

H
 A

n
al

y
ti

cs
$

8
7

,0
1

0
.0

0
Y

es
P

R
E

m
il

y
 D

u
ra

n
C

u
st

o
m

 p
ro

v
id

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n

 s
u

rv
ey

2
/1

1
/2

0
2

1
1

2
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

L
am

ar
$

4
1

,5
9

5
.0

0
Y

es
M

R
K

L
o
u

ie
 I

tt
u

rr
ir

ia
P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 

5
 B

il
lb

o
ar

d
 a

d
v
er

ti
se

m
en

t
1

/2
5

/2
0

2
1

1
/2

4
/2

0
2

2

L
if

eS
ig

n
s

$
8

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

Y
es

H
E

Is
ab

el
 S

il
v
a

A
S

L
 i

n
te

rp
re

ti
n

g
 s

er
v
ic

es
 f

o
r 

K
H

S
 m

em
b

er
s

2
/2

3
/2

0
2

1
2

/2
2

/2
0

2
3

Q
u

es
t 

S
o
ft

w
ar

e
$

9
9

,9
9

5
.0

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
U

n
li

m
it

ed
 E

n
te

rp
ri

se
 S

p
o
tl

ig
h

t 
o
n

 S
Q

L
 s

er
v
er

 l
ic

en
se

s
2

/1
/2

0
2

1
1

/3
1

/2
0

2
6

P
M

O
 P

ar
tn

er
s

$
9

7
,1

5
2

.0
0

Y
es

P
M

A
n

g
el

a 
A

h
sa

n
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 c
o
n

su
lt

in
g
 s

er
v
ic

es
2

/1
1

/2
0

2
1

6
/1

8
/2

0
2

1

M
a

rc
h

G
ar

tn
er

$
3

8
,5

0
0

.0
0

Y
es

IT
R

ic
h

ar
d

 P
ru

it
t

O
n

e 
(1

) 
li

ce
n

se
 f

o
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
al

 a
cc

es
s 

ad
v
is

o
r

3
/1

/2
0

2
1

2
/2

8
/2

0
2

2

S
H

I
$

3
3

,4
3

2
.7

9
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
C

o
-t

er
m

ed
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

al
l 

F
o
rt

in
et

-F
o
rt

ig
at

e 
se

cu
ri

ty
 a

p
p

li
an

ce
s

3
/1

5
/2

0
2

1
1

2
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

A
p

ri
l

C
it

ri
x

$
3

7
,3

5
0

.0
0

Y
es

IT
R

ic
h

ar
d

 P
ru

it
t

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

C
it

ri
x
 l

ic
en

se
s

4
/2

/2
0

2
1

4
/1

/2
0

2
2

S
H

I
$

5
8

,4
6

9
.6

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
C

is
co

 S
M

A
R

T
n

et
 r

en
ew

al
4

/2
2

/2
0

2
1

4
/2

2
/2

0
2

2

T
W

E
 S

o
lu

ti
o
n

s
$

7
3

,1
6

5
.0

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
C

o
rt

ex
 X

D
R

 P
ro

 l
ic

en
se

s
4

/2
3

/2
0

2
1

4
/2

2
/2

0
2

2

P
re

si
d

io
$

4
7

,2
2

5
.0

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
S

ec
u

ri
ty

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
se

rv
ic

es
4

/2
3

/2
0

2
1

4
/2

2
/2

0
2

2

M
a

y

E
n

ti
sy

s3
6

0
$

9
9

,9
9

9
.0

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
X

i 
L

ea
p

 C
lo

u
d

 S
er

v
ic

es
 c

o
-t

er
m

ed
5

/2
6

/2
0

2
1

5
/2

6
/2

0
2

2

J
u

n
e

M
il

li
m

an
$

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
Y

es
A

C
C

T
V

er
o
n

ic
a 

B
ar

k
er

A
ct

u
ar

ia
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 (
IB

N
P

)
6

/1
/2

0
2

1
5

/3
1

/2
0

2
2

D
el

l
$

6
2

,7
5

6
.6

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
2

5
 D

el
l 

5
4

2
0

 L
ap

to
p

s 
an

d
 2

5
 d

o
ck

in
g
 s

ta
ti

o
n

s
6

/2
4

/2
0

2
1

6
/2

3
/2

0
2

5

E
d

ri
g
n

to
n

 H
ea

lt
h

 C
o
n

su
lt

in
g

$
9

9
,0

0
0

.0
0

Y
es

A
C

C
T

V
er

o
n

ic
a 

B
ar

k
er

A
ct

u
ar

ia
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 (
R

D
T

, 
S

D
R

's
, 
ra

te
 a

n
al

y
si

s,
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n
 g

u
id

e)
6

/1
/2

0
2

1
5

/3
1

/2
0

2
2

P
re

si
d

io
$

8
0

,4
1

8
.8

9
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
N

o
d

e 
p

u
rc

h
as

e 
to

 e
x
p

an
d

 R
u

b
ri

k
 b

ac
k
u

p
 a

n
d

 r
ec

o
v
er

y
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n

6
/2

4
/2

0
2

1
6

/2
3

/2
0

2
4

E
n

ti
sy

s3
6

0
$

9
9

,4
0

0
.3

6
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
R

u
b

ri
k
 p

o
la

ri
s 

S
o
n

ar
 s

o
ft

w
ar

e
6

/2
4

/2
0

2
1

6
/2

3
/2

0
2

4

J
u

ly

S
o
lu

ti
o
n

 B
en

ch
$

3
3

,8
1

4
.5

9
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
S

u
b

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

-b
as

ed
 l

ic
en

si
n

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
 f

o
r 

al
l 

M
-F

il
es

 l
ic

en
se

s
7

/2
4

/2
0

2
1

7
/2

3
/2

0
2

2

A
B

M
$

9
1

,8
5

4
.0

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
S

u
p

p
o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

ri
n

ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

al
l 

p
ri

n
ti

n
g
 e

q
u

ip
m

en
t

1
0

/1
/2

0
2

1
9

/3
0

/2
0

2
3

G
o
ld

en
 E

m
p

ir
e 

T
ra

n
si

t 
(G

E
T

)
$

5
3

,7
3

5
.7

5
Y

es
M

R
K

L
o
u

ie
 I

tu
rr

ir
ia

F
o
u

r 
(4

) 
K

in
g
 K

o
n

g
 o

u
td

o
o
r 

ad
v
er

ti
se

m
en

ts
7

/1
5

/2
0

2
1

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

2

S
en

ti
n

el
$

4
0

,3
8

0
.0

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
Ju

n
ip

er
 N

et
w

o
rk

s 
sw

it
ch

es
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 a
n

d
 m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

7
/1

/2
0

2
1

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

2

A
u

g
u

st

F
lu

id
E

d
g
e

$
7

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

Y
es

C
o
m

p
l

A
la

n
 A

v
er

y
R

es
o
u

rc
e 

(A
m

y
 K

ra
m

er
) 

to
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h

e 
co

m
p

li
an

ce
 t

ea
m

8
/1

6
/2

0
2

1
1

1
/1

2
/2

0
2

1

C
o
n

te
x
t4

 H
ea

lt
h

ca
re

$
6

8
,6

0
0

.0
0

Y
es

IT
R

ic
h

ar
d

 P
ru

it
t

C
P

T
 c

o
d

e 
se

t 
li

ce
n

se
s 

fo
r 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 C

P
T

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 A
M

A
8

/1
2

/2
0

2
1

8
/1

1
/2

0
2

2

D
el

l
$

5
3

,9
6

7
.2

2
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
F

if
ty

 (
5

0
) 

O
p

ti
P

le
x
 5

0
9

0
 M

ic
ro

 D
es

k
to

p
 w

it
h

 4
 y

ea
rs

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
8

/4
/2

0
2

1
8

/3
/2

0
2

5

W
it

tK
ie

ff
er

$
6

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

Y
es

H
R

A
n

it
a 

M
ar

ti
n

R
ec

ru
it

m
en

t/
se

ar
ch

 o
f 

a 
n

ew
 C

E
O

 f
o
r 

K
H

S
8

/2
4

/2
0

2
1

8
/2

3
/2

0
2

2

F
lu

id
E

d
g
e

$
8

6
,6

0
0

.0
0

Y
es

P
M

L
av

o
n

n
e 

B
an

k
s

T
em

p
o
ra

ri
ly

 I
n

te
ri

m
 S

en
io

r 
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
 f

o
r 

P
M

O
 d

ep
t

8
/1

6
/2

0
2

1
1

1
/1

9
/2

0
2

1

E
n

ti
sy

s3
6

0
$

8
3

,9
7

6
.6

6
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
R

u
b

ri
k
 b

ac
k
u

p
 a

n
d

 r
ec

o
v
er

y
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n

 o
n

e 
(1

) 
y
ea

r 
re

n
ew

al
8

/2
3

/2
0

2
1

8
/2

2
/2

0
2

2

T
o
ta

lM
ed

$
4

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

Y
es

H
R

A
n

it
a 

M
ar

ti
n

S
ta

ff
in

g
 s

er
v
ic

es
8

/1
4

/2
0

2
1

8
/1

3
/2

0
2

2

T
ri

Z
et

to
$

8
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
Y

es
C

L
M

R
o
b

in
 D

o
w

-M
o
ra

le
s

E
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 c
la

im
s 

p
ro

ce
ss

in
g

8
/2

8
/2

0
2

1
8

/2
7

/2
0

2
2

Z
eO

m
eg

a
$

9
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 c
o
n

su
lt

in
g
 s

er
v
ic

es
 f

o
r 

C
al

A
IM

8
/1

6
/2

0
2

1
1

2
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

T
P

x
$

4
3

,8
3

9
.3

6
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
S

IP
 C

lo
u

d
 N

et
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

D
R

 s
it

e
8

/1
2

/2
0

2
1

8
/1

1
/2

0
2

4

S
ep

te
m

b
er

T
h

e 
P

er
is

co
p

e 
G

ro
u

p
$

9
8

,8
8

0
.0

0
Y

es
U

M
D

eb
o
ra

h
 M

u
rr

In
-h

o
m

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
v
is

it
s 

fo
r 

ev
al

u
at

io
n

 o
f 

D
M

E
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 
9

/2
5

/2
0

2
1

9
/2

4
/2

0
2

2

O
ct

o
b

er

A
B

M
$

9
1

,9
5

4
.0

0
Y

es
IT

R
ic

h
ar

d
 P

ru
it

t
S

u
p

p
o
rt

 &
 p

ri
n

ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

al
l 

p
ri

n
ti

n
g
 e

q
u

ip
m

en
t

1
0

/1
/2

0
2

1
9

/3
0

/2
0

2
3

L
am

ar
$

3
2

,4
5

0
.0

0
Y

es
P

N
M

E
m

il
y
 D

u
ra

n
O

u
td

o
o
r 

ad
v
er

ti
se

m
en

t 
(2

3
 b

il
lb

o
ar

d
s)

 f
o
r 

C
O

V
ID

 V
ac

ci
n

at
io

n
 

1
0

/1
8

/2
0

2
1

2
/2

0
/2

0
2

2

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

169 / 308



IT
EM

P
R

O
JE

C
T

C
A

P
/E

X
P

B
U

D
G

ET
JA

N
FE

B
M

A
R

A
P

R
M

A
Y

JU
N

JU
L

A
U

G
SE

P
T

O
C

T
N

O
V

D
EC

Y
TD

   
   

 T
O

TA
L

R
EM

A
IN

IN
G

 

B
A

LA
N

C
E

#
P

ro
je

ct
 N

am
e

1
P

ro
je

ct
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 M
a

n
a

g
em

en
t 

Sy
st

em
 

C
A

P
 

$
1

5
4

,5
6

2
$

0
$

0
$

1
8

,4
0

0
$

0
$

1
6

,0
0

0
$

4
3

,0
4

0
$

3
4

,4
4

0
$

1
7

,6
0

0
$

1
2

9
,4

8
0

$
2

5
,0

8
2

2
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
B

a
se

d
 O

rg
a

n
iz

a
ti

o
n

 R
ef

er
ra

l S
ys

te
m

 
C

A
P

 
$

3
5

9
,6

5
3

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
1

0
,9

2
5

$
5

5
,2

0
9

$
7

8
,5

5
6

$
7

9
,8

1
6

$
0

$
8

,1
5

0
$

2
3

2
,6

5
6

$
1

2
6

,9
9

7
3

En
te

rp
ri

se
 L

o
g

g
in

g
 S

ys
te

m
C

A
P

$
3

3
3

,9
9

6
$

1
2

,0
3

6
$

1
5

,2
0

0
$

0
$

1
7

,6
0

0
$

0
$

0
$

0
$

1
4

,9
6

0
$

1
8

,4
8

0
$

1
8

,4
8

0
$

9
6

,7
5

6
$

2
3

7
,2

4
0

4
In

te
ro

p
er

a
b

ili
ty

 
C

A
P

$
1

6
2

,0
4

4
$

4
,9

4
4

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
2

7
,7

2
0

$
1

6
,5

0
0

$
2

6
,4

0
0

$
2

7
,3

9
0

$
1

0
2

,9
5

4
$

5
9

,0
9

0
5

En
te

rp
ri

se
 D

a
ta

 W
a

re
h

o
u

se
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
A

P
$

6
7

3
,5

5
3

$
8

7
,9

5
7

$
9

4
,9

3
2

$
1

0
4

,1
1

7
$

1
1

1
,3

6
4

$
8

6
,6

0
8

$
2

9
,0

4
0

$
0

$
0

$
0

$
7

3
,3

6
4

$
5

8
7

,3
8

2
$

8
6

,1
7

1
6

M
a

jo
r 

O
rg

a
n

 T
ra

m
sp

la
n

ts
 

C
A

P
$

6
2

,0
0

0
$

0
$

1
7

,2
9

0
$

3
7

,8
0

0
$

0
$

5
5

,0
9

0
$

6
,9

1
0

7
En

h
a

n
ce

d
 C

a
re

 M
a

n
a

g
em

en
t 

C
A

P
$

3
4

4
,0

0
0

$
0

$
1

7
,6

4
0

$
9

1
,9

3
8

$
5

6
,2

3
5

$
1

6
5

,8
1

3
$

1
7

8
,1

8
7

8
St

a
ff

 A
u

g
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

EX
P

$
1

,9
1

8
,4

8
8

$
1

4
2

,5
4

3
$

1
4

2
,1

0
8

$
1

7
4

,9
9

4
$

1
5

6
,3

6
7

$
1

4
2

,0
9

2
$

1
6

6
,2

6
4

$
1

4
4

,1
9

9
$

1
5

4
,4

8
6

$
1

5
4

,5
3

6
$

1
4

5
,2

3
0

$
1

,5
2

2
,8

1
9

$
3

9
5

,6
6

9

To
ta

ls
:

To
ta

ls
 

$
4

,0
0

8
,2

9
6

$
2

4
7

,4
8

0
$

2
5

2
,2

4
0

$
2

9
7

,5
1

1
$

2
8

5
,3

3
1

$
2

5
5

,6
2

5
$

2
9

3
,5

5
3

$
2

8
4

,9
1

5
$

3
1

8
,2

9
2

$
3

2
9

,1
5

4
$

3
2

8
,8

4
9

$
0

$
2

,8
9

2
,9

5
0

$
1

,1
1

5
,3

4
6

U
p

d
at

ed
 1

1
/2

9
/2

1

2
0

2
1

 T
EC

H
N

O
LO

G
Y

 C
O

N
SU

LT
IN

G
 R

ES
O

U
R

C
ES

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

170 / 308



 
 

 

To: KHS Board of Directors 

 

From: Richard M. Pruitt, Chief Information Officer 

 

Date: December 16, 2021 

 

Re: Administer contract with Dell for Microsoft Licensing 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

                       

Background 

KHS extensively uses Microsoft software on its end user desktops (Windows), e-mail (Exchange), 

productivity (Office), data reporting databases (MSSQL), workflow and web development (TFS, 

Visual Studio), and core QNXT system (BizTalk, MSSQL).  In September 2021, KHS performed 

a formal RFP process to select a vendor for these services. Dell was selected as the vendor for this 

contract based on the RFP responses, pricing, and experience. 

 

Discussion 

Dell will provide KHS with Microsoft software license, maintenance (software assurance), and 

technical support for the organization for a three (3) year term. 

 

Fiscal Impact 

Not to exceed $1,358,808 for three (3) years.  

 

Requested Action 

Approve; Authorize Chief Executive Officer to Sign. 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

171 / 308



Kern Health Systems

Microsoft Licensing
Dell, L.P. 

Richard M. Pruitt
Chief Information Officer

December 16, 2021

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

172 / 308



Agenda

• Overview

• Procurement Process

• Vendor Selection

• Board Request

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

173 / 308



Background

• KHS leverages Microsoft software to operate the various desktops, core 
systems, and databases within its infrastructure.   KHS is able to 
leverage the State of California’s contracted pricing with Microsoft as a 
quasi-government agency.  Microsoft licenses its software through 
various channel partners and has published an RFP to solicit a new 
channel partner to acquire the licensing.

• KHS performed its formal RFP process and performed vendor selection 
based on the vendor responses.   The following is an overview of the 
process and pricing with staff’s recommendation and request of the 
Board

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

174 / 308



Procurement Process

• Review and Defined Licensing Needs

• Created and Published RFP

• Reviewed and Selected Vendor

• Created Recommendation and Presentation for Board

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

175 / 308



Request for Proposal

• Dell was selected as the vendor for these services based on 
experience, price, and references. 

Description Vendor 1 Vendor 2 Vendor 3

Year 1 Cost $452,936 $464,847 $626,139

Year 2 Cost $452,936 $475,369 $626,139 

Year 3 Cost $452,936 $475,369 $626,139

Total 3Y Costs $1,358,808 $1,415,585 $1,878,417 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

176 / 308



Scope of Services
• Licensing includes but not limited to:

➢ Operating Systems for server environment management

➢ Operating Systems for end user management

➢ System Center for monitoring of servers

➢ Visual Studio for standard development code repository

➢ SQL Server for database management

➢ Microsoft Project for Project Management

➢ Team Foundation Server for tracking busines and technical project work 

➢ SharePoint

➢ Visio

➢ Service Manager for KHS Ticketing System

➢ Teams for Corporate Communication

➢ Dynamics for Customer Relationship Management for PNM

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

177 / 308



Recommendation

• Request the Board of Directors authorize the CEO to sign a contract 
with Dell for the Microsoft Licensing, annual support, and 
maintenance in an amount not to exceed $1,358,808 for a period of 
three years. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

178 / 308



Questions 

Please contact:

Richard M. Pruitt

Chief Information Officer

661-664-5000

Richard.pruitt@khs-net.com

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

179 / 308



 

Proposed administrative contract over $100,000, December 16, 2021. 

 

1.  Operational Agreement with Dell 

a.   Recommended Action  

Approve; Authorize Chief Executive Officer to Sign 

b.   Contact 

Richard Pruitt, Chief Information Officer 

c.   Background 

 KHS extensively uses Microsoft software on its end user desktops 

(Windows), e-mail (Exchange), productivity (Office), data reporting 

databases (MSSQL), workflow and web development (TFS, Visual 

Studio), and core QNXT system (BizTalk, MSSQL).  In September 

2021, KHS performed a formal RFP process to select a vendor for 

these services. Dell was selected as the vendor for this contract based 

on responses, pricing, and experience.   

d.   Discussion 

 Dell will provide KHS with Microsoft software license purchases, 

maintenance (software assurance), and technical support for the 

organization for a three (3) year term. 

e.   Fiscal Impact  

 Not to exceed $1,358,808 for three (3) years.  

f.  Risk Assessment    

 If KHS does not purchase Microsoft licensing the organization will 

not be able to operate any of its functions.   

g.   Attachments 

An Agreement at a Glance form and the bid matrix are attached.  

h.  Reviewed by Chief Compliance Officer and/or Legal Counsel 

 This contract is pending legal approval. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

180 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

181 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

182 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

183 / 308





 
 

 

 

To: KHS Board of Directors 

 

From: Richard M. Pruitt, Chief Information Officer 

 

Date: December 16, 2021 

 

Re: Entisys360, Data Center Hardware & Software 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Background 

 

In 2019, KHS constructed a new building on Buck Owens Boulevard, to accommodate the 

current and future growth of the business and required Nutanix Hardware Platform as part of the 

procurement to occupy the facility. As outlined in the 2020 Capital Budget, IT will purchase 

additional Nutanix hardware to support the business’ future growth.  

Discussion 

 

Entisys360 will provide KHS with support and maintenance for one (1) year for five (5) Nutanix 

Node Hardware Platform (NX-8170-G8). 

Financial Impact 

 

This agreement will not exceed $733,444.00 per one year. 

Requested Action 

 

Approve; Authorize Chief Executive Officer to Sign.  

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

185 / 308



Data Center Hardware & Software

KHS Board of Directors
December 16, 2021

Richard M. Pruitt
Chief Information Officer

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

186 / 308



Agenda

• Overview

• Hyper-Converged Infrastructure

• Background

• Procurement Process

• Vendor Selection

• Board Request

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

187 / 308



Overview

KHS leverages the Nutanix manufacturer of hardware and software as its Hyper-Converged

Infrastructure (HCI) for the company servers and storage. The HCI infrastructure supports the end-

user desktop, core processing systems, various application and database technology within KHS.

Over the last three years, KHS has continued to grow in data collection and processing due to growth

in membership and regulatory requirements and processes.

KHS contiguously reviews data center equipment for replacement and growth based on the

manufacturers life cycle and support; normal wear and tear; utilization performance; and when

procuring new systems to be installed. Based on this review, this capital expenditure will provide the

procurement of additional data center hardware for the 2022 calendar year to meet the organization’s

demands.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

188 / 308



Hyper-Converged Infrastructure

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

189 / 308



Background

• KHS migrated to Hyper-Converged Infrastructure with New Building

• KHS Uses Both Hyper-Converged and Cloud in its Operations

• HCI Reduces Complexity and Administration

• Retiring Traditional DEV, TEST, UPG, and UAT - End of Life

• Equipment Fully Depreciated at Five Years (Currently at Year 7)

• Environments are Critical to Business Operations

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

190 / 308



Procurement Process

• Reviewed and Defined Licensing Needs

• Created and Published RFQ

• Reviewed and Selected Vendor

• Create Recommendation and Presentation for Board

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

191 / 308



Vendor Selection

Description Vendor 1  Vendor 2 Vendor 3 

Hardware $                                     421,532 $                                     401,553 $                               371,780 

Software $                                     261,096 $                                     423,161 $                               330,108 

Support $                                       47,149 $                                       12,710 $                                 11,675 

Other 

(Taxes,Shpping,etc) $                                          3,667 $                                          6,600 $                                 27,702 

Total 1Y Costs $                                     733,444 $                                     844,024 $                               741,264 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

192 / 308



Board Request

• Authorize the CEO to execute contracts with Entysis360 to purchase Nutanix 

Storage Solution in an amount not to exceed $733,444 in capital purchases.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

193 / 308



Questions

Please contact:

Richard M. Pruitt

Chief Information Officer

661-664-5078

richard.pruitt@khs-net.com

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

194 / 308



Proposed Administrative Contract over $100,000, December 16, 2021 

 

1. Operational Agreement with Entisys360 

a. Recommended Action  

Approve; Authorize Chief Executive Officer to Sign 

b. Contact 

Richard M. Pruitt, Chief Information Officer 

c. Background  

In 2019, KHS constructed a new building on Buck Owens 

Boulevard, to accommodate the current and future growth of the 

business and required Nutanix Hardware Platform as part of the 

procurement to occupy the facility. As outlined in the 2020 

Capital Budget, IT will purchase additional Nutanix hardware to 

support the business’ future growth.  

d. Discussion 

Entisys360 will provide KHS with support and maintenance for 

one (1) year for five (5) Nutanix Node Hardware Platform (NX-

8170-G8). 

e. Fiscal Impact 

This agreement will not exceed $733,444.00 per one year. 

f. Risk Assessment  

If KHS does not replace its existing Nimble storage solution that 

is at End of Life, KHS will not be able to support the corporate 

project portfolio and regular operations for the systems that reside 

on the hardware. Additionally, if the hardware has a failure, there 

is no support and KHS runs the risk of loss of data. 

g. Attachments 

An Agreement at a Glance form is attached. 

h. Reviewed by Chief Compliance Officer and/or Legal Counsel 

This contract has been approved by KHS legal counsel. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

195 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

196 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

197 / 308





 
 

 

 

To: KHS Board of Directors 

 

From: Anita Martin, Chief Human Resources Officer 

 

Date: December 16, 2021 

 

Re: LinkedIn Learning 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Background 

 
KHS has grown from 260 FTE’s in 2014 to over 450 FTE’s in 2020. Since implementing LinkedIn Learning 

from January 2020 through October 2020 KHS employees have accessed 2,404 courses and viewed 17,121 

videos. Our employees are averaging over 3 hours and 44 minutes of online training per employee via 

LinkedIn Learning. This supplemental training helps us to keep employees engaged as well as supporting 

assigned performance improvement/development plans created in the Performance Module of Dayforce. 

 

Discussion 

 
LinkedIn Learning will provide online training courses for employees. Training includes leadership 

training, and over 13,000+ courses. LinkedIn Learning integrates with our Dayforce LMS module allowing 

us to track all employee training in our existing HRIS system. 

 

Financial Impact 

 

This agreement will not exceed $178,950.00 per three years. 

 

Requested Action 

 

Approve; Authorize Chief Executive Officer to Sign.  

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

199 / 308



LinkedIn Learning
LinkedIn

KHS Board of Directors
December 16, 2021

Anita Martin
Chief Human Resources Officer

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

200 / 308



Agenda

• Background

• Benefits

• Recommendation

• Questions

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

201 / 308



Background

• KHS has grown from 260 FTE’s in 2014 to over 
450 FTE’s in 2020. Since implementing LinkedIn 
Learning from October 2019 through October 
2021, KHS employees have accessed 2,404 courses 
and viewed 17,121 videos. 

• Our employees are averaging over 3 hours and 44 
minutes of online training per employee via 
LinkedIn Learning. This supplemental training 
helps us to keep employees engaged as well as 
supporting assigned performance 
improvement/development plans created in the 
Performance Module of Dayforce.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

202 / 308



Benefits

• LinkedIn Learning will provide online training courses for employees. Training includes 
leadership training, and over 13,000+ courses. 

• LinkedIn Learning integrates with our Dayforce LMS module allowing us to track all employee 
training in our existing HRIS system.

• Employees can access LinkedIn Learning 24/7 from any computer or smart phone.

• Training courses from LinkedIn Learning can be assigned in the Dayforce LMS for integration 
into Development and Performance Improvement Plans. 

• Internal promotions have increased from 13% in 2018 and 2019, to 19% in 2020 and 2021. This 
build morale and increases retention.

• In 2020 Career Development was at an all time high of 87.9% in the Employee Satisfaction 
Survey. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

203 / 308



LinkedIn Reporting Metrics

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

204 / 308



Recommendation

• Recommend a three (3) year contract to save $5,188 per year or $15,564 total.

• Request the Board of Directors to authorize the CEO to sign a three-year 

agreement with LinkedIn in the amount of $178,950 for LinkedIn Learning 

Product.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

205 / 308



Questions

Please contact:

Anita Martin, Th.D., MBA, SHRM-SCP

Chief Human Resources Officer

661-664-5020

anita.martin@khs-net.com

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

206 / 308



Proposed Administrative Contract over $100,000, December 16, 2021 

 

1. Operational Agreement with LinkedIn 

a. Recommended Action  

Approve; Authorize Chief Executive Officer to Sign 

b. Contact 

Anita Martin; Chief Human Resources Officer 

c. Background  

KHS has grown from 260 FTE’s in 2014 to over 450 FTE’s in 

2020. Since implementing LinkedIn Learning from January 2020 

through October 2020 KHS employees have accessed 2,404 

courses and viewed 17,121 videos. Our employees are averaging 

over 3 hours and 44 minutes of online training per employee via 

LinkedIn Learning. This supplemental training helps us to keep 

employees engaged as well as supporting assigned performance 

improvement/development plans created in the Performance 

Module of Dayforce. 

d. Discussion 

LinkedIn Learning will provide online training courses for 

employees. Training includes leadership training, and over 

13,000+ courses. LinkedIn Learning integrates with our Dayforce 

LMS module allowing us to track all employee training in our 

existing HRIS system. 

e. Fiscal Impact 

This agreement will not exceed $178,950.00 per three years. 

f. Risk Assessment  

As the primary source for on-demand training, LinkedIn Learning 

provides our staff with regulatory training such as anti-bullying 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

207 / 308



and professional development training for all disciplines across 

the organizations as well as training modules that are used for 

employees to complete development and performance 

improvement plans. In addition to the above, leadership training 

is provided for management that allows them the ability to grow 

and thrive at KHS. Absent the above items KHS would risk not 

being in compliant with state training requirements as well as 

offering professional development and growth for our employees 

that have been significant in our recruitment and retention. 

g. Attachments 

An Agreement at a Glance form is attached. 

h. Reviewed by Chief Compliance Officer and/or Legal Counsel 

This contract is pending legal counsel approval. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

208 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

209 / 308



KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

210 / 308



 
 

 

 

To: KHS Board of Directors 

 

From: Alonso Hurtado, Director of Procurement and Facilities 

 

Date: December 16, 2021 

 

Re: New Carport Solar PV Systems 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Background 

 

During the June 2021 Finance Committee meeting a member of the Finance Committee requested 

an analysis of the current carport solar system in consideration for purchasing additional solar 

panels.  The existing carport solar system produces approximately 11% of the electricity consumed 

by KHS at an estimated annual savings of $41,000.  

 

In August 2021 Management presented data supporting expanding our current carport solar system 

with the goal of self-producing 100% of our electricity consumption and was approved to initiate 

an RFP process.  Management enlisted Partner Engineering and Science, Inc. (PESI) engineering 

consulting firm and Burke, Williams & Sorensen, LLP legal counsel to help in this endeavor.  PESI 

estimates a 675kWDC solar panel system and a125kW battery energy storage system (BESS) are 

required to produce the remaining 89% of the electricity KHS consumes. 

 

Discussion 

 

KHS published an RFP on Friday, October 1st, 2021 KHS received proposals from California Solar 

Integrators, Inc. and A-C Electric Company on Monday, November 1st, 2021.  These proposals 

were evaluated on the following factors: 

 

FACTORS Maximum 

Points 

1. Estimated Overall Project Price 40 

2. Preliminary Services Fee 10 

3. Technical Design and Construction Expertise 10 

4. Life-Cycle Costs over 20 Years 10 

5. Commissioning, Start-Up and Technical Support Services 10 

6. References 10 

7. Quality of Proposal / Presentation and Questions 10 

 Total Maximum 100 

  

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

211 / 308



   

KHS RFP selection committee reviewed, compared, and scored the two proposals and selected A-

C Electric Company based on having the highest score in the above factors.  This project will 

capture approximately $210,000 in savings in year one and is projected to increase at a rate of 3% 

annually based on projected annual electricity rate increases, produce a return on investment of 

approximately 113% over 20 years, and has a payback period of approximately 10.5 years. KHS 

is currently exploring requirements for a Self-Generation Incentive Program rebate in the amount 

of $400,000 towards the total cost of the project.  

 

Financial Impact 

 

This agreement will not exceed $2,371,559 per project. 

 

Requested Action 

 

Approve; Authorize Chief Executive Officer to Sign. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

212 / 308



Kern Health Systems

Solar Panels

Alonso Hurtado
Director of Procurement and Facilities

December 16, 2021

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

213 / 308



Agenda

• Background

• Existing Carport Solar System

• RFP Process & Evaluation

• Scorecard

• Winning Contractor

• Proposed Layout

• Recommendation

• Questions

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

214 / 308



Background

During the June 2021 Finance Committee meeting a member of the Finance Committee requested an

analysis of the current carport solar system in consideration for purchasing additional solar panels. The

existing carport solar system produces approximately 11% of the electricity consumed by KHS at an

estimated annual savings of $41,000.

In August 2021 Management presented data supporting expanding our current carport solar system

with the goal of producing 100% of our electricity consumption and was approved to initiate an RFP

process. Management enlisted Partner Engineering and Science, Inc. (PESI) engineering consulting firm

and Burke, Williams & Sorensen, LLP legal counsel to help in this endeavor. PESI estimates a 675kWDC

solar panel system and a 125kW battery energy storage system (BESS) are required to produce the

remaining 89% of the electricity KHS consumes.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

215 / 308



Existing Carport Solar System

• Cost of current System $494,750

– 62 covered spaces/420 Panels 

– Dec 2020 through Jan 2021: Total current savings $41,000

– Savings per year will increase based on increasing cost/kWh (Estimated increase 4% per
year)

• Payback period of 12 years

• Current PG&E Cost: $22,000/monthly (net of monthly savings $3,400)

• Panels cover an estimated 11% of annual cost

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

216 / 308



RFP Process & Evaluation

• RFP posted on October 2021

• KHS received two proposals:

➢ California Solar Integrators, Inc.

➢ A-C Electric Company

• Evaluation team:

➢ Director of Procurement

➢ Facilities Superintendent

➢ IT Operations Supervisor

➢ Partner Engineer and Science, Inc

• Evaluating factors:

➢ Price

➢ Technical Knowledge and Expertise

➢ Payback period

➢ Overall RFP response

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

217 / 308



Scorecard

* Deduct 1 point for every $100k difference for the higher proposal for Factors 1 and 4  

FACTORS Maximum Points CSI CSI A-C Elec A-C Elec

1 Estimated Overall Project Price* 40 $2,476,789 39 $2,371,559 40

2 Preliminary Services Fee 10 $0 10 $0 10

3 Technical Design and Construction Expertise 10 8 10

4
Life-Cycle Costs over 20 Years (includes project price and 
anticipated maintenance)*

10
$3,027,045 5 $2,529,585 10

5 Commissioning, Start-Up, and Technical Support Services 10 10 10

6 References 10 10 10

7 Quality of Proposal/Presentation and Questions 10 8 10

Total Maximum 100 90 100

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

218 / 308



Winning Contractor

A-C Electric Company

• Price $2,371,559

• Estimated Annual Savings $209,048 (year 1, increase approx. 3% per year)

• Estimated Payback Period: 10.5 years

• Internal Rate of Return: 7.9%

• Return on Investment: 113.8%

• Estimated Annual Energy Production: 1.1MM kWh

• Estimated Completion Date: Sep 2022

• Covers 70% of open parking area

• Researching incentives $400,000 (Self Generation Incentive Program)

• Relocate affected trees

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

219 / 308



Proposed Layout

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

220 / 308



Recommendation

Request the Board of Directors to authorize the CEO to sign a contract 

with A-C Electric Company for the design and construction of a Carport 

Solar Panel System in the amount of $2,371,559 in Capital Expense.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

221 / 308



Questions 

Please contact:

Alonso Hurtado

Director of Procurement and Facilities

661-664-5000

Alonso.Hurtado@khs-net.com

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

222 / 308



 

 

 

 

 

TO:  KHS Board of Directors 

 

FROM: Alan Avery, Chief Operating Officer 

 

DATE: December 16, 2021 

 

RE:  COVID-19 Vaccination Incentive Program 

 

 

Background 

 

The Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) has allocated up to $350 million to incentive 

COVID-19 vaccinations for Medi-Cal managed care plans for COVID-19 vaccinations received 

September 1, 2021 through February 28, 2022.  This a voluntary incentive program to increase 

COVID-19 vaccinations in general with a focus on four targeted member populations: 

  

• Members who are homebound and unable to travel to vaccination sites 

• Members who are 50-64 with multiple chronic conditions 

• Members who self-identify as persons of color 

• Youth 12-25 years of age 

 

Kern Health Systems (KHS) developed an aggressive COVID-19 Vaccination Plan and received 

approval from DHCS to encourage expansion of vaccination sites, increase member outreach and 

education, expand provider engagement and member acceptance, and increase the vaccination 

rates. 

 

A presentation to the KHS Board of Directors will highlight the KHS Vaccination Plan along 

with the results of the initial reporting period. 

 

Requested Action 

 

Receive and File. 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

223 / 308



COVID-19 Vaccination 
Incentive Program (VIP)

Update

KHS Board of Directors
December 16, 2021

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

224 / 308



Background

The Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) is allocating up to $350 million to incentivize COVID-19 vaccination
efforts in the Medi-Cal managed care delivery (MCP) system for the service period of September 1, 2021 through
February 28, 2022.

This is a voluntary incentive program that focuses on increasing COVID-19 vaccination rates among the Medi-Cal 
population.

DHCS identified populations of focus served by MCPs, who have been disproportionately challenged in the initial phases 
of vaccine distribution. These include members who:

• Are homebound and unable to travel to vaccination sites;
• Are 50-64 years of age with multiple chronic diseases;
• Self-identify as persons of color; and
• Youth 12-25 years of age

Kern Health Systems developed an aggressive COVID-19 vaccination plan to encourage expansion of vaccination sites, 
increase outreach and education to our members and communities, and increase the vaccination rates amongst our 
membership. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

225 / 308



Vaccine Response Plan

• KHS submitted the COVID-19 Vaccination Response Plan and Direct Member Incentive Program 
to DHCS on September 1, 2021

• KHS received notice approval on September 10, 2021

• KHS qualified for the COVID-19 Vaccination Response Plan maximum earnable allocation of 
$1,287,407.81

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

226 / 308



• Television campaign - partnered with Latino COVID Task 
Force, Dignity Health and Kern County Public Health 
Services Department to produce and purchase ads for a TV 
campaign.
• English & Spanish advertisements will air on local 

network stations and cable through January 2022 and 
longer if needed

• English TV Ad:  https://vimeo.com/642867125
• Spanish TV Ad:  https://vimeo.com/646582675

• The KFHC Ad campaign on billboards, print and digital 
(targeted ads on mobile devices and social media 
platforms) continues.

Media Campaign Update

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

227 / 308



COVID-19 Vaccination Pop-Up Clinics

• Cal State University Bakersfield Vaccination Clinic – KFHC and 
Kern Medical are providing on-campus vaccinations once a week 
(Wednesday’s from 10am-2pm) for 12 weeks.  Clinic is for students 
and open to the public.

• Kern County Latino COVID-19 Task Force – provide vaccination 
events throughout the county along with education and a Mental 
Health/Help Line.

• KHS Facility Vaccination Fairs – Held two clinics at our 
Administrative Office building in conjunction with the Latino 
COVID Task Force and Kern Medical on October 16th and 
November 13th.
• 133 vaccinated at 1st event and 262 vaccinated at 2nd event –

60% were KFHC members

• Other Vaccination Clinics – KHS providers are organizing targeted 
Pop-Up clinics at COVID-19 unvaccinated “hot spots” such as Taft, 
Southeast Bakersfield, and East Kern.  Good Samaritan Health 
Center held a vaccination event in Wasco on October 20th.

KHS presents sponsorship check to Kern County Latino 
COVID-19 Task Force Leadership.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

228 / 308



COVID-19 Vaccination Community Efforts

• No Sister Left Behind will provide education, health fairs, and other workshops to our African 
American community. They will develop partnerships among local trusted messengers, including 
churches, barbershops/salons, clinics, and other areas where the African American community feels 
safe. A variety of marketing strategies will reinforce their educational message.

• Farmworker Outreach – California Farmworker Foundation is providing vaccination clinics at worksites 
in northern and southern Kern County and direct education to farmworkers and agricultural employers.

• Door to Door Partnership with Supervisor Leticia Perez, Bakersfield College, Dignity Health, and Hall 
Ambulance continues through December 2021.

• Vision y Compromiso Promotoras (community health workers) are committed to vaccinating their 
neighbors.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

229 / 308



Other KFHC Initiatives

• Direct Member Incentives - offering a $25 gift card for each COVID-19 vaccination for both the Moderna and 
Pfizer vaccine, or $50 for the Johnson & Johnson vaccine. 

• Provider Incentive Program - KHS will issue payment to safety-net providers, primary care physicians, specialists 
and pharmacies who meet the criteria.
• First payments are scheduled to go out in December 2021

• Outreach calls - KHS member facing staff are making outreach calls to encourage members to get the COVID-19 
vaccine.
• COVID-19 Vaccine Reservation Specialists in Member Services are dedicated phone staff who support our 

outreach call efforts
• Member facing staff in Health Services (Population Management, Health Homes, Health Education/Disease 

Management) are calling our homebound members

• Member outreach/education efforts also include mail, robocalls, website and social media.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

230 / 308



1st Reporting Period* VIP Status             
(DOS 10/31/21 & Received by 12/15/21)

MEASURES = 9 Member focus criteria
BASELINE RATE = Vaccination rates as of 08/29/21 (This will be updated on 12/3/21 due to data lag) 
RATE = Calculated as of 11/30/21 
TARGET = At least one dose received by 10/31/21 (Goal 1)
POTENTIAL PAYMENT= Maximum earnable incentive dollars (Actual amounts earned may differ from these amounts)
*TWO ADDITIONAL REPORTING PERIODS: DOS 1/2/2022 and 3/6/22

MEASURES
COUNTY 

BASELINE RATE
KHS 
RATE

TARGET
POTENTIAL
PAYMENT

PAYMENT 
EARNED

Intermediate Measures

Homebound Members 56.8% 62.3% 62.4% $85,741.36 $0

Age 50-64 With Chronic 
Conditions

63.1% 67.3% 69.4%
$85,741.36 $0

Uptake Outcome Measures

ALL MEMBERS 38.3% 47.4% 42.6% $600,189.52 $600,189.52

AGE 12-25 31.5% 41.4% 33.6% $171,482.72 $171,482.72

AGE 26-49 36.5% 45.2% 39.6% $85,741.36 $85,741.36

AGE 50-64 54.2% 61.9% 57.4% $85,741.36 $85,741.36

AGE 65 and Older 63.2% 71.2% 66.2% $85,741.36 $85,741.36

AFRICAN AMERICAN 24.5% 31.9% 26.6% $257,224.08 $257,224.08

CAUCASIAN 29.6% 35.8% 35.6% $257,224.08 $257,224.08

$1,714,826.72 $1,543,344 (90%)

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

231 / 308



Questions? 

For additional information, 
please contact:

Alan Avery,
Chief Operating Officer

(661) 664-5000

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

232 / 308



 

 

 

To:  KHS Board of Directors 

From: Jeremy McGuire, Sr. Director of Government Relations & Strategic Development 

Date: December 16, 2021 

Re: 2021 Legislative and State Budget Summary 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Background 

The 2021 State Legislative session ended on October 10th as this was the deadline for the Governor 

to sign or veto bills. Throughout the legislative cycle KHS staff worked with our trade associations 

providing feedback and monitoring pending bills.  

Staff tracked 71 bills with potential impact to the plan, and 15 of those passed the legislature and 

were signed by the Governor.  Of those 15, there are 4 bills with notable impact to KHS. Many of 

the other bills that passed were amended to have minimal impact to KHS. Additionally, the State 

Budget was finalized in July and included several material changes.  

The accompanying presentation provides a review of the 2021 State Legislative Session, the State 

Budget process, and the resulting impacts to KHS. 

 

Requested Action  

Receive and File. 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

233 / 308



2021 Legislative and 
Budget Summary

December 16, 2021

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

234 / 308



Background
• The 2021 State Legislative session ended on 10/10 as this was the deadline 

for the Governor to sign or veto bills.

• 71 Bills were being tracked. Of those, 15 passed the legislature and were 
signed by the Governor. Of those, 4 are notably impactful to KHS. 

• Many issues were handled in the State Budget process.

• Worked internally and with Trade Associations to monitor, analyze, and 
advocate on relevant bills and the budget throughout the year.

• Internal exec workgroup reviewed impactful items for implementation 
implications.

• Reviewed relevant items with KHS management. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

235 / 308



State Budget
• Generally, the State experienced a revenue surplus and influx of federal funds allowing 

for investment in many new programs/benefits. 

• Comprehensive funding for CalAIM items. Delayed D-SNP requirement to 2026, with 

DHCS feasibility study to occur in 2022. Also funded a statewide Population Health 

Management Platform.

• Children and Youth Behavioral Health Initiative. This Initiative includes several DHCS-

specific components including additional grants to improve infrastructure and capacity 

of behavioral health services at schools, new coverage for Dyadic services, a statewide 

Virtual Care Platform, and creation of a statewide fee schedule for behavioral health 

services provided by schools with a requirement for Plans to reimburse for these 

services. 

• Expands full-scope Medi-Cal to adults ages 50 and over regardless of immigration 

status, effective no sooner than May 1, 2022.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

236 / 308



State Budget
• Implements the American Rescue Plan Act option to expand Medi-Cal eligibility to 

postpartum individuals for 12 months (currently it’s 60-days) effective April 1, 2022.

• Funds indefinitely the restoration of “optional benefits” (audiology and speech therapy, 

incontinence creams and washes, optician and optical lab services, podiatric services) 

and the Proposition 56 payment program. Previously these programs were set to end 

this fiscal year, unless extended.

• Adds a new benefit for Doula services and includes Community Health Workers as an 

allowable Medi-Cal provider type as of 1/1/22. (DHCS delayed to July 2022 pending 

workgroup discussions). 

• Adds continuous glucose monitors as a Medi-Cal covered benefit for beneficiaries with 

Type 1 diabetes effective January 1, 2022. (To be covered under Medi-cal Rx after 

recent DHCS decision)

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

237 / 308



State Budget
• Adds whole genome sequencing as a Medi-Cal benefit for infants one year of age or 

younger receiving inpatient hospital services in an intensive care unit. Effective no 

sooner than January 1, 2022.

• Extends all telehealth flexibilities enacted due to the Public Health Emergency through 

December 31, 2022. DHCS creating a stakeholder group to determine the ongoing 

flexibilities to be considered as part of the next budget. 

• Adds remote patient monitoring as a Medi-Cal covered modality for services deemed 
appropriate.

• Requires DMHC to establish quality measures and equity benchmark standards, 
including enforcement actions for non-compliance. (MY 2023)

• …and more…

• General next steps: DHCS/DMHC workgroups and policy development. Communicating 
guidance as it is received.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

238 / 308



State Legislation

• SB 510 –
• Requires Knox-Keene Plans to provide coverage for FDA-approved COVID 19 testing 

provided in-or-out-of-network. Out-of-network payment set at “market rate” and 
doesn’t align with normal Medi-Cal language. Retroactive to 3/4/2020.

• Requires coverage of COVID 19 preventive services and immunizations. Vaccines are 
currently carved-out of Medi-Cal Managed Care, bill language doesn't account for 
this.

• Prohibits prior auth requirements on COVID 19 testing, services, and immunizations.

• Provisions persist after the public health emergency expires.

• Requires coverage of services in the event of future diseases that result in a 
declared emergency, without prior auth. 

• Next steps: DHCS and DMHC in discussions about Medi-Cal implications. DMHC 

will be releasing reimbursement information. DHCS confirmed COVID vaccine still carved-
out in 2022. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

239 / 308



State Legislation

• SB 48 –
• Covers annual cognitive health assessment for Medi-Cal beneficiaries 

who are 65 years of age or older if they are otherwise ineligible for a 
similar assessment as part of an annual wellness visit under the 
Medicare Program. Goal is to ID signs of Alzheimer’s or dementia.

• Providers shall be reimbursed for providing the assessment if (1) the 
providers complete cognitive health assessment training and (2) use 
validated tools determined by the Department.

• Questions on how an MCP would identify whether Medicare should 
cover. Looks like Medicare generally covers for Part B.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

240 / 308



State Legislation

• SB 306 –
• Requires Plans to provide coverage for home test kits for 

sexually transmitted diseases and the laboratory costs for 
processing those kits that are deemed medically necessary 
or appropriate and ordered directly by a health care 
provider.

• Requires every licensed health care professional engaged in 
providing prenatal care or attending a birthing patient at 
the time of delivery to provide syphilis screening and 
testing as outlined in the most recent guidelines published 
by the State Department of Public Health.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

241 / 308



State Legislation

• SB 535 –
• Prohibits a Plan after July 1, 2022, from requiring prior 

authorization for biomarker testing for an enrollee with 
advanced or metastatic stage 3 or 4 cancer. Also prohibits 
requiring prior authorization for biomarker testing for 
cancer progression or recurrence in the enrollee or insured 
with advanced or metastatic stage 3 or 4 cancer.

• Defines “biomarker test” as a diagnostic test of the cancer 
patient’s biospecimen, such as tissue, blood, or other bodily 
fluids, for DNA or RNA alterations, including phenotypic 
characteristics of a malignancy, to identify an individual 
with a subtype of cancer, in order to guide patient 
treatment.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

242 / 308



Next Steps

• Bills impacting KHS will result in further guidance by DMHC and/or 
DHCS.

• KHS staff will be involved with Trade Associations and DHCS/DMHC in 
developing draft policies where relevant. 

• Final policies are shared with plans via contract amendment or “All-
Plan Letters” that outline specific requirements and timelines.

• Material changes to KHS policy or budget will be independently   
raised to the Board of Directors as needed.

• Preparations for 2022 Legislative Session and State Budget Cycle.

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

243 / 308





KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

NEW VENDOR CONTRACTS
December 16, 2021

Legal Name
DBA

Specialty Address Comments
Contract
Effective 

Date
PAC 11/03/2021

Bienstar Community Clinic Primary Care 1619 Cecil Ave. Ste. A
Delano CA  93215

Existing Provider: C. 
Alvarez

12/1/2021

Jungwon Oh
dba: EZ ACU & Herb Inc.

Acupuncture
1619 S. H Street
Bakersfield CA  93304 12/1/2021

PAC 12/01/2021

John Stolpe BCO, BADO Ocularist/P&O
18455 Burbank Blvd Ste. 202
Tarzana CA  91356

1/1/2022

Nisim Surgical General Surgery
500 Old River Road Ste. 185
Bakersfield CA  93311

Existing Provider: A. 
Nisim

1/1/2022

Valley View Care Center LLC SNF
729 Browning Road
Delano CA  93215

Retro-Eff 
12/1/2021

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

245 / 308



KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
TERMED CONTRACTS
December 16, 2021

Legal Name
DBA

Specialty Address Comments
Term

Effective 
Date

Sreedhar Kommineni, MD, PCD Anesthesiology
4500 Morning Drive Ste. 102
Bakersfield CA

Resigned 7/19/2021

Carole A. Casteen, MD, Inc Ophthalmology
1026 Calloway Drive Ste. 200
Bakersfield CA

Retirement 7/31/2021

Patrick Leung, MD Allergy & Immunology
804 18th Street
Bakersfield CA

Retirement 9/30/2021

Delano Ambulance Service, Inc Ambulance
403 Main Street
Delano CA

Site Closed 10/1/2021

TIL LP
dba: Bellagio in the Desert

SNF/CLF
2639 W Avenue K-4
Lancaster CA 

Site Temp Closed / 
Requires New CDPH 
Licensure and FFS 
Enrollment

10/14/2021

Diane K. Najera
dba: Prudential Care Counseling

Mental Health
3200 21st Street Ste. 101
Bakersfield CA

Resigned 11/1/2021

Yakdan Al Qaisi MD General Practice
4040 San Dimas Street Ste. A
Bakersfield CA

Contract Termination 
with Cause

11/6/2021

Delano PostAcute Care, LLC SNF  
729 Browning Road
Delano CA

Change of Ownership 11/15/2021

Kim's Acupuncture Clinic Acupuncture
1619 S. H Street
Bakersfield CA Not enrolled in FFS 11/18/2021

Pine Medical Transport Transportation
602 H Street Ste. 120
Bakersfield CA

Not enrolled in FFS / 
Denied by DHCS

11/24/2021

Lucky Services Transportation
4949 Buckley Way Ste. 110
Bakersfield CA

Not enrolled in FFS / 
Denied by DHCS

12/6/2021

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

246 / 308



 

 

 

To:  KHS Board of Directors 

From: Martha Tasinga M.D, MPH, MBA, Chief Medical Officer 

Date:  December 16, 2021 

Re:     CMO BOARD REPORT 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Medical Cost and Utilization Trend Analyses: (Attachment A) 

 

Physician Services: (PCPs, Specialists, Hospitalist, Other Professional and Urgent Care): 

There has been an upward trend in the professional visits per member per month for the SPDs 

since August 2021. The professional services utilization for the other Aide Categories have been 

stable. As we look at the diagnosis driving the outpatient utilization for SPDs, we see that chronic 

kidney disease and diabetes and number one and two. The third highest diagnosis is wellness 

exams without complaints. With the implementation of population health programs, we are hoping 

to see more routine visits to the doctor continue. We prefer that the members use more doctor 

office visits to stabilize their chronic conditions instead of waiting until they need ER or inpatient 

care. For all Aide Categories combined, the top three reasons for seeking professional services 

continues to be chronic kidney disease, wellness exams and diabetes in that order.   

 

Pharmacy 

The monthly cost and utilization per enrollee for all Aide Categories has been stable (coming in 

on budget) since the beginning of 2021. Following transitioning Rx benefits administration to the 

State on 1/1/21, KHS will continue to do drug utilization review (DUR) only. Our P&T /DUR 

Committee will become the DUR Committee. The DUR Committee will review quality data to 

improve our MCAS scores and assure providers follow quality standards and best practice 

protocols when prescribing drugs for our members.  

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

247 / 308



Inpatient Services 

The PMPM capitation cost and cost per bed-day and cost per admission continue to be higher than 

budget for all Aide Categories.  While the days per /1000 enrollees and admits per /1000 enrollees 

continues to be below budget.  The Graphs show peaks in utilization reflect surges in COVID 

related admissions.   With COVID related cases trending down since the fall, utilization has 

dropped and cost per day of care has fallen (even though still above budget).  The unknown is what 

is going to happen for the remainder of 2021 and first quarter of 2022 following the holiday season. 

In 2021, we saw a spike in demand from COVID for this same period.  KHS continues to work 

with community partners to increase vaccination rates among our membership.  This is particularly 

important knowing fully vaccinated members are less likely to be hospitalized and more likely to 

survive infection.  Most admissions continue to be at BMH with KM a close second.  (See 

Attachment B). 

 

Hospital Outpatient 

We see an increase in utilization of hospital outpatient services starting into August 2021. We 

continue to work with our hospitalist teams to increase use of observation units for patient who do 

not need to be in an acute hospital for more than 72 hours. The observation stays are considered 

and counted as outpatient hospital services for reporting purposes. Hence, they are tracked here.   

In 2022, we will be implementing “step–down” care programs for members released from 

emergency rooms but unable to return home or to their PCP. These units will provide recuperative 

care services either in a respite care facility or through a transition of care program. Patients who 

qualify won’t need to be admitted to an acute care hospital freeing beds for patients with higher 

acuity conditions.  We are hopeful that these programs will have a positive impact on the utilization 

of observation level of care.  

 

Emergency Room (ER) 

ER cost and utilization of ER visits have been below budget for all Aide Categories since the 

beginning of the pandemic. The most frequent diagnosis for the ER across all member categories 

remains COVID-19 ACUTE RESPIRATORY DISEASE.  Most of the ER visits continue to  occur 

at BMH (See Attachment D). 

 

Obstetric Metrics: (Attachment C) 

The report shows a drop in deliveries. This is due to delay in claims. Usually, it takes up do 45 

days to get a claim after a delivery.  The data shows the number of deliveries, adjusted for changes 

in enrollment size, remains stable and unaffected by the pandemic. Our C/Section rate of 16% 

continue to be below the State goal of 22.8%, and below a public health target of 23.9% set by the 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention in its Healthy People 2020 goals. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

248 / 308



 

Managed Care Accountability Set (MCAS) 

This is a set of performances measures that DHCS selects for annual reporting  by  Medi- Cal 

managed care health plans (MCPs). The new Managed Care Accountability Set (MCAS) 

prescribes a set of 39 quality measures, with 16 measures subject to a 50% Minimum Performance 

Level (MPL) benchmark. Each measurement count requires a patient encounter specific to 

service(s), that when performed, will indicate the measurement was met for that patient. All KHS 

members identified as having the medical condition associated with the measurement represent 

the denominator. When members receive service(s), it is recorded as “compliant” becoming part 

of the numerator. The level of achievement is shown as the percentage (%) of members who have 

received required (service(s). The minimum target performance percentage (MPL) is established 

by DHCS each year and they might also add or remove required measures every year. As a result 

of these changes, Medi-Cal health plans and providers are under increased pressure to coordinate 

their quality programming and metrics. 

KHS continues to find new ways to engage our members during this time with the COVID-19. 

The trending report is “real-time”, meaning it is updated following receiving an encounter claim 

showing the targeted service was utilized.    

There are 10 of the 16 boxes that are green. This means that we are performing better than we were 

last year at this time and there is a high probability that we could meet the MPL. The 5 yellow 

boxes are measures that we are less than 25 percentiles below our 2020 performance. Usually, 

Staff will focus on these measures to make usure we can change them form yellow to green. There 

is one red measure. This means that we are performing more than 25 percentiles below the 2020 

performance and unlikely to meet the MPL for this measure for the current year.  

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

249 / 308



Kern Health Systems

KHS Medical Management
Performance Dashboard

(Critical Performance Measurements)

Attachment A

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

250 / 308



(Includes: Primary Care Physician Services, Referral Specialty Services, Other Professional Services and Urgent Care)

Physician Services

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

251 / 308



(Includes: Claims paid by PBM)

Pharmacy

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

252 / 308



(Includes: Inpatient Hospital Claims)

Inpatient

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

253 / 308



(Includes: Inpatient Hospital Claims)

Inpatient

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

254 / 308



Outpatient Hospital
(Includes: Outpatient Diagnostic, Outpatient Surgery, Outpatient Observation, and Outpatient Other)

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

255 / 308



Emergency Room

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

256 / 308



Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21

BAKERSFIELD MEMORIAL 660 597 628 593 549 656 653 643 525 402 456 398 484

KERN MEDICAL 358 365 408 343 369 455 365 408 381 390 452 475 479

MERCY HOSPITAL 340 271 255 262 232 298 332 293 304 279 277 228 211

ADVENTIST HEALTH 259 277 277 266 260 322 309 315 329 329 354 261 293

GOOD SAMARITAN HOSPITAL 104 79 93 68 77 100 88 89 103 98 99 83 95

Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21

DELANO REGIONAL HOSPITAL 36 38 56 56 26 49 65 73 70 54 65 66 75

BAKERSFIELD HEART HOSP 65 41 54 54 57 44 63 46 37 44 35 38 35

OUT OF AREA 315 288 277 273 279 346 334 288 366 315 376 362 358

Inpatient Admits by Hospital

Attachment B

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

257 / 308



Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21

BAKERSFIELD MEMORIAL 127 130 156 140 110 132 117 113 129 132 171 149 100

KERN MEDICAL 135 127 154 126 95 92 83 120 97 73 71 75 24

MERCY HOSPITAL 57 37 43 38 35 32 32 30 38 36 51 48 31

OTHER 45 46 50 37 49 44 31 58 55 39 57 46 28

DELANO REGIONAL HOSPITAL 16 14 24 20 11 17 13 12 27 17 16 30 16

Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21

VAGINAL DELIVERY 302 284 334 288 245 253 229 260 268 242 309 281 164

C-SECTION DELIVERY 74 67 85 63 46 64 45 70 73 53 57 61 32

PREVIOUS C-SECTION DELIVERY 4 3 8 10 9 0 2 3 5 2 0 6 3

Obstetrics Metrics

Attachment C

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

258 / 308



Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21

BAKERSFIELD MEMORIAL 2,210 2,025 2,051 2,169 2,166 2,475 2,770 2,983 2,988 3,154 3,475 3,133 2,767

MERCY HOSPITAL 1,622 1,554 1,489 1,542 1,419 1,758 1,917 2,112 2,085 2,218 2,380 2,111 1,918

ADVENTIST HEALTH 1,406 1,410 1,376 1,334 1,210 1,402 1,504 1,638 1,606 1,751 1,773 1,744 1,502

KERN MEDICAL 1,342 1,251 1,304 1,343 1,233 1,481 1,532 1,668 1,732 1,712 1,856 1,745 1,551

BAKERSFIELD HEART HOSP 153 161 153 157 146 163 179 189 180 172 226 234 195

Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21

OUT OF AREA 1,049 957 889 819 846 1,038 1,123 1,337 1,303 1,372 1,647 1,420 1,247

KERN VLY HLTHCRE HOSP 102 103 106 90 97 67 101 121 108 136 157 134 119

Emergency Visits by Hospital

Attachment D

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

259 / 308



MCAS MY2021 Performance Trending Metrics through November 2021

AMR

59.30 %
MPL: 75.32%

Under MPL by 16.02%
AMR is not held to MPL.

Previous YTD: 53.92%

BCS

50.24 %
MPL: 63.77%

Under MPL by 13.53%
Previous YTD: 50.73%

CBP

12.36 %
MPL: 66.79%

Under MPL by 54.43%
Previous YTD: 4.70%

CCS

48.78 %
MPL: 67.99%

Under MPL by 19.21%
Previous YTD: 48.37%

CDC HBA1C >9

69.40 %
MPL: 34.06%

Under MPL by 35.34%
Inverted Measure

Previous YTD: 66.32%

CHL Adults and Peds

54.61 %
MPL: 66.15%

Under MPL by 11.54%
Previous YTD: 54.07%

CIS

18.62 %
MPL: 53.66%

Under MPL by 35.04%
Previous YTD: 17.00%

IMA

30.70 %
MPL: 50.61%

Under MPL by 19.91%
Previous YTD: 34.46%

PPC Post

66.18 %
MPL: 83.70%

Under MPL by 17.52%
Previous YTD: 69.35%

PPC Pre

44.32 %
MPL: 92.21%

Under MPL by 47.89%
Previous YTD: 45.93%

W30 0 - 15 Months

31.42 %
MPL: 82.82%

Under MPL by 51.40%
Previous YTD: 29.36%

W30 15 - 30 Months

51.90 %
MPL: 68.33%

Under MPL by 16.43%
Previous YTD: 56.02%

WCC BMI

28.22 %
MPL: 87.18%

Under MPL by 58.96%
Previous YTD: 25.49%

WCC NC

19.46 %
MPL: 79.32%

Under MPL by 59.86%
Previous YTD: 12.68%

WCC PAC

19.05 %
MPL: 82.48%

Under MPL by 63.43%
Previous YTD: 11.38%

Page 1 of 18

Attachment E

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

260 / 308



MCAS MY2021 Performance Trending Metrics through November 2021
WCV

34.40 %
MPL: 61.97%

Under MPL by 27.57%
Previous YTD: 30.82%

Measure rates are thru claims only - no supplemental data nor medical record reviews are included

Page 2 of 18

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

261 / 308



MCAS MY2021 Performance Trending Metrics through November 2021
Asthma Medication Ratio
The percentage of members 5–64 years of age who were identified as having persistent asthma and had a ratio of controller medications to total asthma medications of 0.50 
or greater during the measurement year.
This measure is not held to MPL.

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2020 40.00% 60.96% 58.63% 56.31% 55.73% 55.13% 55.06% 54.70% 54.68% 54.11% 53.92% 54.03%
2021 41.67% 69.33% 61.32% 59.84% 57.51% 57.63% 57.03% 57.71% 58.33% 58.23% 59.30%
MPL 62.43% 62.43% 62.43% 62.43% 62.43% 62.43% 62.43% 62.43% 62.43% 62.43% 62.43% 62.43%

896
1,511

59.30
AMR

%
53.92%
é

Page 3 of 18

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

262 / 308



MCAS MY2021 Performance Trending Metrics through November 2021
Breast Cancer Screening
The percentage of women 50–74 years of age who had one or more mammograms any time on or between October 1 two years prior to the measurement year and 
December 31 of the measurement year.

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2020 33.55% 37.55% 44.27% 45.03% 45.82% 46.57% 47.36% 48.30% 48.94% 49.94% 50.73% 51.61%
2021 35.66% 37.10% 38.70% 40.39% 42.15% 44.56% 45.89% 47.08% 48.06% 49.17% 50.24%
MPL 58.82% 58.82% 58.82% 58.82% 58.82% 58.82% 58.82% 58.82% 58.82% 58.82% 58.82% 58.82%

5,819
11,583

50.24
BCS

%
50.73%
ê

Page 4 of 18

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

263 / 308



MCAS MY2021 Performance Trending Metrics through November 2021
Controlling High Blood Pressure
The percentage of members 18–85 years of age who had a diagnosis of hypertension (HTN) and whose BP was adequately controlled (<140/90 mm Hg) during the 
measurement year.

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2020 0.85% 2.06% 2.53% 2.87% 3.11% 3.21% 3.30% 3.40% 3.60% 4.15% 4.70% 5.15%
2021 0.00% 0.99% 2.56% 3.51% 4.31% 5.77% 6.22% 6.64% 6.96% 10.00% 12.36%
MPL 61.80% 61.80% 61.80% 61.80% 61.80% 61.80% 61.80% 61.80% 61.80% 61.80% 61.80% 61.80%

2,439
19,732

12.36
CBP

%
4.70%
é

Page 5 of 18

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

264 / 308



MCAS MY2021 Performance Trending Metrics through November 2021
Cervical Cancer Screening
The percentage of women 21–64 years of age who were screened for cervical cancer using either of the following criteria:
• Women 21–64 years of age who had cervical cytology performed within the last 3 years.
• Women 30–64 years of age who had cervical high-risk human papillomavirus (hrHPV) testing performed within the last 5 years.
• Women 30–64 years of age who had cervical cytology/high-risk human papillomavirus (hrHPV) cotesting within the last 5 years.

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2020 41.01% 41.57% 42.83% 43.49% 44.10% 44.77% 45.46% 46.23% 46.84% 47.70% 48.37% 49.07%
2021 39.74% 39.81% 40.71% 42.05% 43.05% 44.87% 45.78% 46.55% 47.23% 48.09% 48.78%
MPL 61.31% 61.31% 61.31% 61.31% 61.31% 61.31% 61.31% 61.31% 61.31% 61.31% 61.31% 61.31%

19,463
39,902

48.78
CCS

%
48.37%
é

Page 6 of 18

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

265 / 308



MCAS MY2021 Performance Trending Metrics through November 2021
Comprehensive Diabetes Care
The percentage of members 18–75 years of age with diabetes (type 1 and type 2) who had recent HbA1c level is >9.0% or is missing a result, or if an HbA1c test was not done 
during the measurement year.
Inverted Measure - a lower rate is desired for this measure.

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2020 0.00% 0.99% 3.01% 3.03% 84.38% 78.25% 75.43% 73.89% 72.60% 69.21% 66.32% 64.77%
2021 100.00% 99.74% 96.42% 90.02% 84.24% 81.70% 73.96% 74.00% 70.92% 69.38% 69.40%
MPL 37.47% 37.47% 37.47% 37.47% 37.47% 37.47% 37.47% 37.47% 37.47% 37.47% 37.47% 37.47%

8,914
12,845

69.40
CDC HBA1C >9

%
66.32%
ê

Page 7 of 18

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

266 / 308



MCAS MY2021 Performance Trending Metrics through November 2021
Chlamydia Screening in Women
The percentage of women 16–24 years of age who were identified as sexually active and who had at least one test for chlamydia during the measurement year.

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2020 23.85% 31.72% 36.70% 39.23% 41.73% 44.14% 46.70% 48.98% 50.57% 52.75% 54.07% 55.68%
2021 18.37% 27.83% 35.37% 39.07% 43.30% 46.23% 48.38% 50.36% 51.70% 53.67% 54.61%
MPL 58.34% 58.34% 58.34% 58.34% 58.34% 58.34% 58.34% 58.34% 58.34% 58.34% 58.34% 58.34%

6,166
11,290

54.61

CHL Adults and 
Peds

%
54.07%
é

Page 8 of 18

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

267 / 308



MCAS MY2021 Performance Trending Metrics through November 2021
Childhood Immunization Status
The percentage of children 2 years of age who had four diphtheria, tetanus and acellular pertussis (DTaP); three polio (IPV); one measles, mumps and rubella (MMR); three 
haemophilus influenza type B (HiB); three hepatitis B (HepB), one chicken pox (VZV); four pneumococcal conjugate (PCV); one hepatitis A (HepA); two or three rotavirus (RV); 
and two influenza (flu) vaccines by their second birthday.

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2020 9.77% 11.08% 12.65% 14.08% 14.59% 15.12% 15.48% 15.80% 15.98% 16.62% 17.00% 17.83%
2021 9.59% 10.78% 12.43% 14.47% 15.68% 16.85% 17.30% 17.59% 17.86% 18.21% 18.62%
MPL 37.47% 37.47% 37.47% 37.47% 37.47% 37.47% 37.47% 37.47% 37.47% 37.47% 37.47% 37.47%

1,214
6,521

18.62
CIS

%
17.00%
é

Page 9 of 18

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

268 / 308



MCAS MY2021 Performance Trending Metrics through November 2021
Immunizations for Adolescents
The percentage of adolescents 13 years of age who had one dose of meningococcal vaccine, one tetanus, diphtheria toxoids and acellular pertussis (Tdap) vaccine, and have 
completed the human papillomavirus (HPV) vaccine series by their 13th birthday. The measure calculates a rate for each vaccine and two combination rates.

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2020 24.84% 26.21% 27.74% 5.07% 30.06% 31.09% 31.75% 32.75% 33.60% 34.16% 34.46% 34.75%
2021 21.16% 22.16% 23.79% 24.84% 25.73% 26.93% 27.66% 29.43% 29.88% 30.41% 30.70%
MPL 36.86% 36.86% 36.86% 36.86% 36.86% 36.86% 36.86% 36.86% 36.86% 36.86% 36.86% 36.86%

2,163
7,046

30.70
IMA

%
34.46%
ê

Page 10 of 18

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

269 / 308



MCAS MY2021 Performance Trending Metrics through November 2021
Postpartum Care
The percentage of deliveries of live births on or between October 8 of the year prior to the measurement year and October 7 of the measurement year.
Postpartum Care. The percentage of deliveries that had a postpartum visit on or between 7 and 84 days after delivery.

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2020 45.40% 49.50% 52.39% 56.45% 58.38% 59.38% 60.18% 61.23% 61.98% 66.44% 69.35% 69.93%
2021 37.74% 46.16% 51.23% 56.89% 58.32% 57.22% 57.86% 57.65% 59.06% 63.14% 66.18%
MPL 76.40% 76.40% 76.40% 76.40% 76.40% 76.40% 76.40% 76.40% 76.40% 76.40% 76.40% 76.40%

3,221
4,867

66.18
PPC Post

%
69.35%
ê

Page 11 of 18

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

270 / 308



MCAS MY2021 Performance Trending Metrics through November 2021
Prenatal Care
The percentage of deliveries of live births on or between October 8 of the year prior to the measurement year and October 7 of the measurement year.
Timeliness of Prenatal Care. The percentage of deliveries that received a prenatal care visit in the first trimester, on or before the enrollment start date or within 42 days of 
enrollment in the organization.

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2020 28.53% 32.71% 35.68% 37.91% 39.82% 41.98% 43.85% 45.32% 46.10% 46.16% 45.93% 45.61%
2021 25.62% 29.74% 31.80% 33.39% 34.99% 38.38% 40.17% 42.28% 43.94% 44.14% 44.32%
MPL 89.05% 89.05% 89.05% 89.05% 89.05% 89.05% 89.05% 89.05% 89.05% 89.05% 89.05% 89.05%

2,157
4,867

44.32
PPC Pre

%
45.93%
ê

Page 12 of 18

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

271 / 308



MCAS MY2021 Performance Trending Metrics through November 2021
Well-Child Visits in the First 30 Months of Life
The percentage of members who had the following number of well-child visits with a PCP during the last 15 months. 
Well-Child Visits in the First 15 Months. Children who turned 15 months old during the measurement year: Six or more well-child visits.

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2020 31.91% 30.98% 31.27% 30.63% 29.98% 29.65% 29.69% 29.14% 29.92% 29.40% 29.36% 29.16%
2021 29.33% 29.77% 31.03% 30.74% 30.75% 30.35% 29.98% 30.51% 30.72% 30.94% 31.42%
MPL 67.88% 67.88% 67.88% 67.88% 67.88% 67.88% 67.88% 67.88% 67.88% 67.88% 67.88% 67.88%

1,187
3,778

31.42

W30 0 - 15 
Months

%
29.36%
é

Page 13 of 18

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

272 / 308



MCAS MY2021 Performance Trending Metrics through November 2021
Well-Child Visits in the First 30 Months of Life
The percentage of members who had the following number of well-child visits with a PCP during the last 15 months. 
Well-Child Visits for Age 15 Months–30 Months. Children who turned 30 months old during the measurement year: Two or more well-child visits.

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2020 44.45% 47.67% 50.03% 51.28% 51.92% 53.12% 53.96% 54.57% 55.30% 55.78% 56.02% 56.20%
2021 38.39% 41.98% 44.41% 46.39% 47.65% 48.91% 50.24% 51.09% 51.42% 51.70% 51.90%
MPL 74.70% 74.70% 74.70% 74.70% 74.70% 74.70% 74.70% 74.70% 74.70% 74.70% 74.70% 74.70%

3,547
6,834

51.90

W30 15 - 30 
Months

%
56.02%
ê

Page 14 of 18

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

273 / 308



MCAS MY2021 Performance Trending Metrics through November 2021
Weight Assessment and Counseling for Nutrition and Physical Activity for Children/Adolescents
The percentage of members 3-17 years of age who had BMI Percentile documented during the measurement year.

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2020 5.81% 8.64% 11.16% 12.40% 13.97% 16.01% 17.67% 20.33% 22.37% 24.07% 25.49% 26.61%
2021 9.31% 15.51% 18.79% 20.82% 23.30% 24.59% 26.23% 26.47% 27.22% 28.22%
MPL 80.50% 80.50% 80.50% 80.50% 80.50% 80.50% 80.50% 80.50% 80.50% 80.50% 80.50% 80.50%

20,005
70,881

28.22
WCC BMI

%
25.49%
é

Page 15 of 18

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

274 / 308



MCAS MY2021 Performance Trending Metrics through November 2021
Weight Assessment and Counseling for Nutrition and Physical Activity for Children/Adolescents
The percentage of members 3–17 years of age who had Counseling for nutrition documented during the measurement year.

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2020 2.55% 3.96% 5.04% 5.57% 6.31% 7.12% 7.84% 9.03% 10.20% 11.59% 12.68% 13.43%
2021 6.35% 10.51% 12.76% 13.83% 15.84% 16.84% 18.10% 18.23% 18.81% 19.46%
MPL 71.55% 71.55% 71.55% 71.55% 71.55% 71.55% 71.55% 71.55% 71.55% 71.55% 71.55% 71.55%

13,790
70,881

19.46
WCC NC

%
12.68%
é

Page 16 of 18

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

275 / 308



MCAS MY2021 Performance Trending Metrics through November 2021
Weight Assessment and Counseling for Nutrition and Physical Activity for Children/Adolescents
The percentage of members 3–17 years of age who had Counseling for physical activity documented during the measurement year.

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2020 1.91% 3.16% 4.15% 4.60% 5.27% 6.04% 6.64% 7.72% 8.87% 10.24% 11.38% 12.06%
2021 5.84% 9.39% 11.77% 12.83% 14.68% 15.74% 17.28% 17.59% 18.36% 19.05%
MPL 66.79% 66.79% 66.79% 66.79% 66.79% 66.79% 66.79% 66.79% 66.79% 66.79% 66.79% 66.79%

13,500
70,881

19.05
WCC PAC

%
11.38%
é

Page 17 of 18

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

276 / 308



MCAS MY2021 Performance Trending Metrics through November 2021
Child and Adolescent Well-Care Visits
The percentage of members 3–21 years of age who had at least one comprehensive well-care visit with a PCP or an OB/GYN practitioner during the measurement year.

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2020 1.93% 4.69% 7.82% 9.62% 11.48% 14.76% 17.28% 20.67% 24.21% 27.41% 30.82% 33.62%
2021 0.00% 1.10% 3.72% 7.48% 11.19% 17.60% 20.64% 25.00% 28.42% 31.66% 34.40%
MPL 57.18% 57.18% 57.18% 57.18% 57.18% 57.18% 57.18% 57.18% 57.18% 57.18% 57.18% 57.18%

43,102
125,305

34.40
WCV

%
30.82%
é

Page 18 of 18

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

277 / 308





KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 

December 16, 2021 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

 

 

COMPLIANCE AND REGULATORY ACTIVITIES 

     

The December Compliance and Regulatory Affair’s Report showing October and November 

activities is included under Attachment A and B to this report.  Attachment B, KHS COVID – 19 

2021 Regulatory Guidance Tracking Log shows current DHCS requirements that health plans must 

follow concerning vaccine administration, payment of vaccine administered encounters and other 

related activities governing COVID -19 and flu vaccines.    

 

 

COVID-19 UPDATE 

 

As KHS enters its 23rd month of adjusting to the COVID-19 pandemic new strains continue to 

emerge, with the latest being Omicron.  While the federal and state government continues to push 

for higher vaccine rates, Kern County rates continues to lag most California counties.   

 

Recent developments impacting KHS include:  

 

➢ Employee Death – Unfortunately, it with sadness that I share with the Board, our second 

employee  death to COVID -19 in 2021.  The team member worked for KHS over 14 years 

and participated in several volunteer causes dear to our company and all employees. She 

was an outstanding employee. She received our Employee of Month recognition award 

three times for her hard work and dedication to her job and our enrollees.  For her years of 

service, we will rename the conference room in the Department where she worked in her 

honor and to pay tribute to her memory and all that she’s given to Kern Health Systems 

over her years of service.  

➢ Hospital Admissions and  Bed Day Trends -  KHS’s COVID -19 related hospitalizations 

continues to decline since peaking during late summer.  Entering the winter holiday season 

when social activities increase and events are held inside, could mean another serge in first 

quarter next year.  Omicron currently accounts for 1% of infections so it’s not clear if it 

will become the dominant strain and how impactful it will be particularly among those 

previously vaccinated. (Pfizer indicated the new variant could require a second booster 

shot).   The grafts on the following page shows weekly trends for admissions and hospital 

beds days for KFHC enrollees since the pandemic’s inception. 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

279 / 308



Kern Health Systems 

Board of Directors Meeting 

CEO Report December 2021 
Page 2 of 8 

 

 

 
 

 

4 5
1

0
2

8
2

9
3

1
3

7 3
5

4
4 4
1

9
5

1
2

8
1

5
1

1
4

6
1

9
0

2
5

0
3

1
5

3
7

2
4

1
6

4
0

6
4

2
0

3
5

2
3

5
1 3

1
1 2

6
8 2
3

8
2

5
1

2
3

7
2

4
2 2
1

2
2

0
9

2
0

8
1

9
4

2
1

7
2

1
2

2
4

1
2

6
1

2
7

9
3

2
6

3
5

8
4

1
5

5
3

8
5

8
5 5
6

3
5

9
1

5
4

2 4
9

9 4
5

6
3

9
8

4
0

1
3

9
8 3
7

7
3

6
8 3

2
7

3
2

3
3

4
6

3
3

0 3
0

5
2

9
9

3
1

3
3

0
4

3
1

0
3

3
3

3
3

6 3
1

4
3

0
7

3
0

3
3

0
5

3
1

2
3

0
4

3
4

5
3

8
0

4
2

8
4

9
7

5
3

3
6

1
4

6
8

3
6

9
6

7
3

7
7

2
8

7
2

1
7

3
5 7
1

7
6

6
0

6
5

1
6

4
0

6
3

7 6
1

5
5

5
0

5
4

7

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

1
5

-M
ar

2
2

-M
ar

2
9

-M
ar

5
-A

p
r

1
2

-A
p

r
1

9
-A

p
r

2
6

-A
p

r
3

-M
ay

1
0

-M
ay

1
7

-M
ay

2
4

-M
ay

3
1

-M
ay

7
-J

u
n

1
4

-J
u

n
2

1
-J

u
n

2
8

-J
u

n
5

-J
u

l
1

2
-J

u
l

1
9

-J
u

l
2

6
-J

u
l

2
-A

u
g

9
-A

u
g

1
6

-A
u

g
2

3
-A

u
g

3
0

-A
u

g
6

-S
e

p
1

3
-S

e
p

2
0

-S
e

p
2

7
-S

e
p

4
-O

ct
1

1
-O

ct
1

8
-O

ct
2

5
-O

ct
1

-N
o

v
8

-N
o

v
1

5
-N

o
v

2
2

-N
o

v
2

9
-N

o
v

6
-D

ec
1

3
-D

ec
2

0
-D

ec
2

7
-D

ec
3

-J
an

1
0

-J
an

1
7

-J
an

2
4

-J
an

3
1

-J
an

7
-F

e
b

1
4

-F
e

b
2

1
-F

e
b

2
8

-F
e

b
7

-M
ar

1
4

-M
ar

2
1

-M
ar

2
8

-M
ar

4
-A

p
r

1
1

-A
p

r
1

8
-A

p
r

2
5

-A
p

r
2

-M
ay

9
-M

ay
1

6
-M

ay
2

3
-M

ay
3

0
-M

ay
6

-J
u

n
1

3
-J

u
n

2
0

-J
u

n
2

7
-J

u
n

4
-J

u
l

1
1

-J
u

l
1

8
-J

u
l

2
5

-J
u

l
1

-A
u

g
8

-A
u

g
1

5
-A

u
g

2
2

-A
u

g
2

9
-A

u
g

5
-S

e
p

1
2

-S
e

p
1

9
-S

e
p

2
6

-S
e

p
3

-O
ct

1
0

-O
ct

1
7

-O
ct

2
4

-O
ct

3
1

-O
ct

7
-N

o
v

1
4

-N
o

v
2

1
-N

o
v

2
8

-N
o

v

Weekly Bed Days

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

280 / 308



Kern Health Systems 

Board of Directors Meeting 

CEO Report December 2021 
Page 3 of 8 

 

 

 

Vaccine Distribution and Monitoring 

 

Kern County has administered more than 976,699 doses of the COVID-19 vaccine, as of December 

8th, according to data from DataBases.com.  49% of the eligible population living in Kern County 

are fully vaccinated as of that date.   Vaccination rates for our eligible members continue to lag 

below the County average although rates have improved since last reported.   

 

September 1st, KHS began a new COVID -19 Vaccination Incentive Program focused on 

identifying unvaccinated beneficiaries, educating them as to the vaccine’s importance, increasing 

access to COVID-19 vaccination sites and providing incentives to encourage becoming 

vaccinated.  A presentation of the status of the Vaccination Incentive Program is found under 

Agenda Item 18.  

 

  

 

 

PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES (UPDATES) 

 

Rx Carve-Out  

 

DHCS remains committed to the carve-out of Pharmacy services on 1/1/22. KHS staff continue to 

work with the State in preparation for this transition. DHCS is taking the necessary steps to ensure 

beneficiaries can receive their prescriptions, and that pharmacies will have available needed 

information regarding claims and prior authorizations. DHCS is also providing Medi-Cal managed 

care plans with the necessary data to ensure appropriate utilization and continuity of care for 

beneficiaries enrolled in managed care. The internal KHS project team is finalizing operational 

readiness for this transition. This includes training and communication, finalizing data and 

workflow testing, and general cutover preparations.   

 

 

CalAIM 

 

KHS is on track to implement the CalAIM items launching on 1/1/22. This includes the transition 

of the Health Homes Program to Enhanced Care Management (ECM), implementation of 

community supports (formerly ILOS), coverage of Major Organ Transplants, and enrolling new 

populations into Medi-Cal Managed Care. Concurrently, DHCS and internal staff are participating 

in preparations for future CalAIM transitions in 2023 and beyond. Several Corporate Projects in 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

281 / 308



Kern Health Systems 

Board of Directors Meeting 

CEO Report December 2021 
Page 4 of 8 

 

 

2022 are dedicated to CalAIM initiatives and DHCS continues the policy development process on 

several initiatives. 

 

 

Youth Behavioral Health Initiative  

 

The State Budget for 2021-2022 included five years of funding for several initiatives aimed at 

improving behavioral health services for students. This includes $400 million statewide over three 

years in incentives funding to build infrastructure, partnerships, and capacity for school behavioral 

health services. While details have emerged regarding the various program design options, DHCS 

is still defining many aspects of this program. KHS leadership is strategizing the approach to 

engaging local schools and County Behavioral Health in these opportunities. Some preliminary 

conversations have taken place, but DHCS will need to provide final program design to proceed 

with local planning efforts. The draft timeline would have KHS working with local entities in Q1 

2022 to identify potential partners and target populations. Once that is defined, the group would 

have until Q4 2022 to conduct a needs assessment and propose specific interventions eligible for 

incentive funding.     

 

 

LEGISLATIVE SUMMARY UPDATE 

 

State Legislative Session 

 

The legislative session officially ended on October 10th, as this was the final day for the Governor 

to sign or veto any bills. 71 Bills were being tracked by KHS staff. Of those, 15 passed the 

legislature and were signed by the Governor. Of those, only 5 are notably impactful to KHS. 

Additionally, many significant changes were included as part of the State Budget process. A 

detailed presentation of the final bills and State Budget items of interest to KHS is included in this 

Board packet under separate cover.  

 

Looking ahead to 2022, the State Legislature will reconvene on January 3rd. Additionally, the 

January draft Governor’s budget is expected by January 10th. Current fiscal estimates predict the 

State will have significant surpluses during the upcoming budget cycle. 

 

Federal Legislative Session 

   

Regarding the Build Back Better (BBB) Act, all eyes are on the Senate parliamentarian as she 

works through the provisions and issues her rulings. As a reminder, for a provision to survive the 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

282 / 308



Kern Health Systems 

Board of Directors Meeting 

CEO Report December 2021 
Page 5 of 8 

 

 

“Byrd Bath,” it must show it has a budgetary impact—a provision cannot simply change policies 

without those policies directly impacting federal spending. We, therefore, expect some House-

passed policies, such as immigration, to not survive the Byrd Bath. The parliamentarian will be 

looking closely at the drug pricing provisions as well. Beyond the parliamentarian’s review, BBB 

could face additional concerns from Senators Manchin and Sinema, although so far, they have 

been fairly quiet on the bill. Senator Sinema did indicate this week that she does not believe BBB 

will pass before Christmas.  

 

 

KHS DECEMBER 2021 ENROLLMENT: 

Medi-Cal Enrollment  

As of December 1, 2021, Medi-Cal enrollment is 204,733 which represents an increase of 0.4% 

from November enrollment. 

Seniors and Persons with Disabilities (SPDs) 

As of December 1, 2021, SPD enrollment is 15,419, which represents a decrease of 0.08% from 

November enrollment. 

Expanded Eligible Enrollment 

As of December 1, 2021, Expansion enrollment is 78,958, which represents an increase of 0.9% 

from November enrollment. 

Kaiser Permanente (KP) 

As of December 1, 2021, Kaiser enrollment is 12,679 which represents an increase of 0.9% from 

November enrollment. 

Total KHS Medi-Cal Managed Care Enrollment 

As of December 1, 2021, total Medi-Cal enrollment is 311,789 which represents an increase of 

0.5% from November enrollment. 

 

Enrollment Note 

 

The U.S. Department of Health & Human Services continued its public health emergency order 

resulting in the Department of Health Care Services extending the freeze on redeterminations. 

Thus, the Kern County Department of Human Services’ suspension of their “automated 

discontinuance process” for Medi-Cal Redeterminations continues.  Halting the process means 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

283 / 308



Kern Health Systems 

Board of Directors Meeting 

CEO Report December 2021 
Page 6 of 8 

 

 

members are not required to demonstrate they remain eligible for Medi-Cal which ordinarily they 

would have to prove or be eliminated from receiving benefits. In the meantime, Kern DHS 

continues working new Medi-Cal applications, reenrollments, successful renewals, additions, etc. 

The impact from members remaining eligible and new members being added inflates KHS’s 

enrollment because deletions are not occurring as it would normally occur had the automated 

discontinuance process remained in place. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Membership as of 

Month of Eligibility FAMILY SPD EXPANSION KP BABIES Member Total

2017-12 170,006             14,084        57,141           7,933         447               249,611          

2018-12 172,290             14,531        58,837           8,371         478               254,507          

2019-12 175,128             15,539        60,503           9,044         429               260,643          

2020-03 174,938             15,607        60,314           9,222         429               260,510          

2020-06 180,985             15,576        63,560           9,664         422               270,207          

2020-09 186,881             15,541        67,197           10,393       468               280,480          

2020-12 191,516             15,549        69,947           10,916       407               288,335          

2021-03 194,722             15,532        72,395           11,353       386               294,388          

2021-06 198,598             15,515        75,126           11,867       395               301,501          

2021-09 201,527             15,478        77,228           12,255       509               306,997          

2021-10 202,453             15,462        77,815           12,421       475               308,626          

2021-11 203,413             15,431        78,229           12,568       459               310,100          

2021-12 204,352             15,419        78,958           12,679       381               311,789          

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

284 / 308



Kern Health Systems 

Board of Directors Meeting 

CEO Report December 2021 
Page 7 of 8 

 

 

 

 

KHS MARKETING AND PUBLIC RELATIONS 

 

KHS Sponsorships 

 

KHS will share sponsorship in the following upcoming activities in December and January: 

 

KHS will share sponsorship in the following events in December and January: 

 

• KHS donated $10,000 to the Kern Partnership for Children & Families Holiday Cottage 

(the nonprofit organization for the Kern County Department of Human Services).  This 

charity event has been happening for 34 years to grant Christmas wishes for local foster 

children.  Due to the pandemic, they are unable to open the cottage to receive donations 

from the community.  They turned to local businesses and partners to support them again 

this year to continue this annual tradition.  Our donation will fill the wishes for 200 

children. 

 

• KHS donated $1,500 to “Holiday Lights” benefiting the California Living Museum. 

 

• KHS donated $5,000 to the “Mayor’s Ball” benefiting CityServe. 

   

• KHS donated $750 to Orlie’s Shoe Drive to support their efforts providing a new pair of 

tennis shoes to children at Bessie Owens Elementary (Bakersfield City School District). 

   

• KHS donated $500 to the Kern County Hispanic Chamber of Commerce to sponsor their 

“2021 Holiday Reception”. 

 

• KHS donated $1,500 to the Kern County Law Enforcement Foundation to sponsor their 

“33rd Annual Officer of the Year Awards Dinner”. 

   

• KHS donated $2,000 to “CHiPS for Kids Toy Drive” to help them purchase toys for their 

annual toy drive benefiting low-income children in our community. 

 

• KHS donated $700 to Clinica Sierra Vista to sponsor the holiday luncheon for their Patient 

Access to Care Program employees. 

   

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

285 / 308



Kern Health Systems 

Board of Directors Meeting 

CEO Report December 2021 
Page 8 of 8 

 

 

 

• KHS donated $3,000 to the Kern County Cancer Foundation to sponsor their Pediatric 

Cancer Holiday Drive-thru event.   

 

• KHS donated $2,000 to Children First Campaign to support their 10 for 10 Children First 

fundraising campaign celebrating their 10 years of service to families in East Bakersfield. 

 

• KHS donated $1,000 to the Bakersfield City School District Foundation to sponsor their 

“25th Annual Teddy Bear Picnic”. 

 

• KHS donated $2,500 to “Christmas with the Cranktones” benefiting the Kern County 

Cancer Foundation. 

  

• KHS donated $1,645 to Houchin Community Blood Bank for their promotion in January 

– “Resolve to Get Fit and Save Lives!”  The goal is to encourage blood donations and to 

promote exercise and good health.  One lucky blood donor in January will win a Peloton 

bike, earbuds, cycling shoes and weights sponsored by KHS. 

 

• KHS donated $1,000 to the “Thin Mint 5K and Shortbread Shuffle” benefiting the Girls 

Scouts. 

 

 

 

Employee Newsletters 

 

KHS Employee Newsletters can be seen by clicking the following links: 

 

• October 2021 –  

 

Keeping Up with KHS 30th Edition - October 2021 (campaign-archive.com) 

 

• November 2021 –  

 

Keeping Up with KHS 31st Edition - November 2021 (campaign-archive.com) 

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

286 / 308



Compliance and Regulatory Affairs Update
Board of Directors Meeting

Jane MacAdam

Director of Compliance and Regulatory Affairs

December 16, 2021

Attachment A

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

287 / 308



STATE REGULATORY AFFAIRS

All Plan Letters released since the October 14, 2021 Kern Health Systems Board of 
Directors’ meeting: 

The Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) released five new All Plan Letters and 
revised one previously release APL twice during this time period, including the 
following:  

• APL20-022  COVID-18 Vaccination Administration
This previously released APL was updated.  DHCS will continue to carve out the COVID-19 
vaccines and associated administration fees from the Medi-Cal managed care delivery system 
and will reimburse providers. Additionally, the APL addresses approval  of vaccines for every 
California age 5 and older and in accordance with CDC and ACIP guidelines, booster 
recommendations, and face covering guidance in response to  variants and population 
vaccination rates.

• APL21-013  Dispute Resolution Process Between Mental Health Plans and Medi-Cal Managed 
Care Health Plans
The purpose of this APL is to provide guidance to Plans on how to submit a service delivery 
dispute to the Department of Health Care Services when the dispute cannot be resolved at 
the local level with a Mental Health Plan. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

288 / 308



• APL21-014  Alcohol and Drug Screening, Assessment, Brief Interventions and Referral to 
Treatment

The purpose of this APL is to clarify the Plan’s primary care requirement to provide Alcohol 
and Drug Screening, Assessment, Brief Interventions and Referral to Treatment (SABIRT) to 
members ages 11 years and older, including pregnant women.

• APL21-015  Benefit Standardization and Mandatory Managed Care Enrollment Provisions of 
the California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal Initiative

The purpose of this APL is to provide guidance to Plans on the Benefit Standardization and 
Mandatory Managed Care Enrollment provisions of the California CalAIM initiative.

• APL21-016  California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal Incentive Payment Program

The purpose of this APL is to provide Plans with guidance on the incentive payments linked 
to the Enhanced Care Management and Community Supports programs implemented by 
the CalAIM initiative.

• APL21-017  Community Supports Requirements

The purpose of this APL is to provide guidance to Plans regarding the provision of 
Community Supports and the development and operation of these services by Plans 
implementing Community Supports.

STATE REGULATORY AFFAIRS (continued)

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

289 / 308



The Department of Managed Care Services (DMHC) released two new All Plan 
Letters during this time period, including the following: 

• APL 21-022  Hospital Surges; Continued Applicability of DMHC COVID-19 Requirements and 
Guidance
Plans are reminded that they should take appropriate actions if they find their 
administrative requirements are unnecessarily impeding hospitals’ ability to efficiently care 
for patients. The APL also provides a listing of past APLs that provide guidance to Plans 
regarding the handling of the Public Health Emergency.

• APL 21-023  Flu Vaccines; Preparation for COVID-19 Vaccines
The APL reminds health plans of their obligation to cover influenza vaccinations. As well as 
encouraging plans to take steps now to proactively prepare for the administration of COVID-
19 vaccines to children between age 5 to 11 years.

STATE REGULATORY AFFAIRS (continued)

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

290 / 308



Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov

2019 6 3 2 1 2 8 1 2 3 7 1

2020 5 3 20 21 6 12 6 3 7 5 3

2021 9 2 12 4 5 6 6 9 3 5 5

0

5

10

15

20

25
Number of Regulatory All Plan Letters Received by the Plan

2019 2020 2021

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

291 / 308



Non COVID-19 
Related APLs or 

Guidance
71%

COVID-19 Related 
APLs or Guidance

29%

Percentage of COVID-19 vs. Non COVID-19 Related 
APLs or Guidance January - November  2021

36

100

66

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Year-to-Date Comparison of All Plan Letters and Guidance 
Letters Received by the Plan for Years  2019, 2020, & 2021

2019 2020 2021

Regulatory 
All Plan 
Letters and 
Guidance 

COVID-19 
Impact 
2021

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

292 / 308



Number of Regulatory Reports & Filings

Sent to Government Agencies for October and November 2021

Regulatory Agency October 2021 November 2021

DHCS 41 27

DMHC 3 0

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

293 / 308



▪ DMHC Follow-Up Review Survey  - August 2021
As required by Health and Safety Code section 1380(i)(2), the Department of Managed 
Health Care conducted a Follow-Up Review Survey of the outstanding deficiencies 
identified in the July 10, 2020, Final Report of the Routine Survey of Kern Health Systems. 

The Plan is waiting for the DMHC to provide a preliminary report.

▪ DHCS Medical Audit – September 2021

DHCS conducted a routine medical audit of Kern Health Systems beginning September 13, 
2021 through September 24, 2021. The survey period was August 1, 2019 through July 31, 
2021.

The Plan is waiting for the DHCS to provide a preliminary report.

2021 Routine Regulatory Audits

2020 Non-Routine Survey by the DMHC

The Plan is awaiting the preliminary report of the non-routine survey by the DMHC.

Regulatory Audits

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

294 / 308



Compliance Department 
Fraud, Waste, & Abuse Activity 

October and November 2021

State Medi-Cal Program Integrity Unit, US Department of Justice, and the Kern 
County Deputy Attorney’s Office Requests for Information for the months of October 
and November 2021

Providers: 

The Plan received three requests for information from the State Medi-Cal Program 
Integrity Unit related to potential provider fraud, waste, or abuse. Additionally, during 
the same time period, the Plan received an information request from the Kern County 
District Attorney’s Office regarding an update to a prior request for Provider claims 
information. 

Members: 

During October and November 2021, the Plan did not receive any requests for 
information from the State Medi-Cal Program Integrity Unit related to Plan Members.

The Plan is not provided with an outcome in relation to the information requests by 
the regulatory agencies.

The Compliance Department maintains communications with State and Federal 
agencies and cooperates with their related investigations and requests for information. 

Continued…

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

295 / 308



Fraud, Waste, & Abuse 
Allegations Reported to the Plan

October and November 2021

Members:

During October and November 2021, the Compliance 
Department did not receive any allegations of fraud, waste, 
or abuse involving Plan Members. 

Providers:

During October and November 2021, the Compliance 
Department received one allegation of  Provider fraud from 
the public. The Plan is investigating the allegation. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

296 / 308



Compliance Department
HIPAA Breach Activity 

October and November 2021

Summary of Potential Protected Health Information (“PHI”) Disclosures for 
October and November 2021

The Plan is dedicated to ensuring the privacy and security of the PHI and personally 
identifiable information (“PII”) that may be created, received, maintained, transmitted, 
used or disclosed in relation to the Plan’s members.  The Plan strictly complies with the 
standards and requirements of Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 
(“HIPAA”) and the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act 
(“HITECH”).

In October and November 2021, the Compliance Department investigated and 
reported on three allegations of privacy concerns. Two of the three were closed as 
non-breaches and one of the incidents is still under review. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

297 / 308



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021

Attachment B

State 
Agency

Date 
Received 
by Plan

Title
Department 

Impacted
Status Summary Status

DHCS 11/22/2021
APL20-022 -  COVID-18 
Vaccination 
Administration

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 11/09/21 APL 
update sent to 
stakeholders
2. 12/10/21 & 
12/13/21 meeting 
scheduled to 
discuss APL with 
Stakeholders.  

DHCS will carve out the COVID-19 vaccines and associated 
administration fees from the Medi-Cal managed care delivery 
system and will reimburse providers under Medi-Cal fee-for-
service (FFS) for medical, pharmacy, and outpatient claims.

Updates include: New language regarding eligibility, Booster 
shots, and  Confirms the continued carve out of vaccines from 
MMC. 

DHCS 11/9/2021
APL20-022 -  COVID-18 
Vaccination 
Administration

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 11/09/21 APL 
update sent to 
stakeholders
2. 12/10/21 & 
12/13/21 meeting 
scheduled to 
discuss APL with 
Stakeholders. 

DHCS will carve out the COVID-19 vaccines and associated 
administration fees from the Medi-Cal managed care delivery 
system and will reimburse providers under Medi-Cal fee-for-
service (FFS) for medical, pharmacy, and outpatient claims.

Updates include: COVID-19 Vaccine Administration -  
Approves the use of vaccines for every California age 5 and in 
accordance with CDC and ACIP guidelines, Booster 
Recommendations – Changes requirements based on vaccine 
type and age, and Face Covering Guidance in Response to 
COVID -19 Variants and Population Vaccination Rates.

DMHC 11/1/2021

APL21-023 -  Flu 
Vaccines; Preparation for 
COVID-19 Vaccines for 
ages 5-11

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
Member Services
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 11/1/2021 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Complete

The DMHC reminds health plans of their existing obligation 
to cover CDC recommended immunizations, including 
influenza vaccinations, without any cost-sharing.1 California 
Health and Safety Code section 1367.002. Additionally, the 
APL encourages Plans prepare for administration of COVID-
19 vaccines to children ages 5-11 

DMHC 10/26/2021
APL 21-022 – Continued 
Applicability of COVID-
19 Requirements 

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
Member Services
Compliance

1. 10/26/21 APL 
sent to 
Stakeholders.
2. Complete 

The DMHC encourages health plans should examine their 
administrative staffing levels, the wait times for hospital staff 
to speak with plan representatives when the hospital  staff 
contact the plan, and the amount of time it takes the plan to 
respond to hospitals’  requests for admissions, transfers, and/or 
discharges and that the Plan should take appropriate  actions if 
they find their administrative requirements are unnecessarily 
impeding  hospitals’ ability to efficiently care for patients

DHCS 9/29/2021
APL20-022 (Revised)
COVID-19 Vaccine 
Administration

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 9/30/21 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Stakeholder 
Meeting to be 
scheduled
3. 

DHCS will carve out the COVID-19 vaccines and associated 
administration fees from the Medi-Cal managed care delivery 
system and will reimburse providers under Medi-Cal fee-for-
service (FFS) for medical, pharmacy, and outpatient claims.

Updates include: Third Dose of Vaccine for Persons 
Considered Moderately or Severely Immunosuppressed, 
Booster Recommendations, COVID-19 Testing Requirements 
for Health and Congregate Care Workers, Face Covering 
Guidance in Response to COVID-19 Variants and Population 
Vaccination Rates, Requirements for Visitors in Acute Health 
Care and Long-Term Care Settings, and Health Care Worker 
Vaccine Requirement

DHCS 9/24/2021
APL21-010 COVID-19 
Vaccine Incentive

Member Services
Provider Network 
Management
Health Services
Marketing
Finance
Compliance

1. 09/01/2021 
Updated APL Sent 
to Stakeholders.
2. Weekly 
Stakeholder 
Meetings are 
ongoing.

Effective September 1, 2021, participating Plans may be 
eligible to participate in the Medi-Cal COVID-19 Vaccination 
Incentive Program. MCP Eligibility and Participation. The 
Plan's participation in this incentive program is voluntary, but 
strongly encouraged.by DHCS. MCPs that elect to participate 
must adhere to program and applicable federal and state 
requirements in order to earn incentive payments.

1 of 4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

298 / 308



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021

Attachment B

State 
Agency

Date 
Received 
by Plan

Title
Department 

Impacted
Status Summary Status

DMHC 8/17/2021

 APL 21-021 - Transfer of 
Hospital Enrollee; Order of 
the State Public Health 
Officer Hospital and 
Health Care System Surge

Member Services
Provider Network 
Management
Health Services
Marketing
Finance
Compliance

1. 8/18/21 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. 9/13/21 
Stakeholder 
meeting
3. 9/21/21 UM 
submitted updated 
P&Ps.
4. Complete

This APL reminds health plans of their obligations to comply 
with California Code of Regulations, title 28, section 
1300.67.02. That section directs plans  to remove certain 
barriers to enrollee transfers between hospitals when such 
transfers  are made pursuant to a public health order. Section 
1300.67.02 also specifies how plans must reimburse for the 
transfer and continued hospitalization of enrollees transferred 
pursuant to a public health order.

DHCS 9/9/2021

APL20-004 (Revised) 
Emergency Guidance for 
Medi-Cal Managed Care 
Health Plans in Response 
to COVID-19

Pharmacy
Member Services
Claims
Provider Network 
Management
Health Services
Health Homes 
Program
IT - Configuration
Compliance

1. 09/09/21 
Stakeholders sent 
APL.
2. 9/29/21 
Stakeholders met 
and reviewed the 
requirements of the 
APL.
3. Complete

The purpose of this APL revision is to provide information to 
Medi-Cal managed plans on temporary changes to federal 
requirements as a result of the ongoing global Novel 
Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) pandemic. The APL covers 
the approved 1135 Waiver and other guidance provided by 
DHCS in response to the public health crisis. Updates to this 
release, include: Continuation of Benefits & Aid Paid Pending, 
Pediatric Well-Care guidance including telehealth, 
Transportation,  Return of EDV in 2021-2022,, Initial Health 
Assessments, Quality Monitoring, Programs & Initiatives, 
QMRT returns, Timely Access Survey, and COVID-19 
Testing Requirements.

DHCS 7/8/2021
APL20-011 (Revised) 
Governor's Executive 
Order

Quality 
Improvement
Health Services
Member Services
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 7/7/2021 APL 
update and template 
sent to Jane D. , 
Deb M, and Dr. 
Tasinga outlining 
reporting 
requirements
2. 7/19/21 Site 
Review Tracker 
submitted to the 
DHCS
2. 7/30/21 
Stakeholder 
Meeting
3. Complete

The purpose of this revised APL is to provide information to 
Plans regarding the termination of temporary flexibilities that 
were issued by the Department of Health Care Services 
(DHCS) pursuant to Executive Order (EO) authority in 
response to the COVID-19 public health emergency 
(PHE).Specific areas addressed, include: MCP Site Reviews 
and Subcontractor Monitoring, Annual Medical Audits, Health 
Risk Assessments. Additionally, the Plan will submit no later 
than August 1, 2021, a written plan detailing how the  will 
address and complete any site reviews not conducted during 
the PHE, including projected timelines.  

DMHC 6/7/2021 APL21-016

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1.6/8/2021 Set to 
Stakeholders. No 
action required by 
Stakeholders at this 
time.

As health plans must continue to cover certain COVID-19 
testing for their enrollees pursuant to federal law, this APL 
announces that the CDC issued updated guidance on May 27, 
2021, which provides clarity regarding when a test provides an 
individualized assessment versus when it is for surveillance 
purposes. On June 7, 2021, the California Department of 
Public Health (CDPH) issued updated COVID-19 testing 
guidance. A copy of the guidance can be found at the website 
of the California Department of Public Health. The updated 
guidance outlines when diagnostic testing, including 
diagnostic screening testing, may be appropriate

2 of 4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

299 / 308



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021

Attachment B

State 
Agency

Date 
Received 
by Plan

Title
Department 

Impacted
Status Summary Status

DHCS 5/5/2021
APL20-022 (Revised)
COVID-19 Vaccine 
Administration

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 5/10/2021 
Stakeholders met 
and discussed the 
updated APL that 
was released on 
5/5/2021.
2. 5/19/2021 
Stakeholders 
discussed the Plan's 
COVID-19 
Communication 
Plan and efforts to 
reach homebound 
Members.

DHCS will carve out the COVID-19 vaccines and associated 
administration fees from the Medi-Cal managed care delivery 
system and will reimburse providers under Medi-Cal fee-for-
service (FFS) for medical, pharmacy, and outpatient claims.

*APL Update - 5/5/2021 MCPs should take steps to identify 
members who may be homebound and contact those members 
to determine if they have already been vaccinated against 
COVID-19 and, if not, whether they want to be vaccinated. 
For those members who have not been vaccinated and want to 
be, the MCP should ascertain whether the member wants an in-
home vaccination. After the MCP identifies those homebound 
members who want an in-home vaccination, the MCPs are to 
refer the member to the MyTurn appointment request system 
and instruct the member to check the box to indicate they need 
an in-home vaccination.

DHCS 4/22/2021
DHCS Communication to 
MCPs Regarding Virtual 
CSR/MT Certification

QI Department
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Compliance

1. 4/22/21 Sent to 
Stakeholders

Due to the continued PHE, DHCS will allow MCPs to conduct 
CSR certifications virtually with post PHE verification done in 
person for the FSR portion (MRR portion done virtually does 
not require verification). Similarly, due to the continued PHE, 
MMU will now offer to conduct Master Trainer certifications 
virtually on a case by case basis only with post PHE 
verification done in person for the FSR portion. 

DHCS 3/12/2021
APL20-022 (Revised)
COVID-19 Vaccine 
Administration

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 3/16/2021 APL 
sent to 
Stakeholders.
2. 3/29/2021 
Stakeholders 
reviewed the 
document and 
discussed next 
steps. The 
Stakeholders will 
continue to meet to 
discuss the Plan's 
communication 
Strategy.

DHCS will carve out the COVID-19 vaccines and associated 
administration fees from the Medi-Cal managed care delivery 
system and will reimburse providers under Medi-Cal fee-for-
service (FFS) for medical, pharmacy, and outpatient claims.

*Update - Beginning March 15, 2021, health care providers 
may use their clinical judgement to vaccinate individuals ages 
16-64 who are deemed to be at the very highest risk for 
morbidity and mortality from COVID-19 as a direct result of 
one or more severe health conditions, or if as a result of a 
developmental or other severe high-risk disability or other 
factors. Individuals will self-attest to having one of the 
qualifying conditions.

DMHC 3/12/2021

APL 21-012 - COVID-19 
Vaccine Prioritization for 
Individuals with High-Risk 
Health Conditions and/or 
Disabilities

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 3/12/2021 APL 
sent to 
Stakeholders.
2.4/2/2021 
Compliance to send 
review of APL 
requirements to 
Stakeholders. APL 
aligns with DHCS 
APL20-022 
(revised)

The California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) issued 
a Provider Bulletin (“Provider Bulletin”) regarding vaccine 
prioritization for individuals deemed to be at the very highest 
risk to get very sick from COVID-19 either because the 
individual has one or more enumerated severe health 
conditions and/or a developmental or other significant, high-
risk disability.

3 of 4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

300 / 308



KHS COVID-19 Regulatory Guidance
 Tracking Log 2021

Attachment B

State 
Agency

Date 
Received 
by Plan

Title
Department 

Impacted
Status Summary Status

DHCS 3/9/2021

APL20-004 (Revised) 
Emergency Guidance for 
Medi-Cal Managed Care 
Health Plans in Response 
to COVID-19

Pharmacy
Member Services
Claims
Provider Network 
Management
Health Services
Health Homes 
Program
IT - Configuration
Compliance

1. 3/11/21 APL sent 
to Stakeholders.
2. 3/30/21 
Stakeholders met 
and discussed the 
revies APL. 
Member Services 
and Utilization 
Management will 
implement the new 
requirements of the 
APL.

The purpose of this APL revision is to provide information to 
Medi-Cal managed plans on temporary changes to federal 
requirements as a result of the ongoing global Novel 
Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) pandemic. The APL covers 
the approved 1135 Waiver and other guidance provided by 
DHCS in response to the public health crisis.

*Update - This update includes information regarding the 
provision of: previously authorized services when a Member’s 
appeal involves the termination, suspension, or reduction of 
previously authorized services, MCPs must provide APP when 
the member timely files; the AAP has developed guidance on 
providing pediatric well-care during COVID-19, including 
guidance on the necessary use of telehealth during the COVID-
19 pandemic; Postponement of the annual Encounter Data 
Validation activities, and COVID-19 testing requirements 
outlined in the COVID-19 Virus and Antibody Testing 
guidance document.

DHCS 2/1/2021
COVID-19 Vaccination 
Administration Claims 
Data Exchange

IT
Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
Member Services
Compliance

1. 2/1/2021 Sent to 
Stakeholders by 
CEO
2. 2/2/202 Richard 
queued the work 
needed for weekly 
disbursement of the 
report to 
Stakeholders.
3. Complete

DHCS notified Plans that it will begin transferring member 
specific COVID-19 vaccination administration claims data to 
Medi-Cal Managed Care Plans beginning on Thursday, 
February 4, 2021.

DHCS 1/6/2021
COVID-19 Codes, 
Effective Dates, and 
PACES Deployment Dates

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 1/6/2021 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Complete

DHCS sent the spreadsheet to Plans to inform them of updates 
regarding COVID-19 codes. It provides code descriptions, 
effective dates, and tentative PACES deployment dates. Please 
utilize this information appropriately for encounters including 
COVID-19 services.

DHCS 1/5/2021

Medi-Cal Payment for 
Telehealth and 
Virtual/Telephonic 
Communications Relative 
to the 2019-Novel 
Coronavirus 

Provider Network 
Mgmt.
Health Services
Claims
IT- Configuration
Compliance

1. 1/6/2021 Sent to 
Stakeholders
2. Complete

Update to guidance provided on June 23, 2020. This iteration 
of the guidance provides details regarding changes to 
telehealth and home health visits and changes to E/M codes 
for outpatient telehealth services. DHCS will provide 
additional guidance regarding both areas at the end of January. 
There is also updates to the FAQ included in the document.

4 of 4

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

301 / 308





 

 

To:  KHS Board of Directors 

From: Bruce Wearda, R.Ph. 

Date: December 16, 2021 

Re: Recommendation of Pharmacy & Therapeutic (P&T)/ Drug Utilization Review (DUR) 

Committee Members 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Background:   

Jeremiah Joson, Pharm D. recently stepped down from our P&T / DUR Committee.  When an opening 

occurs on one of KHS’s clinical committees, the appropriate committee undertakes a search for a 

replacement.  In accordance with KHS Policy 10.01-I, all committee nominees are presented to the Board 

of Directors for formal appointment.  Each new committee member serves for two years.  

The P&T / DUR Committee wishes to present Pat Person, Pharm D as the replacement.  Dr. Person has 

worked at a local independent pharmacist with Ming & H since 1999.  He recently purchased the pharmacy 

in 2021.  He has served on many pharmacy boards including the California Pharmacy Association where 

he was President.  He is active in many community organizations and events.   

Following his appointment, Dr. Person will join the following current members of the Committee who 

include: 

• Allison Bell, Pharm. D 

• Dilbaugh Gehlawat, M.D. 

• Sarabjeet Singh, MD., FACC, FAHA, FACP  

• Saman Ratnayake, M.D.  

• Vasanthi Srinivas, M.D., OB/GYN 

• Joseph Tran, Pharm D.   

The KHS Board Pharmacy Representative (Dr. Kimerly Hoffmann), KHS CMO (Dr. Martha Tasinga), and 

Director of Pharmacy (Bruce Wearda) are ongoing standing committee members as well.   

Note: Beginning 2022, with the administration of pharmacy benefits returning to the State, the P&T / DUR 

Committee will not continue to oversee the Pharmacy and Therapeutics portion of its duties. However, it 

will continue to perform its Drug Utilization Review oversight role on KHS’s behalf.  The new Committee 

name will be the DUR Committee.  

Requested Action:   

Approve the appointment of Pat Person, Pharm D to the DUR Committee. 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

303 / 308





 

 

 

 

To:  KHS Board of Directors 

From: Bruce Wearda, R.Ph. 

Date: December 16, 2021 

Re:  Pharmacy & Therapeutics (P&T) modifications to KHS’s Formulary 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Background   

As of January 1st, 2022, KHS will no longer administer pharmacy benefits but will retain the 

quality review functions under the newly titled Drug Utilization Review Committee.  In the past, 

the Committee was responsible for assessing KHS’s drug formulary to assure that the 

pharmaceuticals available and the manner prescribed,  provided appropriate treatment for the 

medical conditions for which they were prescribed.  

Med-Cal has added new medications to their formulary to address coverage of certain dental 

procedures.  Since these new medications will be effective 12/01/2021,  KHS will need to include 

these medications in its formulary (albeit only for one month). The fiscal impact to KHS is 

minimal. 

 

Requested Action   

Add the following recommendation for inclusion on the KHS formulary:   

➢ Peridex (chlorhexidine gluconate) a dental aid preparation 

➢ Kenalog in Orabase (triamcinolone acetonide) a dental aid preparation 

➢ Senna (sennosides) a laxative 

 

 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

305 / 308





 

SUMMARY  
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  
 

KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS 
2900 Buck Owens Boulevard 
Bakersfield, California 93308 

 
Friday, October 8, 2021  

 
8:00 A.M. 

 
 
COMMITTEE RECONVENED 

 
Members: Deats, Martinez, McGlew, Melendez, Rhoades 
ROLL CALL: 4 Present; 1 Absent - Deats 
 
NOTE: The vote is displayed in bold below each item.  For example, Rhoades-Deats 
denotes Director Rhoades made the motion and Director Deats seconds the motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT:  ALL ITEMS LISTED 
WITH A “CA” WERE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND APPROVED BY ONE MOTION. 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 

 
 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Committee on any 
matter not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Committee. Committee 
members may respond briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask 
a question for clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request 
staff to report back to the Committee at a later meeting. Also, the Committee may 
take action to direct the staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. 
SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL 
YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 
NO ONE HEARD 

 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 
 

2) On their own initiative, Committee members may make an announcement or a report 
on their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to 
staff or take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda 
(Government Code Section 54954.2(a)(2)) 
 
 
 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

307 / 308



Summary  
Finance Committee Meeting Page 2 
Kern Health Systems 10/8/2021  

 

 
DIRECTOR RHOADES REPORTED ON THE CURRENT RETURN TO WORK 
POLICY AND STATED THAT HE WOULD LIKE TO SEE EMPLOYEES BACK IN 
THE BUILDING 
 

CA-3) Minutes for Kern Health Systems Finance Committee meeting on August 6, 2021-  
  APPROVED 
  Rhoades-Melendez: 4 Ayes; 1 Absent - Deats    
 

4) Proposed renewal and binding of employee benefit plans for medical, vision, dental, 
life insurance, short-term and long-term disability, and long-term care effective 
January 1, 2022 (Fiscal Impact: $6,520,000 Estimated; Budgeted) –  
APPROVED; REFERRED TO KHS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

  Rhoades-Melendez: 4 Ayes; 1 Absent - Deats    
 

5) Report on Kern Health Systems financial statements for July 2021 and August 2021 
(Fiscal Impact: None) –    
RECEIVED AND FILED; REFERRED TO KHS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

  Martinez-Melendez: 4 Ayes; 1 Absent - Deats    
 
6) Report on Accounts Payable Vendor Report, Administrative Contracts between 

$30,000 and $100,000 for July 2021 and August 2021 and IT Technology Consulting 
Resources for the period ended August 31, 2021 (Fiscal Impact: None) –  

 RECEIVED AND FILED; REFERRED TO KHS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
    Martinez-Melendez: 4 Ayes; 1 Absent - Deats    

 
 
ADJOURN TO FRIDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2021 AT 8:00 A.M. 

 

KHS Board of Directors Meeting, December 16, 2021

308 / 308


	KHS Board Meeting for Dec. 16, 2021 
	Agenda 
	Item 1 - Board Resolution to Allow Virtual Board Meetings 
	Item CA-5 - KHS Board Meeting Minutes of Oct. 14, 2021
	Item 6 - Report on CEO Serach Committee
	Item CA-7 - Report on KHS Investment Portfolio 
	Item CA-8 - Proposed Annual Renewal of the Reinsurance 
	Item 9 - Report on CalAIM Initiatives
	Item 10 - Proposed KHS 2022 Budgets 
	Item 11 - Proposed Budget Request for 2022 Project Consulting
	Item 12 - Report on KHS Financial Statements 
	Item CA-13 - Report on Accounts Payable for Sept. and Oct. 2021
	Item CA-14 - Proposed Agreement with Dell
	Item CA-15 - Proposed Agreement with Entysis360
	Item CA-16 - Proposed Agreement with LinkedIn
	Item 17 - Proposed Agreement with A-C Electric 
	Item 18 - Report on KHS Vaccination Incentive Program
	Item CA-19 - Report on 2021 State Legislation and Budget Overview
	Item CA-20 - Proposed KHS Provider Contracts
	Item 21 - KHS CMO Report 
	Item 22 - KHS CEO Report 
	Item CA-23 - Proposed Appointment to DUR Committee
	Item CA-24 - Proposed Modifcations to KHS Formulary
	Item CA-25 - Miscellaneous Documents 



